el CITY OF WILLARD, MISSOURI

224 W. Jackson Street  P.O.Box 187  Willard, MO 65781 417-742-3033  417-742-3080 Fax

MEETING AGENDA AND PACKET

BOARD OF ALDERMEN
Regular Meeting
September 23, 2024
6:00 p.m.

Willard City Hall

224 W. Jackson St.

Mayor
Troy Smith

Board Members

Casey Biellier

Jeremy Hill

David Keene (Mayor Pro-Tem)
Joyce Lancaster

Scott Swatosh

Carol Wilson

www.cityofwillard.org



el CITY OF WILLARD, MISSOURI

224 W. Jackson Street  P.O. Box 187  Willard, MO 65781 417-742-3033  417-742-3080 Fax

Agenda Item #2

Agenda Amendments/Approval of Agenda

—_— e ————

09/23/2024 BOA Meeting Agenda




CITY OF WILLARD
BOARD OF ALDERMEN
REGULAR MEETING
September 23, 2024
6:00 P.M.

Posted on September 18, 2024 @ 1:30 p.m.

Notice is hereby given that the City of Willard, Missouti, Board of Aldermen will conduct 2 meeting on
September 23, 2024, at 6:00 p.m., at the Willard Community Centet, 222 W. Jackson St., Willard, MO.

The tentative agenda of this meeting includes:
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Call the meeting to order.
1. Roll Call
2. Agenda Amendments/Approval of Agenda

3. Consent Agenda:
“A Consent Agenda allows the Board of Aldermen to consider and approve routine items of business without

discussion. Any member of the Board of Aldermen, the City Staff or the Public may request removal of any item
from the Consent Agenda and request that it be considered under the Regular Agenda if discussion or debate of
the item is desired. Items not removed from the Consent Agenda will stand approved upon motion by any Board
member, second and unanimous vote to “approve the Consent Agenda as published or modified.”

Minutes from the Regular Meeting September 9, 2024

August Financial Summaries

August Financial Statements

August/September Outstanding Invoices, Checks and Draft Paid Invoices
August Check Register

August Utility Adjustments Report

S

4. Current Outstanding Invoices, Draft & Check Paid Invoices for August/September 2024

5. Citizen Input
6. Request to Declare the Current Parks Department Bus as Surplus

7. Presentation and Explanation by Catl Brown from GettingGreatRates.com of the Cost
Increase Analysis of the Water & Sewer Rates for the City of Willard, MO

8. Ordinance Amending Chapter 705 Waterworks System, Article IT Water Service, Section
705.040 Water Rates and Chaptet 710 Sewer Use and Sewer Rates, Article VII Wastewater
Charges and Rates, Section 710.470 Rates of the Municipal Code of the City of Willard.

9. City Administrator Remarks

#
09/23/2024 BOA Meeting Agenda Page 1




10. New Business

11. Unfinished Business

12. Adjourn Meeting
If you have special needs which tequire accommodation, please notify personnel at the City Hall
Representatives of the news media may obtain copies of this notice by contacting the City Cletk at 417-742-

5302.

Janice Gargus
City Clerk

#
09/23/2024 BOA Meeting Agenda Page 2




] CITY OF WILLARD, MISSOURI

224 W. Jackson Street  P.0.Box 187  Willard, MO 65781 417-742-3033  417-742-3080 Fax

Consent Agenda Item #3

“A Consent Agenda allows the Board of Aldermen to consider and approve routine
items of business without discussion. Any member of the Board of Aldermen, the
City Staff or the Public may request removal of any item from the Consent Agenda
and request that it be considered under the Regular Agenda if discussion or debate
of the item is desired. Items not removed from the Consent Agenda will stand
approved upon motion by any Board member, second and unanimous vote to
“approve the Consent Agenda as published or modified.”

Minutes from the Regular Meeting September 9, 2024

August 2024 Financial Summaries

August 2024 Financial Statements

August/September 2024 Outstanding Invoices, Checks and Draft Paid
Invoices

August 2024 Check Register

f.  August 2024 Utlity Adjustments Report

po oo

o

ﬂ
09/23/2024 BOA Meeting Agenda




el CITY OF WILLARD, MISSOURI

224 W. Jackson Street  P.O. Box 187  Willard, MO 65781 417-742-3033  417-742-3080 Fax

Consent Agenda Item #3a

Minutes from the Regular Meeting September 9, 2024

#
R
09/23/2024 BOA Meeting Agenda



MEETING MINUTES
CITY OF WILLARD
BOARD OF ALDERMEN
REGULAR MEETING
September 9, 2024
6:00 P.M.

Citizens Present: Sam Baird, Steve Cobb, Debbie Ihrig, Larry Whitman

Staff Present: City Administrator Wes Young, City Attorney Nate Dally, CFO Carolyn Halverson,
City Clerk Janice Gargus, Planning & Zoning Commission Director Mike Ruesch, Parks Director
Jason Knight, Project Manager Steven Bodenhamer

The tentative agenda of this meeting includes:

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Mayor Smith led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Call the meeting to order.
Mayor Smith called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and asked the City Clerk to conduct the Roll

Call.

. Roll Call
The City Clerk conducted the Roll Call.

Present:
Mayor Troy Smith, Alderman Keene, Alderman Lancaster, Alderman Swatosh, Alderman Wilson.

Not Present: Alderman Biellier, Alderman Hill

. Agenda Amendments/Approval of Agenda
Motion was made by Alderman Keene and seconded by Alderman Wilson to approve the agenda
as presented. Motion carried with a 4-0 vote. Voting aye: Aldermen Keene, Lancaster, Swatosh,

Wilson.

. Consent Agenda:
“A Consent Agenda allows the Board of Aldermen to consider and approve routine items of

business without discussion. Any member of the Board of Aldermen, the City Staff or the Public
may request removal of any item from the Consent Agenda and request that it be considered
under the Regular Agenda if discussion or debate of the item is desired. Items not removed from
the Consent Agenda will stand approved upon motion by any Board member, second and
unanimous vote to “approve the Consent Agenda as published or modified.”

Motion was made by Alderman Wilson and seconded by Alderman Lancaster to approve the
Consent Agenda as presented. Motion carried with a 4-0 vote. Voting aye: Aldermen Keene,
Lancaster, Swatosh, Wilson.

#
09/09/2024 BOA Meeting Agenda Page 1




a. Minutes from the Regular Meeting August 26, 2024
Motion was made by Alderman Wilson and seconded by Alderman Lancaster to approve the
Regular Meeting Minutes from August 26, 2024, as presented. Motion carried with a 4-0 vote.
Voting aye: Aldermen Keene, Lancaster, Swatosh, Wilson.

b. August/September 2024 Outstanding Invoices, Draft & Check Paid Invoices
Department Head Reports

d. Board Attendance Report

4. Current Outstanding Invoices, Draft & Check Paid Invoices for August/September 2024
Motion was made by Alderman Lancaster and seconded by Alderman Keene to approve the
Current Outstanding Invoices, Draft & Check Paid Invoices for August/September 2024 as
presented. Motion carried with a 4-0 vote. Voting aye: Aldermen Keene, Lancaster, Swatosh,
Wilson.

5. Citizen Input
None

6. Hear a Request from the City of Willard High School for Permission to Set Off Fireworks on
the Evening of the Homecoming Dance
Jackson (Student Body President) & Kennedy (Vice President of Student Government) asked the
BOA for permission for the Willard High School to set off fireworks at the end of the evening
following their Homecoming Dance/Celebration. They gave an account of the expected time
frame to include the fireworks, including details of how things will unfold, explaining the reason
theywant to include a fireworks display is because theirhomecoming theme is “Party in the USA.”
They said they chose this theme in follow up to the recent Olympics and want to continue with a
unified experience. The Willard High School Assistant Supervisor of Operations will provide and
set up the fireworks display and be in charge of setting off the fireworks. The fire department has
agreed to be on sight to oversee the display and be on hand in case of any emergency situations.
The display will be set up in a designated and blocked off area of the parking tot outside of the
Commons area. The dance starts at 8:00 p.m. and students will not be allowed to exit to the
parking lot to prepare to view the fireworks until 10:40 p.m. The fireworks will start at 10:45 p.m.
and conclude at 11:00 p.m. The public will be invited to attend the display. Neighborhood citizens
will be notified in advance that the display will take place so they will not be surprised or startled.
They will be invited to attend as well. They will be made aware of the event through social media,
the school newsletter, and door hangers. Wes Young did caution the BOA before making their
decision to approve or not approve the request, that if they do approve it, they may need to re-visit
our current policy due to others in the community may come forward with the same type of
request in the future. The students were asked to contact Police Chief McClain and let him know
of the BOA’s decision and make him aware of the event in case the police department receives
any phone calls. Mayor Smith asked the BOA to vote on approving the request. Motion was made
by Alderman Swatosh and seconded by Alderman Wilson to approve the City of Willard High
School Permission to Set Off Fireworks on the Evening of the Homecoming Dance. Motion carried
with a 4-0 vote. Voting aye: Aldermen Keene, Lancaster, Swatosh, Wilson.

7. Proclamation Recognizing Sam Baird for Nine Years of Service as an Alderman and Mayor

#
09/09/2024 BOA Meeting Agenda Page 2




- 00

Mayor Smith read the proclamation and presented the proclamation to Mr. Baird. Mr. Baird
responded by saying we need inspiration; and mentioned Lucy Murry & Valorie Simpson;
hundreds of others including those who volunteer for the Parks Department and Planning &
Zoning; Donna Stewart; and his wife. He said there will always be those who are unhappy with the
city regardless of the progress. He said there are several here in the room in the audience who
volunteer, and he told them thank you very much for this recognition and thank you for serving
your community.

. Approve Appointments/Re-Appointments to the Planning & Zoning Commission Board

Burnis Coleman

2. Jeff LaMontia

The BOA voted to approve the re-appointment of Burnis Coleman and Jeff LaMontia to the
Planning & Zoning Commission Board. Motion was made by Alderman Lancaster and seconded
by Alderman Keene to approve the Re-Appointments of Burnis Coleman & Jeff LaMontia to the
Planning & Zoning Commission Board. Motion carried with a 4-0 vote. Voting aye: Aldermen
Keene, Lancaster, Swatosh, Wilson.

Ordinance for Accepting the Proposal by Arrow for High-Speed Internet/VOIP Phone Service
and for Starlink Services, LLC to be used as a back up to Provide Phone & Internet Services
for the City of Willard Department Buildings and Authorizing the Mayor to Execute Al
Necessary Documents on Behalf of the City of Willard (2" Read)

a. Exhibit A: Service Order Form/Master Service Agreement for Arrow High Speed Internet/VOIP
Phone Service (Bid #1)

Exhibit B: Starlink No Contract Monthly Charges (Bid #2)

Exhibit C: Current Environment Stats vs. Tier One & Tier 2 Recommended Environments
Exhibit D: Proposed Services Stats Basic Service Internet & Phones

Exhibit E: Current Services Stats Basic Services Internet & Phone, plus back up for all but
Public Works

f. Exhibit F: Proposal/Bid from Granite Government Solutions (Bid #3)

®© 00 OoC

Carolyn Halverson explained that nothing has changed with the contract and that the term is the
same and the price holds for 36 months. Mayor Smith asked for a motion to approve the phone
and internet ordinance. Motion was made by Alderman Keene and seconded by Alderman
Lancaster to approve the Ordinance for Accepting the Proposal by Arrow for High-Speed
Internet/VOIP Phone Service and for Starlink Services, LLC to be used as a back up to Provide
Phone & Internet Services for the City of Willard Department Buildings and Authorizing the Mayor
to Execute All Necessary Documents on Behalf of the City of Willard. Motion carried with a 4-0
vote. Voting aye: Aldermen Keene, Lancaster, Swatosh, Wilson.

10. Proposal to Enter into an Agreement with Safe Slide Restoration for the Repair of the Aquatic

Center Slide
a. Exhibit A: Safe Slide Restoration Proposal

Jason explained that the damage to the slide is due to age and maintenance. He said there is a
crack in the fiberglass where it bolts to the landing. This area supports some of the weight andis
the critical part that needs to be repaired. Jason also said the outside paint is beginning to peel

*
e ae—————e———————

09/09/2024 BOA Meeting Agenda Page 3



off. After speaking to the folks at Safe Slide, the paint is not as important as sealing the inside of
the flume and preventing damage to the lining because the paint is cosmetic only. Safe Slide told
Jason it will not change the price a lot in the future should we decide to put off the paint until a
later date (the price would not increase much). Jason prefers to address all of it at once, the
inside, outside, and the paint. Wes added that in his previous community, they used Safe Slides
and they did fantastic work and were reasonable. He said that stides and pools in general have a
seven-to-ten-year life span. We stated that as far as money to cover this expense, we had
budgeted $100,000 for the community center but are using $65,000 for the rec center roof so we
could do this project and still theoretically come out ahead. Mayor Smith asked for a motion to
approve this item. Motion was made my Alderman Keene and seconded by Alderman Wilson to
Enter into an Agreement with Safe Slide Restoration for the Repair of the Aquatic Center Slide -
Option B. Motion carried with a 4-0 vote. Voting aye: Aldermen Keene, Lancaster, Swatosh
Wilson.

11. Proposal to Accept the Bid from Alliance Roof Solutions& Coating

12.

13.

Parks Director Jason Knight said he has attempted to address the issue with the leaking roof at the
Willard Rec Center for the last several years. He said that each time a leakis repaired in one area,
another leak appears in a different area. He stated that the last time it leaked onto the wood gym
floor, and this prompted the need for the new roof to leapfrog the maintenance building. He had
previously requested a bid from a company and that estimate came in around $67k. This time the
same company declined to submit a sealed bid. Jason reached out to additional companies
Dale’s Roofing declined to bid. Alliance Roofing came back with the lowest bid (with a similar
comp to what was bid the first time) compared to Redeemed Roofing. Jason said the roof needs
a full proof coating system. Alliance Roofing’s bid is a little cheaper and it will include a complete
coating of the roof, pressure wash, sealing the seams, replacing the screws and a two-part
coating. This will be performed on the whole roof. Mayor Smith asked for a motion to approve the
roof repair. Motion was made by Alderman Wilson and seconded by Alderman Lancaster to
Accept the Bid from Alliance Roof Solutions & Coating. Motion carried with a 3-0 vote. Voting aye:
Aldermen Keene, Lancaster, Wilson. Abstain: Alderman Swatosh.

Proposal to Accept the Bid from Blevins Asphalt Construction Company of Mount Vernon,
MO for the Milling & Overlaying of Jackson Street
a. Exhibit A: Contract Agreement with Blevins Asphalt Construction Company

Wes explained this item needs to be approved and signed by the Mayor to get the project started
asap. Mayor Smith asked for a motion to approve this item. Motion was made by Alderman
Lancaster and seconded by Alderman Keen to Accept the Bid from Blevins Asphalt Construction
Company of Mount Vernon, MO for the Milling & Overlay of Jackson Street. Motion carried with a
4-0 vote. Voting aye: Aldermen Keene, Lancaster, Swatosh, Wilson.

Review of Water & Sewer Rate Analysis Report for Consideration of Setting a Date for a Public
Hearing
a. Exhibit A: Water and Sewer Rate Analysis Report Willard, MO

Wes stated that using an analyst was a good idea. He said that the city needs to take on the care
of our needs stronger; save for the unexpected; and take into consideration as to whether our

#
09/09/2024 BOA Meeting Agenda Page 4




capitalimprovement plan currently in place is good and his opinionisthatitis. He said the analyst
has recommended a 35% increase in water and 29.6% for sewer and the rate has been structured
to a level of subsidization which means out of county customers will pay a higher rate. He said
that capacity fees will help offset this. He said the typical customer using 1,000 gallons within the
city probably will not see an increase, however, county customers might probably see a 50%
increase. Wes said that we haven’t increased rates on a regular basis in the past and that means
higher increases to get the rates to where they need to be. But the analyst’s proposal is designed
so that our rates can be subsidized by increase. Wes said that Carl will not be available October
10-20 and Wes will be visiting his Mom, but Carl suggests we increase asap. Mayor Smith asked
Wes if we can hold a separate meeting at the community center instead of atthe next BOA meeting
and Wes said we can, but we need to keep the agenda light. Mayor Sith asked the BOA if they
prefer a second meeting or address the increase during the regular BOA meeting. The BOA prefers
to include it during the BOA Meeting on September 23. Wes said we will get the word out to the
public and Carl can call in and be a part of the meeting to explain his analysis and answer
guestions.

14. Sanitary Sewer Project Status

Mr. Bodenhamer gave the Sanitary Sewer Project Status update and read the items listed on his
memorandum.

15. City Administrator Remarks

16.

17.

18.

Wes said the website is looking good and again it will be linked to Facebook, Instagram, and X. He
encouraged anyone who might be listening to the meeting to submit ideas now. He also said the
agenda software is going well and the new iPads to be used for meetings are looking great and will
work in tandem with the new agenda software. He said the new tools for the website is building
one so the community can give us input. Wes also discussed the Jackson Street Park lights and
whose responsibility it is to fix the lights. He said the responsibility is probably Liberty, but they
can no longer get the same bulbs so they will need to change them out. He stated there is no real
update to the special election held in June and that Greene County is stillworking on the final cost
update and we will know if we are going to receive a refund or not.

New Business

Alderman Lancaster asked if constituents need to respond to the utility survey if their house is
newer than the years listed on the survey and Wes said yes. He stated that the ultimate goalis to
know by October if there’s any lead in our systems. He said there are no penalties to citizens for
not completing the survey and he also reminded the BOA that they approved up to a $100 bill
credit on a random drawing for completing the survey.

Unfinished Business
None

Adjourn Meeting

Mayor Smith asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Motion was made by Alderman Keene
and seconded by Alderman Lancaster to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried with a 4-0 vote.
Voting aye: Aldermen Keene, Lancaster, Swatosh, Wilson.

Meeting was adjourned at 7:30 p.m.
#
——————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

09/09/2024 BOA Meeting Agenda Page 5



Janice Gargus, City Clerk

Troy Smith, Mayor

E
09/09/2024 BOA Meeting Agenda Page 6



CITY OF WILLARD
BOARD OF ALDERMEN

AGENDA ITEM #3 b-f
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Financial Reports

b. August 2024 Financial Summaries

c. August 2024 Financial Statements

d. August 2024/September 2024 Outstanding Invoices,
Checks, and Draft-paid Invoices

e. August 2024 Check Register

f. August 2024 Utility Adjustments Report

#
Finance Department Report
9/23/2024 Board of Aldermen Meeting



CITY OF WILLARD
BOARD OF ALDERMEN

AGENDA ITEM #3b
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

ACTION REQUIRED: INFORMATION ONLY

e August 2024 Financial Summary Report

#
Finance Department Report
9/23/2024 Board of Aldermen Meeting



0€ 0S2'EY0'9% 1qaq [ejoL 00°000'D02% pauajsuel | spunj |ejol
0€'0SZ'E0L'ES 1aMBS 8102 0008 SaAI9S9Y WaJ) Syied
00°000'S61'2% S}ed G102 00'0% senasay Wol SIM
00°000'6tL$ SIM p10Z 00'0% $BAI3S3Y WOJ] [eiauaD)
00°000'002% syied © [BJ3UID
1990 IB101 d0OJ BIEQ O} J2D), SPUN PAMLOJSURIL
1 |
LZ'0LE'9Y0'LE m,_nov.mm _3..3 poubissy (ejoL Nm_hg.ﬁamm _mugi paubissy jeloL 90'0BL'GELS _ spuny pauBissy jelo|
DO000'0SS paubissy spun yuei9
000002 | #0183 siadojerag
0003 paubissy spund Juesn 90°689'05% spalosd 19315
05 £98'2$ WPpaIY SNOH-U| Jawoisngy 0L'2b9'LLS pund buiieys a|qennbs a21j0d
62'992'23 s)isndag JaWOIEND or'iL spUN4 J8ssy aIN11p04 39110d
[B1OL €5°20v'28 SAUSIEIOYDS UINOA 19'v€9'292% slisodaq Jawoisny)| 92'62L'91% pung Ayoed [epnr
spun4 paubissy |y 68'926'L$ suoneuog-spaloid syied VZEV'EE9s MORS3 zOTLLYE pung ucyeanp3 [EDIPAF
Syled Tamos/iaiefn |Baguan
fpuny paudissy
|
B bLZ'GED'LS 08'120°8068 00'950'VZL'PS BYEIT'SINES 05'L80S6L"LS siEoL
[CREEE %0 EE'6YE'0TS (66'STH'T89S) 09°£57'589% 10202 66% puny y1ed
82'8L1'9T6'2$ %15 $T'956'08%5 6U'9EL VBT TS 60°THYTEL'TS £9'969'€2Z'€S pung4 1amas '8 J31eM
09'v52'6L2'v$ %TYT ££99€'2(28 08'GEL'0ZLES 08'815'8665 OR'ERL'ZLY'FS pun{ fesauan
Z0z 1sndny Jo sy U314 YIuo|A J3d 3desaay 3U3213d QF papuawwoidy 702 ‘T Asenuer
Jqej{eAy spung asuadua ysel papusilwolay [i] 3 a|qejjeAy spung spunj
|E10y Mog/osogy Junowy jenuuy [moL
1
= -~ - ]
LUS69'26% %5 v TE0TIZs €9 190 PRE TS %55 vO'92L E0E 93 05499 bAE 115 sio101
lapaal'ess) %Z8 LG'0BE'LL8'4S 0026l B 28 %82 9y’ $12'88L°LS 0S'ERZ vBE'ZS ievog-gng
{50'591'£8%) %28 15°08E'TLE'TS 00'Z6\'vAZ'ES %84 b vIZ'BRLTS 0S'£82'vRR'2S pund ysed
(e0'9p5'3LL$) %5t 64 609'619'28 EIELY' LLL'SE %EY 94'290'€05'28 00°'GB6' L4458 |m01-gns
(52'629'v¥8) %6 90°bOY'SES'TS €£9'L9Z'69E'ES ol L vLL0BS LS 00'L9Z'GIE'ES puny 19M3s
(82'91L6"1L8) %l £4°70Z'p86% 00°Z12'200'28 %BE S¥'882'TL68 004ZL'20¥'Z8 pund Jajem
§Z'20b'262% %eS LTTH0'02L"TS 00°96€'8ZE'ES %08 Zr'6rp'2L0es 00'96E'82E'ES |e104-qns
(s6'119'68) %bY S6TT9'6% 00°008'61$ %0 0008 00'857'83 \uswabeuey Asusbiaws
(5E'199'Z1$) %8 SE'T99'TIS 00'899'G\$ %0 00 0% 00'0% Juswdolaaag Jwouoa3
(18'115'p118) %8t 98'98Y'EETS 00'898b'SL2% %9L S0'6.6'814 00°000'62% wawdojansg pue Buluueld
(g9 012's€S) %GE TL'786'6625 00°'684'G98% %9E 80°ZL}'v928 00°'6L%'92L5 slPang
(59'662'SES) %EY LE'T50°'T8S 00'S0L'8Z1LS %69 25°152'5p8 00'009'69% unog
(00'enl’Lyes) %95 56 9EE'559% 00'€69'L9L"1S %LS SEESLYLLSG 00°004'66L% Asjes oliand pue me
PB'SRE'LYO' LS %19 86'015'825% 00'ESL'298% %89 28'968'695"1% DO'6L8'EOE'ZS uoneASWILPY A [BIBUSY
pun4 |e43u39
pun4 13d pasn pzoz 1sndny jo sy s3asuadug P2y vzoz 1sndny jo sy SDNUIAIY
(sass01) Jo sujen % popuadx3 po199png vzoz % paa[aay pawalosd b0z
aApenwny
20T @1eq 03 Jeap

AYVIWKWNS TYIONVYNIS




CITY OF WILLARD
BOARD OF ALDERMEN

AGENDA ITEM #3c
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

ACTION REQUIRED: REQUEST FOR MAYOR TO ACCEPT AS
PRESENTED

August 2024 Budget Financial Statements
1. Balance Sheet
2. Income Statement

__/_._—_—__-—_-g_——’_——_————/——_——_
Finance Department Report
9/23/2024 Board of Aldermen Meeting



Account
Fund: 10 - GENERAL FUND
Assets

10-01001

10-10000

10-10100

10-10200

10-10300

10-11100

10-12500

10-13000

10-13050

10-13100

10-13110

10-13150

10-13300

10-13400

10-15000

10-15100

10-15200

10-15300

10-15400

10-15500

10-15700

10-16000

10-17000

10-17001

10-17002

10-17003

Liability
10-20000
10-20010
10-20500
10-21000
10-21500
10-21600
10-22000
10-22100
10-22200
10-23100
10-23200
10-23300
10-24000
10-24050
10-24100
10-24200
10-25500
10-25550
10-25950

Equity
10-30000

City of Willard, MO

Name

CLAIM ON POOLED CASH - GENERAL FUN
CASH IN BANK - OPERATING
CASH RESERVES 4593
CASH IN BANK - MID-MISSOURI BANK
CASH - FREEDOM
PETTY CASH-GCG
CASH IN BANK - JIS
CASH JUDICIAL EDUCATION
CASH JUDICIAL FACILITY FUND
CASH POLICE FORFEITURE ASSETS
CASH POLICE EQUITABLE SHARING FUND
CASH MISC PROCEEDS FUND
CASH IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
CASH STREET PROJECTS
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
DUE FROM WATER/SEWER FUND
DUE FROM RECREATION FUND
SALES TAXES RECEIVABLE
AD-VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE
COURT FINES RECEIVABLE
GRANTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID INSURANCE-GCG
DEFERRED INFLOWS-LEASES
INTEREST RECEIVABLE-LEASES
LONG TERM LEASE RECEIVABLE
SHORT TERM LEASE RECEIVABLE
Total Assets:

AP PENDING (DUE TO POOLED CASH) - GC
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - GCG
ALLOWANCE FOR BAD DEBT-GCG
RETURNED CHECKS-GCG
WAGES PAYABLE
PAYROLL CORRECTION
FICA WITHHOLDING
FEDERAL WITHHOLDING
MISSOURI WITHHOLDING
LAGERS PAYABLE
GROUP INSURANCE PAYABLE
GARNISHMENTS PAYABLE
COURT BONDS PAYABLE
DEFERRED COURT FINES
DEVELQPERS ESCROW
OTHER ESCROW
DUE TO RECREATION FUND
DUE TO WATER/SEWER FUND
LEASE PURCHASE-GEN
Total Liability:

FUND BALANCE
Total Beginning Equity:

Balance

4,719,254.60
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
900.00
0.00
4,712.62
16,729.26
1.40
11,647.70
0.00

0.00
50,689.08
0.00

0.00

0.00
232,096.67
219,280.69
30,786.39
0.00
32,138.19
-353,835.95
1,783.39
333,195.44
49,319.00

5,348,698.48

-6,910.25
7,689.68
11,000.00
0.00
18,052.04
0.00

0.00

0.00
264.42
1,290.13
4,351.33
630.30
1,724.15
19,786.39
2,000.00
50,000.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

109,878.19

4,946,413.04

4,946,413.04

5,348,698.48

Balance Sheet

Account Summary
As Of 08/31/2024




Balance Sheet As Of 0B/31/2024

Account Name Balance
Total Revenue 2,012,449.42
Total Expense 1,720,042.17
Revenues Over/Under Expenses 292,407.25

Total Equity and Current Surplus (Deflcit): 5,238,820.29

Total Liabllities, Equity and Current Surplus (Deficlt): 5,348,698.48




Balance Sheet

Account
Fund: 20 - WATER AND SEWER FUND
Assets

20-01001

20-10000

20-10100

20-10200

20-11100

20-15000

20-15050

20-15100

20-15200

20-16000

20-17000

20-17001

20-17002

20-1700.

20-18000

20-18050

20-18100

20-18200

20-18300

20-18400

20-18500

20-19000

20-19100

20-19110

20-19120

20-19200

20-19300

Liability
20-20000
20-20010
20-20100
20-20500
20-21500
20-21600
20-22000
20-22100
20-22200
20-23100
20-23200
20-23300
20-24200
20-25000
20-25500
20-25600
20-25700
20-25750
20-25800
20-25950
20-26000
20-26500
20-27000
20-28000
20-28200

Equity

Name

CLAIM ON POOLED CASH - WATER AND S:
CASH IN BANK 4594
CASH RESERVES 4595
CASH RESERVES 4599
PETTY CASH-WS
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-WS
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-COLLECTIONS
DUE FROM GENERAL FUND
DUE FROM RECREATION FUND
PREPAID INSURANCE-WS
DEFERRED INFLOWS-LEASES
INTEREST RECEIVABLE-LEASES
LONG TERM LEASE RECEIVABLE
SHORT TERM LEASE RECEIVABLE
LAND
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
EQUIPMENT
WATER SYSTEM
SEWER SYSTEM
BUILDINGS-WSF
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION-WS
COST OF ISSUANCE 2014
2014 CERTIFICATE FUND
2018 CERTIFICATE FUND
2018 COP CONSTRUCTION FUND
NET PENSION ASSET
DEFERRED PENSION OUTFLOWS
Total Assets:

AP PENDING (DUE TO POOLED CASH) - W
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - WS
RETURNED CHECKSWS
ALLOWANCE FOR BAD DEBT-WS
WAGES PAYABLE
COMPENSATED ABSENCES
FICA WITHHOLDING
FEDERAL WITHHOLDING
MISSOURI WITHHOLDING
LAGERS PAYABLE
GROUP INSURANCE PAYABLE
GARNISHMENTS PAYABLE
Other Escrow
DUE TO GENERAL FUND
DUE TO RECREATION FUND
SALES TAX PAYABLE
MO PRIMACY TAX
WATER POLLUTION SERVICE CONNECTIOI
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS-WS
LEASE PURCHASE-W/S
INTEREST PAYABLE
2014 COP PAYABLE
2018 COP Payable
NET PENSION LIABILITY
DEFERRED PENSION INFLOWS
Total Liability:

Balance

2,916,178.28
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
234,707.06
15,571.98
0.00

0.00
26,399.31
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
273,272.75
435,183.34
1,054,558.02
4,576,733.19
9,165,307.07
17,140.01
-6,474,139.51
0.00

0.00

57.89

0.00
134,963.00
68,966.00

12,444,898.39

21,229.11
129,975.70
42.61

0.00
13,260.14
10,399.97
0.00

0.00
2,086.24
8,774.61
2,342.57
0.00
633,432.41
0.00

0.00
-3,759.63
1,021.64
3,102.42
267,634.61
85,800.60
33,701.03
920,000.00
3,190,000.00
0.00
27,618.00

5,304,203.81

12,444,898.39

As Of 08/31/2024




Balance Sheet
Account Name
20-30000 RETAINED EARNINGS
Total Beginning Equity:
Total Revenue
Total Expense
Revenues Over/Under Expenses

Total Equity and Current Surplus (Deflcit):

Total Liabilities, Equity and Current Surplus (Deficit):

Balance
7,257,240.61

7,257,240.61

2,503,062.76
2,619,608.79

-116,546.03

7,140,694.58

As Of 08/31/2024




Balance Sheet

Account Name Balance
Fund: 30 - PARKS FUND
Assets
30-01001 CLAIM ON POOLED CASH - PARKS FUND 3,841.61
30-10000 CASH IN BANK - 4596 0.00
30-10100 CASH RESERVES - 4597 0.00
30-11100 PETTY CASH-PKS 240.00
30-12000 CASH PARK- PROJECTS 1,926.85
30-12100 CASH YOUTH SCHOLARSHIP 2,402.53
30-12200 CASH - TICKET RESERVE 0.00
30-12300 2008 RESERYE FUND RESTRICTED 0.00
30-12400 PROJECT FUND 0.33
30-15000 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-PKS 62.50
30-15050 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-COLLECTIONS 0.00
30-15100 DUE FROM GENERAL FUND 0.00
30-15200 DUE FROM WATER/SEWER FUND 0.00
30-15300 SALES TAXES RECEIVABLE 52,675.33
30-15400 AD-VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE 67,072.90
30-16000 PREPAID INSURANCE-PKS 15,486.20
30-17000 DEFERRED INFLOWS-LEASES -185,473.67
30-17001 INTEREST RECEIVABLE-LEASES 844.54
30-17002 LONG TERM LEASE RECEIVABLE 191,771.94
30-17003 SHORT TERM LEASE RECEIVABLE 5,747.00
Total Assets: 156,598.06 156,598.06
Liability
30-20000 AP PENDING (DUE TO POOLED CASH) - PK 4,427.35
30-20010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - PKS 3,939.17
30-20100 RETURNED CHECKS-PKS 0.00
30-20500 ALLOWANCE FOR BAD DEBT-PKS 0.00
30-21500 WAGES PAYABLE 8,173.07
30-22000 FICA WITHHOLDING 0.00
30-22100 FEDERAL WITHHOLDING 0.00
30-22200 MISSOURI WITHHOLDING 989.31
30-23100 LAGERS PAYABLE 2,116.99
30-23200 GROUP INSURANCE PAYABLE 2,365.05
30-23300 GARNISHMENTS PAYABLE 594.00
30-25000 DUE TO GENERAL FUND 0.00
30-25550 DUE TO WATER/SEWER FUND 0.00
30-25800 CUSTOMER DEPOSITSPKS 2,266.25
30-25850 CUSTOMER IN-HOUSE CREDIT 2,867.50
30-25900 MID-MISSOURI BANK 0.00
30-25850 LEASE PURCHASE-PARKS 0.00
Total Liability: 27,738.69
Equity
30-30000 FUND BALANCE 212,025.42
Total Beginning Equity: 212,025.42
Total Revenue 1,788,214.46
Total Expense 1,871,380.51
Revenues Over/Under Expenses -83,166.05
Total Equity and Current Surplus {Deficit): 128,859.37

Total Liabllities, Equity and Current Surplus (Deficit): 156,598.06

As Of 08/31/2024




Balance Sheet

Account
Fund: 99 - POOLED CASH
Assets

99.01000

99.01100

99-01200

53-01300

99-01400

59-17000

Liabllity
99-20000
99-21500
99-27000

POOLED CASH - GENERAL
POOLED CASH - JIS COURT
POOLED CASH - MID MISSOURI CD
POOLED CASH - FREEDOM BANK CD 5654
POOLED CASH - FREEDOM BANK CD 4603
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS

Total Assets:

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CONTROL
WAGES PAYABLE
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS
Total Liability:

Total Equity and Current Surplus (Deficit):

Total Liabilities, Equity and Current Surplus (Deficit):

Balance

7,637,499.11
1,775.38
0.00

0.00

0.00
-32,956.04

7,606,318.45

-32,956.04
0.00
7,639,274.49

7,606,318.45

0.00

7,606,318.45

7,606,318.45

As Of 08/31/2024




City of Willard, MO

Fund: 10 - GENERAL FUND
Revenue
Department: 100 - General Government
10-100-40800 MISCELLANEQUS INCOME-GCG
10-100-40850 CONVENIENCE FEE-GCG
10-100-40980 VETERAN'S MEMORIAL

10-100-41000 FRANCHISE CABLE TV
10-100-41100 FRANCHISE ELECTRIC
10-100-41200 FRANCHISE GAS

FRANCHISE MOBILE PHONE LEASE
INTEREST INCOME-GCG
MERCHANTS LICENSES
BUILDING PERMITS
TAX REAL ESTATE-GCG
TAX SALES & USE REVENUES-GCG
TAX SALES CAP IMP-GCG
TRANSFER FROM GCG
CAPITAL ASSET SALES-GCG
Department: 100 - General Government Total:

10-100-41300
10-100-43000
10-100-44100
10-100-44110
10-100-45300
10-100-45400
10-100-45500
10-100-46000
10-100-49000

Department: 200 - Law
10-200-40800
10-200-42000
10.200-44120
10-200-44520
10-200-45100
10-200-45600
10-200-49000

MISC INCOME - LAW
GRANT REVENUES-LAW
POLICE FACILITY FEES
LAW OTHER INCOME-LAW
LAW ENFORCEMENT SALES TAX
TAX STATE LET ACCOUNT
CAPITAL ASSET SALES
Department: 200 - Law Total:

Department: 250 - Court
10-250-40800
10-250-44500
10-250-44510
10-250-44520

MISCELLANEQUS INCOME-COURT

TRAFFIC FINES-COURT

OTHER FINES-COURT

COURT INCOME OTHER-COURT
Department: 250 - Court Total:

Department: 300 - Streets
10-300-40800
10-300-42000
10-300-44110
10-300-45410
10-300-45450

MISCELLANEQUS INCOME-STREETS
GRANT REVENUES-STREETS
STREET APPROACH/GUTTER/INSPECTION
TAX MOTOR VEHICLE
TAX COUNTY ROAD & BRIDGE
Department: 300 - Streets Total:

Department: 400 - Planning & Development
10-400-40930 PLANNING AND ZONING
10-400-44110 PLANNING/DEV BUILDING FEES
10-400-44120 ZONING FEES
Department: 400 - Planning & Development Total:

Department: 500 - Emergency Management
10-500-42000 GRANT REVENUES-EM
Department: 500 - Emergency Management Total:

Revenue Total:

Income Statement

Account Summary
For Fiscal: 2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2024

Original Current Budget
Total Budget Total Budget MTD Activity YTD Activity Remaining
6,000.00 6,000.00 6.00 1,632.29 4,367.71
2,000.00 2,000.00 20.12 179.98 1,820.02
240.00 240.00 0.00 0.00 240.00
18,200.00 18,200.00 0.00 8,916.06 9,283.94
330,000.00 330,000.00 21,586.33 172,583.38 157,416.62
76,000.00 76,000.00 2,402.32 52,052.34 23,947.66
70,000.00 70,000.00 2,342.56 56,493.48 13,506.52
100,000.00 100,000.00 10,515.37 88,382.10 11,617.90
7,000.00 7,000.00 162.50 4,127.50 2,872.50
42,000.00 100,000.00 3,924.44 95,524.04 4,475.96
250,700.00 250,700.00 449.72 223,332.21 27,367.79
900,000.00 900,000.00 92,257.65 646,510.68 253,489.32
350,000.00 350,000.00 29,419.50 220,162.76 129,837.24
0.00 92,679.00 0.00 0.00 92,679.00
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00
2,153,140.00 2,303,819.00 163,086.51 1,569,896.82 733,922.18
500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00
35,000.00 35,000.00 1,094.80 16,513.91 18,486.09
0.00 0.00 1,050.00 4,200.00 -4,200.00
13,500.00 13,500.00 154.65 1,187.07 12,312.93
132,000.00 132,000.00 7,702.49 74,256.47 57,743.53
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
0.00 18,000.00 0.00 17,996.50 3.50
181,100.00 199,100.00 10,001.94 114,153.95 84,946.05
500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00
115,000.00 60,000.00 6,632.86 42,452.52 17,547.48
5,000.00 5,000.00 219.50 2,799.00 2,201.00
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
120,600.00 65,600.00 6,852.36 45,251.52 20,348.48
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
377,060.00 377,060.00 0.00 0.00 377,060.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 600.00 -600.00
310,000.00 310,000.00 30,514.40 219,764.74 90,235.26
39,259.00 39,259.00 0.00 43,807.34 -4,548.34
726,419.00 726,419.00 30,514.40 264,172.08 462,246.92
25,000.00 25,000.00 380.00 2,985.31 22,014.69
0.00 0.00 637.50 15,358.74 -15,358.74

0.00 0.00 631.00 631.00 -631.00
25,000.00 25,000.00 1,648.50 18,975.05 6,024.95
8,458.00 8,458.00 0.00 0.00 8,458.00
8,458.00 8,458.00 0.00 0.00 8,458.00
3,214,717.00 3,328,396.00 212,103.71 2,012,449.42 1,315,946.58




Income Statement

Expense

Department: 100 - General Government

10-100-50130
10-100-50310
10-100-50500
10-100-50550
10-100-50600
10-100-50700
10-100-50750
10-100-51000
10-100-52000
10-100-55200
10-100-55400
10-100-55500
10-100-55600
10-100-55800
10-100-55850
10-100-55900
10-100-56000
10-100-56200
10-100-56400
10-100-56450
10-100-56500
10-100-56890
10-100-56900
10-100-56910
10-100-56940
10-100-56950
10-100-56960
10-100-57400
10-100-61000
10-100-61050
10-100-62000
10-100-62100
10-100-62300
10-100-70000
10-100-71000
10-100-75000
10-100-80000
10-100-90500
10-100-91000
10-100-91500
10-100-92000
10-100-93000
10-100-95500
10-100-97380

Department: 100 - General Government Total:

Department: 200 - Law
10-200-50130
10-200-50300
10-200-50500
10-200-50550
10-200-50600
10-200-5075Q
10-200-51000
10-200-52000
10-200-55200
10-200-55500

SUPPLIES-GCG

VETERAN'S MEMORIAL EXPENSES-GCG
BUILDING MAINTENANCE-GCG
CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES-GCG
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE-GCG
OFFICE SUPPLIES-GCG
POSTAGE-GCG

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE-GCG
SUPPLIES SMALL EQUIPMENT-GCG
ADVERTISING-GCG

AUDIT EXPENSE-GCG

BANK/CREDIT CARD FEES-GEN
CONTRACT LABOR-GCG

DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS-GCG
EQUIPMENT RENTAL-GEN
ELECTION EXPENSE-GCG
INSURANCE-GCG

LEGAL-GCG

PROFESSIONAL-GCG

CONTRACT SERVICES/SECURITY-GCG
SAFETY PROGRAM-GCG

TRAVEL EXPENSE-ELECTED OFFICIAL
TRAVEL EXPENSE-GCG

TRAVEL EXPENSE-FINANCE
TRAINING & EDUCATION-ELECTED OFFICIA
TRAINING & EDUCATION-GEN
TRAINING & EDUCATION-FINANCE
EQUIPMENT/SOFTWARE CONTRACTS-GCG
TELEPHONE-GCG

INTERNET-GCG

UTILITIES ELECTRIC-GCG

UTILITIES GAS-GCG

UTILITIES OTHER-GCG

VEHICLE EXPENSES FUEL-GCG
VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT-GCG
VEHICLE LEASE-GENERAL
SALARIES-GCG

SALARIES OVERTIME-GCG
SALARIES-ELECTED OFFICIALS
PAYROLL TAXES-GCG
RETIREMENT-GCG

GROUP INSURANCE-GCG

CAPITAL ASSET EQUIPMENT-GCG
TRANSFER TO PARKS-GCG

SUPPLIES-LAW

DARE-LAW

BUILDING MAINTENANCE-LAW
CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES-LAW
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE-LAW
OFFICE SUPPLIES-LAW
POSTAGE-LAW

REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE-LAW
SUPPLIES SMALL EQUIPMENT-LAW
ADVERTISING-LAW
BANK/CREDIT CARD FEES-LAW

For Fiscal: 2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2024

Original Current Budget
Total Budget Total Budget MTD Activity YTD Activity Remaining
2,000.00 2,000.00 33.06 481.24 1,518.76
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 275.68 724.32
1,000.00 1,000.00 560.00 1,406.60 -406.60
600.00 1,200.00 0.00 818.86 381.14
100.00 8,500.00 1,000.00 5,830.09 2,669.91
7,500.00 7,500.00 588.55 6,103.84 1,396.16
1,600.00 1,900.00 443,51 1,507.67 392.33
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
1,000.00 1,000.00 49.69 940.96 59.04
4,000.00 4,000.00 65.72 416.48 3,583.52
104,000.00 104,850.00 0.00 4,000.00 100,850.00
800.00 800.00 20.52 249.29 550.71
500.00 500.00 60.00 2,535.64 -2,035.64
3,500.00 4,850,00 46.00 1,865.70 2,984.30
1,000.00 1,000.00 63.00 452,20 547.80
6,300.00 31,000.00 0.00 29,673.09 1,326.91
6,030.00 6,635.00 288.67 5,759.10 875.90
16,000.00 20,000.00 1,813.50 15,587.82 4,412.18
30,000.00 44,000.00 576.00 42,947.10 1,052.90
400.00 400.00 0.00 0.00 400.00
150.00 300.00 0.00 116.96 183.04
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 200.00 800.00
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 790.85 208.15
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 30.00 970.00
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 852.00 148.00
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 350.00 650.00
15,000.00 16,200.00 2,626.46 12,973.40 3,226.60
2,000.00 2,000.00 325.54 1,589.93 410.07
7,400,00 7,400.00 496.77 3,662.66 3,737.34
8,000.00 8,000.00 0.00 3,679.74 4,320.26
2,010.00 2,010.00 52.31 1,567.00 443.00
800.00 800.00 175.00 764.03 35.97
200.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00
100.00 100.00 6.30 36.32 63.68
1,520.00 785.00 64.10 761.55 23.45
123,281.00 209,490.00 9,342.98 105,393.05 104,096.95
500.00 2,000.00 231.76 1,459.86 540.14
5,400.00 5,400.00 0.00 2,699.97 2,700.03
10,335.00 17,351.00 705.10 8,759.10 8,591.90
10,285.00 17,840.00 287.98 4,683.01 13,156.99
31,755.00 36,696.00 2,192.66 17,944.27 18,751.73
16,900.00 43,440.00 2,261.05 39,345.92 4,094.08
1,638.00 243,906.00 100,000.00 200,000.00 43,906.00
430,704.00 862,153.00 124,376.23 528,510.98 333,642.02
2,500.00 2,500.00 35.00 2,299.52 200.48
1,700.00 1,700.00 0.00 0.00 1,700.00
5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 294.29 4,705.71
700.00 700.00 0.00 92.21 607.79
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
1,200.00 1,200.00 115.05 781.20 418.80
250.00 250.00 3.33 24.40 225.60
500.00 500.00 0.00 8.63 491,37
7,000.00 7,000.00 924.23 3,803.88 3,196.12
200.00 200.00 0.00 55.81 144.19
50.00 50.00 0.00 0.00 50.00




Income Statement

10-200-55600
10-200-55800
10-200-55850
10-200-56000
10-200-56200
10-200-56400
10-200-56450
10-200-56500
10-200-56900
10-200-56950
10-200-57400
10-200-61000
10-200-61050
10-200-62000
10-200-62100
10-200-62300
10-200-70000
10-200-71000
10-200-71100
10-200-75000
10-200-30000
10-200-30500
10-200-91500
10-200-92500
10-200-93000
10-200-35100
10-200-95500

Department: 250 - Court
10-250-50130
10-250-50500
10-250-50550
10-250-50600
10-250-50700
10-250-50750
10-250-51000
10-250-52000
10-250-55200
10-250-55500
10-250-55800
10-250-55850
10-250-56000
10-250-56200
10-250-56400
10-250-56450
10-250-56910
10-250-56960
10-250-57400
10-250-61000
10-250-61050
10-250-71100
10-250-80000
10-250-81000
10-250-81100
10-250-82000
10-250-90500
10-250-51500

CONTRACT LABOR-LAW

DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS-LAW
EQUIPMENT RENTAL-LAW
INSURANCE-LAW

LEGAL-LAW

PROFESSIONAL-LAW

CONTRACT SERVICES/SECURITY-LAW
SAFETY PROGRAM-LAW

TRAVEL EXPENSE-LAW

TRAINING & EDUCATION-LAW
EQUIPMENT/SOFTWARE CONTRACTS-LAW
TELEPHONE-LAW

INTERNET-LAW

UTILITIES ELECTRIC-LAW

UTILITIES GAS-LAW

UTILITIES OTHER-LAW

VEHICLE EXPENSES FUEL-LAW
VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT-LAW
EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT-LAW
VEHICLE LEASE-LAW
SALARIES-LAW

SALARIES OVERTIME-LAW
PAYROLL TAXES-LAW
RETIREMENT-LAW
UNIFORMS-LAW

GROUP INSURANCE-LAW

CAPITAL ASSET EXP-LAW

CAPITAL ASSET EQUIPMENT-LAW

Department: 200 - Law Total:

SUPPLIES-COURT

BUILDING MAINTENANCE-COURT
CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES
MISCELLANEQUS EXPENSE-COURT
OFFICE SUPPLIES-COURT
POSTAGE-COURT

REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE-COURT
SUPPLIES SMALL TOOLS-COURT
ADVERTISING EXPENSE-COURT
BANK/CREDIT CARD FEES-COURT
DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS-COURT
EQUIPMENT RENTAL-COURT
INSURANCE-COURT

LEGAL-COURT
PROFESSIONAL-COURT

CONTRACT SERVICE/SECURITY-COURT
TRAVEL COURT

TRAINING COURT

EQUIP/SOFTWARE CONTRACTS-COURT
TELEPHONE-COURT
INTERNET-COURT

EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT-COURT
COURT AUTOMATION-COURT

CVC FEES

POST FUND-COURT

SHERIFF'S RETIREMENT FUND-COURT
SALARIES-COURT

SALARIES OVERTIME-COURT
PAYROLL TAXES-COURT

For Fiscal: 2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2024

Original Current Budget
Total Budget Total Budget MTD Activity YTD Activity Remaining
500.00 500.00 30.00 120.00 380.00
2,800.00 2,800.00 0.00 400.45 2,399.55
1,800.00 1,800.00 110.01 793.29 1,006.71
41,000.00 41,000.00 4,557.40 27,327.82 13,672.18
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00
68,000.00 68,000.00 4,050.00 30,366.78 37,633.22
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
400.00 400.00 0.00 855.05 -455.05
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 110.17 889.83
20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 907.00 19,093.00
18,000.00 16,000.00 1,380.64 6,285.81 9,714.19
3,500.00 3,500.00 346.67 1,809.18 1,690.82
7,000.00 7,000.00 576.76 4,302.79 2,697.21
5,050.00 5,050.00 0.00 2,186.56 2,863.44
3,200.00 3,200.00 0.00 1,967.93 1,232.07
600.00 600.00 63.00 452.44 147.56
25,000.00 25,000.00 2,020.39 13,691.86 11,308.14
10,000.00 10,000.00 940.72 3,242.24 6,757.76
500.00 500.00 0.00 295.43 204.57
17,600.00 17,600.00 1,402.74 11,855.86 5,744.14
644,047.00 641,001.00 46,489.60 375,447.90 265,553.10
3,000.00 3,000.00 34.48 2,065.68 934.32
51,764.00 51,520.00 3,396.44 27,339.92 24,180.08
62,924.00 66,037.00 4,694.51 37,336.79 28,700.21
10,000.00 10,000.00 352.94 4,326.69 5,673.31
107,264.00 98,885.00 7,153.52 57,944.83 40,940.17
2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 15.04 1,984.96
45,000.00 45,000.00 929.50 36,529.50 8,470.50
1,172,249.00 1,161,693.00 79,606.93 655,336.95 506,356.05
200.00 200.00 8.24 80.33 119.67
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
100.00 100.00 0.00 33.54 66.46
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
1,200.00 1,500.00 58.65 756.35 743.65
500.00 500.00 56.59 118.69 381.31
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
100.00 100.00 0.00 12,98 87.02
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
300.00 300.00 13.68 50.97 249.03
250.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00
120.00 120.00 7.00 50.87 69.13
3,000.00 3,000.00 267.36 2,197.91 802.09
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
15,000.00 15,000.00 1,002.00 7,729.68 7,270.32
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00
750.00 750.00 ; 0.00 0.00 750.00
1,550.00 2,000.00 591.21 1,965.72 34,28
760.00 760.00 125.36 564.12 195.88
3,550.00 3,550.00 297.43 2,157.32 1,392.68
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
5,000.00 5,000.00 288.91 2,279.58 2,720.42
5,000.00 5,000.00 294.27 2,321.89 2,678.11
750.00 750.00 41.27 325.63 42437
100.00 100.00 6.00 28.00 72.00
64,026.00 64,026.00 5,280.39 42,696.31 21,329.69
100.00 100.00 7.83 94.63 5.37
5,130.00 5,130.00 391.70 3,153.92 1,976.08




Income Statement

10-250-92000

10-250-93000
10-250-95500

RETIREMENT-COURT
GROUP INSURANCE-COURT
CAPITAL ASSET EQUIPMENT-COURT

Department: 250 - Court Total:

Department: 300 - Streets

10-300-50130
10-300-50200
10-300-50500
10-300-5055Q
10-300-50600
10-300-50700
10-300-50750
10-300-51000
10-300-52000
10-300-55200
10-300-55600
10-300-55800
10-300-55850
10-300-56000
10-300-56200
10-300-56400
10-300-56500
10-300-56900
10-300-56950
10-300-57400
10-300-61000
10-300-61050
10-300-61110
10-300-62000
10-300-62100
10-300-70000
10-300-70100
10-300-71000
10-300-71100
10-300-75000
10-300-75100
10-300-90000
10-300-90500
10-300-91500
10-300-92000
10-300-92500
10-300-93000
10-300-95100
10-300-95500

SUPPLIES-STREETS

LANDSCAPING - STREETS

BUILDING MAINTENANCE-STREETS
CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES-STREETS
MISCELLANEQUS EXPENSE-STREETS
OFFICE SUPPLIES-STREETS
POSTAGE-STS

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE-STREETS -
SUPPLIES SMALL EQUIPMENT-STREETS
ADVERTISING-STS

CONTRACT LABOR-STREETS

DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS-STREETS
EQUIPMENT RENTAL-STREETS
INSURANCE-STREETS

LEGAL EXPENSE-STS
PROFESSIONAL-STREETS

SAFETY PROGRAM-STREETS

TRAVEL EXPENSE-STREETS

TRAINING & EDUCATION-STS
EQUIPMENT/SOFTWARE CONTRACTS-5TRE
TELEPHONE-STREETS
INTERNET-STREETS

STREET LIGHTS STREETS

UTILITIES ELECTRIC-STREETS

UTILITIES GAS-STREETS

VEHICLE EXPENSE FUEL-STREETS
EQUIPMENT FUEL-STREETS

VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT-STREETS
EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT-STREETS
VEHICLE LEASE-STREETS

EQUIPMENT LEASE
SALARIES-STREETS

SALARIES OVERTIME-STREETS
PAYROLL TAXES-STREETS
RETIREMENT-STREETS
UNIFORMS-STREETS

GROUP INSURANCE-STREETS

CAPITAL ASSET EXP-STREETS

CAPITAL ASSET EQUIPMENT-STREETS

Department: 300 - Streets Total:

Department: 400 - Planning & Development

10-400-50130
10-400-50550
10-400-50600
10-400-50700
10-400-50750
10-400-52000
10-400-52000
10-400-55200
10-400-55600
10-400-55800
10-400-55850
10-400-56000
10-400-56200

SUPPLIES-P&D

CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES-P&D
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE-P&D
OFFICE SUPPLIES-P&D
POSTAGE-P&D

REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE-P&D
SUPPLIES-SMALL EQUIPMENT
ADVERTISING-P&D

CONTRACT LABOR-P&D

DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS-P&D
EQUIPMENT RENTAL-P&D
INSURANCE-P&D

LEGAL-P&D

For Fiscal: 2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2024

Original Current Budget
Total Budget Total Budget MTD Activity YTD Activity Remaining
4,561.00 4,955.00 401.48 3,272.38 1,682.62
13,120.00 13,214.00 1,372.77 10,835.55 2,378.45
0.00 0.00 325.00 325.00 -325.00
126,867.00 128,105.00 10,837.14 81,051.37 47,053.63
25,000.00 25,000.00 305.08 7,702.61 17,297.39
0.00 0.00 588.16 588.16 -588.16
4,000.00 4,000.00 0.00 23.97 3,976.03
100.00 100.00 0.00 18.97 81.03
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
500.00 500.00 0.00 29.00 471.00
50.00 50.00 0.00 0.32 49.68
20,000.00 20,000.00 -67.03 13,711.12 6,288.88
3,000.00 3,000.00 569.84 2,948.80 51.20
200.00 200.00 0.00 151,20 48.80
1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00
3,050.00 3,050.00 0.00 5,120.38 -2,070.38
2,000.00 2,000.00 300.00 794.80 1,205.20
12,900.00 12,900.00 1,437.07 8,588.81 4,311.19
500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00
3,000.00 3,000.00 629.00 1,098.30 1,901.70
300.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00
200.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
1,000.00 3,100.00 1,017.20 3,986.47 -886.47
1,500.00 1,500.00 201.41 902.73 597.27
3,800.00 3,800.00 307.40 2,229.58 1,570.42
67,000.00 67,000.00 0.00 37,976.95 29,023.05
3,200.00 3,200.00 0.00 2,499.70 700.30
300.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00
5,500.00 5,500.00 610.54 4,187.54 1,312.46
1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 144.38 1,355.62
2,000.00 3,500.00 678.91 3,722.07 -222.07
5,000.00 8,000.00 494.87 8,077.76 -77.76
18,929.00 18,929.00 1,527.18 12,685.56 6,243.44
6,400.00 6,400.00 529.87 4,238.96 2,161.04
128,743.00 85,400.00 6,398.10 47,962.36 37,437.64
2,000.00 2,000.00 356.96 1,181.72 818.28
10,459.00 6,992.00 510.70 3,721.70 3,270.30
10,653.00 8,172.00 617.59 4,586.03 3,585.97
1,400.00 1,600.00 131.70 873.81 726.19
26,854.00 21,271.00 1,016.47 7,907.51 13,363.49
478,825.00 528,825.00 60,780.43 111,053.94 417,771.06
12,000.00 12,000.00 650.00 667.50 11,332.50
863,563.00 865,489.00 79,591.45 299,382.71 566,106.29
300.00 300.00 5.00 81.24 218.76
101.00 101.00 0.00 0.00 101.00
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
500.00 2,000.00 20.35 1,810.66 189.34
250.00 250.00 9.04 24.08 225,92
200.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00
300.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,306.93 -306.93
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 499,88 500.12
0.00 25,000.00 1,425.00 11,270.00 13,730.00
250.00 250.00 0.00 160.00 90.00
500.00 500.00 33,01 232.92 267.08
4,349.00 4,349.00 484.51 2,895.47 1,453.53
5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00




Income Statement

10-400-56400 PROFESSIONAL-P&D
10-400-56900 TRAVEL EXPENSE-P&D

10-400-56950 TRAINING & EDUCATION-P&D
10-400-57400 EQUIPMENT/SOFTWARE CONTRACTS-P&D
10-400-61000 TELEPHONE-P&D

10-400-61050 INTERNET-P&D

10-400-70000 VEHICLE EXPENSE FUEL-P&D
10-400-71000 VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT-P&D
10-400-75000 VEHICLE LEASE-P&D

10-400-80000 SALARIES-P&D

10-400-90500 SALARIES OVERTIME-P&D
10-400-91500 PAYROLL TAXES-P&D

10-400-92000 RETIREMENT-P&D

10-400-93000 GROUP INSURANCE-P&D
10-400-95500 CAPITAL ASSET EQUIPMENT-P&D

Department: 400 - Planning & Development Total:

Department: 450 - Economic Development

10-450-55800 DUES & UBSCRIPTIONS - ECO DEV
10-450-56300 MARKETING EXPENSE - ECO DEV
10-450-56400 PROFESSIONAL - ECO DEV
10-450-56900 TRAVEL EXPENSE - ECO DEV
10-450-56950 TRAINING & EDUCATION - ECO DEV
10-450-90000 SALARIES - ECO DEV

10-450-91500 PAYROLL TAX - ECO DEV
10-450-92000 RETIREMENT - ECO DEV
10-450-33000 GROUP INSURANCE-ECO DEV

Department: 450 - Economic Development Total:

Department: 500 - Emergency Management

10-500-50700 OFFICE SUPPLIES-EM
10-500-51000 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE-EM
10-500-55600 CONTRACT LABOR-EM
10-500-56900 TRAVEL EXPENSE-EM
10-500-56950 TRAINING & EDUCATION-EM
10-500-95500 CAPITAL ASSETS EQUIPMENT-EMG

Department: 500 - Emergency Management Total:
Expense Total:

Fund: 10 - GENERAL FUND Surplus (Deficit):

For Fiscal: 2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2024

Original Current Budget
Total Budget Total Budget MTD Activity YTD Activity Remaining
75,000.00 50,000.00 1,255.50 15,575.72 34,424.28
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 148.39 851.61
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,095.00 -95.00
7,500.00 12,500.00 1,361.65 5,671.54 6,828.46
1,480.00 1,480.00 165.72 887.21 582,79
3,800.00 3,800.00 297.43 2,157.32 1,642.68
0.00 0.00 88.48 310.26 -310.26
0.00 594.00 50.28 368.02 225.98
3,040.00 7,063.00 574.42 4,188.92 2,874.08
96,005.00 119,266.00 9,114.95 69,786.67 49,479.33
300.00 300.00 2.88 68.09 231,91
7,704.00 9,565.00 667.67 5,135.79 4,429.21
8,036.00 11,179.00 878.70 3,159.60 8,019.40
14,665.00 17,691.00 702.30 5,678.15 12,012.85
0.00 0.00 975.00 975.00 -975.00
232,380.00 275,438.00 18,111.89 133,486.86 142,001.14
5,500.00 5,500.00 0.00 9,000.00 -3,500.00
500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00
5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00
1,000.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00
1,000.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00
0.00 3,285.00 0.00 3,283.08 1.92
0.00 255.00 0.00 251.06 3.94
0.00 118.00 0.00 117.31 0.69
0.00 10.00 0.00 9.90 0.10
13,000.00 15,668.00 0.00 12,661.35 3,006.65
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
200.00 200.00 0.00 925.00 -725.00
19,000.00 19,000.00 0.00 8,668.00 10,332.00
300.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00
200.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00
0.00 0.00 18.95 18.95 -18.95
19,800.00 19,800.00 18.95 9,611.95 10,188.05
2,858,563.00 3,328,396.00 312,542.59 1,720,042.17 1,608,353.83
356,154.00 0.00 -100,438.88 292,407.25




Income Statement

Fund: 20 - WATER AND SEWER FUND

Revenue
Department: 600 - Water
20-600-40700
20-600-40800
20-600-40850
20-600-40920
20-600-42000
20-600-43000
20-600-44100
20-600-44110
20-600-44120
20-600-46000
20-600-48510
20-600-48515
20-600-48520
20-600-48525

20-600-49000

Department: 700 - Sewer
20-700-40800
20-700-40850
20-700-40920
20-700-40960
20-700-42000
20-700-42100
20-700-43000
20-700-44100
20-700-44110
20-700-44120
20-700-46000
20-700-48800
20-700-49000

Expense
Department: 600 - Water
20-600-50000
20-500-50130
20-600-50200
20-600-50300
20-600-50500
20-600-50550
20-600-50600
20-600-50700
20-600-50750
20-600-51000
20-600-52000
20-600-52500
20-600-55200
20-600-55400
20-600-55500
20-600-55600
20-600-55800
20-600-55850
20-600-56000
20-600-56200
20-600-56400

METER REPLACEMENT/ INSTALLATIONS-W
MISCELLANEOUS INCOME-WATER
CONVENIENCE FEE-WATER

PENALTY INCOME-WATER

GRANT RECEIPTS-WATER

INTEREST INCOME-WATER

UTILITY LOCATE FEES

NEW CONSTN METER INSTALLATION
WATER CAPACITY FEES

TRANSFER IN-WATER

WATER SALES - CITY COMMERCIAL (WATER
WATER SALES - RURAL COMMERCIAL (WAT
WATER SALES - CITY RESIDENTIAL (WATER)
WATER SALES - RURAL RESIDENTIAL (WATE
CAPITAL ASSET SALES-WATER

Department: 600 - Water Total:

MISCELLANEOUS INCOME-SEWER
CONVENIENCE FEE-SEWER
PENALTY INCOME-SEWER

TRASH INCOME-SEWER

GRANT RECEIPTS-SEWER

HOOK UP FEES RECEIVE-SEWER
INTEREST INCOME-SEWER
TREATMENT FACILITY FEES
SEWER LATERAL CONNECTION FEES
SEWER CAPACITY FEES

TRANSFER IN-SEWER

SEWER SALES-SEWER

CAPITAL ASSET SALES-SEWER

Department: 700 - Sewer Total:

Revenue Total:

CHEMICALS-WATER
SUPPLIES-WATER

LABORATORY FEES-WATER
LABORATORY SUPPLIES-WATER
BUILDING MAINTENANCE-WATER
CUSTODIAL SUPPUES-WATER
MISCELLANEQUS EXPENSE-WATER
OFFICE SUPPLIES-WATER
POSTAGE-WATER

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE-WATER
SUPPLIES SMALL EQUIPMENT-WATER
METER REPLACEMENT-WATER
ADVERTISING-WATER

AUDIT EXPENSE-WATER
BANK/CREDIT CARD FEES-WATER
CONTRACT LABOR-WATER

DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS-WATER
EQUIPMENT RENTAL-WATER
INSURANCE-WATER

LEGAL-WATER
PROFESSIONAL-WATER

For Fiscal: 2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2024

Original Current Budget
Total Budget Total Budget MTD Activity YTD Activity Remaining
35,000.00 85,000.00 2,025.00 80,054.00 4,946.00
1,000.00 1,000.00 90.00 1,122.94 -122.94
22,000.00 22,000.00 2,009.82 13,158.86 8,841.14
45,000.00 45,000.00 3,732.03 28,909.15 16,090.85
3,750.00 4,200.00 0.00 4,115.50 84.50
30,000.00 30,000.00 3,037.97 25,970.90 4,029.10
0.00 0.00 50.00 50.00 -50.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 7,800.00 -7,800.00

0.00 0.00 2,400.00 9,600.00 -9,600.00
713,040.00 1,054,631.00 0.00 0.00 1,054,631.00
132,825.00 120,750.00 8,783.40 63,654.19 57,095.81
8,400.00 7,718.00 769.43 4,536.84 3,181.16
679,907.00 615,300.00 55,390.19 409,289.00 206,011.00
425,000.00 412,125.00 34,756.54 259,301.57 152,823.43
5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 4,725.50 274.50
2,100,922.00 2,402,724.00 113,044.38 912,288.45 1,490,435.55
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00
22,000.00 22,000.00 2,009.93 13,149.19 8,850.81
35,000.00 35,000.00 2,553.69 19,786.45 15,213.55
0.00 12,000.00 0.00 11,893.09 106.91
708,668.00 708,668.00 227,787.46 326,669.64 381,998.36
40,000.00 110,000.00 600.00 115,700.00 -5,700.00
30,000.00 30,000.00 3,034.97 25,967.90 4,032.10
0.00 0.00 0.00 2,400.00 -2,400.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 2,400.00 -2,400.00

0.00 0.00 600.00 600.00 -600.00
605,000.00 832,360.00 0.00 0.00 832,360.00
1,780,000.00 1,613,233.00 142,789.54 1,067,482.54 545,750.46
5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 4,725.50 274.50
3,226,668.00 3,369,261.00 379,375.59 1,590,774.31 1,778,486.69
5,327,590.00 5,771,985.00 492,419.97 2,503,062.76 3,268,922.24
20,000.00 20,000.00 986.31 8,990.61 11,009.39
60,000.00 60,000.00 2,397.73 40,532.71 19,467.29
2,000.00 2,000.00 264.00 1,281.00 719.00
29,447.00 29,447.00 0.00 538.63 28,908.37
5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 47.98 4,952,02
500.00 500.00 0.00 61.37 438.63
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
3,500.00 3,500.00 154.72 2,246.09 1,253.91
13,000.00 13,000.00 1,108.87 8,298.33 4,701.67
80,000.00 80,000.00 6,746.04 59,268.77 20,731.23
10,000.00 10,000.00 1,139.68 5,106.19 4,893.81
20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 8,636.73 11,363.27
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 100.16 899.84
6,500.00 6,500.00 0.00 5,000.00 1,500.00
19,000.00 19,000.00 3,815.96 24,421,17 -5,421.17
5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00
2,100.00 2,100.00 0.00 675.00 1,425.00
2,000.00 3,000.00 481.76 2,574.07 42593
25,854.00 25,854.00 2,855.09 17,288.73 8,565.27
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00
60,000.00 71,400.00 4,399,57 20,427.50 50,972.50




Income Statement

20-600-56500
20-600-56900
20-600-56950
20-600-57400
20.600-61000
20-600-61050
20-600-62000
20-600-62100
20-600-52300
20-600-70000
20-600-70100
20-600-71000
20-600-71100
20-600-75000
20-600-75100
20-600-90000
20-600-90500
20-600-91500
20-600-92000
20-600-92107
20-600-92500
20-600-93000
20-600-95100
20-600-95500
20.600-96000
20-600-96200
20-600-96400
20-600-97100
20-600-97300

Department: 700 - Sewer
20-700-50000
20-700-50130
20-700-50300
20-700-50350
20-700-50500
20-700-50550
20-700-50600
20-700-50700
20-700-50750
20-700-51000
20-700-52000
20-700-55100
20-700-55200
20-700-55400
20-700-55500
20-700-55600
20-700-55800
20-700-55850
20-700-56000
20-700-56200
20-700-56400
20-700-56500
20-700-56600
20-700-56900
20-700-56350
20-700-57200
20-700-57400
20-700-58000

SAFETY PROGRAM-WATER

TRAVEL EXPENSE-WATER

TRAINING & EDUCATION-WATER
EQUIPMENT/SOFTWARE CONTRACTS-WAT
TELEPHONE WATER
INTERNET-WATER

UTILITIES ELECTRIC-WATER
UTILITIES GAS-WATER

UTILITIES OTHER-WATER

VEHICLE EXPENSE FUEL-WATER
EQUIPMENT FUEL-WATER

VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT-WATER
EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT-WATER
VEHICLE LEASE-WATER
EQUIPMENT LEASE
SALARIES-WATER

SALARIES OVERTIME-WATER
PAYROLL TAXES-WATER
RETIREMENT-WATER

PENSION EXPENSE-WATER
UNIFORMS-WATER

GROUP INSURANCE-WATER
CAPITAL ASSET EXP-WATER
CAPITAL ASSET EQUIPMENT-WATER
PRINCIPAL EXPENSE-WATER
INTEREST EXPENSE-WATER

FISCAL AGENT FEES-WATER

BAD DEBT EXPENSE-WATER
TRANSFER TO GCG-WATER

Department: 600 - Water Total:

CHEMICALS

SUPPLIES-SEWER

LABORATORY SUPPLIES-SEWER
PERMIT FEES-SEWER

BUILDING MAINTENANCE-SEWER
CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES-SEWER
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE-SEWER
OFFICE SUPPLIES-SEWER
POSTAGE-SEWER

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE-SEWER
SUPPLIES SMALL EQUIPMENT-SEWER
HOOK UP EXPENSE-SEWER
ADVERTISING-SEWER

AUDIT EXPENSE-SEWER
BANK/CREDIT CARD FEES-SEWER
CONTRACT LABOR-SEWER

DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS-SEWER
EQUIPMENT RENTAL-SEWER
INSURANCE-SEWER

LEGAL-SEWER
PROFESSIONAL-SEWER

SAFETY PROGRAM-SEWER

CITIZEN TRASH EXPENSE-SEWER
TRAVEL EXPENSE-SEWER

TRAINING & EDUCATION-SEWER
RECYCLE CENTER EXPENSE
EQUIPMENT/SOFTWARE CONTRACTS-SEW
SPRINGFIELD SEWER CHARGES-SEWER

For Fiscal: 2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2024

Original Current Budget
Total Budget Total Budget ~ MTD Activity YTD Activity Remaining
200.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00
2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 125.00 1,875.00
21,000.00 25,000.00 8,809.13 23,677.20 1,322.80
2,400.00 2,400.00 327.68 1,467.12 932.88
6,025.00 6,025.00 488.37 3,566.16 2,458.84
120,600.00 120,600.00 0.00 65,216.04 55,383.96
5,000.00 5,000.00 5231 1,792.99 3,207.01
2,400.00 2,400.00 214.42 1,539.65 860.35
10,000.00 10,000.00 1,252.79 8,281.41 1,718.59
4,500.00 4,500.00 0.00 288.74 4,211.26
4,000.00 4,000.00 1,357.81 7,167.43 -3,167.43
3,000.00 3,000.00 1,394.14 2,238.15 761.85
37,860.00 37,860.00 3,054.36 25,371.12 12,488.88
15,894.00 15,894.00 1,059.73 8,477.84 7,416.16
456,794.00 462,836.00 36,361.67 286,186.89 176,649.11
4,000.00 4,000.00 1,008.08 6,115.34 -2,115.34
36,863.00 37,347.00 2,799.16 21,920.27 15,426.73
40,366.00 43,649.00 2,899.27 24,370.01 19,278.99
40,000.00 40,000.00 0.00 0.00 40,000.00
2,700.00 3,100.00 263.36 1,747.65 1,352.35
76,777.00 68,971.00 6,231.28 56,420.73 12,550.27
176,000.00 297,000.00 25,567.67 95,423.21 201,576.79
14,500.00 29,500.00 27,319.00 35,585.00 -6,085.00
87,500.00 87,500.00 0.00 87,500.00 0.00
13,529.00 13,529.00 0.00 13,481.74 47.26
1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 750.00 750.00
3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00
545,000.00 692,000.00 0.00 0.00 692,000.00
2,100,409.00 2,402,212.00 144,909.96 984,204.73 1,418,007.27
10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00
10,000.00 10,000.00 299.10 9,465.99 534.01
0.00 0.00 0.00 523.49 -523.49
3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00
5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 52.25 4,947.75
300.00 300.00 0.00 61.39 238.61
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
2,500.00 2,500.00 154,73 2,246.10 253.90
13,000.00 13,000.00 1,097.79 8,285.81 4,714.19
80,000.00 80,000.00 1,806.10 33,630.60 46,369.40
10,000.00 10,000.00 1,139.67 3,665.83 6,334.17
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
300.00 300.00 0.00 100.16 199.84
6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 1,000.00
19,000.00 19,000.00 3,815.96 24,421.17 -5,421.17
6,000.00 6,000.00 60.00 648.57 5,351.43
300.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00
2,000.00 3,000.00 481.77 2,574.10 425.90
36,658.63 36,658.63 4,058.76 24,482.34 12,176.29
50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00 0.00 50,000.00
75,000.00 86,400.00 20,903.08 58,290.26 28,109.74
200.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00
0.00 23,000.00 0.00 22,481.15 518.85
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00
2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00
5,000.00 5,000.00 132.83 1,833.52 3,166.48
23,000.00 27,000.00 4,800.28 20,906.38 6,093.62
648,000.00 648,000.00 0.00 432,106.96 215,893.04




Income Statement

20-700-61000
20-700-61050
20-700-62000
20-700-62100
20-700-62300
20-700-70000
20-700-70100
20-700-71000
20-700-71100
20-700-75000
20-700-75100
20-700-79000
20-700-90000
20-700-90500
20-700-91500
20-700-92000
20.700-92100
20-700-92500
20-700-93000
20-700-95100
20-700-95500
20-700-96000
20-700-96200
20-700-96400
20-700-87100

Fund: 20 - WATER AND SEWER FUND Surplus (Deficit):

TELEPHONE-SEWER
INTERNET-SEWER

UTILITIES ELECTRIC-SEWER
UTILITIES GAS-SEWER

UTILITIES OTHER-SEWER

VEHICLE EXPENSE FUEL-SEWER
EQUIPMENT FUEL-SEWER
VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT-SEWER
EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT-SEWER
VEHICLE LEASE-SEWER
EQUIPMENT LEASE

PROPERTY EASEMENT-SEWER
SALARIES-SEWER

SALARIES OVERTIME-SEWER
PAYROLL TAXES-SEWER
RETIREMENT-SEWER

PENSION EXPENSE-SEWER
UNIFORMS-SEWER

GROUP INSURANCE-SEWER
CAPITAL ASSET EXP-SEWER
CAPITAL ASSET EQUIPMENT-SEWER
PRINCIPAL EXPENSE-SEWER
INTEREST EXPENSE-SEWER
FISCAL AGENT FEES-SEWER

BAD DEBT EXPENSE-SEWER

Department: 700 - Sewer Total:

Expense Total:

For Fiscal: 2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2024

Original Current Budget
Total Budget Total Budget MTD Activity YTD Activity Remaining
3,000.00 3,000.00 327.80 1,467.24 1,532.76
5,900.00 5,900.00 488.37 3,566.16 2,333.84
90,000.00 90,000.00 0.00 45,374.13 44,625.87
1,600.00 1,600.00 52.31 403.28 1,196.72
2,200.60 2,200.00 214.42 1,539.68 660.32
12,000.00 12,000.00 1,252.79 8,281.41 3,718.59
8,040.00 8,040.00 0.00 3,456.89 4,583.11
4,500.00 4,500.00 1,357.81 7,121.90 -2,621.90
1,500.00 1,500.00 1,076.70 4,293.98 -2,793.98
37,860.00 37,860.00 3,054.36 25,371.12 12,488.88
12,717.00 12,717.00 1,059.74 8,477.92 4,239.08
0.00 20,000.00 0.00 13,225.00 6,775.00
537,286.70 607,854.00 35,761.82 277,767.91 330,086.09
5,000.00 5,000.00 934.48 6,129.84 -1,129.84
43,383.74 49,028.00 2,744.99 21,257.94 27,770.06
30,326.65 57,302.00 2,830.37 23,518.65 33,783.35
40,000.00 40,000.00 0.00 0.00 40,000.00
2,700.00 3,100.00 263.40 1,747.68 1,352.32
100,537.19 104,737.00 5,585.28 51,234.54 53,502.46
880,460.00 900,460.00 7,511.68 99,067.96 801,392.04
14,500.00 26,500.00 975.00 110,369.73 -83,869.73
202,500.00 202,500.00 0.00 198,933.52 3,566.48
120,355.00 120,355.00 0.00 71,271.51 49,083.49
2,250.00 2,250.00 0.00 750.00 1,500.00
3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00
3,170,084.91 3,369,261.63 104,241.39 1,635,404.06 1,733,857.57
5,270,493.91 5,771,473.63 249,151.35 2,619,608.79 3,151,864.84
57,096.09 511.37 243,268.62 -116,546.03




Income Statement

Fund: 30 - PARKS FUND
Revenue
Department: 800 - Parks
30-800-40000
30-800-40400
30-800-40500
30-800-40600
30-800-40650
30-800-40800
30-800-40900
30-800-40950
30-800-41300
30-800-43000
30-800-45300
30-800-45400
30-800-45500
30-800-46000
30-800-46500
30-800-47000
30-800-47100
30-800-47200
30-800-47300
30-800-48000
30-800-48100
30-800-48200

Expense
Department: 800 - Parks
30-800-50000
30-800-50110
30-800-50130
30-800-50150
30-800-50170
30-800-50175
30-800-50177
30-800-50180
30-800-50190
30-800-50200
30-800-50210
30-800-50400
30-800-50450
30-800-50500
30-800-50550
30-800-50800
30-800-50700
30-800-50750
30-800-51000
30-800-52000
30-800-55200
30-800-55400
30-800-55500
30-800-55600
30-800-55800
30-800-55850
30-800-56000

ADVERTISING REVENUE {PARKS)
CONCESSION INCOME
DONATIONS

FACILITY INCOME

FITNESS CENTER INCOME
MISCELLANEQUS INCOME-PKS
PARK PERMIT FEES-PKS

SWIM POOL INCOME
FRANCHISE MOBILE PHONE TOWER
GRANT REVENUES-PKS
INTEREST INCOME-PKS

TAX REAL ESTATE-PKS

TAX SALES & USE REVENUES-PKS
TAX SALES CAP IMP-PKS
TRANSFER FROM GCG
TRANSFER IN PARKS

ADULT PROGRAMS-PKS

YOUTH PROGRAMS-PKS

YOUTH CAMP-PKS

YOUTH SPORTS-PKS

FREEDOM FEST INCOME
SPECIAL EVENT INCOME

SHIRT INCOME

CAPITAL ASSET SALES-PKS

Department: 800 - Parks Total:

Revenue Total:

CHEMICALS-PKS

SUPPLIES - GROUNDS

SUPPLIES GENERAL-PKS
SUPPLIES-AQUATIC
SUPPLIES-SPORTS SHIRTS {PARKS)
SUPPLIES SPECIAL ACTIVITY-PKS
SUPPLIES YOUTH PROGRAM-PKS
SUPPLIES-YOUTH CAMP

SUPPLIES SPORTS-PKS

TREE CITY USA-PKS
CONCESSIONS-PKS

TURF MAINTENANCE-PKS
FITNESS CENTER EXPENSE
FREEDOM FEST EXPENSE
BUILDING MAINTENANCE-PKS
CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES-PKS
MISCELLANEQUS EXPENSE-PKS
OFFICE SUPPLIES-PKS
POSTAGE-PKS

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE-PKS
SUPPLIES SMALL EQUIPMENT-PKS
ADVERTISING-PKS

AUDIT EXPENSE-PKS
BANK/CREDIT CARD FEES-PKS
CONTRACT LABOR-PKS

DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS-PKS
EQUIPMENT RENTAL-PKS
INSURANCE-PKS

For Fiscal: 2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2024

Original Current Budget
Total Budget Total Budget MTD Activity YTD Activity Remaining
30,000.00 30,000.00 727.50 14,261.26 15,738.74
38,325.50 38,325.50 4,664.27 32,415.16 5,910.34
0.00 0.00 120.00 1,955.00 -1,955.00
32,000.00 32,000.00 3,067.00 22,164.25 9,835.75
49,000.00 49,000.00 4,435.71 41,648.52 7,351.48
2,000.00 2,000.00 374.44 491.59 1,508.41
10,000.00 25,000.00 1,200.00 31,050.00 -6,050.00
110,000.00 110,000.00 12,353.00 121,609.60 -11,609.60
19,482.50 19,482.50 1,299.67 10,232.15 9,250.35
750,000.00 750,000.00 0.00 662,723.00 87,277.00
3,300.00 7,000.00 25.77 3,495.78 3,504.22
126,840.00 126,840.00 134.32 66,733.80 60,106.20
336,000.00 336,000.00 31,521.26 256,879.02 79,120.98
320,000.00 320,000.00 26,639.06 201,333.03 118,666.97
1,638.25 243,905.00 100,000.00 200,000.00 43,905.00
50,000.50 50,000.50 0.00 0.00 50,000.50
6,630.00 6,630.00 20.00 1,804.80 4,825.20
6,500.00 6,500.00 284.00 2,249.00 4,251.00
70,000.00 70,000.00 13,848.00 71,225.50 -1,225.50
42,000.00 42,000.00 875.00 28,021.00 13,979.00
11,000.00 11,000.00 0.00 15,090.00 -4,090.00
6,500.00 6,500.00 0.00 2,332.00 4,168.00
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 500.00 1,500.00
2,023,316.75 2,284,283.50 201,589.00 1,788,214.46 496,069.04
2,023,316.75 2,284,283.50 201,589.00 1,788,214.46 496,069.04
15,000.00 15,000.00 9,785.48 20,883.07 -5,883.07
2,000.00 3,500.00 296.25 3,669.99 -169.99
3,000.00 3,000.00 291.58 3,098.82 -98.82
7,000.00 7,000.00 22,58 2,357.23 4,642.77
8,500.00 8,500.00 0.00 4,206.55 4,293.45
6,000.00 6,000.00 1,417.96 6,194.24 -194.24
500.00 500.00 0.00 38.99 461.01
4,000.00 4,000.00 2,656.08 4,657.16 -657.16
9,000.00 9,000.00 457.27 4,757.75 4,242.25
12,800.00 14,600.00 3,960.00 16,096.04 -1,496.04
25,000.00 25,000.00 5,160.50 18,573.35 6,426.65
2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,273.04 226.96
3,150.00 3,150.00 237.28 2,668.98 481.02
22,221.00 22,221.00 606.13 22,467.71 -246.71
10,050.00 20,050.00 2,198.21 23,551.86 -3,501.86
5,025.00 5,025.00 472.05 3,202.10 1,822.90
100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
1,400.00 1,400.00 51.28 1,149.80 250.20
100.00 100.00 0.00 12.00 88.00
5,000.00 7,000.00 565.24 6,484.42 515.58
5,000.00 7,000.00 436.66 6,028.86 971.14
6,000.00 6,000.00 688.27 3,845.53 2,154.47
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00
500.00 500.00 43.55 203.10 296.90
503.00 3,898.00 0.00 1,610.00 2,288.00
3,819.00 3,819.00 0.00 3,776.42 42,58
3,015.00 10,000.00 951.39 5,558.47 4,441.53
38,421.00 47,000.00 5,871.70 29,384.92 17,615.08




Income Statement

30-800-56200
30-800-56400
30-800-56450
30-800-56500
30-800-56900
30-800-56950
30-800-57400
30.800-61000
30-800-61050
30-800-62000
30.800-62100
30-800-62300
30-800-70000
30-800-70100
30-800-71000
30-800-71100
30-800-75000
30.800-90000
30-800-90500
30-800-91000
30-800-91500
30-800-92000
30-800-92500
30-800-93000
30.800-95100
30-800-95500
30-800-96000
30-800-96200
30-800-96400

LEGAL-PKS

PROFESSIONAL-PKS

CONTRACT SERVICES/SECURITY-PKS
SAFETY PROGRAM-PKS

TRAVEL EXPENSE-PKS

TRAINING & EDUCATION-PKS

EQUIPMENT/SOFTWARE CONTRACTS-PKS

TELEPHONE-PKS
INTERNET-PARKS

UTILITIES ELECTRIC-PKS
UTILITIES GAS PKS

UTILITIES OTHER-PKS

VEHICLE EXPENSE FUEL-PKS
EQUIPMENT FUEL-PKS
VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT-PKS
EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT-PKS
VEHICLE LEASE-PKS
SALARIES-PKS

SALARIES OVERTIME-PKS
SALARIES SEASONAL-PKS
PAYROLL TAXES-PKS
RETIREMENT-PKS
UNIFORMS-PKS

GROUP INSURANCE-PKS
CAPITAL ASSET EXP-PKS
CAPITAL ASSET EQUIPMENT-PKS
PRINCIPAL EXPENSE-PKS
INTEREST EXPENSE-PKS
FISCAL AGENT FEES

Department: 800 - Parks Total:

Expense Total:

Fund: 30 - PARKS FUND Surplus (Deficit):
Total Surplus (Deflcit):

For Fiscal: 2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2024

Original Current Budget
Total Budget Total Budget MTD Activity YTD Activity Remaining
1,010.00 1,010.00 0.00 0.00 1,010.00
5,050.00 5,050.00 576.00 3,549.25 1,500.75
1,005.00 1,005.00 0.00 330.00 675.00
2,010.00 2,964.00 399.99 3,354.99 -390.99
2,010.00 3,600.00 0.00 3,526.92 73.08
3,518.00 3,518.00 119.00 3,588.00 -70.00
12,500.00 16,000.00 1,645.75 14,095.49 1,904.51
2,695.00 2,695.00 261.29 1,776.07 918.93
5,930.00 5,930.00 506.23 3,701.78 2,228.22
61,305.00 61,305.00 0.00 24,045.57 37,259.43
6,231.00 6,231.00 161.63 5,398.28 832.72
5,025.00 5,025.00 775.48 5,099.32 -74.32
8,543.00 8,543.00 734.42 5,015.53 3,527.47
8,040.00 8,040.00 2,198.25 6,019.24 2,020.76
1,508.00 1,508.00 750.39 7,335.30 -5,827.30
10,050.00 10,050.00 620.55 11,948.17 -1,898.17
20,198.00 23,320.00 1,993.51 12,873.41 10,446.59
283,738.00 292,038.00 31,401.43 240,884.07 51,153.93
3,500.00 3,500.00 96.67 4,703.78 -1,203.78
335,000.00 335,000.00 73,370.02 273,386.36 61,613.64
49,779.00 50,443.00 7,997.14 39,548.85 10,894.15
22,684.00 27,633.00 2,184.36 17,321.18 10,311.82
500.00 500,00 0.00 5,767.78 -5,267.78
57,210.00 57,089.00 3,867.42 33,480.55 23,608.45
125,000.00 237,650.00 0.00 107,991.08 129,658.92
477,200.00 566,300.00 74,705.19 563,942.92 2,357.08
235,000.00 235,000.00 0.00 235,000.00 Q.00
74,882.00 74,882.00 0.00 39,196.22 35,685.78
1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 750.00 750.00
2,023,225.00 2,284,192.00 240,534.18 1,871,380.51 412,811.49
2,023,225.00 2,284,192.00 240,534.18 1,871,380.51 412,811.49
91.75 91.50 -38,945.18 -83,166.05
413,341.84 602.87 103,884.56 92,695.17




Income Statement

Department

Fund: 10 - GENERAL FUND
Revenue

100 - General Government
200 - Law
250 - Court
300 - Streets
400 - Planning & Development
500 - Emergency Management

Expense
100 - General Government
200 - Law
250 - Court
300 - Streets
400 - Planning & Development
450 - Economic Development
500 - Emergency Management

Revenue Total:

Expense Total:
Fund: 10 - GENERAL FUND Surplus (Deficit):

For Fiscal: 2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2024
Group Summary

Original Current Budget
Total Budget Total Budget MTD Activity YTD Activity Remaining
2,153,140.00 2,303,819.00 163,086.51 1,569,896.82 733,922.18

181,100.00 199,100.00 10,001.94 114,153.95 84,946.05
120,600.00 65,600.00 6,852.36 45,251.52 20,348.48
726,419.00 726,419.00 30,514.40 264,172.08 462,246.92
25,000.00 25,000.00 1,648.50 18,975.05 6,024.95
8,458.00 8,458.00 0.00 0.00 8,458.00
3,214,717.00 3,328,396.00 212,103.71 2,012,449.42 1,315,946.58
430,704.00 862,153.00 124,376.23 528,510.98 333,642.02
1,172,249.00 1,161,693.00 79,606.93 655,336.95 506,356.05
126,867.00 128,105.00 10,837.14 81,051.37 47,053.63
863,563.00 865,489.00 79,591.45 299,382.71 566,106.29
232,380.00 275,488.00 18,111.89 133,486.86 142,001.14
13,000.00 15,668.00 0.00 12,661.35 3,006.65
19,800.00 19,800.00 18.95 9,611.95 10,188.05
2,858,563.00 3,328,396.00 312,542.59 1,720,042.17 1,608,353.83
356,154.00 0.00 -100,438.88 292,407.25 -292,407.25




Income Statement

Department

Fund: 20 - WATER AND SEWER FUND
Revenue
600 - Water

700 - Sewer
Revenue Total:

Expense
600 - Water
700 - Sewer

Expense Total: B

Fund: 20 - WATER AND SEWER FUND Surplus (Deficit):

For Fiscal: 2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2024

Original Current Budget
Total Budget Total Budget MTD Actlvity YTD Activity Remaining
2,100,922.00 2,402,724.00 113,044.38 912,288.45 1,490,435.55
3,226,668.00 3,369,261.00 379,375.59 1,590,774.31 1,778,486.69
5,327,590.00 5,771,985.00 492,419.97 2,503,062.76 3,268,922.24
2,100,409.00 2,402,212.00 144,909.96 984,204.73 1,418,007.27
3,170,084.91 3,369,261.63 104,241.39 1,635,404.06 1,733,857.57
5,270,493.91 5,771,473.63 249,151.35 2,619,608.79 3,151,864.84

57,096.09 511.37 243,268.62 -116,546.03 117,057.40




Income Statement

Department

Fund: 30 - PARKS FUND
Revenue
BOO - Parks

Expense
800 - Parks

Revenue Total:

Expense Total:

Fund: 30 - PARKS FUND Surplus (Deficit):

Total Surplus (Deficit):

For Fiscal: 2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2024

Original Current Budget
Total Budget Total Budget = MTD Activity YTD Activity Remaining
2,023,316.75 2,284,283.50 201,589.00 1,788,214.46 496,069.04
2,023,316.75 2,284,283.50 201,589.00 1,788,214.46 496,069.04
2,023,225.00 2,284,192,00 240,534.18 1,871,380.51 412,811.49
2,023,225.00 2,284,192.00 240,534.18 1,871,380.51 412,811.49

91.75 91.50 -38,945.18 -83,166.05 83,257.55
413,341.84 602.87 103,884.56 92,695.17




For Fiscal: 2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2024
Fund Summary

Income Statement

Original Current Budget
Fund Total Budget  Total Budget  MTD Activity YTD Activity Remaining
10 - GENERAL FUND 356,154.00 0.00 -100,438.88 292,407.25 -292,407.25
20 - WATER AND SEWER FUN 57,086.05 51137 243,268.62 -116,546.03 117,057.40
30 - PARKS FUND 91.75 91.50 -38,945.18 -83,166.05 83,257.55

Total Surplus (Deficit): 413,341.84 602.87 103,884.56 92,695.17




CITY OF WILLARD
BOARD OF ALDERMEN

AGENDA ITEM #3d
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

ACTION REQUIRED: APPROVAL REQUESTED

o August 2024/September 2024 Outstanding Invoices
e August 2024/September 2024 2024 Check Paid
Invoices and Draft Paid Invoices

#
Finance Department Report
9/23/2024 Board of Aldermen Meeting



Vendor Name

Vendor: ACE150 - AC ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS, INC.

City of Willard, MO

Payable Number

AC ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS, INC. 55

Vendor: REP425 - ALLIED SERVICES, LLC

ALLIED SERVICES, LLC
ALLIED SERVICES, LLC
ALLIED SERVICES, LLC
ALLIED SERVICES, LLC
ALLIED SERVICES, LLC
ALLIED SERVICES, LLC
ALLIED SERVICES, LLC
ALLIED SERVICES, LLC

Vendor: ACS100 - AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES |

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES |

AMAZON CAP{TAL SERVICES |

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES |

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES |

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES |

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES |

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES |

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES |

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES |

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES |

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES |

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES |

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES |

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES |

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES |

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES |

AMAZON CAP{TAL SERVICES |

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES |

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES |

174
452
653
653
653
653
653
653

9CNT

SCNT

9G4K

9G4K

9G4K

9G4K

9G4K

9G4K

9G4K

9G4K

9LON

9LON

S9LQN

9LAN

SLON

SLAN

9LON

S9LON

KTK&

KTK6

Post Date

09/18/2024

09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024

09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024

09/18/2024

Expense Approval Report 3
By Vendor Name

Post Dates 9/10/2024 - 9/18/2024

Description (Item) Account Number Amount
STARTER, THERMAL UNITS, 30-800-50500 1,021.50
LABOR POOL REPR - PKS

Vendor ACE150 - AC ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS, INC. Total: 1,021.50
RECYCLE CENTER-S 20-700-57200 132.83
RECYCLE CENTER EXP-S 20-700-57200 150.00
TRASH EXP-ALL 10-100-62300 128.69
TRASH EXP-ALL 10-200-62300 46.40
TRASH EXP-ALL 20-600-62300 157.78
TRASH EXP-ALL 20-700-62300 157.78
TRASH EXP-ALL 30-800-50450 220.59
TRASH EXP-ALL 30-800-62300 570.51

Vendor REP425 - ALLIED SERVICES, LLC Total: 1,564.58

TAB DIVIDERS, 3-DRWR FILE 10-100-50700 11.33
CBNT - GEN

TAB DIVIDERS, 3-DRWR FILE 10-100-52000 201.97
CBNT - GEN

ANDROID TABLETS (x5) & 10-100-52000 90.10
CHARGING STATION-ALL DEPT

ANDROID TABLETS (x5) & 10-200-52000 45.04
CHARGING STATION-ALL DEPT

ANDROID TABLETS (x5) & 10-250-52000 28.15
CHARGING STATION-ALL DEPT

ANDROID TABLETS (x5) & 10-300-52000 33.78
CHARGING STATION-ALL DEPT

ANDROID TABLETS (x5) & 10-400-52000 28.15
CHARGING STATION-ALL DEPT

ANDROID TABLETS (x5) & 20-600-52000 30.09
CHARGING STATION-ALL DEPT

ANDROID TABLETS (x5) & 20-700-52000 90.09
CHARGING STATION-ALL DEPT

ANDROID TABLETS {x5) & 30-800-52000 45.04
CHARGING STATION-ALL DEPT

ANDROID TABLETS {x3) - ALL  10-100-52000 47.99
DEPTS

ANDROID TABLETS (x3) - ALL  10-200-52000 24.00
DEPTS

ANDROID TABLETS (x3) - ALL  10-250-52000 15.00
DEPTS

ANDROID TABLETS (x3) - ALL  10-300-52000 18.00
DEPTS

ANDROID TABLETS (x3) - ALL  10-400-52000 15.00
DEPTS

ANDROID TABLETS (x3) - ALL  20-600-52000 47.99
DEPTS

ANDROID TABLETS (x3) - ALL  20-700-52000 47.99
DEPTS

ANDROID TABLETS (x3)- ALL  30-800-52000 24,00
DEPTS

EXTRA LONG SHOP VAC HOSE  10-300-52000 7.99
-STS/W/S

EXTRA LONG SHOP VAC HOSE  20-600-52000 15.99

-STS/W/S




Expense Approval Report 3
Vendor Name Payable Number

AMAZON CAPITALSERVICES | KTK6

AMAZON CAPITALSERVICES1 LQT4
AMAZON CAPITALSERVICES! PF3M

Vendor: ATS200 - ANCHOR TACTICAL SUPPLY, LLC
ANCHOR TACTICAL SUPPLY, LL 952

Vendor: APM100 - APPLE MARKET

APPLE MARKET 8-27
APPLE MARKET 8-27
APPLE MARKET 8-27

Vendor: BLU150 - BLUE VALLEY PUBLIC SAFETY, INC
BLUE VALLEY PUBLIC SAFETY, | 347

Vendor: BWI200 - BULK WASTE LLC d/b/a BW! SANITATION
BULK WASTE LLC d/b/a BWIS 701

Vendor: CCO100 - CALIBER COLLISION
CALIBER COLLISION 539

Vendor: CAR155 - CARE TO LEARN-WILLARD
CARE TO LEARN-WILLARD 24

Vendor: HVR100 - CAROLYN HALVERSON
CAROLYN HALVERSON SEP

Vendor: CLH100 - CLAYTON HOLDINGS LLC

CLAYTON HOLDINGS LLC 116
CLAYTON HOLDINGS LLC 116
CLAYTON HOLDINGS LLC 116

Vendor: CP1100 - COLORGRAPHIC PRINTING INC
COLORGRAPHIC PRINTING IN 508
COLORGRAPHIC PRINTING IN 509

Vendor: COMMGN - COMMERCE CREDIT CARD SERVICES
COMMERCE CREDIT CARDSE  60107-2

COMMERCE CREDIT CARD SE  60107-2
COMMERCE CREDIT CARD SE 60107-2

COMMERCE CREDIT CARD SE  60107-2

Post Date
09/18/2024

09/18/2024
09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024
09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024
09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024
09/18/2024

Q9/11/2024
09/11/2024
09/11/2024

09/11/2024

Post Dates: 9/10/2024 - 9/18/2024

Description {Item) Account Number

EXTRA LONG SHOP VAC HOSE  20-700-52000
-STS/W/S

BLUE MARKING PAINT - W
LT BULBS, CABLE STRAPS,
PAPER CLIPS - PKS

20-600-50130
30-800-50700

Vendor ACS100 - AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC Total:

BOOTS S. COLLETTE - LAW 10-200-92500

Vendor ATS200 - ANCHOR TACTICAL SUPPLY, LLC Total:

PALLET OF BOTTLED WATER 10-300-50130
FOR SHOP-STS/W/S
PALLET OF BOTTLED WATER 20-600-50130
FOR SHOP-STS/W/S
PALLET OF BOTTLED WATER 20-700-50130
FOR SHOP-STS/W/S

Vendor APM 100 - APPLE MARKET Total:

LBR/TRVL RESET CNTRLR & 10-500-51000
ACTIVATE UNIT SIRN SYS-EM

vendor BLU150 - BLUE VALLEY PUBLIC SAFETY, INC Total:

TOILET RENTALS MILLER PARK  30-800-55850
- PKS

Vendor BWIZ00 - BULK WASTE LLC d/b/a BWI SANITATION Total:

LABOR/PARTS TO REPR 10-200-71000
WINDOW '21 DODGE CHRG-

LAW

Vendor CCO100 - CALIBER COLLISION Total:

ADVERTISING TURKEY TROT ~ 30-800-55200
2024 - PKS

Vendor CAR155 - CARE TO LEARN-WILLARD Total:

REIM PHONE-GEN 10-100-61000

Vendor HVR100 - CAROLYN HALVERSON Total:

LEASE ON EQUIPMENT - 10-300-75100

STS/W/S
LEASE ON EQUIPMENT - 20-600-75100
STS/W/S
LEASE ON EQUIPMENT - 20-700-75100
STS/W/S

vendor CLH100 - CLAYTON HOLDINGS LLC Total:

PRINT (2) LARGE MAPS - P&D  10-400-50700
GYM SIGN PRINT - PKS 30-800-55200

Vendor CPI100 - COLORGRAPHIC PRINTING INC Total:

ISOLVED MONTHLY TIME 10-100-57400
CLOCK LEASE-ALL
ISOLVED MONTHLY TIME
CLOCK LEASE-ALL
ISOLVED MONTHLY TIME
CLOCK LEASE-ALL
ISOLVED MONTHLY TIME
CLOCK LEASE-ALL

10-200-57400

10-250-57400

10-400-57400

Amount

15.98

72.99
96.14

1,112.80

165.00

165.00

67.20

134.40

134.40

336.00

740.00

740.00

239.80

239.80

381.25

381.25

250.00

250.00

50.00
50.00

529.87

1,059.73

1,059.74

2,649.33

130.60
135.41
266.01

112.66

181.97

5.29

10.67



Expense Approval Report 3

Vendor Name Payable Number Post Date

COMMERCE CREDIT CARD SE  60107-2 09/11/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARD SE  60107-2 09/11/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARD SE  60107-2 09/11/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARD SE 61718-2 09/11/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARDSE  61718-2 09/11/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARDSE  61718-2 09/11/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARDSE  61718-2 09/11/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARDSE  61718-2 09/11/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARD SE ~ 61718-2 09/11/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARD SE 61718-2 09/11/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARDSE 162 09/18/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARD SE 2024 09/18/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARD SE 314 09/18/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARDSE 314 09/18/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARD SE 33 09/18/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARDSE 356 09/18/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARDSE 648 09/18/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARDSE  7-30 09/18/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARDSE 822 09/18/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARDSE 822 09/18/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARDSE ~ 8-27 ISF 09/18/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARD SE  9-16 09/18/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARD SE 9-9 09/18/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARD SE  9-9 GOV 09/18/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARDSE  HUD 09/18/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARD SE  SEP 09/18/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARDSE  SEP 09/18/2024
COMMERCE CREDIT CARDSE  WES 09/18/2024

Vendar: CAS200 - CONSULTING ANALYTICAL SERVICES INTERNATIONAL
CONSULTING ANALYTICAL SER 318 09/18/2024

Vendor: CPS100 - CREATIVE PRODUCT SOURCING, INC
CREATIVE PRODUCT SOURCIN 915 09/18/2024

Description (ltem)

ISOLVED MONTHLY TIME
CLOCK LEASE-ALL

ISOLVED MONTHLY TIME
CLOCK LEASE-ALL

ISOLVED MONTHLY TIME
CLOCHK LEASE-ALL

ISOLVED MONTHLY TIME
CLOCK LEASE-ALL

ISOLVED MONTHLY TIME
CLOCK LEASE-ALL

ISOLVED MONTHLY TIME
CLOCK LEASE-ALL

ISOLVED MONTHLY TIME
CLOCK LEASE-ALL

ISOLVED MONTHLY TIME
CLOCK LEASE-ALL

ISOLVED MONTHLY TIME
CLOCK LEASE-ALL

ISOLVED MONTHLY TIME
CLOCK LEASE-ALL

SPFLD CLUTCH BATWING
REPR - PKS

MICROSOFT SFTWARE ON
LAPTPS FOR INSPECTIONS - W
QR CODE QR ON BCK OF UTIL
BILLS SUBSCPTN - W/S

QR CODE QR ON BCK OF UTIL
BILLS SUBSCPTN - W/S
CRWN AWRDS
MEDALS/RIBBONS
BSKTBALL/SOCCER-PKS
SMARTSIGN.COM VARIOUS
SIGNS & SUPPLIES - STS
STAMPS.COM MONTHLY FEE-
GEN

AMZ MISC SUPPLIES - PKS
{NDEED ADV UTILITY CLERK -
w/s

INDEED ADV UTILITY CLERK -
w/s

INTERNATL SERV FEE ON QR-
CODE PURCH - P&D
POSTMASTER SHIP TIME
CLCKS BACK TO ISOLVED-GEN
STAMPS.COM STAMP ROLLS-
GEN

GOVDEALS TRASH BINS - PKS
GFOA DUES 10/1/24-9/30/25
DIANA HUDDLE-GEN

AT&T INTERNET SERVICE-W/S
AT&T INTERNET SERVICE-W/S
MML ONLINE EDU COURSES
W. YOUNG - GEN

Vendor COMMGN - COMMERCE CREDIT CARD SERVICES Total:

WATER TESTING FOR POOL
DRAIN/DRAWDWN - PKS

DARE SUPPLIES - LAW

Vendor CPS100 - CREATIVE PRODUCT SOURCING, INC Total:

Post Dates: 9/10/2024 - 9/18/2024

Account Number

20-600-57400

20-700-57400

30-800-57400

10-100-57400

10-200-57400

10-250-57400

10-400-57400

20-600-57400

20-700-57400

30-800-57400

30-800-71100

20-600-50700

20-600-55800

20-700-55800

30-800-50180

10-300-50130

10-100-50750

30-800-50130
20-600-55200

20-700-55200

10-400-55500

10-100-50750

10-100-50750

30-800-52000
10-100-55800

20-600-61050

20-700-61050
10-100-56950

30-800-50140

Vendor CAS200 - CONSULTING ANALYTICAL SERVICES INTERNATIONAL Total:

10-200-50300

Amount

69.65
69.65
390.24
112.66
181.97
5.29
10.67
69.65
69.65
390.24
279.15
99.99
22.49
22,48

1,033.99

552.87
12.79

15.11
175.92

175.92
0.45
31.30
72.43

79.87
75.00

32.10
32,10
270.00

4,668.22

37.00

37.00

1,700.00
1,700.00




Expense Approval Report 3

Vendor Name Payable Number

Vendor: CPE100 - CROWN POWER & EQUIPMENT
CROWN POWER & EQUIPMEN 94V

Vendor: TDE100 - DAILY EVENTS, THE
DAILY EVENTS, THE 160

DAILY EVENTS, THE 160

Vendor: DAV100 - DAVID DORAN,ATTORNEY AT LAW
DAVID DORAN,ATTORNEY AT L 9-9

Vendor: EMC105 - EMC INSURANCE COMPANIES
EMC INSURANCE COMPANIES 584

EMC INSURANCE COMPANIES 584

EMC INSURANCE COMPANIES 584

Vendor: FRA555 - FIRST RESPONDER OUTFITTERS, INC
FIRST RESPONDER OUTFITTER 18-2

Vendor: HAR160 - HARRY COOPER SUPPLY COMPANY INC
HARRY COOPER SUPPLY COM 605

Post Date

09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024
09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024

Vendor: LML100 - LAUBER AND ASSOCIATES MUNICIPAL LAW LLC

LAUBER AND ASSOCIATES MU 820

Vendor: EMP210 - LIBERTY UTILITIES-EMPIRE DISTRICT
LIBERTY UTILITIES-EMPIRE DIS 8-

LIBERTY UTILITIES-EMPIRE DIS  9-4
LIBERTY UTILITIES-EMPIRE DIS 9-4
LIBERTY UTILITIES-EMPIRE DIS S9-4
LIBERTY UTILITIES-EMPIRE DIS S-4
LIBERTY UTILITIES-EMPIRE DIS  9-4
LIBERTY UTILITIES-EMPIRE DiS  9-4
LIBERTY UTILITIES-EMPIRE DIS  9-4

Vendor: LGE100 - LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT INC
LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT INC 48

LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT INC 48

LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT INC 48

Vendor: LOWS505 - LOWE'S CREDIT SERVICES

LOWE'S CREDIT SERVICES 984051
LOWE'S CREDIT SERVICES 984051
LOWE'S CREDIT SERVICES 984051

09/18/2024

09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024

09/18/2024
09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/10/2024
09/10/2024

09/10/2024

Post Dates: 3/10/2024 - 9/18/2024

Description (Item) Account Number

KUBOTA BRAKES CALIPER - PK 30-800-71100
Vendor CPE100 - CROWN POWER & EQUIPMENT Total:

ADV NOTICE OF MEETING 20-600-55200
WATERWORKS SYS - W/S
ADV NOTICE OF MEETING
WATERWORKS SYS - W/S

Vendor TDE100 - DAILY EVENTS, THE Total:

20-700-55200

MUNICIPAL JUDGE FEES - CT  10-250-56400
Vendor DAV100 - DAVID DORAN,ATTORNEY AT LAW Total:

PROPRTY & LIABLTY INS- 10-16000
GEN/PW/PKS
PROPRTY & LIABLTY INS- 20-16000
GEN/PW/PKS
PROPRTY & LIABLTY INS- 30-16000
GEN/PW/PKS

Vendor EMC105 - EMC INSURANCE COMPANIES Total:

NAMETAG A. HICKCOX - LAW  10-200-92500
Vendor FRAS5SS - FIRST RESPONDER OUTFITTERS, INC Total:

4-1/4" MAIN VALVE KIT FOR 20-600-51000
MAIN REPAIR - W
Vendor HAR160 - HARRY COOPER SUPPLY COMPANY INC Total:

CITY PROSECUTOR FEES - LAW  10-200-56400

Vendor LML100 - LAUBER AND ASSOCIATES MUNICIPAL LAW LLC Total:

ELECTRICAL 1011 QUARRY RD  20-700-62000
94 LIFTSTN -5
ELECTRIC UTILITIES-ALL
ELECTRIC UTILITIES-ALL
ELECTRIC UTILITIES-ALL
ELECTRIC UTILITIES-ALL
ELECTRIC UTILITIES-ALL
ELECTRIC UTILITIES-ALL 20-700-62000

ELECTRIC UTILITIES-ALL 30-800-62000

Vendor EMP210 - LIBERTY UTILITIES-EMPIRE DISTRICT Total:

10-100-62000
10-200-62000
10-300-61110
10-300-62000
20-600-62000

CYLINDER LEASE AND GAS 10-300-50130
FOR SHOP USE - STS/W/S
CYLINDER LEASE AND GAS 20-600-50130
FOR SHOP USE - STS/W/S
CYLINDER LEASE AND GAS 20-700-50130

FOR SHOP USE - STS/W/S
Vendor LGE100 - LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT INC Total:

PROPANE TANK EXCHANGE - 10-300-50130
SHOP SPLYS-STS/W/S
PROPANE TANK EXCHANGE - 20-600-50130
SHOP SPLYS-STS/W/S
PROPANE TANK EXCHANGE - 20-700-50130
SHOP SPLYS-STS/W/S

Vendor LOWS505 - LOWE'S CREDIT SERVICES Total:

Amount

300.47
300.47

375.00
375.00

750.00

900.00
900.00

6,236.16
2,815.04

4,754.78

13,805.98

14.50
14.50

872.09

872.03

5,359.50
5,359.50

3,264.69
385.49
244.46

6,238.45
338.48

7,202.17

5,354.62

3,742.12

26,770.48

69.88
139.75
139.76

349.39

3.80
7.58
7.59

18.98



Expense Approval Report 3
Vendor Name Payable Number

Vendor: MATM100 - MATERIALS MANAGEMENT
MATERIALS MANAGEMENT 756

Vendor: MRT100 - MERIT ELECTRICAL LLC
MERIT ELECTRICAL LLC 122

Vendor: MEM100 - MISSOURI EMPLOYERS MUTUAL
MISSOURI EMPLOYERS MUTU 367

MISSOURI EMPLOYERS MUTU 367

MISSOURI EMPLOYERS MUTU 367

Vendor: ORE145 - O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC
O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC 9423

O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC 539
O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC 587
O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC 799
O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC 90

O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC 908

O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC 920

Vendor: ORW100 - ORIGINAL WATERMEN
ORIGINAL WATERMEN 122

Vendor: PIL100 - PILOT WIRELESS LLC

PILOT WIRELESS LLC 718
PILOT WIRELESS LLC 718
PILOT WIRELESS LLC 718
PILOT WIRELESS LLC 718
PILOT WIRELESS LLC 718
PILOT WIRELESS LLC 718
PILOT WIRELESS LLC 718
PILOT WIRELESS LLC 718

Vendor: LIN200 - ROTA L. STONEHOUSE

ROTA L. STONEHOUSE 524
ROTA L. STONEHOUSE 524
ROTA L. STONEHOUSE 524
ROTA L. STONEHOUSE 524

Vendor: SMCO - SOUTHWEST MISSOURI CODE OFFICIALS
SOUTHWEST MISSOURI CODE  MIKE

Post Date

09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024
09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/10/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
08/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024

09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024

Post Dates: 9/10/2024 - 3/18/2024

Description (Item) Account Number

1" DIRTY BASE MARK STREET  20-600-51000
MAIN REPAIR - W

Vendor MATM100 - MATERIALS MANAGEMENT Total:

INSTL START RELAY WELL #1,  20-600-51000
SPARE RLYS/CNTCTRS - W

Vendor MRT100 - MERIT ELECTRICAL LLC Total:

WORKMANS COMP INS- 10-16000
GEN/PW/PKS
WORKMANS COMP INS- 20-16000
GEN/PW/PKS
WORKMANS COMP INS- 30-16000
GEN/PW/PKS

Vendor MEM100 - MISSOUR! EMPLOYERS MUTUAL Total:

OIL PRESSR 10-300-71100
SWTCH,PENTRTNG OIL,CARBR

BOOSTER CABLE CHEVY 30-800-71000
DUMP TRCK - PKS

BRAKE & CARBURETOR 30-800-71100
CLEANER - PKS

QT FUEL MIX FOR CHAINSAW  20-600-51000
- MTR PIT INSPECTIONS - W

OIL FITER, MOTOR OIL MAINT  10-300-71100
ON MOWER - STS

MOTOR OIL FOR PWR WSHR - 30-800-71100

PKS
ANTIFREEZE FOR TRACTOR AT 20-700-71100
LAGOONS - §
Vendor ORE145 - O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC Total:
LIFEGUARD SHIRTS - PKS 30-800-50140
Vendor ORW100 - ORIGINAL WATERMEN Total:
PHONE-ALL 10-100-61000
PHONE-ALL 10-200-61000
PHONE-ALL 10-250-61000
PHONE-ALL 10-300-61000
PHONE-ALL 10-400-61000
PHONE-ALL 20-600-61000
PHONE-ALL 20-700-61000
PHONE-ALL 30-800-61000
Vendor PIL100 - PILOT WIRELESS LLC Total:
DATA COMPILATION- 10-100-55600
GEN/CT/LAW/PW
DATA COMPILATION- 10-200-55600
GEN/CT/LAW/PW
DATA COMPILATION- 10-250-56400
GEN/CT/LAW/PW
DATA COMPILATION- 20-700-55600
GEN/CT/LAW/PW
Vendor LIN200 - ROTA L. STONEHOUSE Total:
'24 FALL SEMINAR 10-400-56950
REGISTRATION MIKE RUESCH
-P&D

Vendor SMCO - SOUTHWEST MISSOURI CODE OFFICIALS Total:

Amount

803.69

803.69

2,745.09

2,745.09

2,430.50
1,551.39

1,189.40

5,171.29

41.46

53.99

10.95

8.99

37.82

6.49

31.98

191.68

56.45
56.45

87.77
87.76
62.68
62.68
62.68
87.76
87.76
87.76
626.85

30.00

15.00

15.00

30.00

90.00

100.00

100.00




Expense Approval Report 3
Vendor Name Payable Number

Vendor: MIS315 - SPIRE

SPIRE 108
SPIRE 220
SPIRE 224
SPIRE HOLLY
SPIRE z

Post Date

09/18/2024
09/18/2024

09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024

Vendor: SPF100 - SPRINGFIELD FAMILY MEDICAL WALK-IN CLINICS INC

SPRINGFIELD FAMILY MEDICA 855

09/18/2024

Vendor SPF100 - SPRINGFIELD FAMILY MEDICAL WALK-IN CLINICS INC Total:

Vendor: SPR200 - SPRINGFIELD-GREENE COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

SPRINGFIELD-GREENE COUNT 424

Vendor: SRS150 - SUNRISE SECURITY
SUNRISE SECURITY 282

Vendor: COC200 - SW MISSOURI ENGINEERING LLC
SW MISSOURI ENGINEERING 553

Vendor: TRH100 - TREVOR HOFFMAN

TREVOR HOFFMAN AUG
TREVOR HOFFMAN AUG
TREVOR HOFFMAN AUG

vendor: WSP100 - TURN 2 APPAREL LLC
TURN 2 APPAREL LLC 301

Vendor: UMB100 - UMB BANK
UMB BANK 240.1

Vendor: UNI120 - UNITED RENTALS, INC

UNITED RENTALS, INC 187
UNITED RENTALS, INC 187
UNITED RENTALS, INC 187

Vendor: VD5100 - VDS VISION LLC

VDS VISION LLC 1608
VDS ViSION LLC 1608
VDS VISION LLC 1608
VDS VISION LLC 1608
VDS VISION LLC 1608
VDS VISION LLC 1608
VDS VISION LLC 1608
VDS VISION LLC 1608

09/18/2024

Vendor SPR200 - SPRINGFIELD-GREENE COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT Total:

09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024
09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024
09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024

Post Dates: 9/10/2024 - 9/18/2024

Description {Item) Account Number

UTIL EXP GAS-W 20-600-62100
UTIL EXP GAS COMM BLDG-  30-800-62100
PKS

UTIL EXP GAS CITY HALL-GEN ~ 10-100-62100
UTIL EXP GAS-S 20-700-62100
UTIL EXP GAS REC CNTR-PKS  30-800-62100

Vendor MIS315 - SPIRE Total:

SCREENING V. BARRIOS- 10-300-56400

ARELLANQO - STS
20-600-50200

WATER TESTS-W

ALARM MONITOR SEPT 2024- 10-100-56450
AUG 2025 - ALL

Vendor SRS150 - SUNRISE SECURITY Total:

WTRSTDY UPDT & DNR5 YR 20-600-56400
SPRVSD PRGRM-W

Vendor COC200 - SW MISSOURI ENGINEERING LLC Total:

REIM CELL PHONE AUG - 10-300-61000

STS/W/S

REIM CELL PHONE AUG - 20-600-61000

STS/W/S

REIM CELL PHONE AUG - 20-700-61000

STS/W/S

Vendar TRH100 - TREVOR HOFFMAN Total:

FALL SOCCER JERSEYS ADD 30-800-50150

ONS - PKS

Vendor WSP100 - TURN 2 APPAREL LLC Total:

SERIES 2018 WATERWORKS &  20-700-96200
SEWERAGE INTEREST - S

Vendor UMB100 - UMB BANK Total:

SCISSOR LIFT RENTAL WRK ON  10-300-55850
SALT BRN - STS/W/S
SCISSOR LIFT RENTAL WRK ON  20-600-55850
SALT BRN - STS/W/S
SCISSOR LIFT RENTAL WRK ON  20-700-55850
SALT BRN - STS/W/S

Vendor UNI120 - UNITED RENTALS, INC Total:

10-100-56400
10-200-56400
10-250-56400
10-300-56400
10-400-56400
20-600-56400
20-700-56400
30-800-56400

IT SERVICES-ALL
IT SERVICES-ALL
IT SERVICES-ALL
IT SERVICES-ALL
IT SERVICES-ALL
IT SERVICES-ALL
IT SERVICES-ALL
IT SERVICES-ALL

Vendor VDS100 - VDS VISION LLC Total:

Amount

5231
99.04

52.31
5231

58.01
313.98

25.00

25.00

117.00
117.00

396.00

396.00

2,500.00

T 2,500.00

10.00

20.00

20.00

50.00

72.20

72.20

52,504.35

T 5250435

293.05

586.11

586.11

1,465.27

28B8.00
144.00
36.00
36.00
72.00
288.00
288.00
288.00

1,440.00




Expense Approval Report 3
Vendor Name

Vendor: AMK100 - VESTIS
VESTIS

VESTIS
VESTIS
VESTIS
VESTIS

VESTIS

Payable Number

6811
6811
6811
8690
8690

8690

Vendor: WYO100 - WESLEY YOUNG

WESLEY YOUNG
WESLEY YOUNG

WES
WES HOUSE

vendor: WTV100 - WILLARD HOME CENTER LLC

WILLARD HOME CENTER LLC

WILLARD HOME CENTER LLC

WILLARD HOME CENTER LLC

WILLARD HOME CENTER LLC

WILLARD HOME CENTER LLC

WILLARD HOME CENTER LLC

WILLARD HOME CENTER LLC

WILLARD HOME CENTER LLC

WILLARD HOME CENTER LLC

WILLARD HOME CENTER LLC
WILLARD HOME CENTER LLC
WILLARD HOME CENTER LLC

WILLARD HOME CENTER LLC

WILLARD HOME CENTER LLC
WILLARD HOME CENTER LLC

199

250

295

300

384

384

51

551

594

627
630
740

754

842
D110046

Post Date

09/10/2024
09/10/2024
09/10/2024
09/10/2024
09/10/2024

09/10/2024

09/18/2024
09/18/2024

09/18/2024
09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024

09/18/2024

09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024
09/18/2024

09/18/2024
09/18/2024

Description {ltem)

PW DEPT UNIFORM SERVICE -
STS/W/S

PW DEPT UNIFORM SERVICE -
STS/W/S

PW DEPT UNIFORM SERVICE -
STS/W/S

PW UNIFORM SERVICE - STS /
w/s

PW UNIFORM SERVICE - STS /
w/s

PW UNIFORM SERVICE - STS /
w/s

PHONE REIM SEP - GEN
HOUSING ALLOWANCE SEP -
GEN

Vendor WYO100 - WESLEY YOUNG Total:

RESTROOM SIGNS FOR
SOCCER CPLX - PKS

STRAW BALES WRK ON HUNT
ROAD - STS

PARTS PUMP FIX
INSTALL/PLACEMNT PROJ
POOL - PKS

STIHL 1GAL ULTRA MIX FOR
CHOP SAW - §TS

SPARK PLUG FOR LEAF
BLOWER, KEY - PKS

SPARK PLUG FOR LEAF
BLOWER, KEY - PKS

MISC SCREWS - CITY HALL
SIGN REPAIR - STS

STIHL 2GAL HP MIX FOR
CHAINSAW & WEED EATER -
STS

KEYS BASEBALL SHED,
CUTTING WHLS - PKS
BLADES FOR SAWZALL - PKS
WEED EATER STRING - PKS
PARTS FOR FAUCET REPR AT
SOCCER FLD - PKS
WASHDRAIN HOSE HOOK
PLAYGROUND - PKS

CABLE TIES - PKS

MISC SUPPLIES HUNT RD
SIDEWALK - 5TS

Vendor WTV100 - WILLARD HOME CENTER LLC Total:

Post Dates: 9/10/2024 - 9/18/2024

Account Number

10-300-92500

20-600-92500

20-700-92500

10-300-92500

20-600-92500

20-700-92500

10-100-61000
10-100-50600

30-800-50500

10-300-51000

30-800-50500

10-300-70100

30-800-50130

30-800-71100

10-300-51000

10-300-70100

30-800-50130
30-800-50130
30-800-71100
30-800-50500
30-800-51000

30-800-50130
10-300-51000

Vendor AMK100 - VESTIS Total:

Grand Total:

Amount

25.30

50.59

50.59

25.30

50.59

50.59

252.96

50.00
1,000.00

1,050.00

3.58

20.67

43.37

15.99

3.99

4.22

15.99

17.92

8.08
20.99
17.53

14.39

5.84
65.89

262.03

134,556.73



Expense Approval Report 3

Fund Summary

Fund
10 - GENERAL FUND
20 - WATER AND SEWER FUND

30 - PARKS FUND
Grand Total:

Account Summary

Account Number Account Name
10-100-50600 MISCELLANEQUS EXPEN
10-100-50700 OFFICE SUPPLIES-GCG
10-100-50750 POSTAGE-GCG
10-100-52000 SUPPLIES SMALL EQUIP
10-100-55600 CONTRACT LABOR-GCG
10-100-55800 DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIO
10-100-56400 PROFESSIONAL-GCG
10-100-56450 CONTRACT SERVICES/SE
10-100-56950 TRAINING & EDUCATION
10-100-57400 EQUIPMENT/SOFTWARE
10-100-61000 TELEPHONE-GCG
10-100-62000 UTIUTIES ELECTRIC-GCG
10-100-62100 UTILITIES GAS-GCG
10-100-62300 UTILITIES OTHER-GCG
10-16000 PREPAID INSURANCE-GC
10-200-50300 DARE-LAW
10-200-52000 SUPPLIES SMALL EQUIP
10-200-55600 CONTRACT LABOR-LAW
10-200-56400 PROFESSIONAL-LAW
10-200-57400 EQUIPMENT/SOFTWARE
10-200-61000 TELEPHONE-LAW
10-200-62000 UTILITIES ELECTRIC-LAW
10-200-62300 UTILITIES OTHER-LAW
10-200-71000 VEHICLE REPAIR & MAIN
10-200-92500 UNIFORMS-LAW
10-250-52000 SUPPLIES SMALL TOOLS-
10-250-56400 PROFESSIONAL-COURT
10-250-57400 EQUIP/SOFTWARE CONT
10-250-61000 TELEPHONE-COURT
10-300-50130 SUPPLIES-STREETS
10-300-51000 REPAIRS AND MAINTEN
10-300-52000 SUPPLIES SMALL EQUIP
10-300-55850 EQUIPMENT RENTAL-ST
10-300-56400 PROFESSIONAL-STREETS
10-300-61000 TELEPHONE-STREETS
10-300-61110 STREET LIGHTS STREETS
10-300-62000 UTILITIES ELECTRIC-STRE
10-300-70100 EQUIPMENT FUEL-STREE
10-300-71100 EQUIPMENT REPAIR &
10-300-75100 EQUIPMENT LEASE
10-300-92500 UNIFORMS-STREETS
10-400-50700 OFFICE SUPPLIES-P&D
10-400-52000 SUPPLIES-SMALL EQUIP
10-400-55500 BANK/CREDIT CARD FEE
10-400-56400 PROFESSIONAL-P&D
10-400-56950 TRAINING & EDUCATION
10-400-57400 EQUIPMENT/SOFTWARE
10-400-61000 TELEPHONE-P&D
10-500-51000 REPAIRS AND MAINTEN

20-16000 PREPAID INSURANCE-W

Expense Amount
31,541.32
87,323.89
15,691.52

134,556.73

Expense Amount
1,000.00
11.33
116.52
340.06
30.00
75.00
288.00
396.00
270.00
225.32
187.77
385.49
5231
128.69
8,666.66
1,700.00
69.04
15.00
5,503.50
363.94
87.76
244.46
46.40
381.25
179.50
43.15
951.00
10.58
62,68
693.75
90.78
59,77
293.05
61.00
72.68
6,238.45
338.48
31.98
79.28
529.87
50.60
130.60
43,15
0.45
72.00
100.00
21.34
62.68
740.00
4,366.43

Post Dates: 9/10/2024 - 9/18/2024

Report Summary



Expense Approval Report 3

Account Number
20-600-50130
20-600-50200
20-600-50700
20-600-51000
20-600-52000
20-600-55200
20-600-55800
20-600-55850
20-600-56400
20-600-57400
20-600-61000
20-600-61050
20-600-62000
20-600-62100
20-600-62300
20-600-75100
20-600-92500
20-700-50130
20-700-52000
20-700-55200
20-700-55600
20-700-558C0
20-700-55850
20-700-56400
20-700-57200
20-700-57400
20-700-61000
20-700-61050
20-700-62000
20-700-62100
20-700-62300
20-700-71100
20-700-75100
20-700-92500
20-700-96200
30-16000
30-800-50130
30-800-50140
30-800-50150
30-800-50180
30-800-50450
30-800-50500
30-800-50700
30-800-51000
30-800-52000
30-800-55200
30-800-55850
30-800-56400
30-800-57400
30-800-61000
30-800-62000
30-800-62100
30-800-62300
30-800-71000
30-800-71100

Account Summary

Account Name
SUPPLIES-WATER
LABORATORY FEES-WAT
OFFICE SUPPLIES-WATER
REPAIRS AND MAINTEN
SUPPLIES SMALL EQUIP
ADVERTISING-WATER
DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIO
EQUIPMENT RENTAL-WA
PROFESSIONAL-WATER
EQUIPMENT/SOFTWARE
TELEPHONE WATER
INTERNET-WATER
UTILITIES ELECTRIC-WAT
UTILITIES GAS-WATER
UTILITIES OTHER-WATER
EQUIPMENT LEASE
UNIFORMS-WATER
SUPPLIES-SEWER
SUPPLIES SMALL EQUIP
ADVERTISING-SEWER
CONTRACT LABOR-SEWE
DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIO
EQUIPMENT RENTAL-SE
PROFESSIONAL-SEWER
RECYCLE CENTER EXPEN
EQUIPMENT/SOFTWARE
TELEPHONE-SEWER
INTERNET-SEWER
UTILITIES ELECTRIC-SEW
UTILITIES GAS-SEWER
UTILITIES OTHER-SEWER
EQUIPMENT REPAIR &
EQUIPMENT LEASE
UNIFORMS-SEWER
INTEREST EXPENSE-SEW
PREPAID INSURANCE-PK
SUPPLIES GENERAL-PKS
SUPPLIES-AQUATIC
SUPPLIES-SPORTS SHIRT
SUPPLIES SPORTS-PKS
FREEDOM FEST EXPENSE
BUILDING MAINTENANC
OFFICE SUPPLIES-PKS
REPAIRS AND MAINTEN
SUPPLIES SMALL EQUIP
ADVERTISING-PKS
EQUIPMENT RENTAL-PK
PROFESSIONAL-PKS
EQUIPMENT/SOFTWARE
TELEPHONE-PKS
UTILITIES ELECTRIC-PKS
UTILITIES GAS PKS
UTILITIES OTHER-PKS
VEHICLE REPAIR & MAIN
EQUIPMENT REPAIR &
Grand Total:

Expense Amount
354.73
117.00

99.99
4,429.86
154,07
550.92
22.49
586.11
2,788.00
139.30
107.76
32.10
7,202.17
52.31
157.78
1,059.73
101.18
281.75
154.06
550.92
30.00
22.48
586.11
288.00
282.83
139.30
107.76
32.10
8,619.31
52.31
157.78
31.98
1,059.74
101.18
52,504.35
5,944.18
54.53
93.45
72.20
1,033.99
220.59
1,085.98
96.14
14.39
148.91
385.41
239.80
288.00
780.48
87.76
3,742.12
157.05
570.51
53.99
622.04

134,556.73

Post Dates: 9/10/2024 - 9/18/2024




Expense Approval Report 3 Post Dates: 9/10/2024 - 9/18/2024

Project Account Summary

Project Account Key Expense Amount
**None** 134,556.73

Grand Total: 134,556.73




7 40 1 36ey

¥20z/€2/80 @req Sunsod

uoinquisiq 138pa |esauan

Alewiwng apo) anuanay

19 WOol4 palesusn
Ifl WoJ4 pRieiauag
19 Wo.4 paleIau3n
Wol4 paleISUdD
woi4 pajesausn
1]l WoJl4 palesaudy

Fuiig wol4 pajeIausg

Bu
u

g Woi4 paressusan
g Woi4 pajeisuan
ui|)ig wou4 paressuan
Suyjig wolil pajesausn
u)g woug4 paaesausn
Buijjig Wol4 paiesauln
adAl

lle3aq ¥23yD punay

O8'VET'T-
000
08'VET'T
SaA 08'¥ET'T-
141 unowy 3ulisod
08'vETT
08°'VETT
unowy
61'EET
T6'6L
06'19
01’99
LT'T9
85°65T
00'95
8L
19'SS
0899
88'vE
99'L
L9
£8'8Y
€9°9L
junowy 1diaday 3pod

191139y I9Y) punjay

TVHINID - HSVYD G3700d
‘lejol 0z

SM-319VAITDFY SINNODDY
A3S ONY YILYM - HSYD d3100d NO WIVTD

BWEN UNo22Y

000T0-66

HSVD Q37100d - 66 pung
000S1-02
T00T0-02

QANNd Y3IM3IS ANV H3LVM - 02 -pund

JagquinN lunoday

:|ejo] anuaAl3y
SANN43Y / SL1a3YD Q3iTddYNN - 966
Sp0) IaNU2AIY

08'PET'T Junowy papunyay |ejol

6V EET 9/66% vezoz/ee/s
6'6L SL66Y vzoz/€e/8
06'19 vL66Y vz0z/eT/8
01°99 €L661 vezoz/ee/e
L1289 TL66Y vToT/ee/8
85°65T TL66Y vZ0Z/€2/8
00'95 0L661 vzoz/€z/e
7849 69661 vzoz/ee/8
19°SS 89661 vzoz/ez/8
0895 1966Y v20z/€T/8
88'vE 99667 ¥zoz/ec/8
99°L 59661 v20zZ/EC/8
Tv'L9 196617 veozT/ee/s
18'8Y £966% vyeoz/ee/s
€592 7966V vzoz/ez/s
junowy #422UD 9}eq

ST :SpUny3y (ejoL
0T-200008-60
¥0-5¢0TCE-60
90-5t<0T¢-60
80-TT0890-60
10-0099¥0-80
0T-001¥50-90
t¥0-0TZ00T-0
<0-LT100T-v0
LO-LETOOV-€0
€0-S0000€-E0
€0-0£¢/00-€0
90-S.1000-20
ST-S60000-¢0
£0-09T00T-10

80-00€700-TO
UNo22Y

ONIAINNT ALID ONIMYIEWIN
ATIOH '8 Hd3SOr ‘OIYHI

NHOT ‘NIININO NVA

NOYVY YIHMOLSIHHD “TIIH
AYODIYD "LNENVYIA

YIDZLIN AUYD '8 AINOT NYINYIN
OMNNC '8 SINNIA ‘ALY344v1
TIVANYY ‘SiddvH

‘M QHYMA3 ‘NIBOY-INYYM
VYNYQ ‘UININL

a1vy¥ar g v2IHYar ‘Nmoyd
VYNHSOr “LLINDNd

N3LSHIN ‘H3ddOH

2118 LLYW ‘3DNIUMY]

ATTHSY ‘AdNYQ
aweN

Jeinday 6TEEOIdEN TO SPUNJBY - ZZ6EO.LIEN

OW ‘pJefiim Jo A




7 10 ¢ abeq

$202/€2/80 :21e@ Sunsoq
uonnquisiq 123pa |esaudd

SaA
14}

000

000

0B'VET'T
junowy Sui3sod

‘jejo) uohnquiasia
leloL 66

SANN4 ¥3H10 01 3Na
SWEeN UN0NY

0004Z-66
JaquInp 1UNoXdY

Wd i1 7877

A ARE



CITY OF WILLARD
BOARD OF ALDERMEN

AGENDA ITEM #3e
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

ACTION REQUIRED: INFORMATION ONLY

August 2024 Check Registers
1. Pooled Check Register
2. JIS Check Register
3. Refund Check Register

#
_—
Finance Department Report

9/23/2024 Board of Aldermen Meeting



Vendor Number
Bank Code: JIS-IIS
MSR100

Payable #

ENL200
Payable #

INV0030248
COA100

Payable #

INV0030250
DRCV

Payable #

INV0030251
COA100

Payable #

INV0030266
DRCV

Payable #

INV0030252
TSMP

Payable #

INVOD30253
DORAF

Payable #

INV0030254

MSR100

Check Report

City of Willard, MO

By Check Number

Date Range: 08/01/2024 - 08/31/2024

Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount

0.00 1.00
Discount Amount Payable Amount

Distribution Amount

08/01/2024 Manual
Payable Description
Account Name Item Description

Missouri Sheriff’s Retirement
Payable Type Post Date
Account Number

Invoice 07/31/2024 MO SHERIFF'S RETIREMENT FUND 0.00 1.00
10-250-82000 SHERIFF'S RETIREMENT F MO SHERIFF'S RETIREMENT FU 1.00

DALTON ENLOE 08/22/2024 Manual 0.00 450.00
Payable Type Post Date Payable Description Discount Amount Payable Amount
Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Invoice 08/22/2024 BOND REFUND 0.00 450.00
10-250-44500 TRAFFIC FINES-COURT BOND REFUND 450.00

COAST PROFESSIONAL INC 08/22/2024 Manual 0.00 250.38
Payable Type Post Date Payable Description Discount Amount Payable Amount
Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Invoice 08/22/2024 DEBT COLLECTIONS 0.00 250.38
10-250-44500 TRAFFIC FINES-COURT DEBT COLLECTIONS 250.38

Department of Revenue Crime Victims 08/30/2024 Manual 0.00 294.27
Payable Type Post Date Payable Description Discount Amount Payable Amount
Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Invoice 08/30/2024 DEPT OF REVENUE CRIME VICTIMS FUND 0.00 294.27
10-250-81000 CVC FEES DEPT OF REVENUE CRIME VICTI 294.27

COAST PROFESSIONAL INC 08/07/2024 Manual 0.00 245.60

Discount Amount Payable Amount
Distribution Amount

Payable Description
Account Name Itemn Description

Payable Type Post Date

Account Number

Invoice 08/07/2024 DEBT COLLECTIONS 0.00 245.60
10-250-44500 TRAFFIC FINES-COURT DEBT COLLECTIONS 245.60

Department of Revenue Crime Victims 08/30/2024 Manual 0.00 4,324.27
Payable Type Post Date Payable Description Discount Amount Payable Amount
Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Invoice 08/30/2024 MUNICIPAL COURT REVENUE 0.00 4,324.27
10-250-44500 TRAFFIC FINES-COURT MUNICIPAL COURT REVENUE 4,324.27

Treasurer State of MO-POST 08/30/2024 Manual 0.00 41.27
Payable Type Post Date Payable Description Discount Amount Payable Amount
Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Invoice 08/30/2024 TREASURER STATE OF MO POST FUND 0.00 41.27
10-250-81100 POST FUND-COURT TREASURER STATE OF MO POST 41.27

Department of Revenue Auto Fund 08/30/2024 Manual 0.00 288.91
Payable Type Post Date Payable Description Discount Amount Payable Amount
Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Invoice 08/30/2024 DEPT OF REVENUE AUTOMATED FUND 0.00 288.91
10-250-80000 COURT AUTOMATION-CO  DEPT OF REVENUE AUTOMATED 288.91

Missouri Sheriff's Retirement 08/30/2024 Manual 0.00 6.00

Number

3705

3707

3708

3709

3710

3711

3712

3713

3714




Date Range: 08/01/2024 - 08/31/2024

Check Report
Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Description Discount Amount Payable Amount
Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount
INV0O030255 Invoice 08/30/2024 MO SHERIFF'S RETIREMENT FUND 0.00 6.00
10-250-82000 SHERIFF'S RETIREMENT F MO SHERIFF'S RETIREMENT FU 6.00
Bank Code JIS Summary
Payable Payment
Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment
Regular Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Manual Checks 9 9 0.00 5,901.70
Voided Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00
EFT's 0 0 0.00 0.00
9 ] 0.00 5,901.70




Check Report

Fund
99

Payment Type
Regular Chacks

Manual Checks
Voided Checks
Bank Drafts
EFT's

Name
POOLED CASH

All Bank Codes Check Summary

Payable Payment
Count Count

$ O o o v o
®$ © O O v o

Fund Summary
Period
8/2024

Discount
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

Date Range: 08/01/2024 - 08/31/2024

Payment
0.00

5,901.70
0.00
0.00
0.00

5,901.70

Amount

5,901.70
5,901.70




Date Range: 08/01/2024 - 08/31/2024

Check Report

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Description Discount Amount Payable Amount

Bank Cade: CITY-CITY

WTV100 WILLARD HOME CENTER LLC 08/02/2024 Regular 0.00 1,993.21 49898
10 Invoice 07/02/2024 UPS SHIPPING CHARGE FOR PUMP REPR - 0.00 23.62
1974 Invoice 06/07/2024 REDWD STAIN, ENAMEL PAINT, FOAM BR 0.00 76.42
2190 Invoice 06/07/2024 MM 3LB DRILL HAMMER - W 0.00 21.59
2195 Invoice 06/07/2024 MISC BOLTS WATER FOUNTAIN REPAIR - P 0.00 21.50
2301 Inveice 06/07/2024 4 UTILITY APRONS - W 0.00 39.76
2348 Invoice 06/07/2024 1 SINGLE CUT KEY- NEW SHOP DOORS-ST 0.00 1.79
24 Invoice 07/02/2024 FUSES FOR TRUCK - PKS 0.00 26.99
2793 Invoice 06/18/2024 LINESMAN PLIERS,MISC MST MECH TOOL- 0.00 36.51
285 Invaice 06/18/2024 PARK BENCH BOLTS INCLSV PLYGRND - PK 0.00 3.33
3001 Invoice 06/18/2024 NUTS, BOLTS, WASHERS - PKS 0.00 11.56
3234 Invoice 06/18/2024 HOSES, SHRINK TUBING WATER FOUNTN 0.00 3.51
3483 Invoice 06/18/2024 WEED EATER LINE - PKS 0.00 20.99
4272 Invoice 07/16/2024 ADPTR,90 DEG ELBW,CPLNGS,BSHNG,WEE 0.00 44.41
4506 Invoice 07/15/2024 LIQUID NAILS REC CENTER TRIM - PKS 0.00 26.91
5183 Invoice 06/07/2024 3/8-16X36 THRD STL RODS, BLTS WATER F 0.00 10.78
5190 Invoice 06/07/2024 BOLT, WASHER, NUTS JD MOWER REPAIR 0.00 4.42
5202 Invoice 06/10/2024 CONNECTR,ELBW,TAPE,BUSHNG WTR FTN 0.00 53.14
5208 Invoice 06/07/2024 ENAMEL SPRY PAINT & PRIMER - WELL M 0.00 20.22
5209 Invoice 06/07/2024 BLK CARBON STL BRSHS-WELL PIPE CLEAN 0.00 6.82
5240 Invoice 06/10/2024 2x4x8 BOARDS - PKS 0.00 7.38
5283 Invoice 06/07/2024 HWH NEO SDS, SCREWS -TRLR MAINT-STS 0.00 61.29
5287 Invoice 06/10/2024 SINGLE CUT KEYS - NEW SHOP DOOR - ST 0.00 12.54
5293 Invoice 06/07/2024 (6) 1202 FLT BLK SPRY PAINT-TRAILER MAI 0.00 42.07
5300 Invoice 06/07/2024 SS CLAMPS, GRY FBG SCREEN - WELL MAI 0.00 15.53
5325 Invoice 06/07/2024 6 SINGLE CUT KEYS - NEW SHOP DOORS - 0.00 10.75
5375 Invoice 06/10/2024 COUPLINGS, SCREWS POOL REPR - PKS 0.00 66.32
5488 Invoice 06/18/2024 DOMED ROT FILE - UTL TRLR REPR- 5TS/ 0.00 4.49
5497 Invoice 06/18/2024 GRY LENS SAFETY GLASSES - STS 0.00 5.22
5805 Invoice 06/18/2024 WHT LEXEL CAULT- UTL TRLR REPAIR-STS / 0.00 56.21
5851 Invoice 06/18/2024 MEASURING CUP FOR SEED AT PLYGRND - 0.00 1.79
5908 Invoice 06/18/2024 BOIL DRAIN, PAINT - PKS 0.00 21.21
5921 Invoice 06/18/2024 ARG/CO2 M EXCHNG-SHP WLDG GAS-5TS 0.00 119.39
6119 Invoice 06/18/2024 KEYS AND RINGS - PKS 0.00 18.83
6654 Invoice 07/15/2024 CONCRETE MIX FOR TENT WEIGHTS - PKS 0.00 20.45
6792 Invoice 07/15/2024 OVEN CLNR, FLY TRAPS, DISP GLOVES - PK 0.00 44.23
6821 Invoice 07/15/2024 ROAD BARRIER MAINT - PKS 0.00 3.33
6885 Invoice 07/15/2024 TURF ANCHORS - PKS 0.00 5.40
9007 Invoice 07/15/2024 CONNECTORS AND BOX COVERS PAVILION 0.00 7.98
B255054 Invoice 07/02/2024 LUMBER FOR PAVILION-PKS 0.00 22.38
B261234 Credit Memo 05/24/2024 RETURNED MISC BOLTS, BOUGHT MISC S 0.00 -8.68
B261429 Invoice 07/02/2024 PAINT CUPS, BRSHS, TRAY LNRS REC CTR - 0.00 34.68
B263543 Invoice 07/02/2024 1/2" WHT MPT PLUG - LAGOON REPR - S 0.00 8.24
B263611 Invoice 07/02/2024 BASEBLL RAKES,TOOL BOX,BUG CONTRL,P 0.00 101.12
B263763 Invoice 07/02/2024 READY-MIX W/ GRAVEL TENT WEIGHTS FF 0.00 40.90
B264026 Invoice 07/02/2024 SCREWDRVRS,MISC TOOL,MISC BOLTS FF 0.00 18.30
B264042 Invoice 07/02/2024 WING CONNCTRS,QUTLET ELECTRICAL FF 0.00 19.33
B264043 Invoice 07/02/2024 ELECTRICAL CONNECTORS FREEDOM FEST 0.00 23.83
B264077 Invoice 07/02/2024 48"x84" WINDOW SCREEN - S 0.00 10.34
B264086 Invoice 07/02/2024 LANDSCAPE SEED,TURF SPREADR-SOUTH 0.00 415.79
B264096 Invoice 07/02/2024 STRAW BALES - SOUTHVIEW PROIJECT - ST 0.00 41.34
B264190 Invoice 07/02/2024 OUTLET CVRS ELECRCL FFEST, MOUSE TRA 0.00 43.78
B264355 Invoice 07/02/2024 WHT ENAMEL PNT & BRSHS-FENCE NEW 0.00 69.09
0102863 Invoice 07/02/2024 FLOWERS - PKS 0.00 27.93
D102972 Invoice 07/02/2024 TRAY SET,TRAY LNRS,CVRS,PNT MIXR REC 0.00 24.05
D105184 Credit Memo 06/03/2024 RETURNED PARTS WATER FOUNTAIN - PKS 0.00 -17.23
D105305 Credit Memo 06/05/2024 RETURNED KEYS THAT DID NOT WORK - § 0.00 -10.75
D106164 Invoice 07/02/2024 55 GAL BAGS, 45 GAL BAGS-DEAD ANIMA 0.00 30.86

D106457 Invoice 07/02/2024 GLUE FOR BASEBOARDS REC CENTER - PK 0.00 18.84




Check Report

Vendor Number
Payable #
D106622
D106625
D106804

MASA
AUG 2024

FAM200
PPE 8/3/2024

AMA300
7020007-160

BVM100
8

17

o
=
~

NS
\D

|

BBC100
2638
DOWN

BPV100
7-22-24

BWP100
13087

BWI200
8328

CWF300
112

HVR100
PHONE

CON170
9164
9675

%
W

DAR200
53856
53952

RED100
5525

Vendor Name

Payable Type Post Date
Invoice 07/02/2024
Invoice 07/02/2024
Credit Memo 06/27/2024
’*Vcidﬁ*

=*void**

ttvoid*t

txvoidtt

¥*Void*t

MEDICAL AIR SERVICES ASSOCIATION
Invoice 08/01/2024

FAMILY SUPPORT PAYMENT CENTER

Invoice 08/09/2024

ALLGEIER, MARTIN & ASSOCIATES, INC

Invoice 08/01/2024

AMERICAN TRAILER & STORAGE, INC.
08/05/2024
08/05/2024

Invoice
Invoice

B&B CONCRETE SOLUTIONS LLC

Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 08/12/2024
BALL PAVING, INC.

Invoice 08/01/2024
BLUEWATER CAS

Invoice 08/01/2024

BULK WASTE LLC d/b/a BWI SANITATION

Invoice 08/01/2024

C3 FABRICATION & WELDING LLC

Invoice 08/01/2024
CARCLYN HALVERSON

Invaice 08/05/2024
CONCO COMPANIES

invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
DAVIS AND SONS LLC

Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
DEXKO GLOBAL INC

Invoice 08/01/2024

FIRST RESPONDER OUTFITTERS, INC

Credit Memo 05/28/2024
Invoice 08/05/2024
Invoice 08/05/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 07/02/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024

FROGS DETAILED SPECIALTIES
Invoice 08/05/2024

GOTO COMMUNICATIONS, INC

Payment Date Payment Type
Payable Description
REMCO PROF GRD PUMP FOR WEED CON
COUPLNGS, PVC PIPE-LONE OAK LEAK-W
CUTTING WHEELS, COUPLING, RETURNED

08/02/2024 Regular
08/02/2024 Regular
08/02/2024 Regular
08/02/2024 Regular
08/02/2024 Regular
08/05/2024 Regular

AUG 2024 GROUP MEDICAL TRANSPORT |

08/13/2024 Regular
REMITTANCE 1D 11017943 Paid 8/9/2024

08/13/2024 Regular
PROF FEES MDWS TRNK SWR -5

08/13/2024 Regular
STORAGE CONTAINER RENTALS - PKS
STORAGE CONTAINER RENTAL - PKS

08/13/2024 Regular
COMMERCIAL BOX CULVERT SOUTHVIEW
DOWN PMT SIDEWALK WORK ON HUNT R

08/13/2024 Regular
99x20 PAVING ON SOUTHVIEW - STS

08/13/2024 Regular
POOL CHLORINE - PKS

08/13/2024 Regular
TOILET RENTALS FOR MILLER - PKS

08/13/2024 Regular
BACKHOE BUCKET REPAIR - STS/W/S

08/13/2024 Regular
REIM PHONE-GEN
08/13/2024 Regular

1" DIRTY BASE, 6"X 2" ROCK- SOUTHVIE
DIRTY BASE FOR SOUTHVIEW ST PROJECT
1" DIRTY BASE - WTR LEAK REPR & CLEAN

08/13/2024 Regular
MOWER TIRE FiX - PKS
TRACTOR TIRE TUBE & INSTALL - LAGOO

08/13/2024 Regular
HUB & DRUM KIT, NUT, PIN TRAILER REPA

08/13/2024 Regular
RETURNED UNIFORM ITEM B. DECKARD -
UNIFORM ITEMS S COLLETTE-LAW
UNIFORM ITEMS S COLLETTE-LAW
SHIRT C. PRIKE - LAW
UNIFORM ITEM(S) A. HICKCOX ADDTL SPE
UNIFORM [TEMS C. STEEN - LAW

08/13/2024 Regular
DIRECTIONAL SIGNS - PKS

08/13/2024 Regular

Date Range: 08/01/2024 - 08/31/2024

Discount Amount Payment Amount Number

Discount Amount
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Q.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

Payzble Amount

75.99
26.67
2.27

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 84,00
84.00

0.00 207.69
207.69

0.00 20,195.00
20,195.00

0.00 420.00
305.00
115.00

0.00 18,750.00
14,000.00
4,750.00

0.00 12,050.00
12,050.00

0.00 9,785.48
9,785.48

0.00 239.80
239.80

0.00 300.00
300.00

0.00 50.00
50.00

0.00 1,698.71
225.83
1,362.64
110.24

0.00 235.70
73.08
162.62

0.00 152,91
152.91

0.00 231.96
-106.97
57.99
57.99
65.99
37.98
118.98

0.00 639.19
639.19

0.00 880.00

49899
49900
49901
49902
49903
49904

49906

49907

49908

49909

49910

49911

439912

49913

49914

49915

49916

49917

49918

49919

49920




Check Report

Vendor Number
Payable #
7364

HLK100Q
107781

JUS100

MATM100
1456
7623

MRT100
103
115

MOC100
70324

MIS465
8501

MIS320

44622407015 DN

QUA150
139368

RAC450
4829
5616
765312

RAN175
167281

OHE100
4180

REX380
123736

LIN200
72024

SPS150

Vendor Name

Payable Type Post Date
Invoice 08/05/2024
GOVCONNECTIONS INC

Invoice 08/01/2024
HARPER LOCK & KEY SERVICE

Invoice 08/01/2024
JUSTIN SORGEN

Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
LAUBER AND ASSOCIATES MUNICIPAL LAW LLC 08/13/2024
Invoice 0B/05/2024
Invoice 08/05/2024
LEGALSHIELD

Invoice 08/01/2024
MATERIALS MANAGEMENT

Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
MERIT ELECTRICAL LLC

Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 08/05/2024
MISSOURI ONE CALL SYSTEM, INC
Invoice 08/05/2024
MISSOURI STATE HIGHWAY PATROL
Invoice 08/01/2024
MO DEPT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
Invoice 07/15/2024
NATIONAL FASTENER CORP

Invoice 08/05/2024
Invoice 08/05/2024
PLAY AND PARK STRUCTURES

Invoice 08/05/2024
QUALITY TRIM & SIGN

Invoice 08/01/2024
RACE BROS FARM SUPPLY, INC

Invoice 07/15/2024
Invoice 08/05/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
RANDALL A. BROWN

Invoice 08/05/2024
RAY O'HERRON CO INC

Invoice 08/05/2024
REX SMITH OIL CO.

Invoice 08/01/2024
ROTA L. STONEHOUSE

Invoice 08/01/2024
SCHENDEL PEST SERVICES

Payment Date Payment Type
Payable Description
INTERNET-ALL

08/13/2024 Regular
MICROSOFT DEFENDR ANNUAL - ALL

08/13/2024 Regular
REKEY & NEW KEYS NEW OFFICE - STS /S

08/13/2024 Regular
PHONE REIM APR '24 - STS/W/S
PHONE REIM JUN '24 - STS/W/S
PHONE REIM MAY '24 - STS/W/S

Regular
CITY ATTY FEES - ALL
CITY PROSECUTOR FEES - LAW

08/13/2024 Regular
GROUP {NS MCCLAIN & SHIPLEY-LAW

08/13/2024 Regular
1" DIRTY BASE-SOUTHVIEW ST PROJECT -
5/8" COMMON STONE - SOUTHVIEW PRO

08/13/2024 Regular
LABR/MATRLS REPR HIGH LEVEL ALARM P
70% ELECTRICAL COMPLETION-NEW OFFl

08/13/2024 Regular
PROF LOCATE FEES-W/S

08/13/2024 Regular
JUL-SEP 2024 MULES FEES-LAW

08/13/2024 Regular
ANNUAL PRIMACY FEES - W

08/13/2024 Regular
HEX WASHERS - SHP SPLYS -STS /W /S
HEX WASHERS - SHP SPLYS - STS /W /S

08/13/2024 Regular
HANDICAP PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT - P

08/13/2024 Regular
INSTALL DECALS CHARGER VIN# 79628 - L

08/13/2024 Regular
HOG RINGS #3 FOR BASKETS - SOUTHVW
WEED KILLER - PKS
STIHL LINE WEED EATER STRING - 5TS

08/13/2024 Regular
BLDG INSPECTIONS & ZONING CONSLT - P

08/13/2024 Regular
VEST/CARRIER-WEATHERFORD,NAME TAG

08/13/2024 Regular
DEISEL - PKS
08/13/2024 Regular

DATA COMPILATION-GEN/CT/LAW/PW

08/13/2024 Regular

Date Range: 08/01/2024 - 08/31/2024

Discount Amount
Discount Amount

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

880.00

570.40
570.40

133.58
133.58

150.00
50.00
50.00
50.00

6,876.50
3,256.50
3,620.00

29.90
29.90

1,847.04
1,374.36
472.68

16,089.50
315.00
15,774.50

147.15
147.15

285.00
285.00

19,050.26
19,050.26

126.16
54.84
71.32

66,400.05
66,400.05

279.50
279.50

111.95
17.97
54.99
38.99

1,425.00
1,425.00

924.23
924.23

783.96
783.96

90.00
90.00

180.00

Payment Amount Number
Payable Amount

49921

49922

49923

499324

49925

49926

49527

499238

49929

49930

49931

49932

49933

49934

49935

49936

49937

49538

49939




Date Range: 08/01/2024 - 08/31/2024

Check Report

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Description Discount Amount Payable Amount
1021823 Invoice 08/01/2024 PEST CONTROL-ALL 0.00 180.00

SCH175 SCHULTE SUPPLY, INC. 08/13/2024 Regular 0.00 44,945.00 49940
5860.001 Invaice 08/01/2024 MAGSWITCH LIFT 600 BUDDY LIFTER W/ 0.00 545.00
6512.001 Invoice 08/01/2024 (50) NEPTUNE WTR METERS W/ ITRON C 0.00 14,800.00
7113.001 Invaice 08/01/2024 NEPTUNE TRIDENT WTR METERS - W 0.00 26,344.00
7113.002 Invoice 08/01/2024 NEPTUNE TIDENT WTR METERS W/ERTS - 0.00 3,256.00

SCu425 SCURLOCK INDUSTRIES 08/13/2024 Regular 0.00 12,844.50 48941
1479 Invoice 08/05/2024 BOX CULVERTS SOUTHVIEW - 5T5 0.00 2,556.00
1480 Invoice 08/01/2024 BOX CULVERTS SOUTHVIEW - STS 0.00 3,834.00
1481 Invoice 08/01/2024 REINFORCED PIPE SOUTHVIEW - STS 0.00 2,227.50
1482 Invoice 08/01/2024 REINFORCED PIPE SOUTHVIEW - STS 0.00 1,485.00
1483 Invoice 08/05/2024 BOX CULVERTS SOUTHVIEW - STS 0.00 2,556.00
1507 Invoice 08/01/2024 (3) CARTONS 1.5" x 3.5' RAM NEK SOUTH 0.00 186.00

SCU425 SCURLOCK INDUSTRIES 08/13/2024 Regular 0.00 -12,844.50 49941

SHP550 SHANNON SHIPLEY 08/13/2024 Regular 0.00 50.00 49942
JULY Invoice 08/05/2024 REIM PHONE JULY - LAW 0.00 50.00

SPF100 SPRINGFIELD FAMILY MEDICAL WALK-IN CLINIC 08/13/2024 Regular 0.00 142,00 49943
7719 Invoice 08/01/2024 ESCREEN A. HICKCOX, C. PRIKE - LAW 0.00 142.00

GCT100 SPRINGFIELD GREENE COUNTY OFFICE OF EM 08/13/2024 Regular 0.00 8.00 49544
6/30/24 Invoice 07/30/2024 C. PRIKE & A. HICKCOX ID CARDS - LAW 0.00 8.00

SSE100 SPRINGFIELD STAMP & ENGRAVING 08/13/2024 Regular 0.00 26.70 49945
7028 Invgice 08/01/2024 SIGNATURE STAMP MAYOR SMITH - GEN 0.00 26.70

SPR200 SPRINGFIELD-GREENE COUNTY HEALTH DEPAR 08/13/2024 Regular 0.00 208.00 49946
080224 Invoice 08/05/2024 WATER TESTS-W 0.00 208.00

SPB100 SPRINGFIELD-GREENE COUNTY PARK BOARD 08/13/2024 Regular 0.00 175.00 49947
S$W23.2409 Invoice 08/05/2024 SHOW WAGON RENTAL FFEST - PKS 0.00 175.00

SQB100 SQUIBB MEDIA, LLC 08/13/2024 Regular 0.00 85.42 49948
1142 Invoice 08/01/2024 PUBLISH SUMM OF REV-GEN 0.00 65.72
1148 Invoice 08/05/2024 REC CTR ROOF REPR BIDS - PARKS 0.00 19.70

STE300 STATE TRACTOR & EQUIPMENT CO., INC 08/13/2024 Regular 0.00 61.95 49949
11308 Invoice 08/01/2024 TIGER TEETH, LCK PIN, RETNER-EQP REPR- 0.00 61.85

SUP100 Superior Rents- Springfield 08/13/2024 Regular 0.00 2,980.80 49950
251560-2 Invoice 08/01/2024 EQT RENT SKD STR,BKT,BIT AUGRS INCLSV 0.00 2,980.80

TRH100 TREVOR HOFFMAN 08/13/2024 Regular 0.00 50.00 49951
JUL Invoice 08/01/2024 REIM CELL PHONE JUL - STS/W/S 0.00 50.00

WSP100 TURN 2 APPAREL LLC 08/13/2024 Regular 0.00 138.00 49952
12671 Invoice 08/01/2024 SUMMER CAMP SHIRTS REFILL - PKS 0.00 138.00

TYL100 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES INC 08/13/2024 Regular 0.00 435.00 49953
025-472649 Invoice 08/01/2024 TIME & ATTEND MEETNGS W/ MINDY -G 0.00 435.00

USA400 USA BLUE BOOK 08/13/2024 Regular 0.00 681.60 49954
3784 Invoice 08/01/2024 HACH DR300 CHLORINE, COLORIMETER - 0.00 681.60

VKP100 VAN KEPPEL 08/13/2024 Regular 0.00 2,758.00 49955
1158-1 Invoice 08/01/2024 CONSTRUCTION EQPT RENTAL- SOUNTVIE 0.00 1,596.00
1158-2 Invoice 08/01/2024 FUEL CHARGE ON EQUIPMENT RENTAL S 0.00 212.00
1158-3 Invoice 08/01/2024 EQPT RENTAL FOR WRK ON SOUTHVIEW S 0.00 950.00

vDS100 VDS VISION LLC 08/13/2024 Regular 0.00 1,440.00 49956
1606 Invoice 08/01/2024 IT SERVICES-ALL 0.00 1,440.00

VER100 VERIZON WIRELESS 08/13/2024 Regular 0.00 607.88 49957




Check Report

Vendor Number
Payable #
2804

WEE100
2

WLF100
178
178

WPM100
8-15-24

WPM100
8-23-24

FAM200
PPE 8/17/24

BBC100
BALANCE HUNT R

APAC100
5477

APY100
25540

BWI200
9487

BWI100
7023

HVR100
8-7-24

CON170

DAV100
8-5-24

DAR200
54041

SFX100
UL
JUN

GNC100
7445

GLA200
17374

Vendor Name

Payable Type Post Date
Invoice 08/05/2024
WESSLEY ENTERPRISE

Invaice 08/01/2024
WILLARD LASER AND FABRICATION LLC
Invoice 08/12/2024
Invoice 08/12/2024
POSTMASTER

Invoice 08/15/2024
POSTMASTER

Invoice 08/22/2024

FAMILY SUPPORT PAYMENT CENTER
Invoice 08/23/2024

B&B CONCRETE SOLUTIONS LLC

Invoice 08/12/2024
APAC CENTRAL, INC

Invoice 08/20/2024
APPTEGY INC

Invoice 08/26/2024
* ‘Void‘*

BULK WASTE LLC d/b/a BWI SANITATION
Invoice 08/20/2024
BWI COMPANIES, INC

Invoice 08/20/2024
CAROLYN HALVERSON

Invoice 08/21/2024
CONCO COMPANIES

Invoice 08/20/2024
Invoice 08/20/2024
Invoice 08/20/2024
DAVID DORAN,ATTORNEY AT LAW
Invoice 08/20/2024
DAVIS AND SONS LLC

Invoice 08/20/2024
DIAMOND MAPS

Invoice 08/21/2024

DNS EQUIPMENT LLC

Invoice 08/20/2024
FIRST RESPONDER QUTFITTERS, INC
Invoice 08/20/2024
FOX, SHANE

Invoice 08/20/2024
Invoice 08/20/2024

GENERAL CODE INC
Invoice 08/20/2024

GLENN'S AUTOMOTIVE LLC
Invoice 08/20/2024

Date Range: 08/01/2024 - 08/31/2024

Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Payable Description Discount Amount Payable Amount
INTERNET/CELL PHONES, EQUIP - ALL 0.00 607.88

08/13/2024 Regular 0.00 1,218.00 49958
TROPICAL SNOW CONE INCLSV PLYGRND 0.00 1,218.00

08/13/2024 Regular 0.00 4,345.34 49959
SIGN POST ASSMBLY/LABOR PLAYGRND - 0.00 3,501.08
POSTS/LABOR PLAYGRND - PKS 0.00 848.26

08/15/2024 Regular 0.00 277.30 49960
UTILITY POSTAGE-W/S 0.00 277.30

08/22/2024 Regular 0.00 1,868.57 49961
UTILITY BILLING POSTAGE-W/S 0.00 1,868.57

08/23/2024 Regular 0.00 207.69 49977
REMITTANCE iD 11017943 Paid 8/23/202 0.00 207.69

08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 4,750.00 49978
BALANCE PMT SIDEWALK WORK ON HUN 0.00 4,750.00

08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 506.88 49979
COMM SURFACE STONE - WTR REPRS-JFK 0.00 506.88

08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 14,080.00 49980
APP DEVLPMNT & ANNUAL SUBSCPTN - A 0.00 14,080.00

08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 0.00 49981

08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 239.80 49982
MILLER PORTABLE TOILETS - PKS 0.00 239.80

08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 219.74 49983
WEED CONTROL, DYE - PKS 0.00 219.74

08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 50.00 49984
REIM PHONE-GEN 0.00 50.00

08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 2,219.96 49985
1" DIRTY BASE - SOUTHVIEW PRQIECT - ST 0.00 105.45
DEL OF CLASS A RIVER RCK-SOUTHVIEW P 0.00 1,789.00
5/8" COMM STONE, 1" DIRTY BASE -STH V 0.00 325.51

08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 900.00 49986
MUNICIPAL JUDGE FEES - CT 0.00 900.00

08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 60.45 49987
OIL CHNG & MAINT ON PW TRK #20 - STS 0.00 60.45

08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 1,296.00 49988
1 YR SUBSC MAP SOFTWARE - W/S/STS 0.00 1,296.00

08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 986.31 49989
HYPOCHLORITE SOLUTIONS - WELL MAIN 0.00 986.31

08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 51.99 49990
UNIFORM ITEMS S COLLETTE-LAW 0.00 51.99

08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 100.00 49991
REIM CELL PHONE JUL - STS/W/S 0.00 50.00
REIM CELL PHONE JUN - STS/W/S 0.00 50.00

08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 337.00 49992
CODE BOOK SUPPLEMENTAL - GEN 0.00 337.00

08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 1,389.41 49993
2016 FORD F-250 REPAIR - PKS 0.00 460.00




Check Report

Vendor Number
Payable #
17428

ITR160
6061

JHA100
9077
9079

HCO100

90804

0ES100
24-086

PIL100
8618

PLL100
7-29-24

LIN200
082024

S&H410
8523

SMF100
70293

SPF100
7830

SPR275
1503
1702
4901
4302
6402
30
9601

STE300
130B

1378

Vendor Name

Payable Type Post Date
Invoice 08/20/2024
Invoice 08/20/2024
Invoice 08/20/2024
Invoice 08/20/2024
Invoice 08/20/2024
Invoice 08/20/2024
Invoice 08/20/2024
Invoice 08/20/2024
Invoice 08/20/2024
ITRON, INC.

Invoice 08/20/2024
JAMESON HEATING & AIR

Invoice 08/21/2024
Invoice 08/21/2024
LESUIE R HORTON

Invoice 08/26/2024
LUMIX ELECTRICAL INC

tnvoice 08/21/2024

MISSION COMMUNICATIONS LLC

Invoice 08/20/2024
MMET INC

Invoice 08/20/2024
Invoice 08/20/2024
Invoice 08/20/2024

OZARK EQUIPMENT SOLUTIONS

Invoice 08/20/2024
PILOT WIRELESS LLC
Invoice 08/21/2024

PRESLEY LANDSCAPING LLC

Invoice 08/20/2024
ROTA L. STONEHOUSE

Iinvoice 08/21/2024
S&H FARM SUPPLY INC

Invoice 08/20/2024

SHO-ME FIRE PROTECTION LLC

Invoice 08/21/2024

SPRINGFIELD FAMILY MEDICAL WALK-IN CLINIC 08/27/2024

Invoice 08/21/2024

SPRINGFIELD WINWATER WORKS CO

Invoice 08/20/2024
Invoice 08/20/2024
Invoice 08/20/2024
Invoice 08/20/2024
Invoice 08/20/2024
Invoice 08/20/2024
Invoice 08/20/2024

STATE TRACTOR & EQUIPMENT CO,, INC
08/20/2024
08/20/2024

Invoice
Invoice

Payment Date Payment Type

Payable Description

OIL CHG/ROTATE TIRES 2021 DODGE CHA
OIL CHG/ROTATE TIRES 2023 DODGE DUR
OIL CHG 2023 DODGE DURANGO - LAW
OIL CHANGE 2017 FORD EXPLORER - LAW
OIL CHG/ROTATE TIRES 2023 DODGE CHA
OIL CHG 2023 DODGE DURANGO - LAW
OIL CHG/ROTATE TIRES/AIR FLTR ‘21 DOD
OIL CHG/ROTATE TIRES/AIR FLTR '23 DOD
OIL CHG/ROTATE TIRES 2023 DODGE DUR

08/27/2024 Regular
MC4CORE & MOBILE RADIO MAINT-W

08/27/2024 Regular
A/C REPAIR CITY HALL COUTROOM AREA -
FITNESS CENTER A/C REPAIR - PKS

08/27/2024 Regular
LABOR AND PARTS LFT STN REP - S

08/27/2024 Regular
WELL 1 AB GROUNDING - LABOR , MATER

08/27/2024 Regular
SERVICE PKG RENEWAL LS 94 & REGNL -

08/27/2024 Regular
WATER SAMPLE TESTING - W
WATER SAMPLE TESTING - W
WATER SAMPLE TESTING - W

08/27/2024 Regular

LABOR & PRTS FOR CRANE REPR 98 DOD
08/27/2024 Regular

PHONE-ALL
08/27/2024 Regular

TREES, SUPPLIES, INSTALL TREE CITY-PKS

08/27/2024 Regular
DATA COMPILATION-GEN/CT/LAW/PW

08/27/2024 Regular
SPARTAN MOWER DECK BLADES - PKS

08/27/2024 Regular
FIRE PROTECTION INSPECTION - PKS

Regular
HIRE SCREENINGS WALKER, HUDDLE, GAR

08/27/2024 Regular
WATER PARTS FOR WATER REPR/MNT - W
WATER PARTS FOR REPAIRS - W
WATER SUPPLIES - W
1215NP 12-15 PLST END SECTIONS - W
FULL CIRCLE CLAMPS - WATER REPAIR - W
PVC METER PITS - WTR SPLYS - W
PVC METER PITS, METER LIDS, CPLNGS -

08/27/2024 Regular
TIGR TETH,LCK PIN,RETAINR-MINI EXCVTR
DOOR REPLACEMENT SKID STEER - STS/W

Date Range: 08/01/2024 - 08/31/2024

Discount Amount
Discount Amount
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

Payment Amount

Payable Amount

107.49
107.49
76.48
72.49
107.49
76.49
137.49
137.49
106.49

3,414.04
3,414.04

2,375.00
560.00
1,815.00

1,220.00
1,220.00

1,070.34
1,070.34

694.80
694.80

56.00
28.00
14.00
14.00

2,461.20
2,461.20

626.85
626.85

3,960.00
3,960.00

90.00
90.00

81.72
8172

395.00
395.00

- 284,00
284.00

5,619.83
163.82
115.57
990.40
556.50
148,34
678.00

2,967.20

Number

49994

49995

49996

49997

49998

49999

50000

50001

50002

50003

50004

50005

50006

50007

2,310.56 50008

61.95
1,789.10




Check Report

Vendor Number
Payable #
6128

COC200
2513

TYL100

2935
8
32

Y3

|

S
o
1%

feal
I~

USA400
30765

VDS5100
1607

AMK100
1108
3382

PHONE

WHE100
338862
PMT 45755

WTV100
4706
4729
4750
4848

BB
RO
BN
0o o0

|

i
U
~J
N

|9l
i
w
w

|

(al
i
=
]

wn
L
N
N

w
N
B
o

u
0O
)
il

Ul
00
\O
o

u
0
(=]
=

|

L
Nel
D
{V§)

|

i [
o 1
~
iy

(0]
{w)
Yol
{en]

|

N
¥y
(o2}
N

a
N
m
~

|

teal
=y
~
{rs]

o\
[sx]
o
=

|

(=]
(o)
Q
(=}

(=]
=
ey
vy}

{o1]
o
=
un

i
{to3
o
j==)

~
—
o
o

I~
[y
un
(o))

|

~J
=
(841
i~

|

~J
[y
{o2]
(=}

|

Vendor Name
Payable Type
Invoice

Post Date
08/20/2024

SW MISSOURI ENGINEERING LLC

Invoice

TYLER TECHNOLOGIES INC
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice

USA BLUE BOOK
Invoice

VDS VISION LLC
Invoice

VESTIS
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invaice
Invoice

WESLEY YOUNG
Invoice
Invoice

WHEELER METALS INC
Invoice
Credit Memo

08/21/2024

08/20/2024
08/20/2024
08/21/2024

08/20/2024

08/20/2024

08/05/2024
08/20/2024
08/20/2024
08/05/2024
08/05/2024

08/20/2024
08/20/2024

08/26/2024
08/23/2024

WILLARD HOME CENTER LLC

Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
tnvoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invaice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice

07/15/2024
08/01/2024
07/15/2024
07/15/2024
07/15/2024
07/15/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
08/05/2024
08/05/2024
08/01/2024
08/05/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
08/05/2024
08/05/2024
08/05/2024
08/05/2024
08/05/2024

Payment Date Payment Type
Payable Description
OIL CHANGE & MAINT ON EXCAVATOR -

08/27/2024 Regular
WTR STDY UPDT & DNR 5 YR SPRVSD PRG

08/27/2024 Regular
ERP PRO UTILITIES ANNUAL FEE-W/S
TIME & ATTEND MEETNGS W/ MINDY - G
SOFTWARE SUBS OCT-DEC - ALL

08/27/2024 Regular
LUBRICANT & SEALANT FOR MANHOLES -

08/27/2024 Regular
IT SERVICES-ALL

08/27/2024 Regular
PW UNIFORM SERVICE-STS/W /S
PW UNIFORM SERVICE-STS /W /S
PW DEPT UNIFORM SERVICE - 5TS / W/ S
UNIFORM SERV FOR PW DEPT - STS / W/
PUBLIC WORKS UNIFORM SERVICE - STS /

08/27/2024 Regular
HOUSING ALLOWANCE AUG - GEN
PHONE REIM - GEN

08/27/2024 Regular
{2) CHAIN W/ HOOK, (4) CLEVIS GRAB HO
CREDIT BALANCE FROM 2021 INV ENT &

08/27/2024 Reguiar
KEY - PKS
SNAP LINKS FOR BALL FIELDS EQUIP - PKS
VALVE POOL - PKS
BOLTS & WASHERS FOR POOL, WORK WIP
FLT FREE TIRE - PKS
WEED EATER MAINT - PKS
TUBE SAND 60# - SOUTHVIEW PROJT - ST
10%X25 4MIL CLR SHEETING - SOUTHVIEW
10LB WTR STOP CEMENT-SQUTHVIEW PR
HYDRAULIC CEMENT - SOUTHVIEW PROIT
4 GAL BRIWHT PREMIX GROUT-SHP SPLY-
PVC PIPE, CEMENT WELD KIT, ELLS, CPLN
EQUIPMENT BELT, SPRAY WAND - PKS
MISC O-RING, MISC NUTS WTR FOUNTAIN
STIHL 2.5 GAL HP MIX - LAGOON PMPS - §
170Z FLUO GRN MARKING PAINT- STS / W
ROOF REPAIR MATERIALS - PKS
MOSQUITO STUFF, BITS, DRILL, DRAIN, BE
ERGO 3PC TOOL SET - SHP SPLY - STS /W
BRIDGE REPAIR LUMBER - PKS
TREATED WOOD FOR BRIDGE - PKS
MALE CNTR, RED BRS BUSHING, BRS COU
UNIV WHEEL POOL, FLAG SNAP LINK - PKS
ECONOMY FLAME KIT - SHP SPLY - STS /
MECH KNIFE, SPRYR, WEED SPRY, SHOVEL
DECK STAIN BRIDGES - PKS
ENAMEL FOR XMAS DECOR REPAIR - PKS
CHIP BRUSHES, TRAY LNR, DECK STAIN PA
MISC SCREWS DUGOUT FIX - PKS
MISC NUT/HARDWARE, WASHERS DUGO

Date Range: 08/01/2024 - 08/31/2024

Discount Amount

Discount Amount Payable Amount

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

459,51

3,750.00
3,750.00

9,287.76
1,536.00
870.00
6,881.76

155.96
155.96

1,440.00
1,440.00

658.46
131.74
131.74
131.50
131.74
131.74

1,050.00
1,000.00
50.00

101.36
132.36
-31.00

2,554.82

3.14
14.36
11.69
17.13
36.89
109.39
137.43
17.99
14.84
36.43
122.36
23.42
41.26
29.10
3.39
16.18
38.91
90.41
53.98
50.61
27.52
23,91
31.07
66.59
164.55
104.38
19.04
69.47
9.88
29.67

Payment Amount Number

50009

50010

50011

50012

50013

50014

50015

50016




Date Range: 08/01/2024 - 08/31/2024

Check Report
Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Description Discount Amount Payable Amount
7241 Invoice 08/20/2024 XMAS TREE PAINT, AIR FILTER SHOP - PKS 0.00 20.22
7382 Invoice 07/15/2024 STIHL 20" SAW BLADE-NEW OFFICE BLD-S 0.00 31.99
7387 Invaoice 07/15/2024 3/16X4-1/2CON DRILL BIT - NEW OFFICE 0.00 16.90
7425 Invaice 07/15/2024 BRIDGE PAINTING SUPPLIES - PKS 0.00 95.67
7502 Invoice 07/15/2024 WEED EATER MAINT - PKS 0.00 20.99
7540 Invoice 08/01/2024 GE BULBS REC CTR LIGHTNG - PKS 0.00 78.27
7541 Invoice 08/01/2024 1X3/4 REDU FEM ADAPTER, 3/4" SXT FEM 0.00 7.70
7584 Invoice 08/20/2024 MISC BOLTS FOR POOL REPAIR - PKS 0.00 20.80
7600 Invoice 08/20/2024 SPRAY NOZZLE - SOUTHVIEW PROJECT - § 0.00 4.85
7626 Invoice 08/20/2024 (2) REFLCTV ADHSV #1 - SOUTHVIEW PRO 0.00 2.32
7633 Invoice 08/01/2024 SEALANT, ADHESIVE FOR REC CTR TRIM - 0.00 32.30
7714 Invoice 08/01/2024 60# MORTAR MIX - SOUTHVIEW PROJECT 0.00 18.85
7759 Invoice 08/01/2024 1/2 WHT SXS COUPLING - WTR REPAIR SP 0.00 0.80
7802 Invoice 08/01/2024 STRIPPING EQUIPMENT FOR GYM RAILS - 0.00 81.00
7864 Invoice 08/01/2024 MP BASIC 3PC PAINT TRAY SET NW OFCF 0.00 9.89
7887 Invoice 08/01/2024 WASP SPRAY, SAND BELT, DOWEL - PKS 0.00 17.95
7888 Invoice 08/01/2024 WEED EATER SERVICING - PKS 0.00 12.00
7915 Invoice 08/01/2024 CLR LEXEL CAULK - SEWER MANHOLE REP 0.00 56.21
8159 Invaice 08/01/2024 PNT BRSH,ROLL CVR,ENML PNT NW OFFC 0.00 164.71
8195 Invoice 08/01/2024 OIL ABSORBENT - PKS 0.00 14.39
8257 Invoice 08/21/2024 STRAW BALES - SOUTHVIEW PROJT CLEAN 0.00 13.78
8268 Invoice 08/05/2024 WAGSHER HOSE, DIABLO BLADE POOL REP 0.00 110.88
8359 Invoice 08/21/2024 FLTRS,GSKT,2X4X6 #2 SPF,LBR CONCRETE 0.00 64.10
8363 Invoice 08/21/2024 BLACK PAINT - PKS 0.00 11.68
8385 Invoice 08/21/2024 LEAD HOSE, 5S CLAMPS - § 0.00 33.71
8407 Invoice 08/21/2024 HAMMR,SPIKES,WSP SPRY,TOOL BX SOCC 0.00 56.92
8469 Invoice 08/20/2024 PARK BRIDGE MAINT PARTS WOOD, TRAY 0.00 13.15
8539 Invoice 08/20/2024 MORTAR MIX, SHARPN CHNSAW BLD - SO 0.00 55.69
8546 Invoice 08/20/2024 (3) TROWELS - SOUTHVIEW PRIT - 5TS 0.00 50.19
8832 Invoice 08/20/2024 WEED EATER REPAIR - PKS 0.00 24.19
8968 Invoice 08/21/2024 WEED CONTROL SUPPLIES, SAFETY GLASS 0.00 11.52
8976 Invoice 08/20/2024 BLACK PAINT - PKS 0.00 23.36
8987 Invoice 08/20/2024 6X8 BLUE TARP, MISC REGAL TOOL-SHP SP 0.00 6.89
B264909 Invoice 07/15/2024 BLU PWDR CHLK, DRILL BIT- NEW OFF BLD 0.00 24.03
B265443 Credit Memo 07/11/2024 RETURNED BULBS REC CTR LIGHTS - PKS 0.00 -52.18
B265908 Invoice 08/05/2024 TRIM ADHESIVE - PKS 0.00 5.21
D107055 Credit Memo 07/03/2024 RETURNED [TEM POOL - PKS 0.00 -10.30
D107826 Credit Memo 07/17/2024 RETURNED MISC BOLTS WTR FOUNTAIN - 0.00 -10.80
**void** 08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 0.00 50017
**Void** 08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 0.00 50018
**\oid** 08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 0.00 50019
**Void** 08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 0.00 50020
**Void** 08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 0.00 50021
**\Void** 08/27/2024 Regular 0.00 0.00 50022
AUL100 AMERICAN UNITED LIFE INSURANCE CO 08/06/2024 Bank Draft 0.00 219.33 DFT0002438
JULY 2024 Invoice 07/01/2024 JULY 2024 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE 0.00 219.33
DOT100 DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY INTERNAL REVENL 08/09/2024 Bank Draft 0.00 7,041.35 DFT0002439
PPE 8/3/24 Fed  Invoice 08/09/2024 FEDERAL WITHHOLDING PPE 8/3/2024 0.00 7,041.35
MIS300 MISSOURI DEPT OF REVENUE 08/09/2024 Bank Draft 0.00 3,172.50 DFT0002440
PPE 8/3/24 Invoice 08/09/2024 STATE WITHHOLDING PPE 8/3/2024 0.00 3,172.50
DOT100 DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY INTERNAL REVENL 08/09/2024 Bank Draft 0.00 15,885.64 DFT0002441
PPE 8/3/24 SS Invoice 08/038/2024 SOCIAL SECURITY WITHHOLDING PPE 8/3 0.00 15,885.64
DOT100 DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY INTERNAL REVENL 08/09/2024 Bank Draft 0.00 3,715.24 DFT0002442
PPE 8/3/24 MC  Invoice 08/09/2024 MEDICARE WITHHOLDING PPE 8/3/2024 0.00 3,715.24

CFs100 CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC 08/13/2024 Bank Draft 0.00 328.79 DFT0002448




Check Report

Vendor Number
Payable #
6765

LOS200
4996

PIL100
PIL100
7318

WRI110
1057

WAL110
1240
1325

6-26-24 SAMS

6-27-24
864

7-2-24

(=)

LOWS505
39697
79343
86006
88569

DOT100

F

PPE 8/17/24 FED

MIS300

PE 8/17/2024

F

DOT100

PPE 8/17/24 SS

F

DOT100

F

PPE 8/17/24 M

ORE145
16313
163440
163454

(39

2367-161518
2367-162738
2367-162814
2367-166096
2367-166115

[[9,]

Vendor Name
Payable Type

Invoice

Post Date
08/01/2024

LAKELAND OFFICE SYSTEMS INC

Invaice

PILOT WIRELESS LLC
P{LOT WIRELESS LLC

Invoice

WEX BANK
Invoice

WALMART CAPITAL ONE

Invoice
tnvoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
invoice

LOWE'S CREDIT SERVICES

Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Credit Memo
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY INTERNAL REVENL 08/23/2024

Invoice

08/01/2024

08/01/2024

08/01/2024

08/01/2024
08/01/2024
07/15/2024
07/15/2024
08/01/2024
07/15/2024

06/18/2024
07/02/2024
07/02/2024
06/18/2024
06/11/2024
06/10/2024
06/07/2024
06/07/2024
07/02/2024
07/02/2024
06/10/2024

08/23/2024

MISSOURI DEPT OF REVENUE

Invoice

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY INTERNAL REVENL 08/23/2024

Invoice

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY INTERNAL REVENL 08/23/2024

Invoice

08/23/2024

08/23/2024

08/23/2024

O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC

Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Credit Memo
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Credit Memo
Credit Memo
Invoice

07/15/2024
07/15/2024
07/15/2024
07/15/2024
07/15/2024
07/15/2024
07/15/2024
07/15/2024
07/15/2024
07/02/2024
06/07/2024
07/02/2024
07/02/2024
07/02/2024
07/12/2024
07/12/2024
07/02/2024

Payment Date Payment Type
Payable Description
COPIER LEASE-ALL

08/13/2024 Bank Draft
COPIES-ALL

08/13/2024 Bank Draft

08/13/2024 Bank Draft
PHONE-ALL

08/13/2024 Bank Draft

VEH AND EQUIP FUEL-LAW/PKS/STS/W/S

08/13/2024 Bank Draft
SAMS CONCESSIONS, LIQ IV DRINKS STAFF
SAMS (2) POPUP CANOPIES SPEC EVNTS -
SAMS CONCESSIONS, PINESOL CLNR - PKS
TIE DYE, SPONGES, BOX CAMP - PKS
SAMS CLUB CONCESSIONS - PKS
CAMP SUPPLIES - PKS

08/13/2024 Bank Draft
12-GA END CAPS - SEWER LS MAINT - S
BOX CVR, BOX EXTNDR, URD CABLE FFEST
ELECTRCL SUPLYS-BOXES, LIDS,TAPE,GSKTS
CONCRETE BENCH PIERS INCLSV PLYGRND
RETURNED (2) PVC TOILET FLANGES - STS/
MAGNT CDY,SCRWDRVR,TROWL,GROUT,
VALVE BOX WATER FOUNTAIN - PKS
HOSE, MALE ADAPTERS - PKS
ELECTRICAL WIRE FREEDOM FEST - PKS
PAINT SUPLYS-PAINT, ROLLERS-PKS
MISC SHOP SUPPLIES - STS/W/S

Bank Draft
FEDERAL WITHHOLDING PPE 8/17/2024

08/23/2024 Bank Draft
STATE WITHHOLDING PPE 8/17/2024

Bank Draft
SOCIAL SECURITY WITHHOLDING PPE 8/1

Bank Draft
MEDICARE WITHHOLDING PPE 8/17/2024

08/28/2024 Bank Draft
5 GAL HYDRAULIC OIL TRACTOR - PKS
STAR BIT SET - PKS
COUPLER LOCK USE FOR TRAILERS - PKS
PIN AND CLIP FOR FUEL TRUCK - PKS
WIPR FLD,SCRWDRVR SET,EXT CRD,HAM
COPPER PLUGS, CARB CLEANER - PKS
ABSORBENT OIL DRY FOR SHOP - STS / W
MOWER OIL FILTERS - PKS
MOTOR OIL MOWERS - PK5
LATEX GLOVES-PKS
CORE RETURN - STS/W/S
HEX KEY SET, 1QT-GEAR OIL-92 FRD WRK
1GAL ANTIFREZ, 1QT MOTOR OIL-EQP MA
OIL FILTER & MOTOR OilL - LAWN MOWER
RETURNED ITEMS TRAILER REPR - PKS
RETURNED TRAILER HUB - PKS
WASHER FLD, BULBS - LAW

Date Range: 08/01/2024 - 08/31/2024

Discount Amoaunt

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

Payment Amount

Discount Amount Payable Amount

328.79

498.85
498.85

-626.85
626.85
626.85

7,373.70
7,373.70

919.71
244.76
199.96
372.50

21.20
46.44
34.85

2,157.63
26.10
457.14
237.62
209.25
-13.24
206.10
25.16
67.86
445,55
186.07
310.02

7,100.82
7,100.82

3,039.00
3,039.00

15,256.82
15,256.82

3,568.10
3,568.10

1,340.64
74.99
15.99
34.99

6.99
63.23
30.59
31.98
32.55
43.96
22.99

-22.00
31.98
23.48
37.82
-140.52
-47.74
38.13

Number

DFT0002449

DFT0002450
DFT0002450

DFT0002451

DFT0002452

DFT0002453

DFT0002454

DFT0002455

DFT0002456

DFT0002457

DFT0002458




Check Report

Vendor Number

REP425
6361

ACS100

MEM100
7366

EMC105
3583

MIS315

MIS315

8-9-24 220 JCKSN

MLF100
4637

HYP100

Vendor Name
Payable Type
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
{nvoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice

ALLIED SERVICES, LLC

Invoice

Post Date

08/01/2024
08/05/2024
06/18/2024
06/18/2024
08/01/2024
06/18/2024
06/18/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
06/07/2024
06/10/2024
06/18/2024

08/20/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC

Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice

OZARKS COCA COLA

Credit Memo
Invoice
Invoica
Invoice
Invoice

07/15/2024
07/15/2024
07/15/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024

05/21/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024
08/01/2024

ENTERPRISE FLEET MANAGEMENT

Invoice

08/20/2024

MISSOURI EMPLOYERS MUTUAL

Invoice

08/20/2024

EMC INSURANCE COMPANIES

Invoice

SPIRE
Invoice

SPIRE
Invoice

SPIRE
Invoice

SPIRE
Invoice

SPIRE
Invoice

QUADIENT LEASING

Invoice

NITEL LLC

08/20/2024

08/29/2024

08/20/2024

08/20/2024

08/29/2024

08/20/2024

08/20/2024

Payment Date Payment Type
Payable Description
SFTY CBLS, HTCH BALL, CPLR, PIN/CLP, BS
TRAILR BRK ASSMBLY,DRUM KIT,SEAL & B
FUEL HOSE, NYLN UNION, HSE CLMP - LS-
ANTIFREZ, HEATER HOSE, HSE CLMP- LS R
WIRE DRYERS, 1907 ELCT PARTS CLNR - W
SCREWDRIVER, BIT SET, SCKT SET - PKS
FLAP WHEEL - FOR SHARPENING MOWER
MINI LAMP - CHEVY DMP TRUCK - STS /
(2).5GAL BLUEDEF - SOUTHVIEW PROIT- S
QT GEAROIL, LOCKING PIN -STS /S /W
SAND PAPER FOR GYM RAIL, OIL FILTER F
MOWER HOSE BADBOY - PKS
BATTERY, MARKER LIGHTS- PW WRK TRK-
TAIL LIGHTS BLACK TRAILER - PKS
BATRYS, BATRY CBLS,CONNCTR,TAPE DMP

08/13/2024 Bank Draft
TRASH EXP-ALL
08/13/2024 Bank Draft

COLORED FILE FOLDERS - GEN

OFFICE CHAIR MAT - GEN

POCKET FOLDERS, STICKY TABS, P CLIPS -
MARKING PAINT - SHOP SPLYS - STS / W/
PRUNING GLOVES - PKS

HOSE FITNGS, COUPLIERS GSKTS, WSHRS-
SPORTS TAPE BANDAGES - PKS

TRLR HTCH LCK TOW BALL - FOR EQP TRLE

08/13/2024 Bank Draft
RETURN OF EMPTY CO2 TANKS - PKS
CONCESSIONS - PKS
CONCESSIONS - PKS
CONCESSIONS - PKS
CONCESSIONS - PKS

08/19/2024 Bank Draft

VEH & EQUIP LEASES,MAINT - GEN/P&D/
08/29/2024 Bank Draft

WORKMANS COMP INS-GEN/PW/PKS
08/30/2024 Bank Draft

PROPRTY & LIABLTY INS-GEN/PW/PKS
08/29/2024 Bank Draft

UTIL EXP GAS-S
08/29/2024 Bank Draft

UTIL EXP GAS REC CNTR-PKS
08/29/2024 Bank Draft

UTIL EXP GAS-W
08/29/2024 Bank Draft

UTIL EXP GAS CITY HALL-GEN
08/29/2024 Bank Draft

UTIL EXP GAS COMM BLDG-PKS

08/30/2024 Bank Draft
NEW FOLDING MACHINE LEASE QTRLY-W/

08/22/2024 Bank Draft

Discount Amount

Date Range: 08/01/2024 - 08/31/2024

Discount Amount

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

Payment Amount Number

Payable Amount

135.95
188.26
31.60
53.38
26.07
42,97
8.98
1.63
39.98
22.38
13.73
51.58
158.46
15.18
271.08

1,742.32
1,742.32

480.11
14.56
41.14
43.02
241.15
37.74
46.99
22.98
32.53

2,92871
-825.00
1,533.85
837.50
462.40
919.96

12,569.39
12,569.39

5,171.29
5,171.29

13,968.33
13,968.33

5231
52.31

63.71
63.71

5231
52.31

52.31
52.31

97.92
97.92

899.55
899.55

2,234.45

DFT0002459

DFT0002460

DFT0002461

DFT0002462

DFT0002463

DFT0002464

DFT0002465

DFT0002466

DFT0002467

DFT0002468

DFT0002469

DFT0002470

DFT0002471




Check Report

Vendor Number
Payable #
5033

CLH100
9611

ACS100
1XMC

6-26-24 SAMS
5303

6680 BRAKES 4 T
7-16-24

7-18-24

7-19-24

7-3-24 MO SECO
73909

7-4-24 ATT
7-5-24

7897
30
INV001414901
JULY
PROSTAMPS.CO
SAMS

|

I~

0
N

|

COoL200
AUG 2024

DEL10S
SEPT 2024

DEL106
SEPT 2024

MIS350
JULY 2024

Vendor Name

Payable Type Post Date
Invoice 08/05/2024
CLAYTON HOLDINGS LLC

Invoice 08/20/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC

Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 08/05/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 08/20/2024
Invoice 08/26/2024

COMMERCE CREDIT CARD SERVICES

Invaice 07/15/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 07/02/2024
Invoice 07/02/2024
Invoice 07/15/2024
Invoice 07/02/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
S Invoice 07/15/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 07/15/2024
Invoice 07/02/2024
Invoice 07/02/2024
Invoice 07/02/2024
Invoice 07/15/2024
Invoice 08/12/2024
Invoice 07/15/2024
invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 07/15/2024
Invoice 07/15/2024
Invoice 07/15/2024
Invoice 08/05/2024
Invoice 07/15/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
Invoice 07/02/2024
Invoice 08/01/2024
Credit Memo 08/12/2024
Credit Memo 06/27/2024

COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INS
Invoice 08/01/2024

DELTA DENTAL OF MISSOUR!
Invoice 09/01/2024

DELTA DENTAL OF MISSOURI

Invoice 09/01/2024
MISSOUR! LAGERS
Invoice 07/31/2024

Payment Date Payment Type
Payable Description
INTERNET-ALL

08/30/2024 Bank Draft
LEASE ON EQUIPMENT - STS/W/S

08/26/2024 Bank Draft
PHONE MSG BOOKS-OFFICE SPLY - STS /
BS LIC ENVELOPES, FILE TABS, PMT DUE S
WARRANT SERVED & DISMISSAL DOCKET
QUTDR WALL MNT FOR HVAC, GASKETS -
DESK LAPTOP STAND - GEN
FITNESS RESISTANCE BANDS - PKS
STENNER PUMP SPLYS - W
REC CENTER AMERICAN FLAG - PKS
CORRECT TAPE,SCOTCH TAPE,SML NOTEB
CHLORINE TEST STRPS, HERBICIDE, BSKTB
HYDRNT WRCHS,0/C SIGN,AERATN HOSE,

08/12/2024 Bank Draft
AMZ FLAT ROPE - PKS
AFFINITY GROUP FUNDRAISING TRAINING
SITEONE STRAW SINGLE NET SOUTHVW P
SYNOLOGY DATA STRGE DIFF 7 TO 8 TB-GE
FIRE HOSE SUPPLY HOSES - PKS
ADMIRAL EXPRESS COPY PAPER - GEN/W/
CONTRCTRS TOOLS DUAL GRADE LASER -
417 INFLATABLES RENTAL FOR CAMP - PKS
AMAZON 4" HD SPRNG SNP HOOKS - PKS
SAMS CONCESSIONS-FOOD AND SUPP - P
SAMS CONCESSIONS - PKS
SUNSHINE LANES BOWLING FIELD TRIP C
BJS TROPHY STAGE SKIRT FFEST - PKS
RECORDER OF DEEDS FINAL PLAT RECRDN
SAMS CONCESSIONS - PKS
STENNER PUMPS PUMP TUBE - W
BRAKES 4 TRLRS HUBCAPS AND OIL CAPS
CASEYS ICE - STS/W/S
RUTLEDGE WILSON FIELD TRIP - PKS
STAMPS.COM POSTAGE-ALL
MO SEC OF STATE NOTRY CHG OF ADDR I
ALL-WAY TEACUPS/TEACUP SLNGS SOUTH
ATR&T INTERNET SERVICE-W/S
FACEBOOK ADVERT FREEDOM FEST - PKS
DAY-TIMER YR PCKT SIZE PLANNER REFILL
STAMPS.COM MONTHLY FEE-GEN
KIEFER AQUATICS LIFEGUARD TUBE COVE
SPFLD NEWS-LEADER MONTHLY SUBSC-G
REFUND - P&D
SAMS CRDT FOR SALES TAX CHRGD - PKS

08/01/2024 Bank Draft
AUG 2024 GROUP SUPPLEMENTAL INSUR

08/29/2024 Bank Draft
SEPT 2024 GROUP DENTAL INSURANCE

08/29/2024 Bank Draft
SEPT 2024 GROUP VISION INSURANCE

08/07/2024 Bank Draft
JULY 2024 GROUP RETIREMENT

Discount Amount

Date Range: 08/01/2024 - 08/31/2024

Discount Amount

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

Payment Amount Number

Payable Amount

2,234.45

2,649.34 DFT0002479

2,649.34

1,697.73 DFT0002480

15.98
37.90
29.82
47.68
49.69
95.38
158.65
25.88
35.06
409.58
788.11

10,465.96 DFT0002481

108.95
119,00
143.90
40.66
362.40
160.92
2,630.32
180.25
32.99
785.52
725.86
82.01
175.00
70.63
1,788.90
20.55
247.00
6.28
238.00
100.00
5.35
2,006.76
64.20
44.19
61.61
12.79
299.00
46.00
-22.90
-70.18

18.00
18.00

1,721.74
1,721.74

263.55
263.55

14,793.74
14,793.74

DFT0002485

DFT0002486

DFT0002487

DFT0002488




Check Report

Vendor Number
Payable #

TASC
AUG 9 2024

TASC
AUG 23 2024

UHC100
SEPT 2024 38436

Date Range: 08/01/2024 - 08/31/2024

Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Payable Type Post Date Payable Description Discount Amount Payable Amount
TASC 08/09/2024 Bank Draft 0.00 485.51 DFT0002489
Invoice 08/038/2024 AUG 9 2024 GROUP FLEXIBLE SPENDING 0.00 485.51
TASC 08/23/2024 Bank Draft 0.00 435.51 DFT0002490
Invoice 08/23/2024 AUG 23 2024 FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOU 0.00 485.51
UNITED HEALTHCARE INSURANCE COMPANY  08/13/2024 Bank Draft 0.00 41,884.01 DFT0002451
Invoice 09/01/2024 SEPT 2024 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE 0.00 41,884.01
Bank Code CITY Summary
Payable Payment

Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment

Regular Checks 285 97 0.00 329,817.82

Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00

Voided Checks 0 13 0.00 -12,844.50

Bank Drafts 135 40 0.00 186,395.92

EFT's 0 0 0.00 0.00

420 150 0.00 503,369.24




Check Report

Payment Type
Regular Checks
Manual Checks
Voided Checks
Bank Drafts
EFT's

Name
POOLED CASH

All Bank Codes Check Summary

Payable Payment
Count Count
285 97

0 0

0 13

135 40

0 0

420 150

Fund Summary
Period
8/2024

Discount
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

Payment
329,817.82
0.00
-12,844.50
186,395.92
0.00
503,369.24

Amount

503,369.24
503,369.24

Date Range: 08/01/2024 - 08/31/2024




7 )0 1 abed

Wd T+:2€:2 b202/T1/6

$202/€2/80 :21eQ 3unsod

uonnquisig Ja8pa |eiauan

Alewwing apo) anuanly

woJ4 palelausn
wou4 p3jelaulg
wol4 pajesauan
wol4 pajessusn
g WoJ4 palelsuan
g WOy pajelausn
ysodaqg

Suijg woid pajesauan
g Woi4 pajesausn
g Wol4 palelausan
g WoJ4 paleauan
g Wai4 pajesauan
f WoJ4 pajelauan
g WoJ4 palessuan
g9 Wol4 paleiousn
adAl

[1e13d }23Y) punjay

08'VET'T-
000
O08'PET'T
S8 08 PET'T-
i wnowy Junsod

08'pETT
08'VETT
unowy

61"EET

7664

06'19

07'99

(179

8S'65T

0095

789

£9°GS

08'95

88'vE

99°'L

L9

£8°8%

€592

wnowy 1d|aday 3po)

1315183y )23y punjay

TvH3INID - HSVD 43100d
‘Ierol 02
SM-ITEYAIIIIY SLNNODDV

A3S ANV YILYM - HSYD A3100d NO WIVTD

SWEN UN0Y

HISTTIELUETEN]

000T0-66

HS¥J d3100d - 66 :pund
00051-02
T0010-0C

ANNd HIMIS ANV HILYM - 0T pung

Jaquinn JunoJdy

SANN43Y / SLIQTYD aINddYNN - 966
2p0D SNUBAIY

08'VET'T JUnowy papunyay |ejolL
6'EET 9.66%
26'6L SL667
06'19 vL66Y
01'99 €L66V
L1'29 TL66t
85'6ST TL66Y
00'95 04661
849 6966%
£9°SS 8966Y
0895 £966Y
88'vE 99661
99°L 59661
'8 o661
2514 £9661
€592 7966¥%
unowy #09YD

vzoz/ee/8 ONIGWNTd ALID DNITHIEWNIN
ve0z/ee/8 ATIOH '8 Hd3SOr ‘DI4HI
veoe/ee/8 NHOf ‘NINWO NYA
vzoz/EC/8 NOYYY YIHJOLSIYHD “TIH
vzoz/ee/8 AYODIYD ‘LNIUYIN
vzoz/ee/8 YIDZLIW AYYD 8 AINOT NVIYYN
yeoz/ez/8 OMNNF '8 SINNIQA ‘ALYIH4VT
¥zoe/ee/8 TIVANYY ‘SIHYVH
vzoz/ee/8 ‘M QHYMA3 ‘NIGOY-INYYM
vToz/ee/8 YNVQ ‘¥ININL
veoe/se/8 QYT B YDINNAr ‘NAMOYE
¥zoz/ET/s YNHSOr ‘LLINONd
veoz/ee/8 N3LSHIM ‘4IddOH
vzoe/ez/8 ZI178 LLYW "3DNIUMY
vzoe/ee/s AFTHSY ‘AdNYa

ajeQ 2WeN

ST ‘spunysy |80l
01-200008-60
¥0-S20T7E-60
90-S¥201Z-60
80-TT0890-60
¥0-0039t0-80
0T-00T¥50-30
+¥0-0TZ00T-+0
€0-LTT00T-v0
L0-LETOOV-E0
20-S0000€-€E0
¢0-DECLOO-EO
90-S41000-20
ST-S60000-20
£0-09TO0T-T0
80-00€700-10

Junoddy

Jenday 6TEEOLIJEN TO SPUNJDY - ZZEE0LNAEN

OW ‘PLellim Jo Aud

.0
I




v202/€2/80 1eQ Bunsod
uonnqlsig Jaspa |elauan

SaA
14l

00’0

00'0

08'VET'T
Junowy Suiysod

:|e30) uopngIsig
‘leloL 66

SANN4 ¥3K10 01 Ana
BWEN 1UN0dIY

00042-66
Jaquunp UNoddy




CITY OF WILLARD
BOARD OF ALDERMEN

AGENDA ITEM #3f
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

ACTION REQUIRED: APPROVAL REQUESTED

August 2024 Utility Adjustments

__———____ﬁ
Finance Department Report
9/23/24 Board of Aldermen Meeting



£ 40 1 3bed

Ji0day uBUNSNIPY AJUIUOIW AN Wd E€IEEIZ $202/11/0

junowy uno) adA] junowy
¥5°022 :|eyoL 6 Aea
wnowy uno) “TadA]  junowy
9'vp i[e3o) 9 Aeg
unowy juno) adAl unowy

v20Z/1€/8 - vZ0/1/8 :98uey ajeq

wno) adA] junowy  uno)
00'TC E

wno) adA] unowy wno)

wno)y “adAl junowy wunod

uoinquisiqg Ajreg

Hoday juawisnipy Ajyauoal Aujin

~wisnlpy WawAed 3s13A3Y  £§'bE- T

8T's T “usnipy juswaAed 3asionay
TYILNAAISTY - 334 ADVINIYA - 009 :2p0) anuansy

LTSE T “-wisnipy udWAeq 35/9A3Y
TYILINIAISTY - HAIM3S - 00b :3p0) BNUBAY

900 T “wIsn(py juswAeqd 35J9A3Y
XV1 ALNNOD 1VILNIQISIY - 16T :2P0O) 3NUSAIY

1€0 T wisnipy JuawAed S5I9A9Y
XYL ALD TWILN3QISTY - 06T :3p0) SNUAA3Y

8¢°aT T “uIsSnipy jusuiAed asi9Ady
TVILNIQISIY - YLV - 00T :9p0D BNu3A3Y

adAl junowy wnoy adAL
T Maam ay3 jo Aeg

0009 [4 aWsh[py snoaue|aIsiin
{3uaunsn{py) SIDUYHI SN - TO8 ;3P0 NUIASY

9S'0T 4 *unsnipy juawAed asianay
TVILNIGIS3Y - 334 ADVINIYA - 009 :3p0) Bnuaaay

ST'8Y 1 ~wisnipy judwAed 351aAay
TYILNIAISIH - HIM3S - 00P :9p0) INUBAY

16'0 T “uisnipy juswAed 3519A3Y
XYL ALNNOD TvHNY - 86T :3P0) SNUBAdY

800 1 ~wsnlpy judwAey 35I19A3Y
XVi ALNNOD TVILNIQISIY - TET :9p0) anuaAay

o T “wisnipy JuUdWARd 9SJ3ASY
XVL ALID TYILNIQISIY - 06T :3P0J aNU3AIY

66'€0T T “wSNIpy JuswAey o51an0Y
TYILNIQISIH TVHNY - Y31V - SOT :3p0) anuaAaYy

juawW3snipy Snosue|RasIA
TVILN3QISIY - HILVM - 00T :9p0) SNUIA3Y

adA}l junowy uno) adAL
6 {93 ay1 jo Aeg

v9'tvry T “unsnfpy juawaieq ssianay
SANN43Y / SLIAIYD aINddYNN - 966 :3P0) dNUDSAIY

2dAl junowy uno) adA]
9 H93M Y3 jo Aeq

OW ‘Ple|iim Jo A3ID




junowy

79'76T

v9'vy
v1'0

wnowy

29°T6T
98'YS-

06°¢-

jJunowy

0z'98

uno)

who)y

wuno)

:pouad Joj sadA | Juawisnipy |RYo) puess

"'S11a34D 43NddvYNN
“1NNOJ TVILN3AISIY

:polIdd 104 |€30) puRID
|20l 67 Aea

:e30L £T Aeg

:|e101 zT Aeq

adAL junowy

- 966 ¥8'ST
-T6T ELO

00°06

9dA]l unowy

adA] junowy

uno)H

unoy

no)

adAl junowy no)

sse|) Ag s|ej0] apo) anudAdY

156 T
*'QIS3Y - 334 ADVINIUG - 009 TH'ES z
XYL ALID TYILNIQISIY - 06T 66°E0T T
~35npy) SIDYYHD 4SN - TOB 98°¥S- T

3dA]l junowy wno)

sjejo] adA] uawisnipy
wunowy uno)
adAl junowy uno)

uonnquasia Ajreq

adAL

SIVYNId HIM3IS - S6F

TVILNIAISIY - ¥IM3S - 00Y
**IS3H TVHNY - HALYM - SOT

IVIDHIWNOD - Y3LVYM - OTT

adA]

adA}

adA|

[A-] [4 “awisnfpy JdwAed 3sIanay
TVILNIQISAY - ¥IM3S - 001 F9P0D BNUBAIY

6E°0- 1 JuswWIsSnpy Ajeuad ssianay
S3ILTVYNId YILVAA - S6T :3p0J anuaAaay
tT'0 4 “WISN{pY JUBWAR] D5J3A3Y

XVL ALNNOD TVILNIQIS3Y - T6T :3P0D INU3A)Y
€20 4 “aunsnipy jusawAied 3sIondy
XYL ALID TVILNIQISAY - 06T :2p0) Bnuanay

87'9€ 4 “-awishlpy JudwAed 3SI9ASY
TVILNZAISIY - YILVM - 00T :3P0) 2nuUaAay

unowy uno) adAi
TYIN3QISIY ALID - S3H AL -Ss€|)

6€0- T SILLTVYNId HILYM - S6T
Zauno)  Ajeuad asiaAsY - NdY :adAL Juawisnipy

160 T XYL ALNNOD TVHNY - 86T

87'9¢ [4 TVILNIAISIY - HILVYAA - 00T
T 33UN0)  judwAhed 85JaA3Y - VdY :9dAL Juswisnipy

JAS) 744 T IVILNIQAISIY - HILYM - 00T
G:iJUNO)  SNORUB||AISIIAI - ISIN :9dA) Judunsnipy

wnowy uno) adAL

98°vS- T JUBWISHPY SNOBUER|IRISIA
TYIQUIINNOD - HILYM - OTT :@p0) 3nUsAdY

unowy uno) adAy
67 32 3y jo Aeq

T16°€- T Juawisn(py Ajeusd asiansy
SIILTYNId YIMIS - S6 :9p0) InuAY

6£'0- T auwnsnipy Aleuad asianay
SIILTUYNId YILVYM - S6T :2p0) aNU3aAlY

junowy uno) adAL
€T @3M 3y jo Aeg

0D'0€ T uswWIsN[py snoauey|daasiy

(awaunsnipy) SIDYVK)I 4SN - TOR :3p0] 3NuUaAdY



€2°0

98’15

66'€0T

L TANY

unowy

[4)4:14
T9'STT

unowy

98'vS-

unowy

L8'TET

(40 ¢ abed

uno)

wno)

wno)

:jeJoL 06T DNUIADY

:Je10] OTT 2nuaAay

:|B101 SOT dNUaAdY

:|el0] 00T sNuUaA3dY

1pO14dd 40} |20 puesn

{12101 S3H TVYNY sse))

{301 INOD YNy SsepD

1230l S3Y AL ssep

adAl junowy

adAl junowy

adAl junowy

unoy)

uno)

wno)

87°9€ 4 ~aunsnipy JuawAed asisasy

adA] junowy uno)

adA] Aq sjejo) apo) anudAdy

adA]l junowy uno)

adA] junowy wuno)

sse|) Ag s|e10] apo) anuanay

adA ).

adA|

adAg

€2'0 4 “-awsnipy JuswAed a5iaAsY
XVL ALD 1VILNIAISIY - 06T :2POJ dNUIAIY

9B'vS- 1 Juawisnlpy snosue|jaasIy
TVIDHIWWOI - HILVM - 0TT :3P0J 3NU3ABY

66'€0T T “3unsSnipy JuswWAed 3SI9ASY
IVILNAAISIY TVHNY - YILVYM - SOT 2p0D 3NUdA3Y

L5'YT- i wswisn[py snodue|dIsIN
TVILNIQISIY - YILYM - 00T :3p0) anuarsy

unowy une) adA|

000E T 3uswisnfpy snoaue|aasiy
{3uaunsnipy) SIDUYHI 4SN - TOB :3p0) BNUAAY

87'S T *awisnipy juswAeq asianay
TVILNIQIS3Y - 334 ADVINIYA - 009 :3p0) anusAay

16°0 T ~aunsnlpy juswAhed asianay
XYL ALNNOD TYHNY - 86T :9P0D NUIAY

66°€0T T *awsn{py juswAeq 8siandy
TVILNIQISIH TYHNY - HILVYM - SOT :9p0) SnuUaA3Yy

LS'YT- 1 uBWsNpy snoaue|dIsiN
TVILINIQISTY - YILVM - 00T :9p0)J INuU3A3Y

unowy unod adA|

TVINIQAISIY TvHNY - SIU TVHNY SSED

98'vS- T WIWISNfpY snosue|RasIiy
TVIDUININOI - HILVA - OTT :9p0) 3nuaAay
junowy uno) adA]

TYIDHIINIINOD TVHNY - INOD UNY :sse|d

9t T ~awisn{py JUawWAed 3s1AdY
SANNZ3Y / S1IaIYI AINddYNN - 966 :3p0) anuaaay

00'09 [4 wawishipy snoauej|aasiA
{yuaunsnipy) SIOUVHD SN - TOS :2p0) anUBAIY

9901 4 “awisnipy JuswAed 3sI19ABY
TVILN3AISIN - 334 ADVINIYA - 009 :2p0) BNU3A3Y

TG'E- 0 Juawssnipy Ajeuad assanay

S3ILIVYNId YIM3S - 56¢ :@p0) Snuaray



yoday uawisnlpy Alyuo A

Wd £€:18€:7 pen7/10/6

8T 9E 4 TVILNIAISIY - ¥ILYM - 00T
wawisn[py JuswAed 9sIoAdY
1907 u_nu—o._. uﬁﬂEum:.—t( m:OU:m__UUm__Z
0006 £ (wawisn(py) SIDUYHD SN - TO8
98'v5- T TVIDYIWINOD - 4ILYM - OTT
L5V 1 IVILNIAIS3Y - YALYM - 00T
BUISNIpY Snoaue|aasiN
junowy uno) IP0D ANUARY adA) uonpoesuel .

39po) anuaaay pue adA] uondesue.] Aq sjeiol

[4:0d T4 [0]% :poLIad 10} |eJ0L

06't- T jusunsnipy Aljeusd asiandy
S6°58C 14 Juswisn(py JUdWAERJ 9513n3Y
LS°0T S juauwisnipy snosue|j@asin
wunowy uno) adA] uonoesuel]

3adA] uaipesueis] Aq sjeyol

[AN4:T4 1poldd Joj 3dA| Aq Snuanay |e10] puesn
vo'vy :|e30L 966 dnuaAdY
v9'tvt T “-aw3snipy JuswAeq asianay
SANN43Y / SLIA34) QAITddYNN - 966 :3pOJ aNUIAIY
0006 :e304 108 anuanay
00°06 3 wRwasnipy snosue||aasIN
(3uaunsn(py) $39UVHI 4SN - TOB :9p0D 2NUDARY
¥8'ST :|e301 009 2NU3AY
TpRsT e “~aunsnfpy uswheq ssiansy
TVILNIQIS3Y - 333 ADVINIYC - D09 :2p0) 3nuanay
15t [e301 S61 SNUDADY
15'€- 1 Jusawsnipy Ajeuad a51aAdY
S3ILTYNId YIM3S - S6b BP0 SNU3A3Y
'es {|e10] 00p dnuaAdy
r'es z *awysnipy juswaAeq 3SIaA8Y
TVILNIAISIY - YIM3S - 00P BP0D INUINIY
16'0 ‘[el0L BET Anuanay
16’0 1 ~awysn(py juawAed aslanay
XV1 ALNNOD TVHNY - 86T :3p0D 3nu3AdY
6€'0- {|B30) SET 2NUDBA3Y
6€0- T wauwsnipy Aljeuad asiansy
SAILTYNId HILVM - S6T :2P0) anuaAay
v1°0 {|e30) T6T PNUANIY
¥1°0 4 “aunsnipy juswaAed as19n3Y
XVLALNNOD TYILNIQIS3Y - T6T :2p0) 3NU3A3Y
junowy uno) adAl junowy wuno) adA] junowy wneo) adAl junowy juno) adAL

adA) Aq s|ejo] 2po) anuaAay



bLOY

unowy

uno)

|210} T0 dnouo peay

79'Tet
06'¢-
T5°€E-
6€°0-

S6'58¢
o'ty
$8'ST
r'es
160
vT'o
€L0
66'€0T
unowy

adAl wunowy wuno) adAl junowy uno)
dnoup peay Agd sje1ol apo) anuaaldy
29°26¢ 174 :poliad Joj |eyol
¥9'v¥ T SANN43Y / S1Id34I a3ddYNN - 966
00'06 € (wauwisnfpy) SIDYYHD 4SN - TOB
+¥8'ST € IVILNIAISIY - 334 ADVINIYN - 009
IS°E- 1 SIILTVYN3Id HIM3S - S6F
v'ER C TVILNIQIS3Y - YIM3S - 00
160 T XYL ALNNOD TvHNY - 86T
6£°0- T SIILTYNI HILYM - S6T
Y10 4 XVLALNNOD TVILN3QIS3Y - TeT
€L'0 4 XVL ALID TVILN3QISIH - 06T
98'vS- T AVIDHIWINOD - 431VM - 0TT
66'€0T T TVILNIAISIY TYHNY - Y3ILYM - SOT
1T T IYILNIQISIY - ¥3LVA - 00T
wnowy wno) 3p0) SnuUdARY
9p0) INUIAIY >n sjejolL

1T {poliad 40} [BJO 1L

:je1oL Juawisnipy Ajjeuay asianay

T SAILTVYNId HIM3S - S61

T SALTYNI HILYm - S6T

'[e30), JUAWISN[pY Ju3WARY 3s1ADY

NN H N

wno)

SANN43Y / SLIQIYD GINddVYNN - 966

TVILN3AIS3Y - 334 ADVINIYd - 009

TYILNIAISIY - ¥IM3S - 00F
XYL ALNNOD TVINY - 86T

XYL ALNNOD TvILN3QIS3Y - T6T

XYL ALID TVILNIQIS3IY - 06T

TVILNIAISIY TvHNY - 43LVM - S0T

3po) anuaAsy

3po) anuanay pue adA} uondesuely Aq sjeiol

1oday WawIsnpy AJUTUOW A1in Wd £€18€:2 #600/1LH/6

19y T “3wWIsN(py 1UdWARJ 9SI3A3Y
SANNA3Y / SLIAIYD G21ddVNN - 966 :3P0) INUBAIY

15°€- T Juawisnlpy Aljeuad 95JoAaY
SAILTYNId HIM3S - S6v :2p0) INUIAY
6E'0- T Juawisnipy Ajjeuad 9s19Aay

adA]l  unowy wuno)

10 :dnosp pesy - TQ :dnoig peay

uauisnipy Aljeusd 9s13A3y

adA ] uojjoesuel|



junowy

£6'P0T

unowy

vETE

unowy

uno)

wno)

unoj

:le3o) z0 dnoio peey

‘ie301 90 dnoup peay

adAl junowy

adA]l junowy

adAjl junowy

uno)

unod

wnoy

adAl unowy wno)

adAl unowy uno)

adAl Junowy uno)

dnoug peay Ag s|ejol apo) anuandY

1aday uauasnipy Aluiuow Ann Wd EE-081C FPOA/TL/G

8T'S T “-3wisnipy juswaAed 9513A8Y
TVILN3AIS3Y - 333 ADVINIYG - 009 :3p0) BNUIABY

16'0 T “~3wiIsnlpy JuawAed asiaAdyY
XYL ALNNOD TYHNY - 86T :2p0) anuanay

66'€0T T *3W)Sh{py jJuswAeq 3sianay
TVILNIAISIY 1YHNY - YILVYM - SOT :8p0) nu3Ady

LS'VT- T 1wawisnipy sSNO3UB||BIsIA
TVILNIQAISIY - YILVYM - 00T :3P0) SNUBAIY

adA]  unowy uno) adAL
60 :dnoup peay - 60 :dnoig peay

00'0€ 1 uaLu3snpy sNO3UE|RISIA
{3uawisnlpy) SIDUVHD 4SN - TOB :3p0) 3NuAAzY

8T°S 1 ~auwisnipy juawAied 35IINSY
IVILNIAISIY - 334 ADVIAIING - 009 3P0 3nUaAay

ST'gb 1 ~3w3sn(py judwAed 3sianay
TVILNIQISTY - YIMIS - 00t :9p0) onuaAay

800 T *awnsn(py JuawAed 3s1ansy
XYL ALNNOD TVILNIQISIY - T6T :3p0J anuaiay

0 T *3WIsSN(py JUSWAEd 3513A3Y
XVLALID 1VILNIAISIY - 06T :2P0) 3NUBAY

00'TeZ T “*3wsn{py JudwAed 351943y
TVILNIAISIY - YILVM - 00T :2Pp0) NUIABY

adAl junowy uno) adAL
£0 :dnoJp peay - 0 :dnolo peay

000€ T Juawisn(py snoaue||aasiA
(wuawisnipy) SIOUYHI SN - TOB :3p0D anuaray

8¢S T “3wIsnipy juswded asianay
TVILN3QISIY - 334 ADVINING - 009 :2p0) 3nuaAay

LTSE T ~3wisnipy JuUaWARd 3519A3Y
IVILNIAIS3Y - YIM3S - 00 :3P0) INUIADY

900 T ~3wisn(py uswAeq 951383y
XV1 ALNNOD TYILNIAIS3Y - T6T :3p0J 3nuaA3Y

TE'D T *3WISN[py JUdwAed 3519A8Y
XYL ALID TVILIN3QISIY - 06T :3P0) SNUBAIY

98'vS- T 1uswWISN(py snoaue|RIsIN
TVIDYININOD - HALVM - OTT :3p0) 3nuaAay

8C'ST T ~-3wisn(py judwAey 3SI9AY
TYILN3AIS3Y - H3LYM - 00T :9P0) SNU3A3Y

adA] junowy wno)y adAL
gQ :dnoJp peay - 90 :dnouo peay



Joday uaisnipy Auoi Annn Wd £€:€€:¢ b207/T11/6

79762 1pO|Iad JO) [BI0) puBID
79762 {[e10L T0 3PPAD 18
o' bt T “3wIsnipy JudWAeq 35I8ASY
SANN43Y / SL1AIND a31ddYNN - 966 :3P0J NUIAIY
00°06 € JBUWISN{pY SNO3ue|a3sIiA
{3uswysnipy) SIDUYHI SN - TOB :2P0) ANUIAAY
¥B'ST € *3WISN(py JudAed I519A9Y
TVILANIAIS3Y - 334 ADVINIYC - 009 BP0 3NUIAY
1S°E- T awWisnipy Aljeusad 9519ndY
S3ILTVNId YIM3S - S6¥ :9p0) dNUIAIY
Tr'Es z “awWIsnipy JudlAed I5IdA3Y
TVILNIAISTY - YIM3S - 00p :2po) nudAsY
16°0 T “aunsnipy wawAed 3s1AY
XYL ALNNOD TVHNY - 86T :@p0) anuanay
6£°0- T wawisn(py Ajeusd 3s1anaYy
S3ILTYNId HILYM - S6T 8p0) anuaray
¥1°0 4 ~-3wisnipy juswAed asianay
XYL ALNNOD TVILNIIS3Y - T6T :3p0) anuanay
€20 Z ~3WISn{py JusiLARY 3SIOAIY
XVL AL TVIINIAISIY - 06T :2p0) INUIAY
98'{S- T JusunSnipy snodue||sasi
TVIDHIWINOD - H3LYA - OTT :3P0D anuaAay
66°€0T T “awysnipy juswAed 35JAY
TVILNIAISIY TVENY - YILYM - SOT :9p0) anuanay
8¢9 4 “-awishlpy uswAeq 3sI9ASY  LS'bT- T awisnipy snoaue||a3stN
TVILN3QIS3Y - HALYAR - 00T :9p0) anuaaay
unowy uno) 2dA] junowy Juno) adAj unowy uno) adA| Junowy uno) adA]
10 :31PA2 - TO :3PAI (I8
319A) 1118 Ag Ss|e101 3po) INUIAY
79°26¢ ipouad 10} |[230] puesd
T9'STT 1|e101 60 dnoJD peay

00°CE

dnouo peay Ag s|e10L 3po) SNUIAIY

T Juawsnipy snoaue(|aasig
{(wawisnlpy) SIDYVHD 4SN - TOB :3p0) anuaray



e CITY OF WILLARD, MISSOURI

224 W. Jackson Street P.0.Box 187  Willard, MO 65781  417-742:3033  417-742-3080 Fax

Agenda Item #7

Presentation and Explanation by Carl Brown from
GettingGreatrates.com of the Cost Increase Analysis of the
Water & Sewer Rates for the City of Willard, MO

_—/—ﬁ
09/23/2024 BOA Meeting Agenda



GeﬁingGr‘ea‘rRa‘reS.com

Creating Informed Ratesetting Decisions

September 19, 2024

Mr. Troy Smith, Mayor
City of Willard

224 W Jackson St.
Willard, Missouri 65781

Subject: Water and Sewer Rate Analysis Report

Dear Mayor Smith:

About one month ago, I sent to the City Administrator the City’s water and sewer
rate analysis report. We all thought that was the final report. But City staff recently
updated the City’s capital improvement plan (CIP) and changed how to fund the
revised CIP. And City staff, performing due-diligence review of the report, found that I
had incorrectly recorded in my models several data points. We all wanted the report
and model to be as correct and up to date as possible, so I corrected and updated all
those things. Thus, you and all others need to discard the previously received report. It
is out of date. Use the enclosed report, instead.

Before I address the report, I want to speak to everyone who will read this.

Interim City Administrator Donna Stewart got the rate analysis ball rolling. I was
impressed with her drive and ability to shepherd this project early on. Of course, her
stint as interim ended soon and she turned everything over to Carolyn Halverson,
Director of Finance. I worked with Ms. Halverson closely and almost exclusively for
data gathering, proofing and more. Ms. Halverson was so fast, accurate and helpful. She
made my work go quickly, and accurately. I really appreciate that.

Getting6reatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Town Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411



Willard, MO Rate Analysis Report Cover Letter, 9/19/24, Page 2 of 2

About the time the data gathering and model building phase was being completed,
Wesley Young, your new City Administrator, came on board. And Mike Ruesch, your
Director of Planning & Development joined in about then, too. All these folks have
helped by reviewing draft reports, giving me feedback for corrections, updates and
improvements. And all have been great to work with.

I am sure you and the Board recognize the expertise and value of these staff. I hope
citizens and ratepayers will also get a glimpse of just how well they are being served by
these folks. Without them, and without their accurate assistance, my analysis work
would not be possible.

The report and the included rate models cover a lot of technical ground. Board
members may have questions after reviewing the report, so filter questions to me
through any of these contacts and I will answer them all. And when I meet with the
Board, I look forward to discussing anything that is too complicated to cover in e-mails.
As you will see, some of it is complicated. In particular, the sewer fund is projected to
exhaust its reserves soon and the sewer utility is in the process of making major
upgrades. Some actions will need to be taken very soon to solve those problems.

Finally, I am sure you and Board members know of other cities and utilities that also
need rate setting help. As you run into these folks at municipal league and other
meetings and venues, I hope you will tell them about my services. I get much of my
business from referrals by past clients. I hope to be able to trace several future clients
back to my work with Willard, as well.

Best regards,
GettingGreatRates.com

Cak

Carl E. Brown
President

Enclosure

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Town Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411



GettingGreatRates.com

Creating Informed Ratesetting Decisions

Water and Sewer
Rate Analysis Report
Willard, Missouri

Prepared September 19, 2024

Carl Brown, President
GettingGreatRates.com

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 2 of 37

Contents
Index of Model Tables and CRATES............cccviiiiirniniis st 3
EXECUTUE SUTIATY ..vvenrerincietiistenis st tese et bt st s 4
The Meaning of This Report, in @ NUtShell ..o 4
TNV OAUICH OTN ¢y ensnmsnasssssiosansssens o8 8aansesss s uuciaous HebAa aoVo a7 N 8 R T S AR SN S WS RO ES 4
About the Models, GENETALLY ..ottt s 6
Water MOl DISCUSSION ....uvurucuriiirsiniimisseasissssssasssssss s sssasasssssssssasssss st ess st st e 8
System Development Fees and Minimum Charge Surcharges ... 8
EXPECted INCOMES .......orruririeiema ittt sttt b e 10
Expected Operating Costs... ssomy RS EAYS .10
Capital Improvements and Related Issues ....................................................................................... 10
Repair and Replacement SCREAULNG........cerreriemsminmmmmsiissmississnisssssnes s sssses 10
Target RESEIVE LEVELS ..ot 11
What if Expenses in the Model Miss the Mark Someday? ..., 11
Rate Affordability.... " .12
How to Implement the Water Model Rates .13
Table A: Rates From the Water Model.......... SR SRANSSI———— .15
Closing 15
SeWer MOl DISCUSSION ....v.c.cermeececerieiiiiiicisiine sttt st st 15
System Development Fees and Minimum Charges ... 15
Expected Operating Costs. .....ouuiruiirrmceriies st s 16
Inflow and INFHTAtION (T&L) ...c.ceueerrrereirereniireriiciiccrce et 16
Capital Improvements and Borrowing From the Water Fund ........ccocoecvivnmecrensermeecenissiniesiesensen 16
Target Reserve Levels... «17
Rate Affordability.... .17
How to Implement the Sewer Model Rates ...................................................................................... 17
Table B: Rates From the Sewer Model ... 17
CLOSTING cxsasiussiosansstissonsissnsassssss vessssssssesssvoissss oSN SRRSO SR A S SO S R P sop g s pangssesprnesss 1O
CONCIUSION ...ttt sttt et R RSt st S s b sttt 18
Appendix A: Rate Analysis Methodology and Related ISSUES......c.c.oocuiiimimininiiens 19
The Governing Body’s Job is Broad and Critical ... 19
Rate Setting Resources Beyond This RePOTt........cccooiriiinciniicnniiiiiiiniiiinsn 20
Recommendations for Policy and General ISSUES..........cccovreorininnininencinissiis e 20
Cost-based Rate CalCUIAHONS .....cocurummerniacsmissisnisimsisssiasssisnsssssssssssssssssassssessssasssssssssssssssssssnsssnens 22
System Development (Capacity) Fees and Surcharges ... 28
Regional Cities” and Districts” Fees ~ the “Competition” ... 32
The Nature of Rate Structure Parts and TYPes......cccooeirrriinnrinininninsceencnce s 32
Rate Modeling and Rate Setting AdVICe ... s 34
PIANCIPLES wcuvvicrerunsiussssssessssnessssssssssssstsstsssssssmsssssssss s sessesssss st s a0 RS SRS SRR SRR g a R0 000 36

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 3 of 37

Index of Model Tables and Charts

Water Rates Model

Sewer Rates Model

Table Description 2024-3 2024-3
Cover Page 39 71
1 Current Rates 45 72
2 Volume Usage 46 75
3 Incomes 49 76
4 Costs 50 77
5 CIp 52 78
5B City's CIP Plan 53 79
6 Replacement-Detailed N.A. N.A.
7 Replacement Annuity N.A. N.A.
Cost Classification 57 82
Marginal Cost Classification 59 84
10 Rate Calculation 61 86
11 AWWA Meter Study N.A. N.A.
12 Capacity Costs N.A. N.A.
13 Capacity Fees N.A. N.A.
14 Capacity Fee Revenues N.A. N.A.
15 Minimum Charge Calculation N.A. N.A.
16 Minimum Charge Revenues N.A. N.A.
17 Financial Indicators 64 88
18 Bill Comparisons 65 89
Chart
1 Operating Ratio 67 91
2 Coverage Ratio 67 91
3 Residential Users' Bill 68 92
4 Affordability 68 92
5 Working Capital vs. Goal 69 93
6 Cash Value Before Inflation 69 93
7 Cash Value After Inflation 70 94
8 Total Reserves 70 94

Getting6reatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101

carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 4 of 37

Executive Summary

These analyses calculate water and sewer rates for Willard that are in a cost-to-serve
structure with a level minimum charge and unit charge for in-City customers, and a higher and
level minimum charge and unit charge for out-of-City customers to account for generally higher
costs to serve outside of the City. The user charge rates are “description-based,” but system
development fees are based on meter size. The modeling includes rates to fund the most likely
set of conditions the utilities will experience. Overall, water rate revenue needs to increase by
48.6 percent and sewer by 51.3 percent. Each set of rates needs to be restructured to make
them fairer, too.

The Meaning of This Report, in a Nutshell

Willard, later at times just called the “City,” the “utility,” or “you,” hired
GettingGreatRates.com, later called “me,” or “1,” to perform rate analysis of its water and sewer
utilities; to produce a report of my findings and recommendations; and to provide guidance on

rate setting.

This report is detailed and somewhat long. The math behind the report is complex. Some
assumptions had to be made about data and outcomes, which is normal. Still, these things make
the modeling complex and interpreting the models difficult. Following is the “Cliff’s Notes”
version of what the calculated rates will do and what they mean to customers.

The set of rate calculations in this report for each utility are quite closely based on the principle called,
“cost-of-service” or “cost-to-serve” rates. This is the prime industry standard for utility rate analysis.
Quite simply, if a customer causes the utility to incur a cost, that customer should reimburse the utility
for that cost. In your case, meter size-based minimum charges are not warranted. There are so few large
meters, assessing higher rates to those meters would not lower the rates of smaller meters very much.
Thus, simpler rates where you assess a single minimum and a single unit charge to all in-City customers
is simpler and fair enough. Assessing rates to out-of-City customers with that same structure, only
higher, will also suffice. Importantly, rate revenues need to go up moderately to make the utilities
sustainable.

Introduction

I analyzed rates for the City that will cover the costs of significant system improvements,
pay all operating and related costs, and build appropriate reserves over the next ten years.
These things will be big drivers of higher rates.

The utilities’ customer bases are growing rapidly. That improves the ability of the utilities to
become more economical to own and operate over time, because there will be many new
customers to share costs.

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 5 of 37

As for me, your rate analyst, I have analyzed rates as a consultant since 2005, completing
389 analyses since then. Before that, from 1991 to 2005, I did similar work, as well as grant and
loan coordination work, for the Missouri Department of Natural Resources. My experience is
deep. I calculated your rates with due diligence using the best methodologies and reasoning I
can. I trust my expertise and the results I get. You should, too. You can adopt the rates
recommended in this report and all should turn out well for you.

But it is reasonable for you to be curious about my methodologies and why and how I
employ them. “Trust but verify” is a reasonable attitude for you to have because rate setting is
one of your most critical and criticized tasks. You need to get it right. Just summarizing my
methodologies requires a lot of discussion, therefore, I left that discussion out of the main part
of the report. I placed those discussions in Appendix A, starting on page 19.

If you have a basic working knowledge of rate _ . _

i . i . Appendix A summarizes my rate analysis
setting, and if you consider the logic of what follows, methodologies, theories, and general
you should be able to read on and learn what you need | issues.

to know to set rates appropriately and confidently. If,
however, you read something that you do not understand and you want to understand it, go to
Appendix A. I likely covered the issue there. If I did not and if the issue is important to you, just
call and I will talk you through it.

The water user charge rate structure is “description” based —in-City residential customers,
in-City commercial customers and the same outside of the City. The minimum charge and unit
charge are higher for out-of-City customers in recognition of the fact that it is generally more

costly to serve outside of the City. For water there is a _ -
1.000 eallons th 1L S d The rate analysis modeling covered 12
, g per month usage allowance. Sewer does years, as follows:
not have a usage allowance. e The “test year' is the one-year period
from which data was used as the
. : . starting place for the analysis. We
submitted information and data requests to my almost always use the last completed

primary City contact, Carolyn Halverson, Director of fiscal year as the test year. That is
. : . what we did in your case, too.
Finance. I am sure others behind the scenes assisted but
. P e The modeling was started and
I coordinated all communications through Ms. completed during the next year. In the
Halverson. model tables, this is called, “0 Year.”

This report is the culmination of a process where I

e For the next ten years, the modeling

As I received information and data, I modeled the :
used budget figures, capital

utilities’ finances and rates and submitted drafts for improvement cost estimates, etc.
review to get feedback. Ms. Halverson reviewed those when available. Those normally cover

one or two future years. For the
drafts to assure accuracy, and when needed, she remainder of the ten projection years,
corrected data. Note: Late in the analysis phase, Mr. we increased incomes, costs, etc. by

expected inflationary factors.

Wesley Young came on board as the new City

Administrator, so he provided feedback, as well.

I prepared and submitted a draft final report. Again, my contacts reviewed and gave me
feedback. We cycled through this process a few times to arrive at this, the final report.

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 6 of 37

The report is in two parts. The first part is this narrative report that tells readers what
should be done to the utilities’ rates and why and interprets much of the mathematical

modeling.

The second part is a printout of the models. The models are named and described as
follows:

o “Willard, MO, Water Rates Model 2024-3.” Later this model will just be called “the
Water Model.” (Many other models were created during analysis to determine the
rate effects of variables. The appropriate aspects of those early models have been
incorporated into the final Water Model.) The Water Model assumes the City will
continue many practices, but it would restructure rates.

e “Willard, MO, Sewer Rates Model 2024-3,” later called, “the Sewer Model,” is like
the Water Model except it covers sewer rates.

As you read this report, please keep this in mind. The report does not direct the City to do
anything. Actions you take or do not take are strictly up to you. The report is meant to inform
and educate so you can make well-informed decisions about actions to take. And the report and
models are not legal recommendations. For legal issues consult your attorney.

About the Models, Generally

The models were built to match the systems’ financial statements and other data as much as
possible. Because incomes and expenses in standard financial statements, and other data, are
seldom grouped in such a way as to enable the required rate calculation methodology, the
Models do not always match financial statements.

For modeling purposes, it does not matter whether funds are held in the general system
account, a debt service sinking fund, repair and replacement account, etc. Therefore, the
Models account for funds in a more simplified way than most utilities do it. When it comes to
segregating funds, staff knows best how to do that, so the Models do little in this regard and I
leave the segregating up to staff.

Several line graph charts in the Models graphically depict some things which would be
difficult to pick out of the tables. In all the charts, the blue line represents what would happen
under the modeled rates and the red line under the current rates. Financial trends for the red
lines are (generally) bad. Those for the blue lines are (generally) good. Review the definitions
section of the Water Model to learn the meaning of terms used in the charts. A few explanations
should help you interpret the charts.

Chart 2 of either model can depict the blue line, the modeled rates coverage ratio, at zero or
going to zero. That could be a good thing, or a bad thing. It is a good thing if you have no debt,
or the debt is paid off during the time being modeled. It is a bad thing if you have debt but no
current income available to pay that debt.

Charts 1 and 2, page 91 of the Sewer Model can be confusing. This is what they depict.

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 7 of 37

Chart 1 measures a utility’s ability to pay operating costs using current incomes. The current
incomes part of the definition is key. When you have reserves, those can be used to pay debt or
pay cash for other things. But the classic definition of the operating ratio does not include
reserves, only current incomes. Therefore, an operating ratio at 1.0 means current income equals
current operating costs — that income is at the break-even point with operating costs. For sewer,
you started below 1.0. That means you did not have enough current income to fully pay current

operating costs and there was no current income left over to pay debt or cash-paid system
improvement costs, either. But you had reserves, so temporarily, you were fine. After raising
rates (the blue line) as modeled, the operating ratio rises.

Chart 2 of the Sewer Model, the coverage ratio, measures a utility’s ability to pay debt
service from current income after satisfying operating costs and setting aside appropriate
operating reserves. For sewer, you had no current income above what it would take to satisfy
the operating reserves goal, so you started with no coverage ratio. Since even the rate revenue

increases modeled do not generate net revenue
above what it will take to satisfy the operating
reserves goal, the classic coverage reserve stays at
zero.

Because of a shortcoming in how the classic
coverage ratio is calculated, I also calculate an
“alternative coverage ratio,” which is the green line
in Chart 2. For this ratio, I include reserves, because
undedicated reserves, when you have them, are
available to pay debt service. Now your picture still
looks odd because the green line goes below zero.
That indicates that, during those years you will not
have enough income and reserves combined to pay
all operating costs plus pay debt service. Later in
the report I will describe how you probably will
cover this shortfall.

Charts 1 and 2 or the Water Model function the
same as those in the Sewer Model, but the income
and debt situations for water were very different, so

Where do the current rates trend lines come
from?

Comparison of the chart trend lines between
the current rates (red) and the modeled rates
(blue) are useful to planning and action.

My modeling template models incomes,
expenses, capital improvement plans and much
more, resulting in a set of system development
fees and user charge rates that will pay all costs
well into the future.

In the background the template also runs a
second analysis that assumes the above things
but assumes the current rate and fee structures
will continue for the next ten years and apply to
customers as the customer base grows.

Thus, the results of that “background” analysis
can be compared to the “foreground” analysis.
That enables an “apples to apples” comparison
of what likely will happen under the current
rates versus what likely will happen under the
modeled rates. Often, the best course of action
is then very easy to see.

those charts look very different compared to the Sewer Model charts.

On to other charts, Chart 8 depicts reserve levels under the existing rates (red line) and the
modeled rates (blue line). When the blue line goes up, that is a good thing for the utility. When
the red line goes down, that is a bad thing, at least, if you were to decide to keep your current

rates for very long.

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411




Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 8 of 37

In contrast to Chart 8, Charts 3 and 4 in the Models depict user rates. When the Chart 3 and
4 blue lines go up, meaning rates are going up, customers do not like that. But the utility will be
better funded as a result and that benefits ratepayers because it makes their utility more
resilient and able to make improvements that will serve them better. Effectiveness is the first
priority. Efficiency (low cost, as customers view it) is the second priority. Customers want
efficiency. But if the system is not effective, cost is a moot point.

One thing you will notice in viewing Chart 5 is this. Only the red line (current rates) and the
black line (goal amounts) show up at all, or most of the time. When that happens, the line
depicting the proposed rates is taking the same path as the line depicting the goal. That is
because, in the Models, I programmed all funds that exceed what is needed to meet the working
capital goal to “spill over” into the CIP and Debt Service fund reserve. Thus, the recommended
rates line is taking the same path as the goal line.

Chart 8 spells the net revenue difference between the current rates and the modeled rates.
The modeled rates will generate more revenue over time and, thus, produce stronger total
reserves. It is useful if you can understand the other charts, but Chart 8 is the one to focus on.

As you set and later reset rates, I suggest you follow the guidance I give in my book, “How
to Get Great Rates.” This book is one of the rate setting resources I mentioned earlier.

The remainder of this report directly addresses the analysis findings and my
recommendations, starting with water rates.

Water Model Discussion

System Development Fees and Minimum Charge Surcharges

The discussions in the rest of this subsection are brief because I recommend you stay with
description-based minimum charges, and you continue with the system development fees
(plant investment fees) calculated by Cochran Engineering and already adopted by the City.

There are a few ways to raise money to pay for system capacity costs:

1. System development fees (plant investment fees) paid when new connections are made,
and

2. System development surcharges to the minimum charge, which are paid monthly. These
direct from whom this money is raised.

3. A third undirected way is to just cover system development costs as they come along,
probably by setting regular user charge rates high enough to cover costs as they appear.
This alternative may or may not have customers pay according to the system capacity
costs they cause.

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 9 of 37

You are already using Alternative 1 (the Cochran-recommended and since adopted system
investment fees) and Alternative 3, which nearly every water and sewer utility is using. You are
not using Alternative 2, meter size-based minimum charges. In your case, I recommend you not

adopt meter size-based minimum charges, too. In your
case, there is little improvement in rate structure
fairness with meter size-based rates and those rates
would be much more complicated than a description-
based rate structure, like the current one.

A special note: The City engaged Cochran
Engineering to calculate the plant investment fees
(system development fees) for a large development.
Cochran issued its report last April. Cochran found that

Terminology

In the practice of setting rates and fees,
many terms are used to denote the price of
things and services.

In rate analysis practice, the terms “system
development fee” and “system capacity
fee,” and a few others are interchangeable.

This narrative report and the included rate
model(s) use the term ‘“system
development fee.” If you use a different

the water plant investment fee for a five-eighths inch or | term and it suits your purpose, continue.
three-quarter inch meter should be $800, and a four-
inch meter should be $9,600, with in-between meter
size fees falling within that range. Sewer plant fees
should be between $1,000 and $22,500 for those same
meter sizes. I incorporated the Cochran fees into my
model and found them to be appropriate. The City has
since adopted the Cochran fees. For those reasons, 1

recommend you stay with the Cochran fees.

In contrast, the terms “new connection
fee” or "tap-on fee” refer to payment to the
utility for the cost of issuing a permit to
connect, the cost of inspecting new
connections before they are buried, the
cost of providing a water meter and pit,
and similar out-of-pocket costs

To adhere to the principle of “cost-to-
serve” rates, a utility should recover at
least part of its capacity costs through
system development fees. In addition,
they should recover out-of-pocket costs
through connection fees.

In the models, Tables 11 through 16 calculate meter
size-based system development fees and minimum
charges. Since you already have plant investment fees
covered, there is no need to show Tables 11 through 14, so I left those out of this report. And
since I am recommending description-based minimum charges, not meter size-based
minimums, I “zeroed out” Tables 15 and 16, they were not used at all in the modeling, and
those tables have been left out, too. Thus, Tables 11 through 16 do not appear in the report. That
is not an oversight. They simply were not needed in your case.

On a related issue, I do recommend one set of changes to minimum charges. That is, the
premium for out-of-City service should be much higher than the current premium of 8.8 percent
for the minimum charge and 9.1 percent for the unit charge. Most out-of-City premiums are set
at between 25 and 100 percent of the in-City rates for both minimum and unit charges. I usually
recommend a 50 percent premium, and that is what I modeled and recommend for you, too.

As to new connections, part of what you call “METER REPLACEMENT/
INSTALLATIONS...” in Table 3, page 49, those are fees currently being charged for service
connection costs, not plant investments. Therefore, you should continue to assess the “METER
REPLACEMENT...” fees in addition to the recently adopted plant investment fees.

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 10 of 37

Expected Incomes

Table 3, page 49, shows the various past incomes and future incomes to expect, as well as
several other things related to revenues. The modeling assumes new rates will be adopted early
enough to begin assessing at the new rates on January 1, 2025. If you adopt new rates sooner,
you will begin to build reserves sooner. The sewer fund is projected to go into the red soon,
even with the new higher rates. Thus, the sooner you can adopt new rates, the less in the red
that fund will go and the more reserves the water fund will have to lend to the sewer fund.

High in Table 3 is a line called, “Rate Increases Projected for Future Years.” As mentioned
earlier, after the initial adjustment, revenues are expected to rise by 48.6 percent. In years
following that, rates will need to be raised enough to match budget inflation each year, assumed
to be 4.0 percent. To be conservative, I assumed plant investment fees would not be increased,
but you should examine those fees for need of increases each year, too. Details will be provided

later.

Expected Operating Costs

Table 4, page 50, shows expected operating costs. Those in the first column came from the
utility’s financial statement. In the years after that, I expect most operating costs will inflate by
four percent per year. Some costs rise due to inflation plus growth in customers and growth in
use. Those costs are highlighted green.

To make calculation of a few financial indicators accurate and simple, I do not include as
“operating costs” those costs associated with building and financing capital improvements.
Those costs are covered in Table 5.

Capital Improvements and Related Issues

Capital Improvements are a Key Rates Driver

Capital improvements and their costs will be a big driver of higher rates. In a few years, the
City plans to invest in a new well(s) and a storage tower. Those costs are expected to be paid
with certificates of participation (COPs). Other on-going projects called “Capital Assets” will be
paid with cash. All these things are shown in Table 5, page 52.

Repair and Replacement Scheduling

The utility does not have a “formal” equipment repair and replacement (R&R) schedule.
You handle those things through your regular budgeting process. Therefore, Tables 6 and 7 of
the Model have been left out. That said, I encourage you to create an R&R schedule because it
takes most of the risk out of paying for these kinds of needs. You are welcome to use my

“ReplacementScheduler” worksheet, available free at https:/gettinggreatrates.com/F reebies to

make that process easy.

Getting6reatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

10



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 11 of 37

Target Reserve Levels

According to your test year balance sheet, your total reserves were right at where they
should have been for a system of your size. Therefore, I targeted reserves in the tenth year at
that level, plus the amount of inflation I expect by then.

To give you a sense of how I arrived at the amount of target reserves, the following bullet
points state them. I recommend these for you, too:

1. Unobligated cash and cash equivalent reserves equal to at least 50 percent of the
annual operating costs, not including debt service and general administration costs.

2. A 20-year repair and replacement (R&R) schedule reserve, in the 20 year equal to
at least twice the average year’s cost of R&R. In your case, the above reserve will
need to cover R&R, too.

3. Capital improvement and debt reserves at the end of the tenth year, after debt is
paid, equal to that year’s debt payments plus cash-paid capital improvement
expenses.

The above actions, and the rates recommended from this Model will cause reserves to stay
nearly level, except for the years when the well and tower work is expected. Chart 8, page 70
gives you a visual picture of what this will look like.

Projecting budgets and ending balances for next year is a difficult task. Doing the same five
years out, I can usually get close. Ten years out, there are so many assumptions we must make
now that will not pan out years from now that you should not bank on those numbers. But they
serve as good planning targets. In most cases, a utility will see big cost, income, growth, debt,
and other changes looming on the horizon a few years out. When that happens, it is time todo a
new rate analysis to get rates back on track to meet those challenges. Thus, target balances give
you something to aim for, but the target will move over time. With each new rate analysis, we
will bring you back on course.

What if Expenses in the Model Miss the Mark Someday?

First, missing the mark is a certainty. Eventually, the projected expenses will miss the mark.
That is why analysis needs to be redone periodically. With time, things change.

If you adopt the Water Model rates, then in a future year it turns out the Model failed to
accurately predict the expenses you experience, what should you do? That depends upon which
way (higher or lower) your expenses went, and how much they differed from what was
predicted. It may also depend upon which expense(s) varied because that could markedly affect
cost structure, and therefore, rate structure. And it will depend upon what happened to
revenues, too.

e Your “fix” for a situation may be to continue with future rate adjustments as
recommended. Not all “misses” need to be addressed. Some right themselves.

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

11



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 12 of 37

e Orit may be to speed up or slow down future inflationary increases to get revenues
and reserves back on track.

e Or it may be to do a proportional increase to minimum and unit charges based
upon the percentage that the experienced expenses are higher or lower than those in
the Water Model.

¢ Or it may be to give me a call if you are not clear about how to make the needed
adjustments.

My suggestion is this. When in doubt, err on the side of calling me for advice. I can usually
talk folks through how to make the appropriate adjustment and I do not charge for that.

If your new situation requires modeling, I probably will request a fee for that. In that case, I
would estimate the hours needed to do the analysis adjustment and I would propose to do that
at the hourly rate I used to calculate the fees for the original project, if not much time has
passed. Otherwise, I would propose using my then current hourly rate. Most such projects,
including the reporting out, take a day or less to do, so they rarely go over $1,000.

If “getting back on track” is a problem several or many years into the future, many issues
could then be in play. In that case, it is time for a new rate analysis.

The critical point is this. Do not hesitate to make the recommended rate adjustments just
because you are not positive it will work out. Make the adjustments and then track how it
works out through the years. If you get concerned
about something later, just call. I cannot say, “I have

Ratepayers ask, “Why should | pay more?”

seen it all.” But I have seen a lot. I probably can Nearly every ratepayer served by every one of
work you through any rate setting situation you my client systems wants to keep their current
i . (lower) rates. No one wants to pay more for
WIS EXPELICHICE. their water than someone “down the road.” That
.1 is human nature. We are wired that way, and
Rate Affordability that is not a bad thing.

I calculate each rate analysis client’s rate Nearly all my client systems have system
affordability, measured by the Affordability Index improvements they need to make. They cannot
ey ., fund them out of current revenues. That is why
(AI). For most utilities, it is a very useful tool to they have a backlog of improvement needs.
assess how “cheap” or “expensive” their rates will Quite simply, rates need to go higher, so
be. The Al is also d by manv grant and loan improvements can be done. While your rates
. 1 used by ) may go higher than those in other systems
programs to determine if an applicant will be nearby, that is likely a temporary situation.
: Those other systems have a backlog of
awaljd(.ed a grant, how mugh grant., an interest improvement needs. Once they start to attack

subsidized loan or no funding assistance at all. that problem, their rates will go up, too
Income growth, as determined by the Census Saying this will not make anyone feel good

Bureau averaged 4.26 percent over 22 years about higher rates. But this situation is going on
! ) nearly everywhere. Maybe not on the same

through 2022. That is shown in the top left corner of | schedule as you, but their day is coming, too.
Table 3, page 49. That is a strong growth rate.

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

12



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 13 of 37

Water use for all in-City customers averaged 4,230 gallons monthly. That is a bit below the
national use benchmark for affordability of 5,000 gallons monthly. Based on the available data,
the bill affordability for your average in-City customer will be lower than the Affordability
Index that appears in Table 17, page 64. The Affordability Index is also shown graphically in
Chart 4, page 68.

In the table, the Affordability Index calculation for the test year was 0.40 percent. That
means, a 5,000 gallon per month residential customer earning at the City-wide median
household income level paid 0.40 percent of their monthly household income to pay their
monthly water bill. The national average is thought to be approximately 1.0 percent, so your
current rates should be considered “cheap” when compared to the national average. And your
average water usage is less than that benchmark, so those rates are cheaper, still.

Under the modeled rates for the fiscal year that will start in 2025, the first full year after the
initial adjustments have been completed, this customer’s Affordability Index would go up to
0.46 percent. That is almost no change from the current rates. Compared to most of my client
utilities, you are in great shape on this metric. But be aware, based on rate affordability, you
probably do not qualify for grants, so it is good you are not “banking” on grants.

The Affordability Index does not depict how Affordability Index: The monthly charge for

new rates will affect customers using different (typically) 5,000 gallons of residential service
divided by the median monthly household

volumes. Table 18, page 65, shows “before and income for the area served by the system. An

after” bills for customers using different volumes of | index of 1f-0, meaning a household ?aYS one
. percent of its income to pay its bill for 5,000
water. It is one of the few tables from the Model that gallons of service, is generally considered

I recommend you copy and bring to the Board affordable. The Affordability index is a primary

meeting as a handout for the public. Because most factor in determining grant and loan eligibility
. and grant amount.

customers are concerned about what will happen to

their bills, you should give this table to everyone who wants a copy.

How to Implement the Water Model Rates

These are the rates I recommend you adopt.

In the following, I summarize most things you would need to do to get set on this course of
rates. In your case, you should adopt rate adjustments in two phases.

1. The first set of adjustments is a revenue increase and rate restructuring. Table A states the
initial set of rates to adopt. Adopt these rates early enough to become effective by January 1,
2025. Adopt earlier, if you can. You would need to satisfy all Statutory requirements for
making rate adjustments in advance of billing at the adjusted rates.

a) In this table, I did not include system development fees (plant investment fees) because
my analysis indicates you should keep the current plant investment fees.

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

13



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 14 of 37

2. The next adjustment needs to occur one year later, at the same time of year or to be effective
right after the start of the next fiscal year. Increase minimum and unit charges across-the-
board by 4.0 percent annually, but whatever the budget inflation rate is expected to be each
year, raise rates across-the-board by that percentage rate. Again, satisfy Statutory
requirements.

3. Inflationary increases should continue each year. Again, I assumed you will need to raise all
minimum and unit charges by 4.0 percent annually, but whatever the budget inflation rate
is expected to be each year, raise rates across-the-board by that percentage rate.

4. When making inflationary increases, you should examine the costs and incomes the utility
experienced during the then current year, plus the balances that accrued. Compare those
items to the same items in Tables 3, 4, 5 and 17, of the Model for the year in question:

a) If all criteria are performing close to the values in the Model, raise all rates by 4.0
percent, as shown near the top of Table 3, page 49.

b) If criteria are not performing as shown at the bottom of Table 17, page 64, but they are
not egregiously different, follow the instructions in Chapter 9 of the book, “How to Get
Great Rates” for how to make inflationary increases correctly, adjusting for variations in
incomes, costs, etc. Download that book for free from

https://gettinggreatrates.com/Freebies.

¢) If any criterion is performing poorly by an amount that is troubling to you (balances too
low, incomes too low, expenses too high), call me to discuss the situation. It is likely I
will be able to “talk you through” how to make appropriate rate adjustments to correct
the situation. If not, I can do a model revision for a small fee.

5. Irecommend repeating the Bullet Point 4 task each following year until you have raised
rates and fees by a total of 20 percent. However, if your costs, capital improvements, and
other things change dramatically over the next few years, I suggest you get a new rate
analysis done when it seems to you it will be most productive. Otherwise, if these criteria
are near what I modeled, and for most utilities they usually are, you may not need the next
analysis for several additional years. A subsequent rate analysis would likely be useful just
before you solidify plans for a major system improvement. That would let you use the
analysis to support planning. When rate analysis time arrives, have me or another rate
analyst of your choice perform a new rate analysis.

GettingbreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

14



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 15 of 37

Table A: Rates From the Water Model

Table A: System Development Fees; Minimum and Unit Charges; No Usage Allowance,
Calculated by the Willard, MO, Water Rates Model 2024-3
Water Meter Customer Cl Monthly Minimum Charge, Usage Allowance Unit Charge per
Size HSES e Including Peak Capacity in 1,000s 1,000 Gallons
All In-City $12.57 0.000 $3.91
All Out-of-City $18.86 0.000 $5.87
Closing

The utility needs more revenue to cover all costs, temporarily lend to the sewer fund for
a few years, and arrive at appropriate reserves in ten years. It should also restructure rates, so
they are fairer. The recommended rates accomplish those goals.

It is important that you examine incomes, costs, and accrued balances each year to assure
the rates are bringing in adequate revenue to meet needs and maintain reserves. If they are not,
increase rates across-the-board by a percentage that will bring the balances up to where I
calculated they need to be each year.

Sewer Model Discussion

Most issues for sewer are the same as for water, so many of the issues are not discussed
again here and duplicative tables have been left out. Things that are different are discussed.

System Development Fees and Minimum Charges

Handle new connection fees and sewer system development fees as described in the Water
Model section.

One difference that applies to sewer rates but not water rates is how to bill for residential
customers. You currently bill residential customers each month based on winter averaged water
use. In essence, for each residential customer you calculate their monthly average use for some
selected months, you apply the unit charge rate to that, add the residential minimum charge
and bill that customer that amount each month until you set new rates. That is a good practice,
and I recommend you continue it.

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

15



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 16 of 37

Expected Operating Costs

Table 4, page 77, shows expected operating costs. The big difference between water and
sewer operating costs is the cost of wastewater treatment done by the City of Springfield for
Willard. City staff shared with me a letter from Springfield outlining treatment rate increases
Springfield will be assessing to Willard. They will be expensive. Plus, Willard is sending more
of its wastewater to Springfield for treatment than it did just a year or two ago. And as Willard
grows, it will send even more wastewater to Springfield. As a result, the “Springfield Sewer
Charges...” cost item in Table 4 is expected to more than double to $1.1 million per year by the
tenth year. By then, treatment by Springfield will amount to 42.5 percent of Willard's
wastewater utility operating budget.

Inflow and Infiltration (1&I)

Related to the cost of wastewater treatment is inflow and infiltration (I&I). It is prudent for
wastewater systems to try to reduce I&I as much as is practical. It costs money to transport and
treat I&I. that is especially the case for Willard, looking at a high bill for treatment. To put
numbers to this cost, in Table 9, page 84, bottom right corner of that table, I calculated the
marginal cost of 1&I at $8.87 per 1,000 gallons. Then in the bottom right corner of Table 8, page
82, 1 calculated the total variable cost of &I at $198,001 per year. That will be more than ten
percent of your total operating cost.

I reviewed draft Ordinance Number 240529 for the City. This ordinance involves control
and reduction of I&I. I believe such ordinances are standard procedure for most wastewater
systems. It only makes sense to not treat water that should not be in the wastewater system in
the first place. The ordinance was quite normal for this issue. I found it to be reasonable in every
regard and I encourage the Board to adopt this ordinance. Doing so should help to drive down
this cost.

Capital Improvements and Borrowing From the Water Fund

Table 5, page 78 shows that you expect to take on nearly $5.2 million in two large system
improvements. Most of that will be paid for by grants, another $1.2 million with certificate of
participation borrowing, and a smaller part will be paid from reserves. The immediate cash
outlay is projected to be approximately $700,000 for those projects. Add another nearly $500,000
for other improvements paid for with cash in the next two years and the total cash outlay will
be more than the net sewer income and total reserves for those years and a few years to follow.
That will drop the total sewer reserves to a negative $616,000 by the end of 2026. After that,
reserves will begin to recover.

If expenses and their timing come in like this, you will need to borrow to cover the shortfall.
Fortunately, the water reserve is projected to be strong during that time, so I have assumed
sewer will borrow from water for a few years. But by 2032 the water loan should be paid back
in full, and the sewer fund will quickly recover to reach its target reserve by the tenth year.

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

16



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 17 of 37

The critical message is this. The water fund will be strong for the next ten years. Both sets of
rates will rise substantially, though sewer reserves will go negative during the middle years.
The need for and the cost of improvements is so great that the sewer fund will need to borrow
from the water fund. And in about 2028, there will only be about $500,000 in total reserves

between the two funds. Thus, you must adjust and Some ratepayers may think that all these rate
raise water and sewer rates soon, continue to raise increases are not needed or are too much.
rates in the future and be careful about the cost and | Vithout these increases, financial vigilance

o . ] . and careful timing of improvements, the
timing of improvements to avoid exhausting both utilities will financially fail. Increases are
funds. critical.

Target Reserve Levels

According to your test year balance sheet, your total reserves were a bit higher than what I
recommend. For sewer, I recommend the same percentages of reserves as described in the
Water Model section earlier, so the sewer rates I modeled will grow those reserves slightly over
the long term. But reserves will fall and go negative for a few years before getting to the target
level in the tenth year.

Rate Affordability

In Table 17, page 88, the Affordability Index for the test year was 0.83 percent, a bit below
the national average of 1.0 percent. Under the modeled rates for the fiscal year that will start in
2025, this customer’s Affordability Index would go up to 1.21 percent. Table 18, page 89, shows
“before and after” bills for customers using different volumes of sewer service.

How to Implement the Sewer Model Rates

These are the rates I recommend you adopt.

For sewer rate adjustments, follow the instructions for water rate adjustments that start on
page 14, except adopt the rates shown in Table B that follows.

Table B: Rates From the Sewer Model

Table B: System Development Fees; Minimum and Unit Charges; No Usage Allowance,
Calculated by the Willard, MO, Sewer Rates Model 2024-3
Water Meter Monthly Minimum Charge, Usage Allowance Unit Charge per
Size Customer Class Including Peak Capacity in1,000s 1,000 Gallons
All In-City $26.34 0.000 $11.58
Al Out-of-City $39.51 0.000 $17.37

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

17



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 18 of 37

Closing

The utility needs more revenue to cover all costs and arrive at appropriate reserves in ten
years. Even with that, in a year or so it will run negative reserves and need to borrow for a
few years to get through a high-cost, low-reserves period. But reserves will recover. The
recommended rates will be fairly structured and build those reserves.

Conclusion

“Conclusion” is a misnomer here. This report provides information to help the City make
decisions. Thus, it begins the process by which you will initially adjust rates and fees and take
other actions. I will continue to help you as you do that, so always feel free to call me to discuss
any concerns you have as the years pass. Having the Model available to track your progress and
determine the effect of condition changes later, I should be able to test changes easily and
advise you quickly.

As time passes you will need to adjust rates incrementally as modeled in this report and as
described in more detail in my book. Eventually, you will start this cycle over.

As you take on the initial adjustments, keep the following in mind.

e Everyone impacted by the City’s water rates should at least be made aware of the
results of this report.

e My default recommendation is to give any customer as much information as they
want. If they want a copy of the full report, give them that.

e Give the media a copy of the full report so they can quote the report directly and
accurately rather than be forced to “figure things out.” Much of this is very
complex. Few people know how to, or have the time to, calculate utility rates. Make
it easy for everyone to get the facts right.

¢ For most customers, what would happen to their bills is as much as they will care to
know about this analysis. To satisfy those information needs, the City can publicize
the current and modeled rates and/or the bill comparisons.

s A few customers will want to know more, especially high-volume customers. Give
them the full report if that is what they want.

e A good way to accomplish these things is to post the report on the City’s Web site,
Facebook page or other social media, so everyone can see for themselves what the
report says. Publicize the posting widely and publicly. Information is a good thing.
Being seen as trying hard to get information out to folks is also a good thing.

You have engaged me to pay an in-person visit to the City’s Board on September 23, 2024.
At that meeting I will discuss my findings and recommendations, answer questions, and do my
best to get you over the new rates finish line as soon as possible. I look forward to that.

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

18



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 19 of 37

Appendix A: Rate Analysis Methodology and Related Issues

This appendix covers many issues related to rate analysis and rate setting generally, and
specifically to how I do rate analysis. But first, I thank governing bodies for the valuable service

they give to us.

The Governing Body’s Job is Broad and Critical

The report covered my findings. Based on those findings, I made rate and fee setting
recommendations. I may have offered some options, too. However, and this is important, my
job is only to advise. The governing body’s job is to set rates, among many other things.

Utility management requires the governing body to consider rates-related issues:

e How would the recommended rate structure and overall level of the rates affect
ratepayers and funding of system needs?

¢ How different is the recommended structure compared to the current rate structure,
meaning, how much “rate shock” would the recommended rates create for some

customers?

e How might the governing body prudently reduce system costs, delay capital
improvements, obtain grant or other outside funding for improvements and do many
other things to reduce the need for additional revenue?

e And even if rate increases are not a problem, how might the utility be managed
differently to reduce costs and be more efficient?

Those are just a few issues related to rate setting the governing body must consider. The job
of the governing body is a big one, covering much more than rate setting. The members of the
governing body have intimate knowledge of “conditions on the ground,” community needs and
ratepayer feelings. I only got a glimpse of such things. As the governing body considers those,
and many other things, it will decide how to set rates and fees. My analyses and
recommendations should be helpful as they do that, but my charge is only to advise, not direct.

All ratepayers and utility customers should be thankful that people from the community
stepped forward and joined the governing body to do that critical work. Without such civic-
minded people making utility services function well, quite literally, community-based living
would not be possible. It is common for some citizens these days to not believe officials and
even work against “government” at all levels. That is unfortunate because local government
officials make it possible for the rest of us to live and work where we do.

To the governing body members, I say a heartfelt, “thank you.” I feel privileged to advise
you and I trust you to seek the best overall outcome for your citizens and utility customers.

Now, on to issues that related more narrowly to rate analysis and rate setting.

Getting6reatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

19



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 20 of 37

Rate Setting Resources Beyond This Report

Over the years, I have found that several topics are common to many utilities. Others can be
important to a utility at certain times in their development. Rather than cover such issues here, I
cover them in separate guides and a rate setting book, all available for FREE download at
https://gettinggreatrates.com/Freebies. Following is a listing and descriptions of a few those
guides and resources:

1. How to Get Great Rates©® (e-book) — The book focuses on basic rate setting issues. It
is most applicable to smaller, simpler systems.

2. Rate Setting Best Practices Guide© — This guide expands upon the book to cover
affordability, sustainability, bill assistance programs, meter size-based system
development fees and minimum charges, how to acquire rate analysis services, and
more.

3. Rate Setting Issues Guide®© is just that.

4. Replacement Scheduler®© is a spreadsheet application that enables users to build
their own equipment repair and replacement schedule, which calculates the annuity
(savings amount) needed to fund all items in the schedule.

5. CIP Planner® is a similar spreadsheet application for capital improvements
planning.

The two spreadsheets were extracted from my rate analysis model template and made a bit
more user-friendly for do-it-yourselfers. I encourage my rate analysis clients to use these two
sheets so they can make repair and replacement and capital improvement plans more formal,
more forward looking and less reactive. Plus, the sheets make data gathering easy for clients

and me.

There are other guides and resources on this site. All are FREE, so check them out.

Recommendations for Policy and General Issues

Many of the following things you probably are already aware of or are already doing, but
they are worth repeating. A comprehensive list of rate setting best practices is presented in the
“Rate Setting Best Practices Guide,” cited above.

Whether your entity is a city, town, district, or utility authority, you can use the following as
a checklist of “to-do” tasks for rate setting and rate analysis. If a reference you see in the
following does not quite fit your situation, consider how you can apply the information to your
special situation:

1. It is easy to export data from a robust, user-friendly billing program. Your staff gathered
volume usage data from that program for my analysis work. For you to examine
payment history and problems, usage trends, new connection trends, the effects of usage
allowances and other rate structures on revenue generation, and many other issues, you
must have a billing program that is user-friendly and robust. If your current billing

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

20



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 21 of 37

program is not as usable as you would like, I recommend you acquire a program that is.
A good first contact to research billing programs is your state rural water association.

2. You should charge for the various services staff perform for customers and others. These
include various services you provide in the field, such as after-hours service, meter
disconnects and reconnects, special meter readings, etc. Just driving to a customer’s site
takes a minimum amount of time. That is time the staff person cannot perform other
duties. To assess appropriate fees:

a. You should periodically determine how long it takes to drive to and back from
the average site and to perform each service.

b. Determine how much it costs the utility per hour, on average, to have staff
perform these services. Include staff wages, benefits, taxes, use of utility vehicles,
tools, and minor equipment, etc.

c. Include a fair amount to cover the time that office staff devotes to working on
these services to track them, bill for them, etc.

In almost all cases, these estimated costs should be recovered with fees for the
various services. In addition, set a minimum that you will charge for showing up. In
that minimum fee, grant a certain amount of time spent on-site, such as 10 minutes
for a special meter reading or 30 minutes for a meter change-out.

In essence, set your fees in the same way plumbers and similar technicians do — a set
fee for showing up, which buys the customer a set amount of time, and an hourly
rate if the job takes longer than the show up charge will cover.

While accounting for time and other investments in the various services staff
perform is important, do not make the costing tracking process burdensome. For
many services you likely can just estimate staff time occasionally and charge fees
based upon those estimates.

3. Retain required funds in interest bearing debt service and debt reserve accounts when
required by your lender(s).

4. Have me or another rate analyst of your choosing conduct a full rate analysis again
when the actual financial performance and my projection of future performance diverge
enough to make a new analysis worthwhile. Conditions should dictate rate analysis
timing. Most utilities benefit from rate analysis on about a five-year cycle or when total
costs have risen by 20 percent. But if you are planning to do significant capital
improvements that were not previously included in the rate modeling, or when actual
improvement costs or funding plans have changed significantly compared to those that
were modeled, those factors call for a new rate analysis as soon as you can get it done.

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

21



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 22 of 37

5. Fully adopt management strategies that are included in what is commonly called,
“advanced asset management.” These strategies can yield better service and reduced
costs for a utility, especially those looking to build new facilities or replace existing
facilities soon. At a basic level, you can use my free spreadsheet tools called, “CIP
Planner®” and “ReplacementScheduler©®” to do capital improvement and equipment
repair and replacement scheduling, costing, and annuity calculations. These functions
are at the core of asset management and may be all, or nearly all the “asset
management” a small, simple system needs to do. Download these tools and others
from https://gettinggreatrates.com/Freebies.

6. As areminder, check with your attorney for language and legality of all issues discussed
in this report.

Cost-based Rate Calculations

To give you a synopsis of rate analysis, as I do it, and to make it easier for you to read and
understand my findings and recommendations, a tutorial on my methodology is in order. Most
situations are simple enough that I do not need to use all these methods, but it will serve you
well to know the breadth of the methodology.

When I analyze rates for a government-owned water-based utilities, and other utilities that
are empowered to assess cost-of-service rates, I use the cost-needs approach. The approach is
exhaustively described in the American Water Works City’s “M1 Manual, Principles of Water
Rates, Fees and Charges,” Seventh Edition. This manual, in use since the 1960s and periodically
updated, is considered by many to be the “Bible” of water rate setting best practices.

While the manual focuses on water rate setting and Important Terms
uses terms, units of measure and other things specific The cost-needs approach results in rates
to water, the principles and approaches work just as that are called, “cost-to-serve” or “cost-of-

. . service" rates. Simply stated, the costs for
well for electric, sewer, stormwater, trash collection and 2 targeted budgeting period, usually a year

other utilities and services that are paid for with rates during the next five years, are classified as

and fees. One just needs to use the appropriate units of | _1xed"" ‘variable. Capaciy o SReeol
] some combination of the three.

measure and a few conventions common to the other

Y Er ; . e Fixed costs are converted to a base

types of utilities and services when applying these minimum charge.

principles to them. ¢ Variable costs are converted to a unit

The cost-needs approach is a static (one year) rate charge.
e Capacity costs are converted to some

calculation. One could do a new rate study every year =33

. combination of system development
to arrive at the rates to assess each year, spread over fees and surcharges to the base
many years. But that is a lot of work or expense with minimum charge.
very little practical benefit to be gained. It also can lead
to rates that would rise drastically one year just to fall the next year. It is much more palatable
to ratepayers if you keep their rates more stable. That requires calculating rates, revenues, costs,
and many other things over a long period of time, say five to ten years and setting rates to
bridge the cost highs and lows with prudent reserves.

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

22



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 23 of 37

A typical rate study considers the rates needed to fund one year, usually the coming fiscal year.
Ultilities need to plan farther into the future than that, hence, the more accurate term of rate “analysis”

rather than a rate “study.”

Most utilities are better served by getting a rate analysis when rate restructuring may be in
order or when rates will need to go up markedly. During the years in between rate analyses, it
is simple and convenient to just raise all significant rates and fees by an across-the-board
percentage, which should have been specified by the analyst. Such increases may be aimed at
keeping up with inflation. Or they may be designed to achieve other goals. In whatever way
these increases are to be done, they were planned for in the analysis and described in the
foregoing report.

To guide utilities to do future increases well, I expand the cost-needs approach by projecting
costs, revenues, rates, and other criteria ten years into the future. That gives each utility a “road
map” of what they can expect in the future, so they can reset rates appropriately.

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

23



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 24 of 37

Because I intend for utilities to reset rates on their
own for some years into the future (I describe to them
how to do that), and I want those rates to be “fair
enough” to serve them well, I calculate the initially
restructured rates so that they take future across-the-
board increases into account. This is how it works.

Based on my calculations, the initially adjusted
rates will be closer to a “cost-to-serve” structure than
the current rates. And as across-the-board increases are
applied, rates will move even closer to a cost-to-serve
structure until the year used for cost classification has
arrived, which normally is four to five years in the
future. After that, additional across-the-board increases
will move the rate structure further away from cost-to-
serve. Eventually, a new rate analysis should be done
to make the structure fair again. For most moderate
sized utilities, that is about five years into the future.
For most smaller utilities, that may be eight or more
years away.

To arrive at cost-to-serve rates in a future year, I
must choose an appropriate year for cost classification.

o The best year may be the first year after a
big capital improvement is planned to be
finished because the debt service for that
improvement probably will have already
started.

e Or, if costs are expected to inflate
uniformly, the best year may simply be five

Rate Analysis, in a Nutshell

At its simplest, rate analysis helps a utility
arrive at rates and fees that are adequate —
they will pay all the utility’s costs. The next
level of complexity is to arrive at rates that,
on an average cost basis, will enable the
utility to recover fixed and variable costs
“fairly.” Most small water and sewer utilities
need analysis only to this level of
complexity — doing more than that results in
rates that are impractical for small systems.

Another level of complexity includes
calculation of meter size-based minimum
surcharges and system development
(connection) fees. Another includes
calculation of rates on a “marginal” cost
basis, for special groups of customers. Yet
another level is marginal cost basis
calculation of rates for individual
customers, such as a wholesale customer.
These facets of analysis result in accurate
but complex rate structures; appropriate for
the larger utility with diverse customers.

Analysis can and should provide a sound
basis for advising the utility to “go or don’t
go” concemning various actions it might
take. Some of these actions are purely
financial. Some, like the decision to enter
into, or not enter into, a wholesale supply
agreement, for example, include “hassle
factor” and other non-financial issues. And
because such are agreements are made
for nearly forever, a mistake made in the
beginning can hamstring a utility for years
or decades to come. Regardless of system
size, thorough analysis should always be
done before entering into  such
agreements.

years in the future, the year in which most utilities should consider having a new

rate analysis done anyway.

There are some basic steps to arrive at cost-to-serve rates. Calling these “steps” implies that I
do one and then move on to the next. In practice, most steps are affected by, and affect, what
happens in other steps. Therefore, they are all done in concert with the others.

That said, here are the basic steps:

1. Cost Classification: Operating costs are placed into different categories — fixed,
variable, peak flow capacity, and sometimes others. I classify costs projected for a
year in the future, usually within five years of the present. And I use a year that
appears to be typical of what the utility can expect in the future.

Getting6reatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreafrates.com (573) 619-3411

24




Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 25 of 37

For all utility types, operating cost classification is done in Table 8 of the model(s)
that will follow in this report. The core notion of cost-to-serve rates is this: The basic
minimum charge assessed to all customers should recover the sum of all fixed costs;
and the average unit charge should recover the sum of all variable costs.

System capacity costs can, and usually should be recovered on a cost basis, too. That
is a bit complicated and will be covered shortly.

Back to recovery of operating costs, near the bottom of Table 8 in the foregoing
report, you will see the “Average Fixed Cost/User/Month” and the “Average
Variable Cost to Produce/1,000 gallons (or other units).” These are the basic
minimum charge and the average unit charge based on the costs expected in that
future year. The same model template is used for calculating rates for the various
utility types. The main difference for those analyses is the measurement method for
unit charges.

An aside, but an important one in my mind, is this. The M1 Manual describes how to calculate
cost-to-serve rates down to the customer class level. If a rate analyst classifies costs to that level and
the utility sets rates that achieve that result, it can correctly be said that the utility has cost-to-serve
rates. Those rates will be fairly structured, but only at the customer class level.

I classify costs to the customer level. Thus, rates that I calculate are cost-to-serve to the customer
level. My reasoning for doing this is, rate structure fairness if felt at the customer level, not at the
customer class level. Customers pay utility bills. Classes do not.

2.

Capacity costs: In the ideal, capacity costs should be assessed on a cost-to-be-able-to-
serve basis, but these costs are a long-term proposition. No one knows at present
what the cost of capacity is because those costs unfold over decades. Thus, the dollar
cost of capacity can only be estimated, but that is not a problem. The key is,
whatever one estimates capacity will cost, or whatever portion of capacity a utility
desires to recover with capacity charges, that cost should be divvied out to new
connections and current customers on a fair basis. The following goes to that goal.

o The American Water Works City has done excellent research on the
sustainable peak flow capacity of different water meter sizes and types, so I
generally use the flow capacity of each meter size and type as the basis for
divvying water and sewer peak flow capacity costs. That math is lengthy, so
it is spread out over Tables 11 through 16 of the model(s) in the report. The
notion of capacity applies to all utility services, so:

o When I calculate water and sewer rates where meters are used, I use meter
flow capacity as the capacity share criterion.

o When I calculate electric rates, I use what is commonly called the “demand”
exerted on the wholesale power supplier. If the client produces its own
power, I use the demand measured by the client’s metering system.

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

25



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 26 of 37

o When I calculate sanitation (trash collection) rates, I use the cubic foot
capacity of the various bin and dumpster sizes times the number of pickups
per month of each as the capacity criterion. Thus, for trash collection services
except for the rare ones that actually weigh trash as it is collected, the
capacity of bins times the pickup frequency becomes a component of the
“unit” charge for each customer.

o Stormwater capacity is like trash collection in that impervious surface area is
the usual capacity, and “unit” charge criterion. Square footage or the
equivalent of impervious surface area appears in the rates as the unit charge
analogue.

3. Future cost projections: I project costs ten years into the future. Generally, this is
done by applying an expected inflationary factor to each cost. But it is also common
that some costs, like the cost of debt service needed to build a new treatment plant in

two years, will change future costs
markedly. Such cost changes are estimated,
then entered into the model in the year in
which they are expected to occur. Some
expenses, like postage, treatment chemicals
and electricity for production, treatment,
and distribution, rise with inflation plus
growth in the customer base and use. Those
are increased in future years by inflation
and growth.

Reserves: Reserve goals are set through the
tenth year. Those goals will only be met if
(primarily) rates are set high enough and/or
(secondarily) grants and subsidized loans
are large enough to enable the utility to
generate net revenues over the modeling
period. The amount or percentages and
types of reserves are dependent upon each
utility’s needs, so that is discussed in the
foregoing report.

For the techie reader, the analysis model
we use — a Microsoft Excel spreadsheet
application we call, “CBGreatRates” — is
usually 3.8 mega-bites in size. Each rate
analysis includes one of these sheets.

For a 1,000-connection utility, for example,
we use another spreadsheet, 12.1 mega-
bites in size, to sort and calculate customer
volume use. We use one of these sheets
for each rate class. There are usually five
or so for the simplest rates. Each of these
sheets is linked to the client's usage data
file, usually a few mega-bites in size, for
importing usage data. Thus, an analysis for
a 1,000 connection utility totals 65 or so
mega-bites in size.

For some of our larger client utilities with
more rate classes and more customers,
total size of all the linked spreadsheets runs
over 250 mega-bhites. We run computers
with lots of RAM and memory but some of
the calculations for a larger utility can take
around 60 minutes to run. When usage
data sheet runtimes get long, we usually
switch to a database format application to
speed up the heavy number crunching.

Calculate rates: The full suite of rates needed to fully fund the utility and do it fairly
is a dynamic set of calculations, too complex to completely explain here. And each
situation requires variations on this theme. I will leave out some details, so this is the

“Cliff’s Notes” version of rate calculation:

o Capacity cost recovery is calculated first. Likewise, penalties collected, and
other non-user charge fee incomes are calculated. These revenues are

Getting6reatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

26




Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 27 of 37

O

deducted from the total revenue needed to arrive at the revenues needed
from user charge fees.

Next, the across-the-board future rate increase rate (a percentage) is set. In
the future, starting about one year after the initial rate adjustments have been
done, rates will increase annually by this percentage. The revenue needed
from the initial rate adjustments, here called the “net revenue need,” will
come from the revenues generated by the initial rate adjustments. (In truth,
future inflationary revenue increases, plus interest earnings on balances
accrued are dependent upon the rates that are initially set, so most “pre-
calculated” revenue streams are adjusted dynamically as initial rate revenues
rise or fall.)

The calculated bases for fixed costs and variable costs (Table 8) establish a
ratio of the revenues that each rate component would generate in a cost-to-
serve structure.

To increase (or very rarely decrease) overall revenues to satisfy the net
revenue need, each revenue stream is increased or decreased by the same
percentage. Thus, the revenue streams remain in the same ratio to each other.
That means they retain their cost-to-serve proportions.

Once the overall revenue increase (or decrease) is established:

= The base minimum charge is “back calculated” from the adjusted
minimum charge revenue amount. (Every customer, regardless of
their meter size, pays the base minimum charge.) The meter size-
based surcharge, for water and sewer systems, is added to the base
minimum charge to arrive at the full minimum charge for each meter
size. (Similar math is done for other utility types.)

= The average unit charge is calculated from the unit charge revenue
amount. If inclining or declining rates are to be assessed, or if there is
to be a usage allowance, unit charge revenues are calculated
dynamically based on those variations.

Getting6reatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101

carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

27



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 28 of 37

= The resulting rates are the starting user charge rates — the initial
adjusted rates — what you will (hopefully) adopt initially. In later
years, you will increase these starter rates and fees across-the-board
by the inflationary factor, generally to keep them tracking with rising
costs.

o After examining balances projected for future years, the future inflationary
increase rate may be raised or lowered to enable the utility to accrue
appropriate balances either sooner or later. That, of course, will result in
initial rate adjustments that would need to be either lower or higher,
respectively, to offset the change to the future adjustments rate.

o Finally, it is common for managers and decision-makers of utilities to want to
“tweak” rates into a different structure, timing of adjustment or in other
ways. Having built the model to handle “on-the-fly” adjustments, I model
their preferences to arrive at the rates needed to fund the utility as they
desire.

6. Reporting out: The culmination of all this data gathering, calculations and more ends
up in a rate analysis report like the report this appendix is attached to. The report
covers everything that seems to be important and gives the client my
recommendations and guidance on how to adjust rates now, and in the future.

If desired by the client, I present the report, my findings and recommendations, and
answer questions, usually at a Board or Board meeting. Before COVID-19 that was
always done in person or rarely by phone call into their Board or Board meeting.
During COVID-19, that was almost always done by remote video. After COVID-19,
these meetings are being done either way, as the client desires. Many of my client
systems are small and their management had not yet adopted on-line meetings.
COVID has changed that. Many of my “meetings” now are done on-line, even with
very small utilities. Cutting out my travel saves them a lot.

System Development (Capacity) Fees and Surcharges

System development (capacity) fees (SDFs), and (minimum charge) surcharges (later often
called, “SDFs” collectively to be brief), are common and useful rate structuring tools. They also
require quite involved calculations to arrive at these fees and surcharges in a cost-based
structure. I touched on the topic in the body of the report and I cover these fees and surcharges
in more detail here.

There are two main things one must do to determine, mathematically, how to set SDFs:
1. Determine how much of the system’s capacity development costs to recover.

2. Determine when, and how much of those costs to recover from each customer.
Determining “who pays how much and when,” is easier when the utility sells the
commodity based on metering of some sort.

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

28



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 29 of 37

Calculating proportionality and level of fees is a process. This process is not a single pass
through a list of calculations. I go through the calculations and then consider if the resulting
fees are “doable.” If they come out too high, or if some fees come out markedly higher or lower
than the “competition’s” fees, or they are markedly different than the utility’s current fees, and
if any of these could be a problem, one should consider how the calculations may be tailored to
arrive at more “doable” fees.

To keep it simple, let's go through the steps and calculations one time and then circle back
to making the fees doable.

Step 1: Meter Equivalent Ratio (Capacity Share)

Meter flow capacities have been determined by the American Water Works Association
(AWWA). Based on AWWA meter peak flow capacity research, the flow capacity of a five-
eighths inch meter (the smallest practical size and commonly used for residential connections)
is assigned a flow capacity of 1.0. Larger meters can pass more peak flow, so each size and type
is assigned a proportionately higher peak flow capacity factor or “share.” These results are
shown in Table 11, page 31, in the “Meter Equivalent Ratio (Capacity Shares)” column. In
simple terms, a five-eighths inch meter would be charged one share of peak flow capacity cost.
A two-inch meter would be charged eight shares of peak flow capacity cost because it has eight
times more peak flow capacity than a five-eighths inch meter.

Capacity “shares” are the basis for the proportionality of capacity fees calculated later.

Step 2: SDF Cost Basis

No one can know how much it will cost to build capacity-to-serve in the future, how many
customers will be available to pay those costs in the future, or how long built capacity will be
serviceable before it must be rebuilt or improved. But that is not an insurmountable problem
because few utilities will recover all system development costs with SDFs and surcharges
anyway. Thus, the cost of system development is mainly the starting place for calculating
proportionality of the resulting SDFs and surcharges.

To set SDFs, one should start with calculation of the amount of cost to recover through
SDFs. Oftentimes, SDFs only cover peak flow costs. The flatter the distribution of meter sizes is,
the more reasonable that approach is. (If all customers are served by one meter size, there is no
immediate need for varying SDFs, or surcharges based on meter size.) As larger meters come
into play, varying fees and surcharges begin to make structure fairness and practical sense.

Costs to be recovered may be forward looking — future capital improvement needs, debt
service and such (Table 5 in the modeling). Much of that will come from a capital improvements
plan and debt repayment schedules for existing debt, or calculated payments for yet-to-be-
incurred debt. At best, most of these are estimates.

Alternatively, the cost basis may be backwards looking — dollars invested in “plant” or
“hard assets” in the past. Those values are typically tracked in the balance sheet as original
plant investments. For most utilities, these values are known and tracked. That is the cost basis I

Getting6reatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

29



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 30 of 37

normally use for a few reasons. Quite important is, that basis is not subject to the debate of, “Do
we really need that capital improvement, or need it now, and what should it cost?” Investments
that appear on the balance sheet have already been made and in the future, at least that dollar
amount will probably need to be made again. Future capacity costs can easily be argued about.
Balance sheet plant investments cannot.

Part of the cost basis should be recovered “up front” with SDFs. But there is also the
surcharge to the basic minimum charge to consider. Some system development costs should be
recovered with surcharges because system capacity development is an on-going process.
Capacity must be rebuilt for existing customers.

This brings up an important fact to stress. That is, capacity costs are not incurred just once,
and then they are paid for with fees paid by new connections (customers) just once. They occur
over time. They are paid for by different new connections (customers) over a long span of time.
Likewise, some capacity costs will be paid for by existing customers by way of user charge rates
over a long span of time. The time factor is a part of SDF calculations and surcharge
calculations.

Said another way, a new connection (customer) makes a one-time payment toward system
development costs and then they are done. But other new connections are made over time, with
each one making their one-time payment. But one-time payments occur over time.
Alternatively, surcharges are a long series of payments made periodically by existing
customers, essentially the same customers.

This discussion has gone esoteric, so let’s move on.

In Table 12, I classified costs as peak flow-related with the balance, if any, being base flow-
related. Only the peak flow-related costs will be used further down the table for calculating
SDFs (the middle section of the table). Surcharges, if any, appear in the last section of the table.
Frequently, I only calculate the peak Flow-related cost “share.” But sometimes, if my client
contact tells me the “powers that be or the developers” will not accept a marked change in
SDFs, I also use the base flow calculation subsection to calculate a base flow component to the
SDF. By varying the peak flow, base flow, and surcharge “shares” I can tailor the resulting fees
and surcharges to better fill the needs of each utility. I can make these fees and surcharges
“doable.”

Step 3: Capacity Share Dollar Value

The dollar value of one Capacity Share is calculated in Table 12, page 32. In this case,
capacity comes in three flavors, peak and base SDFs, and a surcharge to the basic minimum

charge.

Subsection 2 of that table calculates the dollar value of peak and base capacity costs per
Capacity Share. To do that, one must determine what part of that annual cost to recover each
year. You can target recovering little of it, all of it or even more than all of it. I usually can only
recover a small percentage of the annual cost basis and keep the resulting SDFs competitive
with neighboring systems. (Nearly every system in the U.S. is recovering too little of its system

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

30



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 31 of 37

capacity costs. To a degree that is reasonable, because a high percentage of system capacity
costs are initially paid for with loans, and loan payments get added to user charge fees, so some
capacity costs are being passed on to customers. But many systems simply have rates and fees
that are too low to fully pay their system capacity costs.) In competing for development, which
is a reasonable goal, systems often must keep their system capacity fees lower than full cost.
When that happens, some costs are shifted to the user charge rates of existing customers, or to
future customers.

Surcharges to the minimum charge, the last subsection of Table 12, are also based on meter
size, and are calculated in nearly the same way except that recovery is paid periodically (usually
monthly).

Step 4: SDF for Each Meter Size

Once the per share cost has been established, the SDF for each meter size and type can be
calculated. For SDFs, that step is done in Table 13, page 33. It is quite easy: multiply the “Peak
Capacity Cost per Capacity Share” by the number of shares for each meter size being connected,
then add the “Base Capacity Cost per New Connection...” amount to those values.

For surcharges to the minimum charge, that step is done in Table 15, page with similar
calculations.

Step 5: SDF and Surcharge Total Expected Revenues

Finally, using all prior data and calculations, and the assumed number of connections of
each meter size and type, the revenues those SDFs will generate can be calculated. Those results
show in Table 14, page 34 for SDFs and Table 16, page for surcharges.

To summarize data and calculation flows through the tables:

e Table 5, page 29, can serve as the basis for peak and base system development costs
to recover. Otherwise, the original plant value from the utility’s balance sheet,
undepreciated, is a good basis for calculating these fees.

e Table 11, page 31, develops the share of costs that each meter size is responsible for,

e Table 12, page 32, calculates the dollar values of a peak capacity share, a base
capacity share, and a surchargeable share,

e Table 13, page 33, calculates the SDF for each meter size and type, and

e Table 14, page 34, calculates the SDF revenue to be generated in a full year by
connecting an assumed number of new meters of assumed sizes.

e Table 15, page 33, calculates the minimum charge, including surcharges for each
meter size and type, and

e Table 16, page , shows the surcharge revenues to be generated in a full year, listed by
meter size.

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

31



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 32 of 37

Finally, it is often prudent to compare the calculated SDFs and surcharged minimum
charges with the “competition.” It can be useful to compare the calculated fees and rates to the
current fees and rates, too. After all, the new fees and surcharges must be doable. If the
calculated fees and rates are markedly higher, it may be useful to circle back to the capacity cost
to be recovered or the split between peak capacity and base capacity. To make the new fees and
surcharges palatable, these may need to be adjusted and the fees and surcharge calculations run
again.

There is much more to calculating these fees and surcharges, but you have probably learned
more than you cared or needed to learn, so we move on.

Regional Cities” and Districts’ Fees — the “Competition”

I do not recommend comparing user charge rates in your city, town, or district to others.
Your cost structure, indeed, the whole system, is unique.

However, you may want your SDFs to be competitive with neighboring cities and districts,
so you can get your fair “share” of new development. In most utilities, SDF revenue is minimal.
User charge rates are where they make the real money to pay the bills. Once you connect a new
customer, their property will be a user charge paying customer forever, for all practical
purposes. Set SDFs too high and they will not come. You will lose the chance to get that
“forever” user charge paying customer. Yes, things change over the forever time span, but you
will have them for a very long time.

Therefore, be at least somewhat competitive with neighboring communities” SDFs. But if
your city, district or area has other great reasons for a person or business to “move to town,”
you can charge more in SDFs and surcharges.

I love calculating SDFs and surcharges. You are probably worn out with this discussion, so

will move on.

The Nature of Rate Structure Parts and Types

Cost-to-serve rates are considered by many, including me, to be the most mathematically
fair and defensible rate structure. While I previously described how I do such calculations, I
will now tell you what I consider to be “fixed” costs, “variable” costs and “capacity-to-serve”

costs:

e Fixed operating costs are those that are related to the fact that you have customers.
For every customer, the utility incurs one increment of this type of cost. Billing is the
simplest, purest example of a fixed cost. Whether a customer uses a lot of the
commaodity or none, it (almost always) takes the same work, equipment, software
and more to calculate their bill, “send it out” and collect the money.

o Another part of the minimum charge will likely be a surcharge intended to
recover all or part of peak flow or unusual capacity costs. These are almost
always based upon water meter size because the larger a meter is, the greater
is its capacity to sustainably pass peak flows. This peak flow capacity relates

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

32



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 33 of 37

well to the cost of building infrastructure “big enough” to handle peak flows.
Thus, capacity costs are related to the fact that a particular customer has a
certain capacity to demand flow or service, regardless of how much flow or
service they actually use. These surcharges are added to the base minimum
charge to arrive at the full minimum charge for each meter size.

o Larger systems invariably have more large meter customers and that makes
surcharging the larger meters worthwhile and fair.

o However, small systems with few “unusual” customers and few meters
larger than one inch often find it expedient to consider even peak flow
capacity cost to be a fixed cost, equally sharable by all customers. At some
point, there is more to be gained from administration simplicity than exact
rate structure fairness.

e Unit charges are related to the volume of service received. While unit charges can be
structured in various ways, the revenues they generate should be adequate to pay
those costs that are related to the flow that customers use.

There are three unit charge structures that [ commonly recommend, depending on the

situation:

e Some systems need “conservation rates,” or, their administrations simply like the
notion of encouraging customers to use less of the utility’s services. In this rate

If you are going to err either on the side of
complex rates that precisely assess costs
to each customer or simpler rates that
round off some of the accuracy corners but
are easier to administer, choose simple
rates.

structure, the unit charge goes up as volume used goes
up. Most of us respond to, or at least we think twice
about it, when we are assessed a higher price to buy
more of something. Conservation rates are most
appropriate in areas with limited water supplies or in a
utility that is bumping up against its capacity to
produce water.

e Most systems use, and should use, level unit charges — a unit charge that is the same
regardless of how much volume a customer uses. With level unit charges, customers
are assessed unit charges on an average unit cost basis. Such rates are the easiest to
calculate, they are the easiest for a clerk to explain to a complaining customer on the
phone and the revenues such rates will produce next year are the easiest to
accurately predict. Most water utilities, and almost all sewer utilities assess level unit

charges.

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carli@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

33



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 34 of 37

e The last major unit charge structure is called, “declining” rates. These are the reverse
of conservation rates. I often call them, “use encouragement” rates. It is popular
these days for many to belittle those who do not conserve resources at every
opportunity. Declining rates are often scorned for that reason. However, if a system
has an ample water supply and ample infrastructure to produce and distribute it,
doing so will not cause unintended bad (mostly environmental) consequences; and if
the governing body wants to encourage high use (which often entails such users
hiring more or better paid workers), declining rates can make good sense. Declining
rates are most appropriate in areas that have many high-volume industrial users or
folks in that area want to attract such users. Declining rates seem to be most common
in the industrial east, but they seem to be less popular everywhere these days.
However, keep this in mind. One can accurately calculate the average unit charge
and “prove up” that rate case. One cannot do the same with inclining or declining
rates.

e Another unit charge structure is the “usage allowance.” For example, a usage
allowance of 3,000 gallons per month means you get the first 3,000 gallons at no
additional cost beyond the minimum charge. Thus, the unit charge between zero and
3,000 gallons is zero dollars per 1,000 gallons. At 3,001 gallons, you start to add unit
charges to your monthly bill.

As described earlier, the minimum charge should cover fixed costs, not variable
costs. The costs to source, pump, treat, store and distribute water are not all fixed
costs, so not all of those costs belong in a minimum charge. And the first gallons of
water are the most expensive to produce. In a cost-to-serve rate structure, those
gallons should get paid for by the customers that use them.

Rate Modeling and Rate Setting Advice

Rate setting is first about recovering costs. Job one of utility rates is to pay the utility’s bills.
But usually, proper rate setting is also about building adequate reserves; funding a capital
improvements program (CIP); catching up on needed equipment repair and replacement
(R&R); and covering similar needs. Thus, these soon-to-be-experienced costs or likely-to-be-
experienced costs need to be factored into rates and fees, as well. Because time marches on and
costs usually inflate over time, rate setting should account for the need for future incremental
increases to cover inflation. And you cannot just assume that because the utility needs more
revenue that your ratepayers will be glad to pay higher rates. Rate affordability, and the
public’s perception of affordability, must be addressed, too.

Even the simplest rates situation requires some complex and integrated calculations to
account for these factors. For that reason, I build a spreadsheet for each analysis that depicts, in
virtual reality, the utility’s real-life financial and rates situation.

These models are dynamic. When the initial rate increase is set higher, future inflationary
increases can be lower. When minimum charges are set lower, unit or other charges need to be
set higher to make up the shortfall. When future expenses need to be higher, or lower, or of a

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

34



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 35 of 37

different nature, the Model adjusts rates and fees accordingly. Such modeling enables me to do
dynamic “what-if” scenario calculations. That enables me to arrive quickly at the “best fit” rates
for each utility. Usually, the client goes with what I recommended. Sometimes they don't,
although once I show them the results of doing what they think would be better, they often
circle back to my original recommendations. That’s OK. I have learned a lot while taking these

detours.

My model is dynamic. It is easy to calculate the effects of changes to rates and other things
over the years. If a change does not affect the cost structure drastically, I can do the same for
almost any cost or rate change. If one, two or three years from now, you discover your costs or
incomes will be different from what you and I had assumed, you can call me up, tell me what is
different, [ will enter the changes into the model(s) and re-run the rates. If the change is small
and quick to model, I do that for no charge. If it is more complex and will take some time and
usually a written report, I do those projects on an hourly basis. Fees for those usually come in
under $1,000. Some clients find that to be a very accurate and cost-effective way to maintain
good rates, even when conditions change dramatically.

I have been building my template model since 2005. | Temptation Happens

It is the starting place for all my analyses. The template | | could build a static model that arrived at
is so robust that I can set a few “switches” here and what | thought was the best rates outcome
th build i f thi that . t for a client. If the client asked for something

CKC; LU, Ay ICH HIHNGS FAl arcyu Mg UCHOasICu] different, | would be tempted to tell the

client’s situation and soon, I am modeling rates tailored | client that, “In my experience, blah blah,
blah, that would not be a good thing to do.”
Based on my experience, | probably would
be right, but that tack would be self-serving
— it would save me work.

to their needs.

Two final thoughts on the rate modeling and
adjustment topic: _ )
e Halfthe reason | build dynamic models

is to be able to show the client the

e Almost always, rate adjustments include bill
outcome of what they asked for and

increases. Thus, time is money, often big that usually proves up the case for
money, to the utility. A rate increase what | originally recommended.
delayed is a rate increase that must be even o The other half reason is, when | model
higher to reach the same reserve target in what the client asked for, | sometimes
& . & i find that indeed, it is doable and may
the same amount of time. Get to know this even be superior to the solution !
report well but do not spend months assumed was best.
mulling it over. Time will not make your Assumptions based upon deep experience

are useful. But facts and good math are a

rate setting task easier. Proceed deliberately great training experience for a rate analyst.

but quickly and make the needed changes. If
you cannot make all the needed changes at
the same time, make those that you can as soon as you can. Then, circle back to the
rest as soon as you can.

e You will get complaints about customers’ bills going up. I do not want to be
dismissive, but in my experience, most of the time, when the math is laid out for all
to see, most people are understanding. Cost-to-serve rate analysis does not arrive at
unfair rates. It arrives at fair rates. Who doesn’t want fair rates? Well, those who are

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

35



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 36 of 37

paying cheaper than fair rates. If they can convince those who are subsidizing them
to keep subsidizing them, even though the analysis shows that is not fair, more
power to them. But generally, cost-to-serve rates win the day.

o These statements do not mean “do-it-yourself” rate adjustments are always
unfair or insufficient, or that rate adjustments calculated by a “rate analyst”
are always fair and sufficient. I always try to calculate and advocate for rates
that are fairly structured. But over time, costs and other conditions change, so
even cost-to-serve rates I have calculated will become unfair after some years.

= A good blend of fair rates and a low cost to achieve them is this. You
get a rate analysis done occasionally and adjust accordingly. For a few
years after that, do-it-yourself across-the-board increases will keep
revenues tracking with inflation. Eventually, you analyze again.

Please keep the above summary of cost-based rate calculations in mind as I close with some
principles.

Principles

I use several guiding principles when I help systems set their utility rates, fees, and policies.
I considered these principles as I prepared the foregoing rate analysis report and the model(s)
that follow:

1. Water, sewer, and all other utilities are businesses, regardless of who owns them. The
first order of business is, stay in business. Your customers want you to do that. They do
not want their investments in homes and businesses to be left high and dry without
utility services to support them.

2. The second order of business is, perform in a business-like manner. First, be effective. If
you do nothing else, be effective. Next, be as efficient as is reasonably possible.
Efficiency tends to foster lower rates, which ratepayers like. Effectiveness and efficiency
fight against each other. In most utility services and situations, effectiveness trumps
efficiency. It does not benefit water customers if you pump lots of water cheaply if that
water will make them sick, or if too much of it leaks out of holes in the pipe. Customers
also gain more benefit from water rates that are a bit higher than they would like, but
those extra funds are used to keep the utility sustainable.

3. Ifaservice costs the utility money, the utility should recover that cost from the most
logical “person” if that makes good business and community administration sense. For
example, generally “growth should pay for growth.” Developers should fairly pay for
their consumption of utility capacity obligated to what they build by paying
commensurate system development fees. Likewise, service users should pay for what
they use. Each class of users should pay their fair share of service costs. Ideally, each
individual user should do that, too.

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carll@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

36



Willard, MO, Rate Analysis Narrative Report 2024-3, 9/19/24, Page 37 of 37

4. It sometimes contradicts point number 3 above, | As you consider rate adjustments, always
but if adjusting a rate, fee or policy will turn keep this customer in mind:

Currently ”good” customers into “bad” The "little old lady, widowed, retired, living

" di d 1 t that th alone on Social Security.” Treat her badly,
SUEIOMICTSOIEI SCOUISE CIEVEIOPITICIA a e or just be seen as treating her badly, and
community desires, you should consider the you lose the goodwill contest. Lose

goodwill and you may never get it back.

necessity of making the change carefully before
doing it. For example, while it may be
warranted, raising the minimum charge markedly to your residential customers may
make it very difficult for fixed, low-income customers to pay their utility bill. That may
cause more of them to pay late or not pay at all. That may trigger the utility’s attorney to
write collection letters to those customers and eventually require shutoff of service.
Thus, in the attempt to generate more net revenue by raising rates, net revenues may go
down due to non-payment and payment collection costs. Likewise, stifling development
with uncompetitive system development fees costs a utility in the form of additional
paying customers because they chose to “build down the road.” That forces existing
customers to pay all the costs of the utility rather than sharing them with new
customers.

5. While cost-based rates are the most demonstrably fair rate structure, purely cost-to-serve
rates can be impractical for some utilities. Consider this:

a. A large city has thousands of customers served by a wide range of meter sizes
and those customers have a wide range of service use. That city needs rates that
are cost-based and, necessarily, those rates will be complicated. Such rate
complexity is worthwhile because the utility’s situation is complicated.

b. In contrast, a small town serves few customer. Those customers usually have
only a few meter sizes and few of them use high volumes of service. That town
would not be well-served by complicated rates. Simpler rates are better for them.

However, both should still get a cost-to-serve rate analysis at least occasionally, so even if
they adopt rates in a different structure, they will know what you are giving up.

That is probably more than you care to know about rates and rate analysis but if I did not
answer all your questions, just give me a call, or drop me an e-mail.

GettingGreatRates.com 1014 Carousel Drive Jefferson Association Missouri 65101
carl1@gettinggreatrates.com (573) 619-3411

37



38



Willard, MO, Water Rates Model 2024-3

This model calculated cost-to-serve rates, with level
minimum and unit charges for in-City customers, and
out-of-City rates in the same structure, but higher due to
higher costs to serve outside of the City.

September 19, 2024
This rate analysis model was produced by
Carl E. Brown, GettingGreatRates.com
1014 Carousel Drive, Jefferson City, Missouri 65101
(573) 619-3411
https://gettinggreatrates.com
carl1@gettinggreatrates.com

Note: This document is a print out of the spreadsheet model used to calculate new user charge and
other rates and fees for the next 10 years. These calculations are complex and are based upon
many conditions and assumptions. These issues, and others, are described in a narrative report

that accompanies this model.
CBGreatRates© Version 8.3

39



Affordability Index

Analysis Year

Capacity Cost (also see
System Development
Charge)

Capital Improvement Plan or

Program (CIP)

Capital Improvement
Reserves

Comprehensive Rate
Analysis

Connection Charge

Conservation (Inclining)
Rates

Cost-to-produce

Cost-to-serve, or Cost-of-
service Rates

Cost Types; Fixed and
Variable

Coverage Ratio (CR)

Current Position

Declining Rates

Fire Sprinkler Systems and
Related Costs

Fixed Cost

Definitions

The monthly charge for (typically) 5,000 gallons of residential service divided by the median monthly
household income for the area served by the system. An index of 1.0, meaning a household pays one
percent of its income to pay its bill for 5,000 gallons of service, is generally considered affordable.
Affordability index is often a factor in determining grant and loan eligibility and grant amount.

The year following the "test year." Generally, rate analysis is done during the year following the "test year"
and intial rate adjustments are done later still during the analysis year or sometime during the following year
once the analysis shows how rates should be adjusted. See related "test year."

The cost incurred to design and build the infrastructure needed to provide a utility service. As the
infrastructure ages and wears out from use, it must be refurbished and replaced, which is a continual
capacity cost. Capacity costs are recovered in various ways - connection fees, system development fees,
regular user charges and others. The cost of that capacity and the nature of the costs - base fiow capacity
versus peak flow capacity - should determine the way these costs are recovered.

A schedule of anticipated capital improvements, These are the more expensive items such as treatment
plants, lines and other expensive infrastructure that generally requires bond or grant funding.

Cash reserves dedicated to funding the CIP

A thorough examination of a system’s operating, capital improvement, equipment replacement and other
costs, revenues, current rates, number of users and their use of the system, growth rates and all other key
issues surrounding the system. This examination will determine how rates and fees should be set in the
future to cash-flow the system properly, to build appropriate reserves and to be fair to ratepayers. It also will
determine how policies should be adjusted to enable the system to operate well now, operate well in the
medium-range future (about 10 years) and prepare for expected and expectable events such as capital
improvements and equipment replacement.

See system development fee

Unit charges that go up as the volume used goes up

There are several ways to define and calculate cost-to-produce. Each is acceptable for different purposes
Generally, cost-to-produce is the total of all variable costs required to get service to a utility’s customers
during one year divided by the total units of service delivered during that year. This calculation will yield the
average cost-to-produce. In a proportional to use rate structure, this is the unit charge. See "Cost
Calculations" at the bottom of Table 19.

Rates where, at the customer class level, fixed and variable costs caused by each customer class are paid
by that class primarily with minimum and unit charges, respectively. However, this analysis model takes it
one step further and calculates cost-to-serve rates at the individual customer level.

The two main types of costs are fixed - those that are related to the fact that someone is a customer; and
variable - those that are related to the volume of the commodity delivered to customers. Generally, fixed
costs should be recovered with minimum charges and variable costs with unit charges.

Incomes available to pay debt divided by the amount of the debt for that year. A CR of 1.0 is "break-even."
Most systems should have a CR greater than 1.25.

For purposes of this report, for one year, the sum of all incomes and undedicated reserves minus all current
financial obligations for that year. Future obligations (next year's loan payments) and depreciation are not
included. Current position, often called "cash and cash equivalents," is a good measure of liquidity.

Rates where unit charges go down as the volume used goes up

Generally, fire suppression in businesses is provided by a built-in system of fire sprinklers. "Service" to
such systems is primarily in the form of peak flow capacity availability to fight a fire. Capacity costs money,
so larger, more sophisticated water systems should assess at least part of such costs to fire suppression
systems. Small water systems usually do not charge separately for these costs, and that is reasonable

Accounting considers a cost that does not change to be a fixed cost. That definition does not work fairly for
rate setting purposes. For rate setting, a fixed cost is one that is related to the fact that you have
customers. The simplest example is billing, because the utility incurs billing costs not in relation to the
volume of service a customer consumes. Rather, those costs are equal for all customers, or they are so
close to being equal for all customers that one likely could not justify such a cost being different for one
customer compared to other customers.

40



Flat Rates

Equivalent Dwelling Unit
(EDU) or Equivalent
Residential Unit (ERU)

Equivalent Residential Unit
(ERU) for Stormwater

Incremental Rate Increases
(Inflationary Increases)

Initial Rate Adjustments

Inflow & Infiltration (1&l)

Infrastructure

Life-cycle Cost

Marginal Costs

Minimum Charge

Mixed Costs

Operating Costs

Operating Reserves or
Working Capital

Operating Revenues

Operating Ratio (OR)

Payback Period

Definitions

Rates where all users pay exactly the same fee regardless of the volume of service they use

This definition is for water and sewer service. Based upon number of water using fixtures, average flow,
potential flow or similar criteria; the consumption rate of the average single family home is rated at one
ERU. All other types of customers are then compared on this basis and muitiples or parts of an ERU are
assigned to each for billing purposes.

This definition is for stormwater. As compared to water and sewer, that are concemed with water flow, one
ERU of stormwater service is the average square footage of impervious surface of a single family home
Then, larger and non-residential properties are rated by their multiples or parts of an ERU of impervious
surface area for the purpose of billing for stormwater impact costs. When there is a large variation in single
family home size and impervious surface area, some cities and similar places use the smaller size range of
homes as their ERU standard and assess larger homes at multiples of that ERU basis, as well.

Rate increases done, generally annually, following the initial rate adjustment. The usual goal of such
increases is to keep the system's incomes on track with inflation. Such increases are usually small, in the
two to five percent per year range.

Rate adjustments done in response to the comprehensive rate analysis. Generally, the goal of such
adjustments is to establish rates that cover the system’s short-term expected costs and do it with a
structure that is fair to ratepayers. Initial adjustments should be followed in subsequent years with
incremental rate increases.

In a sewer system, water that gets into the collection system by way of illicit connections (inflow) such as
gutter downspouts, plus leaks in manholes and sewer lines (infiltration)

Most commonly thought of as the hard assets, such as buildings, treatment plants and lines needed to
provide service to customers connected to the system. In reality, staff, software and other "soft" assets
should be thought of as infrastructure, as well because the hard assets cannot run well or run for long
without staff

The total cost to design, build, operate, maintain and eventually dispose of, or decommission, an asset.
One asset may cost less to build but it may be more expensive to operate and maintain, yielding a higher
total life-cycle cost. Life-cycle cost is an important consideration of asset management.

The parts of a utility's costs that are unavoidable in the course of serving a particular customer, a group of
customers, more volume to all customers or some other marginal use of the system. Such customer(s) or
extra use could be added at a discounted but still profitable fee, if desired. Generally marginal costs are
less than the average costs but when extra use requires a system upsizing, they can be greater. These
costs are especially useful when considering selling service at wholesale or charging "snow birds" while
they are away, for example.

This rate, charge or fee goes by other names, "Base charge" and "availability charge" are common. This is
the pericdic fee paid for having water, sewer or other commodity service made available to the customer to
use. Most common is a monthly or quarterly minimum charge. Generally, this charge should recover fixed
costs.

Fixed and variable costs are defined elsewhere. Costs that are mixed are those that are a blend of fixed
and variable. For example, a utility hires staff and provides them benefits partly just to have staff on hand to
deal with line breaks, equipment breakdowns and other problems. But most staff time and related costs are
incurred because the utility is doing what it was designed to do - provide water or other commodity services
to customers. Two gross examples illustrate the extremes of staff costs. In one small water system with one
operator, the operator sits around in the shop all day, every day with nothing to do. The cost of that operator
is fixed and should be shared by all customers equally in a minimum charge. Another water system has one
operator, but that operator works all day, every day operating and maintaining the system. That operator is
enabling the system to do what it was designed to do - provide a commodity - so that operator's time and
related costs should be considered variable and recoverable through unit charges. In reality, staffing and
many other costs are a blend of fixed and variable costs, so they should be consider partly a fixed cost and
partly a variable cost.

Definitions and calculations vary. For rate setting purposes operating costs are costs incurred because a
system is operated. Such costs are usually recovered primarily through unit charges.

Analogous to current position, this is the net revenues generated during "profitable"” years and retained to
fund operating costs during times when costs exceed incomes.

Revenues collected in the form of user fees and similar operating cost-related fees

Current incomes divided by current expenses, not including debt. An OR of 1.0 is "break even." Most
systems should have an OR of 1.25 or higher.

In this case, time required for the investment made to get this analysis done to return that investment
through increased user and other fees

41



Peak Flow Capacity or
Demand

Proportional to Use Rates

Replacement Schedule

Replacement Reserves

Return on Investment

Snow Bird

Stormwater

Stormwater Management

System Development Charge,
or Fee

Test Year

Unit Charge

Usage Allowance

User Fee, User Charge, User
Rates

Variable Cost

Water Loss and Unbilled-for
Water

Working Capital, Net Income

Working Capital Goal or
Operating Reserves Goal

Definitions

The volume of service that a user could demand for a short period of time at full volume use. In water
systems, and generally in sewer systems, too, the peak flow capacity limiting factor is usually the size of the
customer's meter or service line. In electric systems, demand for each commercial and industrial customer
(and sometimes others) is usually calculated annually based upon the peak energy usage during a defined
short period.

Rates where the minimum charge recovers all fixed costs, the unit charge recovers all variable costs, the
unit charge is the same for all volume sold, and there is no usage allowance in the minimum charge. This
rate structure is similar to and often the same as cost-to-serve rates.

A timetable that describes equipment replacement and important repairs that are too infrequent and/or too
expensive to cover as annual operating costs but not so expensive that they need to be covered as capital
improvements.

Cash reserves used to fund the Replacement Schedule

In this case, the dollar amount or percentage of revenue gain enabled by this rate analysis. Related to
payback period

A customer, usually residential, that goes away during part of the year. Most commonly, these are people of
"means" who live in the north who "fly south" for the winter. But, this category includes everyone who is
absent for a significant part of the year but returns to their permanent residence.

Precipitation that falls on and then leaves a site, flows elsewhere, potentially causing or adding to flooding
and often carries with it sediment and pollutants,

The practice of reducing and mitigating off-site stormwater flows and impacts,

Fee assessed to pay for at least part of the cost to build system capacity. For purposes of this model, alf
charges related to connecting new customers will be "rolled together” into a system development charge,
usually including a charge that buys a new customer system capacity. This combined charge may be a few
hundred dollars for a residential customer, if little or no capacity costs are included. If capacity costs are
included, it could be many thousands of dollars for a large industrial customer. Similar terrns in common
use include "tap-on fee," "connection fee or charge," "hook-up fee," “impact fee," "availability charge,” and
"capacity charge.”

The one year period from which data was gathered to be the basis of the rate analysis, the starting place,
which is usually the last completed fiscal year. See related "analysis year."

This rate, charge or fee goes by other names, tco. It is the rate paid for water, sewer or other commodity
per unit of measurement, like per 1,000 galions or per 100 cubic feet. Generally, this charge shouid recover
variable costs.

The volume, if any, that is "given away" with the minimum charge. Most systems give away no volume
Those that give away an unlimited volume have what are called "flat rates” - a minimum charge only.

Fees assessed to customers for use of the system. This does not include system development charges,
late payment penalties or other types of charges,

Accounting and rate setting agree on this definition. For rate setting, a variable cost is one that rises and
falls as the customer uses the commodity. The simplest example is electricity used to treat and move water
around. While the power company assesses a minimum charge and demand charges to the water or other
utility that is "signed up” for electric service, the majority of the electric bill rises and falls with the volume of
water produced by that utility. Therefore, variable costs should be recovered with unit charges.

Measured by volume or percent, the part of a water system's net water production that does not reach
customers or is not billed to customers. This loss also includes billable volume lost due to under-registering
customer meters. "Unbilled-for water" includes water loss, but it also includes water actually given away at
no charge.

The amount left in the operating fund after paying ail costs due during that month, year or other time period

The desired operating fund reserve, in dollars or percent, at a stated point in time. Small systems (1,000
connections) generally should target 35 percent or greater. Larger systems can target a lower percentage
The goal for each system should be based upon the needs of that system and the risk the customers are
willing to take.

42



Table and Chart Descriptions

The tables and charts of this model tell a story about the rates and finances of the utility.

The tables you first see in this model depict utility data, like the rates that were being assessed to customers during the test year, the volume
of service those customers used, how much income the utility collected, what its costs were, and more. This data came from utility records. In
addition, the tables in this model go beyond the utility's historical data and include projections of incomes that will be generated by the new
rates, future expenses as they grow with inflation and other forward-looking features.

Tables in the middle part of the model primarily calculate new rates and fees that will generate enough revenue to pay the utility's costs over
time.

The tables in the last part of the model show the results of new rates and fees. Those include the rates themselves, surcharges to rates, if
appropriate, the affordability of the new rates, and reserves generated by the new rates. Many of these results as shown graphically in charts
at the end of the model.

As you progress through the model, keep this story in mind. You probably understand much the math performed by the model. There is some
you likely do not recognize, and that is OK. Just know that new, adequate rates were calculated based upon the utility's historical data,
projected into the future.

A final note: When a numbered table or chart listed below is not in the package, that was not a mistake. It simply means that table or chart
from our master program was not needed in this situation, so it was bypassed and left out.

Now, here are descriptions of the tables and charts.

Name What Each is or Does
Definitions (List) The meaning of terms used in this report and in rate setting generally
Return on Investment (Calculation) A summary of financial outcomes enabled by the proposed rates

User rates in effect at the end of the test year. Unless rates were recently changed, these are

Table 1-Rates the current rates.

Table 2 - Test Year Usage Compilation of actual volume of service used by customers during the test year

Table 3 - Basic User Data and Operating Basic user statistics and operating revenues, projected for 10 years, based on the assumption
Incomes the modeled rates and future inflationary increases will ber adopted

Table 4 - Operating Costs and Net Income  Operating costs projected for 10 years

Igﬁ:!? 5 - Capital Improvements Program Capital improvements and how they will be paid over next 10 years, including debt service
Table 6 - Equipment Replacement Schedule

- Detailed If applicable, detailed schedule of equipment replacements for next 20 years

Table 7 - Equipment Replacement Annuity  if applicable, calculation of the annual annuity (yearly savings amount) needed to pay for all
Calculation equipment replacements as they come due and ending with the desired balance

Sumation of a target year's costs and calculation of the "cost-of-service" rate structure basis for
Table 8 - Average Cost Classification recovery of fixed costs and variable costs. Unless directed to do otherwise, this analysis
developed cost-to-serve rates based on cost classification in this table.

Table 9 - Marginal Cost Classification If applicable, calculation of costs incurred to serve a specified type of customer
Table 10 - Initial Rate Adjustments and These are the modeled user rates and the resulting "blended" revenues they, and the current
Resulting Revenues rates, will generate during the rate adjustment year

If applicable, this table calculates the meter equivalent ratio, which is used for calculating peak
flow capacity-based system development fees, surcharges and revenues in Tables 13 through
16 for water meters, and when applicable, capacity costs for fire sprinklers.

Table 11 - AWWA Safe Operating Flow by
Meter Size

Table 11B - Fire Sprinkler Peak Flow

Capacity Factor If applicable, this table shows peak flow capacity shares of various size fire sprinkler systems.

43



Table 12 - Flow Capacity Costs

Table 12B - Capacity Costs Attributable to
Fire Sprinkler Systems

Table 13 - System Development Fees
Table 13B - System Development Fees for
Fire Sprinkler Systems

Table 14 - Revenues From System
Development Fees

Table 14B - Revenues From System
Development Fees for Fire Sprinkler
Systems

Tabie 15 - Minimum Charge Fees, Including
Capacity Surcharges

Table 15B - Sprinkler System Capacity
Charges

Table 16 - Revenues From Minimum Charge

Surcharges

Table 16B - Revenues From Sprinkler
System Charges

Table 17 - Financial Capacity Indicators and
Reserves

Table 18 - Bills Before and After Rate
Adjustments

Table 19 - User Statistics

Chart 1 - Operating Ratio

Chart 2 - Coverage Ratio

Chart 3 - 5,000 Gallon Residential User's
Bill

Chart 4 - Affordability Index

Chart 5 - Working Capital vs Goal
Chart 6 - Value of Cash Assets Before
Inflation

Chart 7 - Value of Cash Assets After
Inflation

Chart 8 - Sum of All Reserves

If applicable, calculation of the various costs to build base and peak flow capacity to serve
customers, when such fees will be based on water meter size

If applicable, nearly the same as Table 12, except it applies to fire suppression systems.

If applicable, calculation of meter size-based system development fees needed to recover costs
calculated in Table 11, when such fees will be based on water meter size.

if applicable, nearly the same as Table 13, except it applies to fire suppression systems

If applicable, calculation of total fee revenues that would be generated during one full year at the
fees in Table 13.

If applicable, nearly the same as Table 14, except it applies to fire suppression systems

If applicable, calculation of meter size-based capacity surcharges and minimum charges to
recover costs calculated in Table 11, when such fees will be based on water meter size

Nearly the same as Table 15, except it applies to fire suppression systems.

If applicable, calculation of total fee revenues that would be generated during one full year at the
fees in Table 15.

Nearly the same as Table 16, except it applies to fire suppression systems

Shows the financial effects of the modeled rates, costs, etc. on the utility and on the benchmark
5,000 gallon per month residential water or sewer customer, as appropriate

Bills at the modeled rates are compared to those under the current rates. Note: the modeled
bills do not include capacity surcharges to the minimum charges unless they are included in the
minimum charges column of Table 10.

If included, this table shows volumes and percentages of use, revenue generated and other
statistics

Graph of operating ratio for 10 years as a result of the modeled rates and the current rates

Graph of coverage ratios for 10 years of the modeled rates and the current rates

Graph of the bill for the benchmark 5,000 gallon per month residential user, with smallest
available meter size (used in grant and loan eligibility determinations) as a result of the modeled
rates, and the current rales

Graph of the affordability index for 10 years of the benchmark residential user's bill (used in
grant and loan eligibility determinations)

Graph for 10 years of total (unobligated) cash assets at modeled rates compared to the goal for
total cash assets

Graph for 10 years of unobligated cash assets NOT adjusted for inflation at modeled rates and
current rates

Graph for 10 years of unobligated cash assets adjusted for inflation at modeled rates and
current rates. This is the real buying power of cash reserves.

Graph of all reserves of all kinds at the modeled rates and at the current rates

44



Willard, MO, Water Rates Model 2024-3

Table 1 - Rates

If we received the now current rates for the tility, the current rates are in this table. Otherwise, these rates were in effect at the
end of the test year. If a volume range was left out of the table, rest assured, it is in the Mode! We just hid some volume ranges
to make the table and report shorter. In such cases, the unit charge that applies to next fowest volume range also applies to the
hidden volume ranges.

Customer Type,
Rate Ciass or
Meter Size

In-City Res, Irr,
Water Only

In-City
Commercial,
Irr, Water Only

Rural
Residential, Irr,
Water Only

Rural
Commercial,
Irr, Water Only

No Charge
("Zero")

Volume Range
Bottom
(in Gallons)

0

1,000
2,000
3,000
4,000
5,000
10,000
800,000

0

1,000
2,000
3,000
4,000
5,000
10,000
800,000

0

1,000
2,000
3,000
4,000
5,000
10,000
800,000

0

1,000
2,000
3,000
4,000
5,000
10,000
800,000

0
800,000

Rates in Effect Now

Volume Range Use Within Each

Top
(in Gallons)

999
1,999
2,999
3,999
4,999
5,999

19,999
800,001

999
1,999
2,999
3,999
4,999
5,999

19,999
800,001

999
1,999
2,999
3,999
4,999
5,999

19,999
800,001

999
1,899
2,999
3,999
4,999
5,999

19,999
800,000

999
800,001

Billing Cycle

RETIEHD [LOS0 Minimum Charge

Gallons

0.940 $15.28
0.872 $15.28
0.793 $15.28
0.733 $15.28
0.698 $15.28
0.682 $15.28
3.713 $15.28
0.000 $15.28
0.662 $15.28
0.736 $15.28
0.845 $15.28
0.878 $15.28
0.911 $15.28
0.905 $15.28
8.422 $15.28
0.000 $15.28
0.950 $16.63
0.902 $16.63
0.821 $16.63
0.765 $16.63
0.734 $16.63
0.739 $16.63
4.827 $16.63
0.000 $16.63
0.840 $16.63
0.777 $16.63
0.734 $16.63
0.794 $16.63
0.963 $16.63
0.910 $16.63
4.081 $16.63
0.000 $16.63
0.705 $0.00
0.000 $0.00

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3

Usage
Allowance in
1,00

1.000
1.000
1.000
1.000
1.000
1.000
1.000
1.000

1.000
1.000
1.000
1.000
1.000
1.000
1.000
1.000

1.000
1.000
1.000
1.000
1.000
1.000
1.000
1.000

1.000
1.000
1.000
1.000
1.000
1.000
1.000
1.000

0.000
0.000

Unit Charge

0s PE 1,000 Gallons

$2.86
$2.86
$2.86
$2.86
$2.86
$2.86
$2.86
$2.86

$2.86
$2.86
$2.86
$2.86
$2.86
$2.86
$2.86
$2.86

$3.12
$3.12
$3.12
$3.12
$3.12
$3.12
$3.12
$3.12

$3.12
$3.12
$3.12
$3.12
$3.12
$3.12
$3.12
$3.12

$0.00
$0.00

45



This table shows usage by all customers during the test year

Test year = the one-year period being analyzed starts: 1/1/2023

Table 2 - Test Year Usage

Willard, MO, Water Rates Model 2024-3

Date this model created: 7/3/2024

Residential meter readings per year: 12

Other customer readings per year: 12

Bills per year: 12

Cusoner Rt Casscr VTSNS VOTER  senean DI et T e
(in Gallons) (in Galions}) in Each Range Each Range

0 999 26,483,139 142 3.8% 0.0%

1,000 1,999 23,082,000 283 7.6% 1.5%

2,000 2,999 18,315,000 397 10.7% 4.3%

3,000 3,999 13,425,000 408 11.0% 6.6%

4,000 4,999 9,375,000 338 9.1% 7.3%

5,000 5,999 6,394,000 248 6.7% 6.7%

6,000 6,999 4,454,000 162 4.3% 5.2%

7,000 7,999 3,136,000 110 3.0% 4.1%

8,000 8,999 2,364,000 64 1.7% 2.8%

9,000 9,999 1,754,000 51 1.4% 2.5%

) 10,000 19,999 6,513,000 121 3.3% 8.1%

In-Eity Rg‘:i'"' Muater 20,000 29,999 1,864,000 16 0.4% 2.0%

Y 30,000 39,999 750,000 5 0.1% 0.8%

40,000 49,999 447,000 2 0.1% 0.5%

50,000 59,999 221,000 1 0.0% 0.4%

60,000 69,999 145,000 0 0.0% 0.1%

70,000 79,999 108,000 0 0.0% 0.1%

80,000 89,999 72,000 0 0.0% 0.1%

90,000 99,999 70,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

100,000 199,999 203,000 1 0.0% 0.3%

200,000 299,999 53,000 0 0.0% 0.1%

300,000 399,999 0 0 0.0% 0.0%

119,228,139 2,349 63.2% 53.4%

0 999 1,379,000 59 1.6% 0.0%

1,000 1,999 1,015,000 30 0.8% 0.2%

2,000 2,999 858,000 13 0.4% 0.1%

3,000 3,999 753,000 9 0.2% 0.1%

4,000 4,999 686,000 6 0.2% 0.1%

5,000 5,999 621,000 5 0.1% 0.1%

6,000 6,999 583,000 3 0.1% 0.1%

7,000 7,999 556,000 2 0.1% 0.1%

8,000 8,999 518,000 3 0.1% 0.1%

9,000 9,999 488,000 3 0.1% 0.1%

10,000 19,999 4,110,000 11 0.3% 0.9%

20,000 29,999 3,029,000 7 0.2% 1.0%

In-City Commercial, T, 30,000 39,999 2,263,000 5 0.1% 1.0%

Water Only 40,000 49,999 1,687,000 5 0.1% 1.3%

50,000 59,999 1,220,000 2 0.1% 0.6%

60,000 69,999 977,000 2 0.1% 0.8%

70,000 79,999 714,000 1 0,0% 0.6%

80,000 89,999 616,000 1 0.0% 0.3%

90,000 99,999 533,000 1 0.0% 0.4%

100,000 199,999 2,905,000 3 0.1% 2.0%

200,000 299,999 1,212,000 1 0.0% 1.1%

300,000 399,999 517,000 0 0.0% 0.6%

400,000 499,999 186,000 0 0.0% 0.4%

500,000 599,999 37,000 0 0.0% 0.2%

600,000 699,999 0 0 0.0% 0.0%

27,463,000 174 4.7% 12.3%

CBGreatRates® Version 8.3

46



Table 2 - Test Year Usage

Volume Range Volume Range . # of Customers % of Customers .

Custom“;;,t:ragzglass or Bottom Top Ran L;s":e‘ gjlzﬁz That "Maxed Qut’ That "Maxed Out" in % Of;:;:l g:: '2
(in Gallons) (in Gallons) 9 in Each Range Each Range 9

0 999 13,346,000 59 1.6% 0.0%

1,000 1,999 12,042,000 109 2.9% 0.6%

2,000 2,999 9,882,000 180 4.8% 1.9%

3,000 3,999 7,557,000 194 5.2% 3.1%

4,000 4,999 5,546,000 168 4.5% 3.6%

5,000 5,899 4,098,000 121 3.2% 3.2%

6,000 6,999 3,026,000 89 2.4% 2.9%

7,000 7,999 2,333,000 58 1.6% 2.2%

8,000 8,999 1,827,000 42 1.1% 1.8%

9,000 9,999 1,477,000 29 0.8% 1.4%

. . 10,000 19,999 7,130,000 87 2.3% 6.0%

RAEIRESioectl . 20,000 29,999 2,605,000 21 0.6% 27%

Water Only

30,000 38,999 1,142,000 8 0.2% 1.4%

40,000 49,999 598,000 3 0.1% 0.7%

50,000 58,999 368,000 2 0.0% 0.5%

60,000 69,999 244,000 1 0.0% 0.2%

70,000 79,999 197,000 1 0.0% 0.2%

80,000 89,999 132,000 0 0.0% 0.2%

90,000 99,998 98,000 0 0.0% 0.1%

100,000 199,999 392,000 1 0.0% 0.4%

200,000 289,999 84,000 0 0.0% 0.2%

300,000 399,999 0 ] 0.0% 0.0%

74,124,000 1,171 31.5% 33.2%

0 999 179,000 3 0.1% 0.0%

1,000 1,999 139,000 3 0.1% 0.0%

2,000 2,999 102,000 3 0.1% 0.0%

3,000 3,999 81,000 2 0.0% 0.0%

4,000 4,999 78,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

5,000 5,999 71,000 1 0.0% 0.0%

6,000 6,999 65,000 1 0.0% 0.0%

7,000 7,999 58,000 1 0.0% 0.0%

8,000 8,999 45,000 1 0.0% 0.0%

. 9,000 9,999 37,000 1 0.0% 0.0%

Rrs| Cemmegrial, im 10,000 19,999 151,000 3 0.1% 0.2%

Water Only

20,000 29,999 50,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

30,000 39,999 30,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

40,000 49,999 12,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

50,000 59,999 10,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

60,000 69,999 10,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

70,000 79,999 10,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

80,000 89,999 10,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

90,000 99,999 2,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

100,000 199,999 0 0 0.0% 0.0%

1,140,000 18 0.5% 0.5%

CBGreatRates® Version 8.3



Table 2 - Test Year Usage

Customer, Ratg Class or Volume;; a“”fr: Volume Raf?g; Uge in Each Th:to‘!h?:;:m&mni Thaﬁh:;f:;t(c;zltfzrs\ % of Total Use in
MStenSies (in Gallons) (in Gallons) RangelinlCalons in Each Range Each Range Each Range
0 999 67,000 2 0.1% 0.0%

1,000 1,999 57,000 1 0.0% 0.0%

2,000 2,999 47,000 1 0.0% 0.0%

3,000 3,999 40,000 1 0.0% 0.0%

4,000 4,999 38,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

5,000 5,999 35,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

6,000 6,999 30,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

7,000 7,999 29,000 V] 0.0% 0.0%

8,000 8,999 23,000 1 0.0% 0.0%

9,000 9,999 19,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

10,000 19,999 97,000 1 0.0% 0.1%

20,000 29,999 61,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

No Charge ("Zero") 30,000 39,999 50,000 "] 0.0% 0.0%
40,000 49,999 48,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

50,000 59,998 36,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

60,000 69,999 29,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

70,000 79,999 20,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

80,000 89,999 20,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

90,000 99,999 17,000 [¥] 0.0% 0.0%

100,000 199,999 100,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

200,000 299,999 100,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

300,000 399,999 100,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

400,000 499,999 58,000 0 0.0% 0.2%

500,000 599,999 0 0 0.0% 0.0%

1,121,000 8 0.2% 0.5%

Grand Totals: 223,076,139 3,719 100% 100%

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3



Table 3 - Operating Incomes and Basic User Data
Willard, MO, Water Rates Model 2024-3

This table depicts usar statrebcs customer growth and system ncames and across the board “mifationary” styla rate incresses through the 10th year

Annual Median Household Income (AMHI) Test Year Growth of Customer Base and Average Tap Fee Paid per Connection
$76,681 Census Bureau estimate of AMHI for the year 2022 40 Number new Water connections made during test year
$39,565 Census Bureau estimate of AMHI for the year 2000 $811 Average Water tap or installalion fee assessed during the test year

$37,116  AMHI growth during this time period
4.26% Simple annual income growth rate during this time period (used to project future househaold incomes})

Thrs model 1s programmed for ias ta be resst n e “Analyxis Year,” aiso called the 0 Year” column bekow (heading highiighted blus) Reverues wil be colectd at the now-current mins for the first part of the analyss year and the modaied rates far the lact part of the
analysis yoar Thus the revenues shown that column of the table are “biendad” ravenues part collectad s the oid rates and part collected at the new rates. ftwas then assumed that ail e adjustmants made afier the mitml {mayor) adjustment wa ba done annuaty on

p y of the first adj [f rates will not be adjustad dunng the "0 Year,” an adjustment {normally a revenue reduction) was calcuatad below o account for the Rte startin making the first adpstmants
Basic User (Customer) Data Analysis Year Years Following the Analysis Year (for Which Results Have Been Projected)
Fi * b et w
[sum';;;;:_;:;r: ":::: oty Inflation/ Test Year 0 Year| 1st Year 2nd Year 3rd Year 4th Year Sth Year 6th Year 7th Year 8th Year 9th Year 10th Year
(P)e:::g: Starting Starting Starting Starting Starting Slarting Starting Starting Starting Starting Starting Starting
11/23 11724 11125 171126 11/27 111728 111729 11120 1131 111132 11433 171134
[ Fate Increases Projected for Fulure Years NA NA NA. 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 40% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%
Th rerw abave shiws fv o atwhich user charge leos should ba incroasad for sach year beyond the infbal rate adj year. Unloss . hirse shauld
[ba across-the-board increasas to all rates and fees and that should continua unbl a new rate analysss is done
Average Number of Custorners NA 379 3,758 3799 3,839 3,879 391¢ 3959 1589 4039 4,080 4,120 4,160
Customers Added or Lost ( - } Each Year NA. 0 ‘401 40.1 4001 L] 40 40 400 40,1 401 40,0 40
Customer Growth or Loss ( - ) Rats NA 1.08% 1.07% 1.06% 1.04% 103% 102% 1.01% 1.00% 099% 098% 097% 0.96%
TeSTYaRgIASRRIan Prelee e e e NA 223076130 225480952| 227,885,764 230200577 232695389 235,100,202 237,505,014 230,909,827 242314639 244,719,452 247124264 249,529,077

Calculated User Charge Fees. Accounting for New Customers and Future Rate Increasas Over the Years

Actual or Calculated Sales Revenues $1113.358  $1.121,846] $1731,117 $1.619,360 $1,911893 $2008918 52,110,646 $2217297 $2329,104 $2446.308 $2569,161 32,697 929

Addibonal Sales Revenues From Now Customers s33|  siszes  s1mom9  $10750 520549  SAUAT 322226 523115 §24.030 525001 526,001

Total Caleulated Revenues (User Charge Faes) $1113.358 1121873 S17A2385 §1830,350 1,031,652 52029467 $2.132017 §2208.523 2352219 52470347 §$2594162 $2,723,930
Operating Incomes

Water Sales - Al (Including Taxes) NA  $1.052625 $1084253 $1643.933 $1727544 $1815213 $1,007.132 $2003,500 $2,104526 $2210429 52321436 $2437788 $2,559,733

PENALTY INCOME-WATER NA $42.382  $42.834|  $43286  $43738  §44,190  $44642  $45004  $45546 545998  $46450 546902 347355

VETER REPLACEMENT/INSTALLATIONS-W % Above  $32,500  $32,411|  $32411  $32411  S32411  $32411  $32.411  §32411  $32411  §32411  $32411  $32411

Adpsed Meter Szerkased Flant fuostneni 2253 9 Above $0 so|  $338s7  $33857  $338S7  $33.857  $33857  $33857  $33857  $336857  $33857  $33.857

Interest incoma NA $37,796 $5,901 $5,843 55,942 $6.182 $6,500 96,687 $7,337 $7,304 $7,564 57,860 $8,261

MISCELLANEOUS INCOME-WATER NA 7,001 s7011|  s10932  s11488  $12,071  $12682  $13323  $13995  $14699  §15437 516211 $17,022

CONVENIENGE FEE-WATER NA $19.752  $19752|  sfe752  s19752  $19,752  §19752  §$19752  $19,752  $19,752  §19752  $19752  $19,752

TRANSFER IN-WATER NA 50 50 $0 50 50 50 $0 50 $0 50 50 50

GAPITAL ASSET SALES-WATER NA $7.103 7,103 $7,103 $7,103 57,103 $7,103 $7.103 57,103 $7.103 $7.103 $7.103 $7.103

Revenue Loss ( - ) Due to Conservalion S0% . 50 S0 S17.942 52,544 -$2668 -$2,797 -52.932 53,074 53322 -53,378 -$3,540 -53,710

Total Operating Incomes $1199,959  $1169,055| $1779.176 $1879,292 $1968,113 $2,061,283 $2,158,795 S2I61454 52,368,361 $2,480,633 52,508,344 $2,721783

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3 4 9



Table 4 - Operating Costs and Net Income

Willard, MO, Water Rates Model 2024-3

Thus table depicts expenses dunng the testyear this year and for the next 10 yoars Some future costs will expenence nhation Those costs that go up as use goes up are mcreased by the cost inflaton facter plus the grawth rate m users

;':':;’::’ ":5': ::f’) netincomes are getyal subsequent "”",?:: Years Following the Analysis Year (for Which Results Have Been Projected)
g‘jﬂa:&: Test Year 0 Yom 1st Year 2nd Year 3rd Year 4th Year Slh Year 6lh Year 7lh Year ath Year 9th Year  10th Year
© Starting Stating Starting Starling Starting Slarting Starling Starling Starting Starting Starling Starting
Expenza ltems Factor 11723 11724 11725 11726 11727 11728 11728 1/11/30 11431 11/32 1/1/33 1/1/34
CHEMICALS-WATER 40% 6,104 59570 $10,057 $10 569 $11.105 511,668 $12,257 $12,875 $13,523 514,202 S14.814 $15,660
SUPPLIES-WATER 4.0% $50,757 $52,787 $54,899 $57,085 $59,378 $61,754 $64,224 $66,793 $69,464 872,243 $75,133 $78,138
LABORATORY FEES-WATER 4.0% $1,997 $2,077 $2,160 $2,246 $2,336 $2,430 $2,527 $2,628 $2,733 $2,842 $2,956 $3,074
LABORATORY SUPPLIES-WATER 4.0% $5,233 55443 $5,660 $5,887 $6,122 $6,367 $6,622 $6,887 $7,162 $7,448 7,746 $8,056
PERMIT FEES-WATER 4.0% 80 30 $0 $0 0 80 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
BUILDING MAINTENANCE-WATER 4.0% $89 582 $96 $100 §104 $108 $112 $117 $122 $126 $132 $137
CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES-WATER 4.0% $172 5179 $186 $194 $202 $210 $218 $227 $236 $245 $255 $265
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE-WATER 4.0% $0 30 $0 $0 50 S0 30 80 $0 $0 $0 $0
OFFICE SUPPLIES-WATER 4.0% $4.607 4.TH $4,983 $5,182 $5,388 $5,605 $5,829 $6,062 $6,305 $6,557 $6,819 $7,092
POSTAGE-WATER 4.0% $11,279 $11.856 $12,460 $13,094 $13,758 $14,455 $15,185 $15,951 $16,754 $17,595 $18.477 $19.401
REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE-WATER 4.0% $62,506 585,807 $89,238 $92,809 $96,521 $100,382 $104,397 $108,573 $112,916 $117,432 $122,130 $127,015
SUPPLIES SMALL EQUIPMENT-WATER 4.0% $11,080 $11,524 11,985 $12,464 $12,963 $13.48t $14,020 $14,581 $15,164 $15,771 $16,402 $17,058
METER REPLACEMENT-WATER 4.0% $13.821 514374 $14,949 $15,547 $16,169 $16,815 $17,488 $18,188 $18,915 $18,672 $20,459 $21,277
ADVERTISING-WATER 4.0% $105 s108 $114 $118 $123 £128 $133 $138 $144 $149 $155 $162
AUDIT EXPENSE-WATER 40% $6,880 $7,155 $7,441 $7.739 $8.049 $8,371 $8,705 $9,054 $9,416 $9,792 $10.184 $10,591
BANK/CREDIT CARD FEES-WATER 4.0% 822,707 $23.887 $25,084 $26,360 $27,697 $29,100 $30,570 $32,112 $33,728 $35,421 $37,197 $39,058
CONTRACT LABOR-WATER 4.0% $2,546 $2,648 $2,754 $2,864 $2,978 $3,098 $3,222 $3,350 $3.484 $3,624 $3,769 $3,919
DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS-WATER 4.0% $2,161 $2,248 $2,338 $2,431 $2,529 $2,630 $2,735 $2,844 $2,958 $3,076 $3,199 $3,327
EQUIPMENT RENTAL-WATER 4.0% $5,895 $6,130 $6,376 $6,631 $6,896 $7,172 $7,459 $7,757 $8,067 $6,390 $8,726 $9,075
INSURANCE-WATER 4.0% $32,225 $33,514 $34 855 $36,249 $37,699 $39,207 $40,775 $42,406 $44,102 $45,866 $47,701 $49,609
LEGAL-WATER 4.0% $102 $106 11 $115 $120 $124 $129 $135 $140 $146 $151 $157
PROFESSIONAL-WATER 4.0% $21,961 $22,839 $23,753 $24,703 §25,691 $26,719 $27,788 $28 893 $30,055 $31,257 $32,508 $33,808
SAFETY PROGRAM-WATER 4.0% $581 $604 $628 $653 $680 $707 $735 $764 $795 $827 $860 5894
TRAVEL EXPENSE-WATER 4.0% $411 5428 $445 $462 $481 $500 $520 $541 $563 $585 $608 $633
TRAINING & EDUCATION-WATER 4.0% $2,769 52,880 $2,995 $3,115 $3,238 $3,369 $3,504 $3,644 $3,790 $3,941 $4,088 $4,263
RENT-WATER 4.0% $1,250 $1.300 $1,352 $1,408 $1,462 $1,521 $1,582 $1,645 $1,711 $1.779 $1,850 $1,924
EQUPMENTISOFTWARE CONTRACTS 4 4o 510342 So0.116| 520020  §21757  §22627  S23533  S20474  S254%3  S26471  S27530  s631 20776
TELEPHONE WATER 40% $2,217 $2.308 $2,398 $2,494 $2,594 $2,697 52,805 $2,918 $3,034 $3,156 $3,282 $3,413
INTERNET-WATER 4.0% $5,846 £5,080) $6,323 $6,576 $6,838 $7,113 $7,397 $7,693 $8,001 $8,321 38,654 $9,000
UTILITIES ELECTRIC-WATER 4.0% $109,887 $115,501 $121,388 $127,563 $134,037 $140,824 $147,940 $155,400 $163,220 $171.416 $180,008 $189,012
UTILITIES GAS-WATER 4.0% $3,788 53,940/ $4,097 $4,261 $4,432 $4,609 $4,793 $4,985 $5,184 $5,382 $5,608 $5,832
UTILITIES OTHER-WATER 4.0% $2,203 52.282 $2,383 $2,479 $2,578 $2,681 $2,788 $2,500 $3,015 $3,136 $3,262 $3,392
VEHICLE EXPENSE FUEL-WATER 4.0% $11,501 $11,861 $12,440 $12,937 $13.455 $13,993 $14,553 $15,135 $15,740 $16,370 $17,025 $17,706
EQUIPMENT FUEL-WATER 4.0% $1,662 $1.728] $1,797 51,869 $1,944 $2,022 $2,102 $2,187 $2,274 $2,365 $2.460 $2,558
VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT-WATER 4.0% $7,341 $7.824 $7.940 $6,257 $8,588 $8,931 $9,288 $9,660 $10,046 $10,448 $10,866 $11,301
EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT-WATER 4.0% $3,805 53,857 $4,115 $4,280 $4,451 $4,629 $4.814 $5,007 $5,207 $5,416 $5,632 $5,857
VEHICLE LEASE-WATER 4.0% $21,470 522 329/ $23222 524,151 $25,117 $26,122 $27.167 $28,253 $29,383 $30,559 $31,781 $33,052

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3

50



Table 4 - Operating Costs and Net Income

B’j;:hf’:r( Test Year 0 Yaar 1st Year 2nd Year 3rd Year 4th Year Sth Year 6th Year 7th Year 8th Year 9th Year  10th Year

[ Starting Starhing| Starling Starting Starting Starting Starting Slarting Starling Starting Starting Starting

Expense Items Factor 11723 11724] 111725 111726 1127 11728 11729 11130 171131 11432 1/1/33 11/34
EQUIPMENT LEASE 40% $3,179 33,3068 $3,439 $3,576 $3,719 53,868 4021 $4,184 $4,351 $4,525 $4,706 $4,894

SALARIES-WATER 4.0% $444,622 5462 407 $480,904 $500,140 $520,145 $540,951 $562,589 $585,093 $608,496 $632,836 $658,150 $684 476

SALARIES OVERTIME-WATER 4.0% $11,609 £12.074 $12,557 $13,059 $13,581 $14,124 $14,689 $15277 $15,888 $16,524 $17,184 $17,872
PAYROLL TAXES-WATER 4.0% $34,147 £35512 $36,933 $38.411 $39,947 $41,545 $43,207 $44,835 $46,733 $48,602 $50,546 $52,568
RETIREMENT-WATER 40% $19,342 520,118 $20,921 $21,758 $22,628 $23,533 $24,474 $25,453 $26,471 $27,530 $28,631 $29,777
PENSION EXPENSE-WATER 4.0% $0 50| $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
UNIFORMS-WATER 4.0% $628 654 $680 $707 $735 $765 $795 $827 $860 $895 $930 $968

GROUP INSURANCE-WATER 4.0% $88,455 £91,903 $85,673 $99,500 $103,480 $107,619 $111,924 $116,401 $121,057 $125,899 $130,935 $136,173
CAPITAL ASSET EXP-WATER 4.0% 590,716 Table § Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5
FAPITAL ASSET EXPEGUIPMENT-WATER.  NA.  s24721  sze500 'sia7so  sidooo  $i3,0000 S10.000  SE5000  S13.000  S130000 510000  S10000  S§13.000
PRINCIPAL EXPENSE-WATER 0.0% Table 5 Table & Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5
INTEREST EXPENSE-WATER 0.0% Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5

FISCAL AGENT FEES-WATER 4.0% $1,500 51.560 $1,622 $1,687 $1,755 $1,825 $1,898 $1,974 $2,053 $2,135 $2,220 $2,309

BAD DEBT EXPENSE-WATER 4.0% $0 50 $0 $0 30 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TRANSFER TO GCG-WATER 4.0% $0 50 $0 $0 $0 30 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Annual Payment to R&R Reserve (Table 7) 00% $0 50 $0 30 $0 30 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

User Charge Analysis Services 50% $0 511395 $0 $0 $12,563 $0 30 $13,851 $0 $0 $15,270 $0

Total CIP-reiated Payouts NA Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table S Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table § Table 5

Total Operating Costs  $1,198,225 $1,168,690| 51,188,422 $1,236,494 $1,209,905 §1,337,301 $1,467,457 $1,466,753 $1,512732 51,572,043 $1,652,210 $1,707,529

Net Income (or Loss) $1,135 S6G5 $590,755 $642,798 $668,208 $723,982 $691,338 $794,701 $855,630 $908,590 $946,134 $1,014254

Working Capital Goal 50% In Dollars, That is: $599,112 5584,245 $594,211 $618,247 $649,953 $668,650 $733,729 $733,377 $756,366 $786,022 $826,105 $853,765
Notes: Most expenses are expected lo rise by four percent each year. The green highli d are d to do that, plus rise as new customers connect and use more water. Also, principal and interest expenses are

related to capital improvemernts, so those are handled in Table 5. The gold highlighted item has the same name as an expense in the CIP, but Lhis cost is quite minor compared to the CIP costs, so | left this one in the expense
lable.

CBGreatRates© Version 8.3 5 1



Table 5 - Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
Willard, MO, Water Rates Model 2024-3

T R DI Gt Aniysis rw] Years Folowng the Analyss Year (for Wiech Improvemnent Projects, Costs, Fundeng, etc Have Been Progcted)
Cosin reflect inflation
Tarat Yeus 0 e 1al Year 2nd Year 3rd Year th Yoar Gt Year Gy Year 7lh Year 8th Year Oth Year A0th Yieas
Starting Starfirg] Staring Startry Starting Startng Starning Staiteig Starting Slaring Slarling Slarting
1Hi2a L 11725 s ni7 17128 1129 1130 1131 11532 111133 i34
Planned Spanding, Debt-paid Portion of Projects (CIP costs to be funded with loans are shown m this section.)
Cily Well Located Main City 0 50 $0 $0 $1,311,272 s0 30 §0 30 £0 0 80
Waler Storage Tower 50 L] $0 30 $0  $2,025,916 $0 50 50 $0 $0 30
Total Debl-paid Portion of Projects 0 ] $0 $0  $1311272 $2.026916 0 $0 50 50 30 50
Planned Spending, Grant-paid Portion of Projects (CIF costs to be grant-funded are shown fere. |
Total Grant-paid Portion of Projecls 50 SO| 56 50 50 50 50 $0 30 50 $0 1]
Planned Spending, Cash-paid Portion of Projects (CIP costs to be funded from reserves are shown here.)
(Captaligesels [ SeelCis Ca""a,',:;",’;"g’;:ﬂ; s0  sieason| 3498203 $460431  $310,334  $455831 5294456  $254333  $400548  $425635  $242688 5415270
Total Cash-paid Portion of Projects $0 5353,500| $499.203 $480.431 £310.33% 5455,831 5294456 $354333 205,548 $425,635 5242688 5415270
Total CIP Costs S0 $353.500 $499,293 $460,431 S1621.807 52481747 529445 $254,333 $409,548 $425,635 $242,686 $415,270
Debt Repayment
Exisling Debt Payments (Followang rs debt that was inttiated duning the test year or earlier }
Water/Sewer 2014 and 2018 COPs, Water Parlion $98,791 $101,028 $100,644 $100,178 $99,631 $96,544 30 S0 30 30 $0 $0
New Debl Paymenis (Following are payments for prajects to be paid with new debt ILis assumed Ihese will be loan/lease-financed for a term of. 10 years at a 50% imMerest rate )
COP for Well $169 816 $168 816 3169 816 $169,816 $169.816 $169.816 $169 816
COP for Tower $262,365 $262,365 S$262.365 S262.365 5252365 5262365
Total Debt Payments $98,791 5101.028 S100.644 $100,178 589,631 5266,350 5432181 5432181 £432.181 S432.181 $432.181 5432.181
Total CIP-related Payouts $98,791 $454,528 $599,936 $560,609 $1,721,238 52,748,108 $726,637 $686,514 $841,729 $857.816 $674,869 $847,451

(Thss 1s the total cash required for this CIP and debt payment schedule. These amounts must come from utility income, reserves or outside sources, as shown in (he next sechon |

CIP Fund Sources (Followng are the sources and amouwrts of funds expected to pay for the above CIP scheduie )
Cash Reserves (Intemal Funds)

Debt and CIP Reserves Starting Balance $0 $861,750 $439,889 $429,640 $496,386 $732,850 $730,601 $644,836 $766,271 $772,508 $B09,077  $1,056,440
‘Working Capital Transferred in $960,541 $15,432 $580,889 $618,762 $636,502 $705,284 $626,260 $795,053 £832,640 $878,935 $306,051 $986,595
Debt and CIP Reserves Interest Earned (or Paud) 30 $17.235 $8,798 $8,593 59928 514 857 314,512 S12E07 $15.325 $15.450 $16,182 $21,122
Total Available Indernal Funds $960,541 $894,418| $1,029576 51,056,995 $1,142816 51452791 S1371473 S1452785 §1,614237 $1,666893 $1731,309 52,064,163

Grant and Loan Proceeds (External Funds)
Grants Assumed in Second Sub-section Above $0 20 30 30 $0 $0 §0 $0 $0 30 30 S0
COP for Well $1,311,272 $0 50 30 50 $0 50 30
COP for Tower $2.025.916 50 50 50 $0 $0 $0
Total Available External Funds 50 50 £0 £0 51311272 52035876 50 50 53 50 30 $0
Tatal Available Funds $940,541 S!H.liﬂ $1.029.576 S1.056.905 S$2.454088 S3478707 ST.ITI.473  S1452785  $1.614.237 $1.886,891  §1731,309 52084163

Quicomes (This CIP spanding and furding plan will result in the faliovang cash neecis and ending baiinces each year |

Total Available Funds $960,541 $894,418 $1,029,576 $1,056,995 $2,454,088  $3,478,707 §1,371,473 $1452785 1,614,237 §$1,666,893  $1,731,309 $2,064,163
Total CIP-related Payouls $98,791 $454,528 $599,936 $560,609  $1,721,238  $2,748,106 $726,637 $686,514 $841,729 $857,816 §674,869 $847,451
Debt and CIP Reserves Ending Balances $861,750 $439,889 $429,640 $496,386 $732,850 $730,601 $644,836 $766,271 $772,508 $809,077  $1,056.440 51,216,712

Notes The City has a capttal improvements plan, from which the abave project data came. | assumed Lhe expensive projects not related to equipment repair and replacement will be funded 75% by loans, and 25% by grants Other

projects are generally not eligible for grants and loans, so those are to be funded with utility reserves and incomes

CBGreatRates© Version 8.3

52



Table 5B: City's Water Capital Improvements (with edits by GettingGreatRates.com to make transfer to the models
easier and clearer)

Capital Assets Annual Sum Annual Sum
Year Description Equip CashPaid [Riycerdsssts COPFad
2024  Water Imp.-Pipe Replacement 5,000 353,500 -
Water Meters 60,000
5 Yr Water Loss Project 20,000
Meadows Water Tower Exterior 115,000
Langston water line 12,000
Mark Water Line/valve replace 25,000
Pole Barn 10,000
Public Works Building 75,000
Vehicle Lease Equipment 7,000
Badger Box 7,500
Missions Update 14,000
Pipe Cutter Saw 3,000
2025  Water Imp.-Pipe Replacement 100,000 484,750 -
Water Meters 60,000
Misc - TBD 1,000
5 Yr Water Loss Project 20,000
Meadows Water Tower Interior 135,000
Water Towers Restoration 150,000
Equipment 5,000
Jack Hammer Attachment (33 water-33% ¢ 3,750

Generator 10,000



Year
2026

2027

2028

Description
Water Imp.-Pipe Replacement
Water Meters
Misc - TBD
School Water Tower Interior
Meadows Stand Storage
Meadows Well Pump
Computer (2)
Equipment

Water Imp.-Pipe Replacement
Water Meters

Misc - TBD

School Water Tower Exterior
City Well Located Main City
Computer (2)

Equipment

Water Imp.-Pipe Replacement
Water Meters

Booster Water Pump

Small Water Tower Interior
Meadows Stand Storage
Water Storage Tower
Equipment

Capital Assets Annual Sum Annual St

Eauip

100,000
60,000
1,000
135,000
75,000
40,000
3,000
20,000

100,000
45,000
1,000
115,000

3,000
20,000

100,000
45,000
30,000

135,000
75,000

20,000

Cash Paid BiggerAssets COP Paid |

434,000 =

284,000 1,200,000
1,200,000

405,000 1,800,000
1,800,000

54



Year
2029

2030

2031

2032

Description
Water Imp.-Pipe Replacement
Water Meters
Equipment
Backhoe (50% water-50%sewer)
Missions Update

Water Imp.-Pipe Replacement
Water Meters

Booster Water Pump
Meadows Stand Storage
Computer (2)

Equipment

Water Imp.-Pipe Replacement
Meadows Water Tower Exterior
Water Meters

Computer (2)

Equipment

Water Imp.-Pipe Replacement
Water Meters

Meadows Water Tower Interior
Booster Water Pump
Meadows Stand Storage
Equipment

Capital Assets Annual Sum
Cash Paid

Equip
100,000
45,000
20,000
75,000
14,000

15,000
45,000
30,000
100,000
3,000
20,000

150,000
115,000
45,000
3,000
20,000

1,000
50,000
135,000
30,000
100,000
20,000

254,000

213,000

333,000

336,000

55



Capital Assets  Annual Sum ‘Annual S um.

Year Description Equip Cash Paid Bigger Assets COPPaid |
2033  Water Imp.-Pipe Replacement 1,000 186,000 -
Meadows Water Tower Exterior 115,000
Water Meters 50,000
Equipment 20,000
2034  Water imp.-Pipe Replacement 1,000 309,000 -
Water Meters 50,000
School Water Tower Interior 135,000
Meadows Stand Storage 100,000
Computer (2) 3,000
Equipment 20,000

3,692,250 3,000,000



Table 8 - Average Cost Classification
Willard, MO, Water Rates Model 2024-3

This table distributes costs from a representative year (the "average rate structure basis year) to fixed and variable categories (see Definitions) in
order to calculate the "cost of service" rate structure for that year.

The average rate structure basis year runs from: 1/1/2028 through 12/31/2028
Cost Items During the Basis Year Cg:;i5$;g$ Fixed Cost % Ml Co:}: Fixed Cost| Variable Cost
CHEMICALS-WATER $11,668 0.0% 100.0% $0 $11,668
SUPPLIES-WATER $61,754 50.0% 50.0% $30.877 $30,877
LABORATORY FEES-WATER $2,430 100.0% 0.0% $2.430 $0
LABORATORY SUPPLIES-WATER $6,367 100.0% 0.0% $6,367 $0
PERMIT FEES-WATER $0 100.0% 0.0% $0 $0
BUILDING MAINTENANCE-WATER $108 100.0% 0.0% $108 30
CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES-WATER $210 100.0% 0.0% $210 $0
MISCELLANEQUS EXPENSE-WATER $0 100.0% 0.0% $0 $0
OFFICE SUPPLIES-WATER $5,605 100.0% 0.0% $5,605 $0
POSTAGE-WATER $14,455 100.0% 0.0% $14.455 $0
REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE-WATER $100,382 50.0% 50.0% $50,191 $50,191
SUPPLIES SMALL EQUIPMENT-WATER $13,481 50.0% 50.0% $6,741 $6,741
METER REPLACEMENT-WATER $16,815 0.0% 100.0% $0 $16,815
ADVERTISING-WATER $128 100.0% 0.0% $128 $0
AUDIT EXPENSE-WATER $8,371 100.0% 0.0% $8,371 $0
BANK/CREDIT CARD FEES-WATER $29,100 39.1% 60.9% $11,378 $17,722
CONTRACT LABOR--WATER $3,098 25.0% 75.0% $774 $2,323
DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS-WATER $2,630 25.0% 75.0% $657 $1,972
EQUIPMENT RENTAL-WATER $7,172 50.0% 50.0% $3,586 $3,586
INSURANCE-WATER $39,207 100.0% 0.0% $39,207 $0
LEGAL-WATER $124 100.0% 0.0% $124 $0
PROFESSIONAL-WATER $26,719 25.0% 75.0% $6,680 $20,039
SAFETY PROGRAM-WATER $707 100.0% 0.0% $707 $0
TRAVEL EXPENSE-WATER $500 25.0% 75.0% $125 $375
TRAINING & EDUCATION-WATER $3,369 25.0% 75.0% $842 $2,527
RENT-WATER $1,521 50.0% 50.0% $760 $760
EQUIPMENT/SOFTWARE CONTRACTS-WATER $23,533 100.0% 0.0% $23,533 $0
TELEPHONE WATER $2,697 100.0% 0.0% $2,697 $0
INTERNET-WATER $7,113 100.0% 0.0% $7.113 $0
UTILITIES ELECTRIC-WATER $140,824 0.0% 100.0% $0 $140,824
UTILITIES GAS-WATER $4,609 100.0% 0.0% $4.609 $0
UTILITIES OTHER-WATER $2,681 100.0% 0.0% $2,681 $0
VEHICLE EXPENSE FUEL-WATER $13,993 50.0% 50.0% $6,997 $6,997
EQUIPMENT FUEL-WATER $2,022 50.0% 50.0% $1,.011 $1,011
VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT-WATER $8,931 50.0% 50.0% $4.466 $4.466
EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT-WATER $4,629 50.0% 50.0% $2,315 $2,315
VEHICLE LEASE-WATER $26,122 50.0% 50.0% $13,061 $13,0861
EQUIPMENT LEASE $3,868 50.0% 50.0% $1.934 $1,934

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3

S7




Table 8 - Average Cost Classification

Cost Iltems During the Basis Year Cg:;i?\’(rg;% Fixed Cost % Variable CO;: Fixed Cost| Variable Cost

SALARIES-WATER $540,951 25.0% 75.0% $135,238 $405,713

SALARIES OVERTIME-WATER $14,124 25.0% 75.0% $3,531 $10,593

PAYROLL TAXES-WATER $41,545 25.0% 75.0% $10,386 $31,159

RETIREMENT-WATER $23,533 25.0% 75.0% $5,883 $17,650

PENSION EXPENSE-WATER $0 25.0% 75.0% $0 $0

UNIFORMS-WATER $765 25.0% 75.0% $191 $573

GROUP INSURANCE-WATER $107,619 25.0% 75.0% $26,905 $80,714

CAPITAL ASSET EXP-WATER $0 50.0% 50.0% $0 $0

CAPITAL ASSET EXP EQUIPMENT-WATER $10,000 50.0% 50.0% $5.000 $5,000

PRINCIPAL EXPENSE-WATER $0 50.0% 50.0% $0 $0

INTEREST EXPENSE-WATER $0 50.0% 50.0% $0 $0

FISCAL AGENT FEES-WATER $1,825 50.0% 50.0% $912 $912

BAD DEBT EXPENSE-WATER $0 39.1% 60.9% $0 $0

TRANSFER TO GCG-WATER $0 25.0% 75.0% $0 $0

Annual Payment to R&R Reserve (Table 7) $0 25.0% 75.0% $0 $0

User Charge Analysis Services $0 39.1% 60.9% $0 $0

Ol oo Payous Lo Copeely Crages  sessads  soo% 00| sauatsT]  s31e7

Grand Total Costs, Weighted Avg Percentages  $2,025,634 39.1% 60.9% $792,950| $1,232,684
Bases for Cost to Serve Rate Structure 100% $2,025,634

Number Customers During Basis Year 3,919

Billed VVolume, in Gallons, During Basis Year 235,100,202

Average Fixed Cost per User per Month During

Basis Year $16.86

Average Variable Cost to Produce per 1,000 $5.24
Gallons During Basis Year :

Gallons per Billing Cycle Used by Average 4230

Residential Customer

CBGreatRates© Version 8.3

58




Table 9 - Marginal Cost Classification

Willard, MO, Water Rates Model 2024-3

The utility incurs "marginal” costs. These costs are unavoidable. Thus, the utility must collect minimal fees from various
customers to "break even" on a marginal cost basis. Costs vary by customer type and volume used.

Below, it is assumed that marginal variable costs are being calculated for: Unaccounted-for Water

(Fixed costs are irrelevant in this case)

The marginal rate structure basis year runs from: 1/1/2028 through  12/31/2028
. _ . Variable Marginal Marginal Marginai Marginal
Cost Items During the Basis Year Fixed Cost Cost Fixed Variable Fixed Variable
Cost%  Cost% Cost Cost
CHEMICALS-WATER $0 $11,668 100% 100% $0 $11.668
SUPPLIES-WATER  $30,877 $30,877 10% 10% $3,088 $3,088
LABORATORY FEES-WATER $2,430 $0 100% 100% $2.,430 50
LABORATORY SUPPLIES-WATER $6,367 $0 100% 100% $6.367 $0
PERMIT FEES-WATER $0 $0 10% 10% $0 $0
BUILDING MAINTENANCE-WATER $108 $0 0% 0% $0 $0
CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES-WATER $210 $0 0% 0% $0 $0
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE-WATER $0 $0 100% 100% $0 $0
OFFICE SUPPLIES-WATER $5,605 $0 100% 100% $5.605 $0
POSTAGE-WATER  $14,455 $0 100% 100% $14,455 $0
REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE-WATER  $50,191 $50,191 50% 50% $25,095 $25,095
SUPPLIES SMALL EQUIPMENT-WATER $6,741 $6,741 10% 10% $674 $674
METER REPLACEMENT-WATER $0 $16,815 0% 0% $0 $0
ADVERTISING-WATER $128 $0 0% 0% $0 $0
AUDIT EXPENSE-WATER $8,371 $0 0% 0% $0 $0
BANK/CREDIT CARD FEES-WATER  $11,378 $17,722 0% 0% $0 $0
CONTRACT LABOR--WATER $774 $2,323 50% 50% $387 $1,162
DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS-WATER $657 $1,972 10% 10% $66 $197
EQUIPMENT RENTAL-WATER $3,586 $3,586 10% 10% $359 $359
INSURANCE-WATER  $39,207 $0 10% 10% $3,921 $0
LEGAL-WATER $124 $0 10% 10% $12 $0
PROFESSIONAL-WATER $6,680 $20,039 50% 50% $3,340 $10,020
SAFETY PROGRAM-WATER $707 $0 50% 50% $353 $0
TRAVEL EXPENSE-WATER $125 $375 10% 10% $13 $38
TRAINING & EDUCATION-WATER $842 $2 527 10% 10% $84 $253
RENT-WATER $760 $760 10% 10% $76 $76
EQUIPMENT/SOFTWARE CONTRACTS-WATER  $23,533 $0 10% 10% $2,353 $0
TELEPHONE WATER $2,697 $0 10% 10% $270 $0
INTERNET-WATER $7,113 $0 10% 10% $711 $0
UTILITIES ELECTRIC-WATER $0  $140,824 100% 100% $0| $140,824
UTILITIES GAS-WATER $4,609 $0 10% 10% $461 $0
UTILITIES OTHER-WATER $2,681 $0 10% 10% $268 $0

CBGreatRates® Version 8.3

59




Table 9 - Marginal Cost Classification

' . ' Variable Marginal Marginal Marginal Marginal
Cost ltems During the Basis Year Fixed Cost Cost Fixed Variable Fixed Variable
Cost%  Cost% Cost Cost
VEHICLE EXPENSE FUEL-WATER $6,997 $6,997 10% 10% $700 $700
EQUIPMENT FUEL-WATER $1,011 $1,011 10% 10% $101 $101
VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT-WATER $4.,466 $4,466 10% 10% $447 $447
EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT-WATER $2,315 $2,315 10% 10% $231 $231
VEHICLE LEASE-WATER  $13,061 $13,061 10% 10% $1,306 $1,306
EQUIPMENT LEASE $1,934 $1,934 10% 10% $193 $193
SALARIES-WATER $135,238  $405,713 10% 10% $13,524 $40,571
SALARIES OVERTIME-WATER $3,531 $10,593 10% 10% $353 $1,059
PAYROLL TAXES-WATER  $10,386 $31,159 10% 10% $1,039 $3,116
RETIREMENT-WATER $5,883 $17,650 10% 10% $588 $1,765
PENSION EXPENSE-WATER $0 $0 10% 10% $0 $0
UNIFORMS-WATER $191 $573 10% 10% $19 $57
GROUP INSURANCE-WATER  $26,905 $80,714 10% 10% $2,690 $8,071
CAPITAL ASSET EXP-WATER $0 $0 50% 50% $0 $0
CAPITAL ASSET EXP EQUIPMENT-WATER $5,000 $5,000 50% 50% $2,500 $2,500
PRINCIPAL EXPENSE-WATER $0 $0 50% 50% $0 $0
INTEREST EXPENSE-WATER $0 $0 50% 50% $0 $0
FISCAL AGENT FEES-WATER $912 $912 50% 50% $456 $456
BAD DEBT EXPENSE-WATER $0 $0 100% 100% $0 $0
TRANSFER TO GCG-WATER $0 $0 100% 100% $0 $0
User Charge Analysis Services $0 $0 10% 10% $0 $0
TF?;iL CT':blr :f:id&Pfg' ?#leslﬁz ecfg’:g';ynigzzﬁl‘f) $344,167  $344,167 50% 50%| $172,083| $172,083
Grand Total All Costs  $792,950 $1,232,684 $266,619] $426,110

$2,025,634 $692,729
Monthly Marginal
Marginal Fixed and Variable Cost Bases Margin )
) Fixed Cost Cost per
(For the Customer Type(s) Listed Above) per 1,000
Customer Gallons

$5.67

Marginal Fixed Cost as a Percent of Total Fixed Cost: 34% $1.81

Marginal Variable Cost as a Percent of Total Variable Cost:

35%

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3

60




Table 10 - Initial Rate Adjustments and Resulting Revenues
Willard, MO, Water Rates Model 2024-3

This table calculates new user charge rates and the revenues they would generate if adjusted during the "Analysis Year "

After rate adjustments are made, customers will be bilied monthiy.

Following are Blended Sales Revenues: Sales at the current (Test Year) rates (gray highlighted column) will apply until rates are
adjusted. Sales at the modeled rates (yellow highlighted column) would apply after the modeled rates are adopted. Adding both
together, the "blended" sales revenues show in the right-most column.

Customer
Class, Rate

Class or Meter

Size

In-City Res,
Irr, Water
Only

Volume
Range
Bottom

(in Gallons)

0

1,000
2,000
3,000
4,000
5,000
6,000
7,000
8,000
9,000
10,000
20,000
30,000
40,000
50,000
60,000
70,000
80,000
90,000
100,000
200,000
300,000

Volume
Range
Top

(in Gallons}

999
1,999
2,999
3,999
4,999
5,999
6,999
7,999
8,999
9,999

19,999
29,999
39,999
49,999
59,999
69,999
79,999
89,999
99,999
199,999
299,999

399,099

Sales This
Year at Current
Rates

$23,548
$106,960
$113,522
$102,546
$80,409
$57,872
$38,422
$26,388
$16,823
$12,998
$37,001
$7.465
$2,720
$1.,491
$795
$431
$322
$214
$182
$609
$151

$0

Basic
Minimum
Charge

$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57

New Usage
Allowance in
1,000s

0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3

New Unit
Charge
per 1,000
Gallons

$3.91
$3.91
$3.01
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.01
$3.91

Sales This
Year at
Modeled
Rates

$341
$363
$359
$311
$239
$171
$114
$79
$52
$40
$119
$26
$10
$6
$3
$2
$1
$1
$1
$2
$1
$0

Total
"Blended"
Sales This
Year

$23,890
$107,323
$113,881
$102,858
$80,648
$58,043
$38,536
$26,467
$16,875
$13,037
$37,120
$7,491
$2,730
$1,497
$798
$433
$323
$215
$182
$612
$152

$0

61



Table 10 - Initial Rate Adjustments and Resulting Revenues

Customer
Class, Rate

Class or Meter

Size

In-City
Commercial,
Irr, Water
Only

Rural
Residential,
Irr, Water
Only

Volume
Range
Bottom

(in Gallons)

0

1,000
2,000
3,000
4,000
5,000
6,000
7,000
8,000
9,000
10,000
20,000
30,000
40,000
50,000
60,000
70,000
80,000
90,000
100,000
200,000
300,000
400,000
500,000
600,000

0

1,000
2,000
3,000
4,000
5,000
6,000
7,000
8,000
9,000
10,000
20,000
30,000
40,000
50,000
60,000
70,000
80,000
90,000
100,000
200,000
300,000

Valume
Range

Taop

(in Gallonis)

999
1,989
2,999
3,999
4,999
5,999
6,999
7,999
8,999
9,999

19,899
29,999
39,999
49,999
59,999
69,999
79,999
89,999
99,999
199,999
299,999
399,999
499,999
599,999
699,999

999
1,999
2,999
3,999
4,999
5,999
6,999
7,999
8,999
9,999

19,899
29,999
39,999
49,999
59,989
69,999
79,998
89,999
99,988
199,889
299,999
399,899

Sales This
Year al Current
Rates

$9,766
$7.674
$4,399
$3.407
$2,707
$2.511
$2.038
$1.816
$1.869
$1.681
$12.527
$9,087
$6,768
$5,247
$8.510
$2.921
$2.087
$1,694
$1.521
$7.976
$3.281
$1,396
$510
$110
$0

$10.615
$53.768
$60,558
$56,461
$46,031
$33.440
$24.735
$17.057
$12,804
59461
$35.981
$11.223
$4.622
$2,221
$1.329
$797
$664
$434
$323
$1.201
$268
$0!

Basic
Minimum
Charge

$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57
$12.57

$18.86
$18.86
$18.86
$18.86
$18.86
$18.86
$18.86
$18.86
$18.86
$18.86
$18.86
$18.86
$18.86
$18.86
$18.86
$18.86
$18.86
$18.86
$18.86
$18.86
$18.86
$18.86

New Usage
Allowance in
1,000s

0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000

0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000

CBGreatRates© Version 8.3

New Unit
Charge
per 1,000
Gallons

$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91
$3.91

$5.87
$5.87
$5.87
$5.87
$5.87
$5.87
$5.87
$5.87
$5.87
$5.87
$5.87
$5.87
$5.87
$5.87
$5.87
$5.87
$5.87
$5.87
$5.87
$5.87
$5.87
$5.87

Sales This
Year at
Modeled
Rates

$39
$23
$15
$12
$10
$9
$8
$7
$7
$6
$49
$35
$26
$20
$14
$11
$8
$7
$6
$32
$13
$6
$2
$0
$0

$250
$260
$270
$241
$192
$140
$104
$73
$55
$42
$168
$55
$23
$11
$7
$4
$4
$2
$2
$7
$1
$0

Total
"Blended"”
Sales This
Year

$9,805
$7,697
$4,414
$3,419
$2,716
$2,519
$2,046
$1,823
$1,876
$1,687
$12,575
$9,122
$6,795
$5,267
$3,524
$2,933
$2,095
$1,701
$1,527
$8,008
$3,204
$1,402
$512
$110
$0

$10,866
$54,029
$60,828
$56,702
$46,223
$33,581
$24,838
$17,130
$12,860
$9,502
$36,149
$11,278
$4,645
$2,233
$1,336
$801
$667
$436
$325
$1,207
$270

$0

62



Table 10 - Initial Rate Adjustments and Resulting Revenues

Customer
Class, Rate

Class or Meter

Size

Rural
Commercial,
Irr, Water
Only

No Charge
(llZeroll)

Total Rate Revenue at Current Rates

Volume
Range
Bottom

(in Gallons)

0
1,000
2,000
3,000
4,000
5,000
6,000
7,000
8,000
9,000

10,000
20,000
30,000
40,000
50,000
60,000
70,000
80,000
90,000
100,000

0
800,000

LT o oo S R R
) Top Rates Charge 1,000s per 1,000f Modeled Sales This
(in Gallons) Gallons Rates Year
999 $513 $18.86 0.000 $5.87 $5 $517
1,999 $997 $18.86 0.000 $5.87 $4 $1,001
2,999 5847 $18.86 0.000 $5.87 $4 $850
3,999 $546 $18.86 0.000 $5.87 $2 $548
4,999 $266 $18.86 0.000 $5.87 $1 $268
5,999 $307 $18.86 0.000 $5.87 $1 $308
6,899 $275 $18.86 0.000 $5.87 $1 $276
7,999 $270 $18.86 0.000 $5.87 31 $271
8,999 $323 $18.86 0.000 $5.87 $1 $325
9,999 $225 $18.86 0.000 $5.87 $1 $226
19,998 $880 $18.86 0.000 $5.87 $4 $884
29,999 $202 $18.86 0.000 $5.87 $1 $203
39,998 $85 $18.86 0.000 $5.87 $0 $85
49,999 $64 $18.86 0.000 $5.87 $0 $64
59,999 $28 $18.86 0.000 $5.87 $0 $28
69,999 $28 $18.86 0.000 $5.87 50 $28
79,999 $28 $18.86 0.000 $5.87 $0 $28
89,999 $28 $18.86 0.000 $5.87 $0 $28
99,999 $21 $18.86 0.000 $5.87 $0 $21
199,999 $0 $18.86 0.000 $5.87 $0 $0
999 $0 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 $0 $0
800,001 50 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 $0 $0
$1.117.298 Total Rate Revenue at Mo;:lt:g $4.548
Total Blended Rate Revenues for the Year $1,121,846

CBGreatRates© Version 8.3

63



Table 17 - Financial Capacity Indicators and Reserves
Willard, MO, Water Rates Model 2024-3

This able depicta the allordabiity of fulure rales the financial haatth of the sysiem and Ihe ending baisnces in various (assumed) accounts for the leat year and the neat 10 years

Test Year 0 ¥ear 1st Year 2nd Year 3rd Year 4th Year 5th Year &th Year 7ih Year Blh Year 9th Year  10th Year

Staring Starting| Starting Starting Slarting Starting Slarting Starting Starting Slaring Starting Slarting

Capacity Indicators 11723 11124 11125 11126 127 111128 111729 111730 171731 11132 111133 11734
Monlhty Bill for a 5,000 gal per Menth, Small Meter

Residential Customer $2672 $32.12 83341 §34.74 $36 13 $37.58 $38.08 $40865 $42.27 $43 96 $4572 347 55

P

@

I AMHI Wilhin Service Area $79,951 §83.360 $86,914 $90,621 $94,485 $98,514 $102,714 $107,004 $111,661 $116,422 $121,3687 $125,553

a Affordability Index:

T CurrentRates First Column, Modeled Rates After 0.40% 0.45% 0.46% 0.46% 0.46% 048% 0.46% 0.48% 0.45% 045% 045% 0.45%

= That

<

> National Average Affordability Index:

B Commonly Accepted but Not Statistically Verifiable 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 100% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%]

s

]

3 Affordability Index (Al} goes to the willingness and ability of customers to pay. Al is the cost of 60,000 gallons of residential service per year (5,000 gallons per month) divided by the Annual Median Household Income (AMHI)
in the service area (gleaned from Census data or a survey) Rates near 1.0% are common In the U.S. and are generally considered affordable Most grant agencies will decline to award grants if the Al is less than 1.5 to
2.0%, unless other eligibility etitetia considerod along with the Al make an appacont elgpbie

Manthily 84 for a 2 000 gal per Month, Low-income =
E Residential Customer $1814 $20 19 s2121 2206 $2294 52386 $2481 $2580 526 84 $27 31 £2903 $30 15|
=%
ow Income at One-half the AMHI and Rising at One- = = -
; E half the Rate Above $39975 HO $41698 $42,587 $43495 $44 422 $45 370 $46 337 $47 325 $48 334 $49.364 $50 417
3% y for L , Lowvol
E E Current Rates it Column Madeled Rates After 054% AW 061% 062% 0863% 064% 0 66% 067% 068% 069% 071% 0 7%
8 That
g8
2T
‘3 < This addonal indicator of affordability assurmes & resydestial customer with income # one-half the median flselisdd incame above, that Hiodtie & growing at one-half the rate of the median mameticid ncome and the
8 customer uses 2,000 gallons per month Such a customet is likely either a minimum wage or near-minimum wage wadkar, o & retirnd wnd ang only o0 Sooal Socunty bendfits Such customers ate mare# commonly the
“wow pays” and "no pays" compared to others, so this indicator goes to the "business sense” of the rates modeled baie [ uifil worde. i this customar's bil tod imuch and they are mare bkl to pay 1ata or not pay
Estimated Operating Ratio: Current Rates First Column,
Modeled Rates After That 100 100 150 152 151 154 147 154 157 158 157 159
Operating ratio (OR) is a measure of the utibty's ability to pay its operating expenses using only current incomes A 10 OR s break even Below 10 indicates operatng in the "red " Generally, the OR should be atleast 1 15
for large systems, 1.30 or more for medium-sized systems and perhaps as high as 2 0 for small systems Note [f lhe utllity has or will have reserves (below,) it has more ability to pay its operatng costs than this calculation
of OR implies
Estimaled Coverage Ralio: Current Rates First Column,
Modeled Rales After That 000 000 000 025 018 a21 000 014 023 o2s8 028 037
Ceovirege Rabo (CR) goes to the ability of the utility to pay ils debt payments out of current incomes CR applies only lo years with debt service. A"N A" above Indicates there was not, orin a future year there will not be debt
during that year 1.0 15 break even - just enough net revenue to pay debt. Generally, the CR should be at least 1.25 Note Il the utility has or will have other available reserves (shown below.) it has more ability to make debt
payments Lhan the CR implies That is covered by the Allernative Coverage Ratio Lhat follows next
Alternative Coverage Ratio: Current Rates First Column, d
Modeled Rates After That 1578 14 46 1018 1022 11.19 519 324 319 347 354 369 436
This Alternative Coverage Ratio (ACR) is based on the same nobion as the classic coverage rabo above, except it includes reserves that are available to pay debt service With the classic CR, a ulility could build reserves
early on with current net revenues, but then future rates may not be high enough 1o shaw a strong CR. The classic CR could even go negative Butn reality, the utility could have quite strong reserves with which to pay debt
Thus, the Alternative Coverage Ratio can be a better indicator of a utility’s Lrue ability to pay debt
Balance Balance Balance] Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance
Endingon  Endngon Endngon| Endingon  Endingon  Endngon  Endingon  Endingon  Endingon  Endingon  Endingon Endingon  Ending on
Reserves 12131722 12/31723 1231024 12/31725 12/31126 12/31727 12/31728 12131128 12/31/30 12/31/31 12/31/32 12/31/33 12/31/34
Cash and Cash Equivalents $1,558,518 $599,112 5584 145 $594,211 $618,247 $649,953 $668,650 $733,729 $733,377 $756,366 $786,022 $826 105 $6853,765
Other Liquid Assets $0 50 5 $0 30 S0 $0 $0 50 30 $0 $0 0
Total Undedicated Cash Assefs $1,558,518 $599,112 5584245 $594,211 3618,247 $649 953 $668,650 $733,729 $733,377 $756,366 $786,022 $826,105 £853,765
Total Cash Assets Discadanted for Inflation
(Future Unrestricted Purehasing Power) $1,558,518 $599,112 $584 345 $576,384 $581,708 $593,194 $591,951 $630,078 $610,882 $611,131 $616,039 $628,031 $649,058
Repair & Replacement $0 50 0 %0 $0 $0 50 30 80 30 $0 30 $0
Debt and CIP Reserves 30 $861,750 3435 Bag) $429,640 $4596,386 $732 B850 $730,601 £544,835 $766,271 $772,508 $809,077 51,056,440 $1,216712
| Sum of Al Reserves 51558518, $1,480862 1024234 ST0ZR850 31174533 $1762803 S1,300251 51378561 SHASAGH SLSESTE 51505008 51,832.545 s:m.m{

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3 64



Table 18 - Bills Before and After Rate Adjustments
Willard, MO, Water Rates Model 2024-3

more revenue per year than the rates at the end of the test
year.

However, due to rate restructuring, individual bills would change as shown in the following table Note: The actual rates to
adopt or consider are included in the narrative report

The modeled rates will generate 48.6%

Customer, Rate . C“St;’tmL‘::Sltng %ﬁg"}ir; Bill at Now Billat Modeled Bl “’;‘;‘r’ce;‘:azﬂ
Class or Meter Current Modeled  Increase or

Size Use Volume But Not Volume or Rates Rates Decrease (-) Increase or

the Next Less Decrease (-)

0 142 142 $15.28 $12.57 -$2.71 -18%

1,000 283 425 $15.28 $16.48 $1.20 8%

2,000 397 822 $18.14 $20.39 $2.25 12%

3,000 408 1,230 $21.00 $24.30 $3.30 16%

4,000 338 1,567 $23.86 $28.21 $4.35 18%

5,000 248 1,816 $26.72 $32.12 $5.40 20%

6,000 162 1,977 $29.58 $36.03 $6.45 22%

7,000 110 2,087 $32.44 $39.94 $7.50 23%

8,000 64 2,152 $35.30 $43.85 $8.55 24%

) 9,000 51 2,202 $38.16 $47.76 $9.60 25%

'”ﬁ'at{ef{eof;l;"' 10,000 121 2,323 $41.02 $51.67 $10.65 26%

20,000 16 2,339 $69.62 $90.77 $21.15 30%

30,000 5 2,344 $98.22 $129.87 $31.65 32%

40,000 2 2,346 $126.82 $168.97 $42.15 33%

50,000 1 2,347 $155.42 $208.07 $52.65 34%

60,000 0 2,348 $184.02 $247.17 $63.156 34%

70,000 0 2,348 $212.62 $286.27 $73.65 35%

80,000 0 2,348 $241.22 $325.37 $84.15 35%

90,000 0 2,348 $269.82 $364.47 $94.65 35%

100,000 1 2,349 $298.42 $403.57 $105.15 35%

200,000 0 2,349 $584.42 $794.57 $210.15 36%

0 59 59 $15.28 $12.57 -$2.71 -18%

1,000 30 89 $15.28 $16.48 $1.20 8%

2,000 13 102 $18.14 $20.39 $2.25 12%

3,000 9 111 $21.00 $24.30 $3.30 16%

4,000 6 117 $23.86 $28.21 $4.35 18%

5,000 5 122 $26.72 $32.12 $5.40 20%

6,000 3 125 $29.58 $36.03 $6.45 22%

7,000 2 127 $32.44 $39.94 $7.50 23%

8,000 3 131 $35.30 $43.85 $8.55 24%

9,000 3 133 $38.16 $47.76 $9.60 25%

Ir=C 1) 10,000 1 144 $41.02 $51.67 $10.65 26%
Commercial, Irr,

Water Only 20,000 7 152 $69.62 $90.77 $21.15 30%

30,000 5) 157 $98.22 $129.87 $31.65 32%

40,000 5 162 $126.82 $168.97 $42.15 33%

50,000 2 164 $155.42 $208.07 $52.65 34%

60,000 2 167 $184.02 $247.17 $63.15 34%

70,000 1 168 $212.62 $286.27 $73.65 35%

80,000 1 169 $241.22 $325.37 $84.15 35%

90,000 1 170 $269.82 $364.47 $94.65 35%

100,000 3 172 $298.42 $403.57 $105.15 35%

200,000 1 173 $584.42 $794.57 $210.15 36%

300,000 0 173 $870.42 $1,185.57 $315.15 36%

CBGreatRates® Version 8.3 6 5



Table 18 - Bills Before and After Rate Adjustments

Customers Using  Customers Billat Modeled Bl Modeled Bill

Customer, Rate Bill at Now

Class or Meter Gallons of at Least This  Using This Current Modsled  Increase or Percentage
Size Use Volume But Not Volume or Rates Rates Decrease (-) Increase or
the Next Less Decrease (-)

0 59 59 $16.63 $18.86 $2.23 13%

1,000 109 167 $16.63 $24.72 $8.09 49%

2,000 180 347 $19.75 $30.59 $10.84 55%

3,000 194 541 $22.87 $36.45 $13.58 59%

4,000 168 709 $25.99 $42.32 $16.33 63%

5,000 121 829 $29.11 $48.18 $19.07 66%

6,000 89 919 $32.23 $54.05 $21.82 68%

7,000 58 976 $35.35 $59.91 $24.56 69%

8,000 42 1,019 $38.47 $65.78 $27.31 71%

. . 9,000 29 1,048 $41.59 $71.64 $30.05 72%
Rﬁ:?w;z'fg?]ﬁ?" 10,000 87 1,135 $44.71 $77.51 $32.80 73%
20,000 21 1,156 $75.91 $136.16 $60.25 79%

30,000 8 1,164 $107.11 $194.81 $87.70 82%

40,000 3 1,167 $138.31 $253.46 $115.15 83%

50,000 2 1,168 $169.51 $312.11 $142.60 84%

60,000 1 1,169 $200.71 $370.76 $170.05 85%

70,000 1 1,170 $231.91 $429.41 $197.50 85%

80,000 0 1,170 $263.11 $488.06 $224.95 85%

90,000 0 1,170 $294.31 $546.71 $252.40 86%

100,000 1 1,171 $325.51 $605.36 $279.85 86%

200,000 0 1,171 $637.51 $1,191.86 $554.35 87%

0 3 3 $16.63 $18.86 $2.23 13%

1,000 3 6 $16.63 $24.72 $8.09 49%

2,000 3 9 $19.75 $30.59 $10.84 55%

3,000 2 11 $22.87 $36.45 $13.58 59%

4,000 o] 1 $25.99 $42.32 $16.33 63%

Rural Commercial, 5,000 1 12 $29.11 $48.18 $19.07 66%
Irr, Water Only 6,000 1 12 $32.23 $54.05 $21.82 68%
7,000 1 13 $35.35 $59.91 $24.56 69%

8,000 1 14 $38.47 $65.78 $27.31 71%

9,000 1 15 $41.59 $71.64 $30.05 72%

10,000 3 17 $44.71 $77.51 $32.80 73%

20,000 0 18 $75.91 $136.16 $60.25 79%

0 2 2 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A,

1,000 1 3] $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A.

2,000 1 4 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A.

3,000 1 5 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A.

4,000 0 5 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A

5,000 0 5 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A.

No Charge 6,000 0 5 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A.
("Zero") 7,000 0 6 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A
8,000 1 6 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A.

9,000 0 6 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A.

10,000 1 7 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A

20,000 0 7 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A

30,000 0 8 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A

800,000 0 8 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3 66



Chart 1 - Operating Ratio
1.80 -

1.60 -
1.40 -

1.20 -

1.00 -

0.80 -

0.60 - --Modeled Rates
#Current Rates
0.40 - ==Breakeven

0.20 -

000 1 L i i i i i i

Chart 2 - Coverage Ratio

--Proposed Rates

4®-Current Rates
==Breakeven

14.00 - —Alternative Coverage Ratio

18.00 -

16.00

12.00 -
10.00 -
8.00 -
6.00 -

4.00 -

2.00 -

0.00 -

-2.00 -

CBGreatRates® Version 8.3



$50.00 -
$45.00 -
$40.00
$35.00 -
$30.00

$25.00 -

$20.00 -

$15.00 -

$10.00 4

$5.00 -

Chart 3 - Residential Users' Bills

485,000 Gallons at Current Rates
--5,000 Gallons at Proposed Rates
-#-2,000 Galions at Low-income Rates

L L 1} 1

$0.00

1.20%

1.00% -

0.80% -

0.60% -

0.40% -

0.20% -

0.00%

o> b o A L S NN s DS N
A A Y2 A V22 4 V2 4 PR 4 VN A VA 1,» R A« B o~ M s M 4o
¥ & &8 F I ISP

Chart 4 - Affordability

485,000 Gallons at Current Rates
| --5,000 Gallons at Proposed Rates
-#-2,000 Gallons at Low-income Rates
—5,000 Gallons at National Average

L T o S <« T A . o B A T B
A A A2 A VA Y2 A VAt M 1 BN 4 M M A
§ &§§F &390 F§F &9

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3



Chart 5 - Working Capital vs Goal
$1,000,000 1

$500,000 -

$0

-$500,000 -
--Proposed Rates
& Current Rates
-$1,000,000 - —Goal
-$1,500,000 -
-$2,000,000 -
Chart 6 - Value of Cash Assets Before Inflation
$1,000,000 -
. e p—
$500,000 -
$0
™ ' o} © AN (%} (o)) (%}
47 A\ v v v v v )
S Q QS QO Q Q ) N
-$500,000 ‘f\; v v v v v v Y
-$1.000,000 - --Proposed Rates
&-Current Rates
-$1,500,000 -
-$2,000,000 -

CBGreatRates© Version 8.3



Chart 7 - Value of Cash Assets After Inflation

$1,000,000 -
$500,000 - S )
$0 T 1 1 T T T
(32) » o © A e o
" v v v Q) v v
F &S
-$500,000
--Proposed Rates
-$1,000,000 - #Current Rates
-$1,500,000 -
-$2,000,000 -
Chart 8 - Sum of All Reserves
$4,000,000 - --Proposed Rates
#-Current Rates
$2,000,000 - N
-$2,000,000
-$4.000,000 -
-$6,000,000
-$8,000,000 -
-$10,000,000 -

CBGreatRates® Version 8.3



Willard, MO, Sewer Rates Model 2024-3

This model calculated cost-to-serve rates, with level
minimum and unit charges for in-City customers, and
out-of-City rates in the same structure, but higher due to
higher costs to serve outside of the City.

September 19, 2024
This rate analysis model was produced by
Carl E. Brown, GettingGreatRates.com
1014 Carousel Drive, Jefferson City, Missouri 65101
(573) 619-3411
https://gettinggreatrates.com
carl1@gettinggreatrates.com

Note: This document is a print out of the spreadsheet model used to calculate new user charge and
other rates and fees for the next 10 years. These calculations are complex and are based upon
many conditions and assumptions. These issues, and others, are described in a narrative report

that accompanies this model.
CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3

71



Table 1 - Rates
Willard, MO, Sewer Rates Model 2024-3

If we received the now current rates for the utility, the current rates are in this table. Otherwise, these rates were in effect at the
end of the test year. If a volume range was left out of the table, rest assured, itis in the Model. We just hid some volume ranges
to make the table and report shorter. In such cases, the unit charge that applies to next lowest volume range also applies to the
hidden volume ranges.

Test Year Ending and (Assumed) Current Rates

Customer Type, Volume Range  Volume Range Use Within Each Usage

) Billing Cycle f Unit Charge

RO ol oy Gaiong Minmom Crarge AP per 1000 Glons
0 999 0.999 $26.21 0.000 $5.85

1,000 1,999 0.865 $26.21 0.000 $5.85

2,000 2,999 0.774 $26.21 0.000 $5.85

In-City 3,000 3,999 0.640 $26.21 0.000 $5.85
Residential 4,000 4,999 0.557 $26.21 0.000 $5.85
5,000 5,999 0.575 $26.21 0.000 $5.85

10,000 19,999 2.488 $26.21 0.000 $5.85

800,000 800,001 0.000 $26.21 0.000 $5.85

0 999 0.732 $26.21 0.000 $5.85

1,000 1,999 0.711 $26.21 0.000 $5.85

2,000 2,999 0.830 $26.21 0.000 $5.85

In-City 3,000 3,999 0.873 $26.21 0.000 $5.85
Commercial 4,000 4,999 0.902 $26.21 0.000 $5.85
5,000 5,999 0.902 $26.21 0.000 $5.85

10,000 19,999 8.492 $26.21 0.000 $5.85

800,000 800,001 0.000 $26.21 0.000 $5.85

0 999 1.000 $28.52 0.000 $6.36

1,000 1,999 0.843 $28.52 0.000 $6.36

2,000 2,999 0.736 $28.52 0.000 $6.36

Rural 3,000 3,999 0.573 $28.52 0.000 $6.36
Residential 4,000 4,999 0.568 $28.52 0.000 $6.36
5,000 5,999 0.573 $28.52 0.000 $6.36

10,000 19,999 2.778 $28.52 0.000 $6.36

800,000 800,001 0.000 $28.52 0.000 $6.36

0 999 1.000 $36.47 0.000 $6.36

1,000 1,999 0.750 $36.47 0.000 $6.36

2,000 2,999 0.889 $36.47 0.000 $6.36

Rural 3,000 3,999 1.000 $36.47 0.000 $6.36
Commercial 4,000 4,999 1.000 $36.47 0.000 $6.36
5,000 5,999 1.000 $36.47 0.000 $6.36

10,000 19,999 5.667 $36.47 0.000 $6.36

800,000 800,000 0.000 $36.47 0.000 $6.36

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3

72



Table 2 - Test Year Usage
Willard, MO, Sewer Rates Model 2024-3

This table shows usage by all customers during the test year. Residential meter readings per year: 12
Test year = the one-year period being analyzed starts: 1/1/2023 Other customer readings per year: 12
Date this model created: 7/3/2024 Bills per year: 12

Customer, Ratg Class or Volume;oat?ogrs Volume Ra_?gg Uge in Each Thtto,fMCauxsetgnéeur; ?’Moafx(;gséouq,],ei:‘sg:;: % of Total Use in

Meter Size (in Gallons) (in Gallons) Range in Gallons in Each Range Range EaEh Range

0 999 24,005,005 3 0.1% 0.0%

1,000 1,999 20,767,000 270 11.1% 2.8%

2,000 2,999 16,074,259 391 16.1% 8.1%

3,000 3,999 10,294,000 482 19.8% 14.9%

4,000 4,999 5,732,000 380 15.7% 15.7%

5,000 5,999 3,298,000 203 8.4% 10.5%

In-City Residential 6,000 6,999 1,776,000 127 5.2% 7.9%

7,000 7,999 842,000 78 3.2% 5.6%

8,000 8,999 501,000 28 1.2% 2.4%

9,000 9,999 379,000 10 0.4% 0.9%

10,000 19,999 943,000 30 1.2% 3.8%

20,000 29,999 34,000 1 0.1% 0.3%

30,000 39,999 0 0 0.0% 0.0%

84,645,264 2,003 82.5% 73.0%

0 999 1,205,000 37 1.5% 0.0%

1,000 1,999 857,000 29 1.2% 0.3%

2,000 2,999 711,000 12 0.5% 0.3%

3,000 3,999 621,000 8 0.3% 0.2%

4,000 4,999 560,000 5 0.2% 0.2%

5,000 5,999 505,000 5 0.2% 0.2%

6,000 6,999 476,000 2 0.1% 0.2%

7,000 7,999 450,000 2 0.1% 0.2%

8,000 8,999 422,000 2 0.1% 0.2%

9,000 9,999 398,000 2 0.1% 0.2%

. . 10,000 19,999 3,380,000 10 0.4% 1.4%

In-City Commercial

20,000 29,999 2,380,000 7 0.3% 1.8%

30,000 39,999 1,636,000 5 0.2% 1.9%

40,000 49,999 1,091,000 5 0.2% 2.3%

50,000 59,999 659,000 2 0.1% 1.1%

60,000 69,999 486,000 1 0.1% 0.9%

70,000 79,999 334,000 1 0.0% 0.6%

80,000 89,999 303,000 0 0.0% 0.1%

90,000 99,999 282,000 0 0.0% 0.4%

100,000 199,999 1,412,000 1 0.1% 2.0%

200,000 299,999 497,000 0 0.0% 1.0%

19,009,000 137 5.6% 16.4%

CBGreatRates® Version 8.3

73



Volume Range

Table 2 - Test Year Usage

Volume Range

# of Customers % of Customers That

e ol et N0 o O e e

0 999 3,321,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

1,000 1,999 2,798,000 44 1.8% 0.5%

2,000 2,999 2,059,000 62 2.5% 1.3%

3,000 3,999 1,180,000 73 3.0% 2.3%

4,000 4,999 670,000 43 1.8% 1.8%

5,000 5,999 384,000 24 1.0% 1.2%

. . 6,000 6,999 196,000 16 0.6% 1.0%
Rural Residential

7,000 7,999 86,000 9 0.4% 0.7%

8,000 8,999 48,000 3 0.1% 0.3%

9,000 9,999 36,000 1 0.0% 0.1%

10,000 19,999 100,000 2 0.1% 0.2%

20,000 29,999 20,000 1 0.0% 0.2%

30,000 39,999 0 0 0.0% 0.0%

10,898,000 277 11.4% 9.4%

0] 999 36,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

1,000 1,999 27,000 1 0.0% 0.0%

2,000 2,999 24,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

3,000 3,999 24,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

4,000 4,999 24,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

5,000 5,999 24,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

. 6,000 6,999 22,000 0 0.0% 0.0%
Rural Commercial

7,000 7,999 18,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

8,000 8,999 14,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

9,000 9,999 12,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

10,000 19,999 68,000 1 0.0% 0.1%

20,000 29,999 8,000 0 0.0% 0.0%

30,000 39,999 0 0 0.0% 0.0%

301,000 3 0.1% 0.3%

Grand Totals: 115,974,264 2,428 100% 100%

CBGreatRates© Version 8.3

74



Table 3 - Operating Incomes and Basic User Data
Willard, MO, Sewer Rates Model 2024-3

This tabis depicts user statistica. customer growth and systam Incomes snd across the board "inflationary” style rat increases through the 10t yesr

Annual Median Househald Income (AMHI) Test Year Growth of Customer Base and Average Tap Fee Paid per Connection
$76,681 Census Bureau estimate of AMHI for the year 2022 36 Number new Sewer connections made durng lest year
$39,565  Census Bureau estimate of AMHI for the year 2000 $1,240 Average Sewer tap or installation fee assessed during the test year

$37,116  AMHI growth during this ime period
426% Simple annual income growth rate during this time period (used to project future household incomes)

This mode! Is programmed fo7 raws to be reset in the “Analyses Taar s Called B T #ar" Soltinn Cosw (Neading hghigiied blue). Revenuss will e coflectsd et the now-current reters for the first part of the analysis year ard & madeked rites ki e lent part of f
analyss yesr Thus, the revenuas shown that column of s tabia ate “Blanded” imvanues pan caliaesndt 4t fhe 24 ras s and part collecied at the new rates. It was then sssumsd that al i adjusiments mads afr the Initial (major) sdjustment wi be dane ennwally on
5 the anm

y of the firet H rates will not be adirsted during the "0 Year,” an adjustmant (normally a revenus reduction) was czicutated below o account for the [ate startin meking the first adjustiments.
Basic User (Customer) Data Analysis Yet Years Following the Analysis Year (for Which Results Have Been Projected)
m":;‘:::mf o el Inflation/ Test Year 0 Year 1st Year 2nd Year 3rd Year 4th Year 5th Year 6th Year Tth Year 8th Year 9th Year 10th Year
(P)eg::g; Starting Sturting) Starting Starting Slarting Starting Starting Starting Slarting Starting Starting Starting
1/1/23 4 1125 11126 1127 111128 112 110 11131 11/32 11133 14
Rate Piojected for Future Years NA NA NA 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% £.0%
Tha rew above shows S rate atwhich usor chifgo foos shauld be mcrrased for each year beyond the inftial rate adj year. Unlass these should
b across-the-board increases to all rates and fees and that should continue until a new rate analysis is done
Average Humbar of Custimens NA 2428 2465 2,501 2,537 2,574 2510 2,646 2683 2,719 2,756 2792 2828
Customers Added or Lost ( - ) Each Year NA 364 364 354 384 364 6.4 364 364 364 364 364 364
Customer Growth or Lass { - ) Rate NA 150% 1.48% 145% 143% 141% 1.39% 137% 1.36% 1.34% 132% 130% 129%
TestVear (Actual) and Projcted FuLire Yaars' Stas, NA 115974264 117711,420| 119448577 121185733 122,922,889 124,660,045 126,397,202 126,134,358 129,671,514 131,608671 133345827 135,082,983

Calculated User Charge Fees, Accounting for New Customers and Future Rats Increases Over the Years

Actual or Calculated Sales Revenues $1456296 31456330 $2202235 $2418,595 $2,551,395 $2,690950 $2637,586 $2,991648 $3153,495 $3323503 $3,502,067 $3,689,597

Adcitanal Saks favenues Fram New Cusigmens. $55 533,336 534 670 $36,057 537.458 538,959 540.558 542,181 $43,868 £45.623 S4T A48

Total Caleufated Revenues (User Charge Feos) $1456295  $1.458.390| $2325572 52453264 $2567451 527284486 S2B16585 53032207 93195676 33367372 $3547,690 SATIT045
Operating Incomes

Sewor Sales - Al Including Taxes) NA, $1481554 $1433692| $2,365906 $2495813 $2632327 S2775770 $2926476 $3,084797 $3251,101 $3425774 §3609,220 $3801859

PENALTY INCOME-SEWER NA 527,531 $o7938|  S28344  $28750  §29156  $29.563  $20969  $30,375  $30,782  $31.188  §31584  $32001

HOOKUP FEES RECENE-SEWER % Above  $45.100  S44.877| 544977  $44977  $44977  $44,977  $44.977 544077  $44977  $44977  $44977  $44977

Adpsted Moter Siza-based Plant esiment PooS o4 Above 30 so|  s40.701 40,701 340,701 $40,704 $40,701 $40,701 $40,701 $40,701 $40,701 540,701

INTEREST INCOME-SEWER NA $37.738 53,619 $3,539 $8,329 8,773 $9,310 $9732  $10637  §$12,656  $11929  $12,041 $12,780

MISGELLANEOUS INCOME-SEWER NA 50 50 50 50 50 50 $0 $0 50 50 50 50

CONVENIENCE FEE-SEWER NA $19.764  $19764|  $19764  S19764  S{19784  $18764  $19764  $19764  $10764  $19764  $19764  $19,764

GRANT RECEIPTS-SEWER NA $56,737 50 50/ 50 50 50 30 50 50 0 50 s0

TRANSFER IN-SEWER NA $0 50| $0 50 50 $0 30 30 30 $0 $0 50

CAPITAL ASSET SALES-SEWER NA $7,103 57,103 57,103 57,103 $7.103 57,103 7,103 $7.103 $7,103 57,103 §7.103 57,103

Tota Operating Incomes $1.677,528  $1,587,084] 52,510,335 2,645,438 $2782803 52,927,188 $3076,723 $3,238,355 $3407,085 $3,581437 SITE5401 53,059,186

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3 7 5



Willard, MO, Sewer Rates Model 2024-3

This table depicts expenses during the test year this year and for the next 10 years Some future costs will experience inflation Those costs that go up as use goes Up are increased by the cost infiation factor plus the growth rate in users

Table 4 - Operating Costs and Net Income

;fj"j‘(;ﬂ:‘e";"ju:?‘;e";‘s";:mfj o “"":?:‘; Years Following the Analysis Year (for Which Results Have Been Projecled)
Inflation/

Dneﬂaa;?:n Test Year 0 Year 1st Year 2nd Year 3rd Year 4th Year 5lh Year 6th Year 7ih Year 8th Year 9th Year  10th Year

=) Starling Starting| Starling Slarting Slarting Slarling Starling Starting Slarting Starling Slarling Slarting

Expense ltems Factor 11123 11124 111125 11126 1127 11728 11729 11730 131 111132 11733 11734

SUPPLESSEWER  40% 314910 515735] 516603 517514 18472 S19479 520,536 521847  $22.814 524040 525327  $26,679

PERMIT FEES-SEWER  40%  $3000  §3120]  $3245  $3375  $3510 53650  $3796  $3,948  $4,108 54270 $4.441 $4618

BUILDING MAINTERANCE:  40% 589 soz 596 5100 $104 $108 112 $117 $122 5126 $132 $137

CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES-SEWER  4.0% $172 s179 5186 194 $202 5210 5218 $227 5236 5245 $255 5265
MISCELLANEQUS EXPENSE-

PENSE 0% 50 s0 50 50 50 50 50 $0 50 50 50 30

OFFICE SUPPLIES-SEWER  40%  $4480  S$4728] 54989  $5263 85551 $5853  $6171  $6505 56855  $7.224  STBN 8,017

POSTAGE-SEWER  40%  $12491  $13.182|  $13.908  $14672  $15475  $16318  $17,004  $18135  $19,113  $20,139  $21218  $22,350

REPARSANDMAINTENANCE' 40w  st1eses  $123308| $128261 5133382  $138727  $144277  $150048  S156050  $162207  $168783  S175535 5182556

SUPPLIES SMALLEQUPMENT- 400, s11232  s11681| $12,148  $1264  $13130  $13665  S14212  $14780  $15371 515085 16626 17201

HOOK UP EXPENSE-SEWER  4.0% 50 0 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 $0 50

ADVERTISING-SEWER  4.0% 5105 $109 114 118 $123 $128 $133 $138 144 $149 $155 $162

AUDIT EXPENSE-SEWER  40%  $7.820  $8133|  $8.458  $8796 9,148  $9514  §$9.895  $10291  $10702  $11130  $11576  $12,039

BANKICREDIT CARDFEES: 4 0%  s22700  seages| 525287 26676 528135 520668 831279  S32971  §34748  $36815  $36576 540636

CONTRACT LABOR-SEWER  4.0%  $3,833  $3086|  $4,146 54312 34484 54663 $4850  $5044  $5246  $5456  $5674  $5901
DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS-

SENEn  40% 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 $0 50 50 50 50

EQUIPMENT RENTAL-SEWER  4.0%  $3082  $3253  $3432 83621 $3819 4027 $4246 34475  $4717T 54970  $5236  $5516

INSURANCE-SEWER  40% 342976  $44635|  $46.483  $48342  $50276  $52,287  $54,378  $56553  $58,816  $61,168  $63615 366,180

LEGAL-SEWER  40%  $22333  $23227| 24156  $25122  $2627 527,172  $28259  $29,3989  $30,565 531,787  $33059  $34381

PROFESSIONAL.SEWER  40%  $45915  847.752| 549,662  $51648  §53,714  $55863  $58,097  $60421  $62,838  $65351  §67,965  $70,684

SAFETY PROGRAM-SEWER  4.0% $581 5604 $628 $653 $680 $707 $735 $764 5795 5827 5860 5894
CITIZEN TRASH EXPENSE-

EWen  40% 5313840 50 50 $0 50 s0 50 50 50 50 $0 50

TRAVEL EXPENSE-SEWER  4.0% $411 5428 $445 $462 $481 $500 $520 $541 $563 $585 5608 633

TRAINING & EDUCATION-SEWER ~ 40%  $1,020  S1.061 $1104  S1,148  S1194  $1241 $1,201 $1343  $1396  $1452  $1510  $1570

RECYCLE CENTER EXPENSE ~ 40%  $5,505 50 50 50 30 50 $0 50 50 50 50 $0

RENT-SEWER  40%  §1250  §1300|  $1352  $1406  $1462  §1,521 $1562 51645  $1.711 $1779  $1850  $1924

EQUIPMENT/SOFTWARE o0 cioa81  g12877|  $13392  $13927 514484  $15064  §$15866 516203  $16945  $17622  $18327  $19,060

CONTRACTS-SEW. .

CBGreatRates© Version 8.3

76



Table 4 - Operating Costs and Net Income

Infiation/
;eﬂaa:?onn Test Year 0 Year 1st Year 2nd Year 3rd Year 4th Year 5lh Year 6lh Year 7th Year 81h Year Sth Year  10th Year
) Starting Starting Starting Starling Starling Slarting Starting Starting Starling Starting Starting Starling
Expense lems Faclor 11123 {11124 11725 11726 11727 11128 11729 11730 1131 11132 11/33 11134
S
- 50%  $504554 S544018| S507.070 $642,099  $690,381  $742,146  $797.637  $657,115  $920,860  $989,168 $1,062,358 $1,140,769
B Ry Tt
TELEPHONE-SEWER  40% $2,217 52,306 $2,398 $2,494 $2,594 $2,698 $2,805 $2,918 $3,034 $3,156 $3,282 $3,413
INTERNET-SEWER  40%  $5846  $6080|  $6323  $6576  $6839  $7113  §7,097  §$7693  $8001  $8,321 $8654  $9,000
UTILITIES ELECTRIC-SEWER  4.0%  $82.881  $87.468|  $02200 597,357  $102662 $108278  $114,156 $120332 $126,810  $133633  $140,789  $148,304
UTILITIES GAS-SEWER  4.0% 5696 $724 5753 $783 s614 $646 $880 5916 $952 $890  $1,030  $1,071
UTILITIES OTHER-SEWER ~ 40% 52203 52292 52383  $2479  $2578  $2,681 $2,788  §2.800  $3016  $3136  $3262  $3,392
VEHCLEEXPENSEFUEL 40w 11501 $11.961) 512440  $12997  $13455  $13.093  $14553  $15135  $15740  $16370  $17.025  S17.708
EQUIPMENT FUELSEWER  40%  $5800  $5824|  $6057  $6200  $6,551 $6.813  $7088 7369  S7.664  §7.970  $8289  $8.621
VEHICLEREPAIRSMANT  40% 6596 56880  §7.03¢ 7420 87717 58,025 $8,346  $B6B0  $9,027 59388  $9764  $10,154
EQUIPMENT REPAREMANT 40w  sa7a7 54937  $5134 55330 $555 $5,775 $6,006  $6246  $6496 86756  $7,026  $7,307
VEHICLE LEASE-SEWER  40%  $21470  $22320|  $23222  $24151  $25117  $26122  $27,167  $28253  $20383  $30,569  $31,781  $33,082
EQUIPMENT LEASE  40%  $3179  $3306| 53439  $3576 53719  $3.868 54023  $4184  $4,351 $4525 54706  $4,894
SALARIES-SEWER  40%  $357.924  $372,241| $387,130  $402615 8416720  $435469  §$452888  $471,003 $489,843  $500,437  $529814  $551,007
SALARIES OVERTIME-SEWER  40%  $10,691  §11,118]  $11,563  $12026  $12507  $13007  $13527  $14088  $14631  $15216  $15825  $16458
PAYROLL TAXES-SEWER  40%  $27466  S28.565| 520708  $30,896  §$32,132  $33417  $34754  $36144  $37500  $39,083  $40657  $42,283
RETIREMENT-SEWER  40%  $16787  §17.458|  $18.157  $18,884  $19630  $20425  $21,241  $22,091  $22975  $23,894  $24,850  $25844
PENSION EXPENSE-SEWER  4.0% 50 s0 50 50 50 50 50 30 50 50 50 50
UNIFORMS-SEWER  4.0% $628 s654 5680 $707 5735 $765 $795 5827 5860 $895 $930 5968
GROUP INSURANGE-SEWER  40%  $79976  $83.178|  $86.505  $89,965  $93,563  §$97,306  $101,198  $105246 5109456  $113,834  $118288  $123,123
CAPITALASSET EXP-SEWER  40%  $344.467  Table5| Table5  Table5  Table5  Table5  Table5  Table5  Table5  Table5  Table5  Tables
CAPITAL ASSET EXP
ek NA  $7039  §26500(  $13750  S13000  $13000  $10000  $B5000 $363000 §113000  §10000  $10000  $13000
PRINCIPAL EXPENSE-SEWER  00%  $192439  Table§|  Table5  Table5  Table5  Table5  Table5  Table5  Table5  Table5  Table5  Tables
INTEREST EXPENSE-SEWER ~ 00%  $127.257  Table5|  Table5  Table5  Table5  Table5  Table5  Table5  Table5  Table5  Table5  Tabes
FISCALAGENT FEES-SEWER  40%  $1.500  $1560|  $1622  $1687  $1.755  $1825  $1,898  $1,974  $2083  §$2135  $2220  $2:309
BAD DEBT EXPENSE-SEWER  4.0% 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 ) 50 50 50
User Charge Analysis Services 5.0% $0 $11,295 $0 50 $12,563 $0 $0 $13,851 $0 $0 $15,270 $0
Total CIP-related Payouls NA Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5
Total Operating Costs _ $2,466,389 §1,595,108| $1,665,852 $1,754,665 $1,861,920 $1,046,484 $2,127,373 $2,531,221 $2,385844 $2,408,184 $2,556,075 $2.664,147
Netincome (orLoss) -$788862  -58,016| $644483 $890773  $920,883  $980704  $951,350  §707,133 $1,021241 $1173254 $1,209326 $1275,099
Working Capital g0 | polars, Thatis: $1.233,195  $797.555| $832,926  $677,332  $930,060  §973242 $1,063667 $1,265611 $1,192,922 $1,204,092 $1,278,038 $1,342,074

Goal:

Noles: The Springfield treatmenl contract expense, highlighted gold and later green, calls for 8% increases for 2 years. | assumed 6% per year after that, Most expenses are expected lo rise by four percent each
year. The green highlighled expenses are expected to do that, plus rise as new customers connecl and use more water. Also, principal and interest expenses are related 1o capital improvementls, so lhose are

handled in Table 5

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3

77



Table 5 - Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
Willard, MO, Sewer Rates Model 2024-3

Years Foliowing (he Anatysis Yeat (foe Which Improvement Projéts. Costs, Funding, etc. Have Been Projected)

This labla depicis capial mprovements and thetr funding et B ]
Cosls reflect nflauon
Test Yo & fwid 140 Yo 2nd Year 3rd Year 4th Year Sin Year 6lh Year 7th Year 8th Year Sth Yew 10th Year
Staring Ssating Starting Starting Starting Starting Stariing Starting Starling Slarling Starteg Slarling
123 (e iz 11726 127 11128 129 11730 11131 11132 11133 11134
Planned Spending, Debt-paid Portion of Projects (CIP costs to be funded wih loars are shown m thrs section )
94 Lih Staton/Force Man $0 0|  $800,000 $0 $0 50 $0 50 $0 30 50 50
Meadows 50% Construction $0 0 $400,000 50 50 $0 30 $0 50 %0 s $0
Waste Waler Traatman Plant 30 30| 50 $0 50 $0 30 30 50 50 $0  $26,878,328
Total Debl-paid Portion of Projects 0 30l $1.200,000 30 50 30 30 50 ) 50 50 $26,878 328
Planned Spending, Grant-paid Portion of Projects (CIP costs to be grant-funded are shown here )
94 Lilt StatiorvForce Main {EPA Grant) $0 52,756,152 30 $0 0 50 $0 $0 30 $0 30 50
Meadows 50% Construction {ARPA Grant) $0 S482 750 $17,250 $0 50 $0 $0 $0 50 50 30 30
Total Grant-paid Portion of Projects. $0  $3:238 902 $17.250 50 50 50 50 30 $0 50 50 $0
Planned Spending, Cash-paid Portion of Projects (CIP costs to be funded rom reserves are shown here )
54 Lift Stabor/Force Main 0 $222,168 50 $0 50 50 50 50 30 $0 S0 50
Eaplaliasseisl(SeelCiyis Cap"a,',l';pr’;";'e’:ﬂs s0  saasoal  saree1s sae11e7 202751 $236.357  s346623  S672251  $3B4951 5266022 274002 5286254
Tolal Cash-paid Portian of Projects 30 5435 668 S2TEE13 $491.197 $232751 5206357 $346 623 5572.251 $384.951 $266.022 $274,002 5386254
Total CIP Costs S0 S$3674570| $1.484063  $491.997  $232751 $236,357 $346.623 SHTZ251  $384951 $266,022 $274,002 $27,164,582
Debt Repayment
Existing Detbt Payments {Followng 15 dett that was inhated during the test year of earker )
WalerSewer 2014 and 2018 COPs, Sewer Poruon $320.091 smasa| 5323544 5324,803 $320.505 5318554 523075 5223853 S8 20 5218543 5219719 $219.572
New Debl Payments (Fofiewang are payments for projects 1o be pasd with new dett. 1t s these will ba f fer m term ot 10 yEars ot a 50% Intetest rate |
COP foe 34 Lik Station. Meadaws 3155409 5155 405 £155.405 $155405 $155.405 5155405 $155 405 5155.405 5155405
Total Dett Paymants £320.091 $322 853 5323544 $450,209 2475512 3473599 £378 480 5379268 SaPaE81 $374,848 5375124 $374.977
Total CiP.rolated Payouts $320,001 51007423 51,818,006 £971,405 £708,563 §710,355 725101 $1,051.519 $T6E4,612 $040,670 $649,127  §27.535.59

[Thes i the lotal cash roguired

fot thas. CIP and debt payment scheduie. These amounts must coma am ukity INGOme, Tesenves or cutside scurces, o3 shown in the next section |

CIP Fund Sources (Following are Lhe sources and amounts of funds expected to pay for the above CIP schedue )

Cash Reserves (Internal Funds)

Debt and CIP Reserves Starling Balance 30 5320031 -$1.085014 -§1,341,998 -$1,493877 -51,365161 -$1,164,398 -$1,051,885 -31619,233 -$1,322,299 -3827,632 -§357,931
Warking Capital Transferred (in 30 50 $365,472 $846,367 $867.256 $938,422 $860,905 $505,209  $§1,093,930 $1,162084 51,135,380  $1.211,002
Debt and CIP Reserves Interest Earned (or Paid) $0 55,402/ -§21.700 -$26,840 -$20 578 -£27.303 -$2326% -521.038 -$32,385 -£26,446 -516.553 57,159
Total Avadable internal Funds 30 5326482 -5741,242 -$522,471 -$656,498 5454042 5356781 -8567.713 -$557,688 -$186,662 $291,185 3845913
Granl and Lean Proceeds (External Funds)
EPA and ARPA Grants for Lift Station and
Meadaws, Not Determined for WWTP S0 S§3233.902| $17,250 80 $0 30 $0 50 50 50 k) 30
Loan Onginated in 10th Year $a5.878.328
Total Avalable External Funds $0 5323502 S 17250 50 30 50 50 50 50 50 50 $25.878.328
Total Available Funds 50 $2.912.410 SATHO08  SE224T1 S656,408 5454042 5326781 S$567,713  .§557,688 -$186,662 $291,195  $27.724.240
Qulcomes {This CIP spending and funding plan will result in thé: folowng cash needs and ending balances each year )
Total Available Funds $0 s2912.410 $476,008 -$522,471 -$656,498 -$454,042 -$326,761 -$567,713 -§557,688 -$186,662 $201,195 $27,724,240
Total CIP-related Payouts $320,081 $3,997,423( $1,818,006 $971,405 $708,662 $710,356 $725103  $1,051,519 $764,612 $640,970 $649,127 $27,539,559
Debt and CIP Reserves Ending Balances $320,091 -61,085014| -$1,341,998 -$1,403877 -$1,365,161 -$1,164,398 $1,051,885 -$1,619,233 -§1,322,299 -$827,632 -$357,931 $184,681

Notes The Cry has a capital improvements plan, from which the above project data came EPA and ARPA grants have been acquired for (he litt station and Meadows projecis | assumed the WWTP project will be funded 75% by SRF
Joans. and 25% by grants However, that project, being scheduled for the last year of the modeling period, has no effect on this round of rates Later rate analyses will pick up the effects of that project and calculale rates accordingly
Other projects are generally nat eligible for granis and loans, so those are to be funded with utility reserves and incomes

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3

78



Table 5B: City's Sewer Capital Improvements (with edits by GettingGreatRates.com to make transfer to the
models easier and clearer)

Year

2024

2025

2026

Description
1&I
Sewer Improvements
94 Lift Station/Force Main
Meadows 50% Construction
Pole Barn 40x20
Public Works Building
Vehicle Lease Equipment
Badger Box
Missions Update

1&1

Sewer Improvements

B-Lift Station Rewire

94 Lift Station/Force Main

Meadows 50% Construction
Replacement Pump-Lift Station
Easements

Equipment

Jack Hammer Attachment (33 water-2
Generator

1&I

Sewer Improvements
Replacement Pump-Lift Station
D-Lift Station

Computer (2)

Equipment

Capital Assets  Annual Sum Banual Sum.

Equip
50,000
50,000

10,000
75,000
7,000
7,500
14,000

50,000
100,000
40,000

40,000
20,000
5,000
3,750
10,000

50,000
100,000
40,000
250,000
3,000
20,000

Cash Paid BiggerAssets COP Paid
213,500 760,460

277,710
482,750

268,750 3,402,230

2,984,980
417,250

463,000 -

79



Year
2027

2028

2029

2030

2031

Description
1&1
Sewer Improvements
Replacement Pump-Lift Station
Computer (2)
Equipment

1&l

Sewer Improvements
Replacement Pump-Lift Station
Equipment

1&!

Sewer Improvements
Replacement Pump-Lift Station
Equipment

Backhoe (50% water-50%sewer)
Missions Update

1&t

Sewer Improvements
Replacement Pump-Lift Station
Computer (2)

Equipment

Jetter/Vac Truck

1&l

Sewer Improvements
Replacement Pump-Lift Station
Computer (2)

Equipment

Sewer Camera

Capital Assets Annual Sum

Cash Paid
213,000

Equip
50,000
100,000
40,000
3,000
20,000

50,000
100,000
40,000
20,000

210,000

50,000
100,000
40,000
20,000
75,000
14,000

299,000

50,000
100,000
40,000
3,000
20,000
350,000

563,000

50,000
100,000
40,000
3,000
20,000
100,000

313,000

Bigger Assel:  DOP Pait |

80



Year
2032

2033

2034

Description
1&l
Sewer Improvements
Replacement Pump-Lift Station
Equipment

181

Sewer Improvements
Replacement Pump-Lift Station
Equipment

1&1

Sewer Improvements
Replacement Pump-Lift Station
Waste Water Treatment Plant
Computer (2)

Equipment

Capital Assets AnnualSum | Annual,
Bigger Assets

Cash Paid
210,000

Equip
50,000
100,000
40,000
20,000

50,000
100,000
40,000
20,000

210,000

50,000
100,000
40,000

213,000

3,000
20,000

3,176,250

20,000,000

20,000,000

24,162,690

81



Table 8 - Average Cost Classification
Willard, MO, Sewer Rates Model 2024-3

This table distributes costs from a representative year (the "average rate structure basis year) to fixed and variable categories (see

Definitions) in order to calculate the "cost of service" rate structure for that year.

The average rate structure basis year runs from: 1/1/2028 through 12/31/2028
Cost Items During the Basis Year Cost_During Fixed Cost % Variable Cost Fixed Cost| Variable Cost
Basis Year %
SUPPLIES-SEWER $19,479 50.0% 50.0% $9.739 $9,739
PERMIT FEES-SEWER $3,650 100.0% 0.0% $3,650 $0
BUILDING MAINTENANCE-SEWER $108 100.0% 0.0% $108 $0
CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES-SEWER $210 100.0% 0.0% $210 $0
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE-SEWER $0 100.0% 0.0% $0 $0
OFFICE SUPPLIES-SEWER $5,853 100.0% 0.0% $5,853 $0
POSTAGE-SEWER $16,318 100.0% 0.0% $16,318 $0
REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE-SEWER $144,277 50.0% 50.0% $72,138 $72,138
SUPPLIES SMALL EQUIPMENT-SEWER $13,665 50.0% 50.0% $6,833 $6.833
HOOK UP EXPENSE-SEWER $0 36.4% 63.6% $0 $0
ADVERTISING-SEWER $128 100.0% 0.0% $128 $0
AUDIT EXPENSE-SEWER $9,514 100.0% 0.0% $9.514 $0
BANK/CREDIT CARD FEES-SEWER $29,668 36.4% 63.6% $10,799 $18.869
CONTRACT LABOR-SEWER $4,663 50.0% 50.0% $2,332 $2,332
DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS-SEWER $0 50.0% 50.0% $0 $0
EQUIPMENT RENTAL-SEWER $4,027 50.0% 50.0% $2,013 $2,013
INSURANCE-SEWER $52,287 100.0% 0.0% $52,287 $0
LEGAL-SEWER $27,172 100.0% 0.0% $27.172 $0
PROFESSIONAL-SEWER $55,863 50.0% 50.0% $27,931 $27,931
SAFETY PROGRAM-SEWER $707 50.0% 50.0% $353 $353
TRAVEL EXPENSE-SEWER $500 50.0% 50.0% $250 $250
TRAINING & EDUCATION-SEWER $1,241 50.0% 50.0% $621 $621
RENT-SEWER $1,521 100.0% 0.0% $1,521 $0
EQUIPMENT/SOFTWARE CONTRSAECV-\I;?__ $15.064 100.0% 0.0% $15,064 $0
SPRINGFIELD SEWER CHARGES-SEWER
with 8% Increases next 2 years, then 6% in $742,146 0.0% 100.0% 80 $742,146
years after that
TELEPHONE-SEWER $2,698 100.0% 0.0% $2,698 $0
INTERNET-SEWER $7,113 100.0% 0.0% $7.113 $0
UTILITIES ELECTRIC-SEWER $108,278 0.0% 100.0% 80 $108,278
UTILITIES GAS-SEWER $846 100.0% 0.0% $846 $0
UTILITIES OTHER-SEWER $2,681 100.0% 0.0% $2,681 $0
VEHICLE EXPENSE FUEL-SEWER $13,993 50.0% 50.0% $6,997 $6,997
EQUIPMENT FUEL-SEWER $6,813 50.0% 50.0% $3,407 $3.407
VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT-SEWER $8,025 50.0% 50.0% $4,013 $4,013
EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT-SEWER $5,775 50.0% 50.0% $2.888 $2,888
VEHICLE LEASE-SEWER $26,122 50.0% 50.0% $13,061 $13,061
EQUIPMENT LEASE $3,868 50.0% 50.0% $1,934 $1.934
SALARIES-SEWER $435,469 50.0% 50.0% $217,734 $217,734
SALARIES OVERTIME-SEWER $13,007 50.0% 50.0% $6,504 $6,504

CBGreatRates© Version 8.3

82




Table 8 - Average Cost Classification

Cost ltems During the Basis Year Cost‘Durmg Fixed Cost % Wensble Coos : Fixed Cost| Variable Cost
Basis Year )

PAYROLL TAXES-SEWER $33,417 50.0% 50.0% $16,709 $16,709

RETIREMENT-SEWER $20,425 50.0% 50.0% $10,212 $10,212

PENSION EXPENSE-SEWER 30 50.0% 50.0% $0 $0

UNIFORMS-SEWER $765 50.0% 50.0% $382 $382

GROUP INSURANCE-SEWER $97,306 50.0% 50.0% $48,653 $48,653

CAPITAL ASSET EXP-SEWER $0 50.0% 50.0% $0 $0

CAPITAL ASSET EXP EQUIPMENT-SEWER $10,000 50.0% 50.0% $5,000 $5,000

PRINCIPAL EXPENSE-SEWER $0 50.0% 50.0% $0 $0

INTEREST EXPENSE-SEWER $0 50.0% 50.0% $0 $0

FISCAL AGENT FEES-SEWER $1,825 50.0% 50.0% $912 $912

BAD DEBT EXPENSE-SEWER $0 36.4% 63.6% $0 $0

Annual Payment to R&R Reserve (Table 7) $0 50.0% 50.0% $0 $0

User Charge Analysis Services $0 36.4% 63.6% $0 $0
Total CIP-related Payouts, Less Capacity

Charges From Tables 14 & 16 (This value can $669,655 50.0% 50.0% $334,827 $334,827
be negative)

Grand Total Costs, Weighted Avg Percentages $2,616,139 36.4% 63.6% $951,404 $1,664,735

Bases for Cost to Serve Rate Structure 100% $2,616,139
) . Inflow and Infiltration for the test year is
Number Customers During Basis Year 2,610 Estimated at 18%
. . . . Inflow and Infiltration is Estimated at This % of o
Billed Volume, in Gallons, During Basis Year 124,660,045 Average Cost (Marginal Cost) 66%
Average Fixed Cost per User per Month $30.38 At Recommended Unit Charge Rates, $198.001
During Basis Year ' Resulting Marginal Cost of Unbilled-for Water '

Average Variable Cost to ProQuce per 008 $13.35 Test Year Customer Volume, in Gallons 115,974,264
Gallons During Basis Year

Gallons per Billing Cycle .Useq P aeage 3,521| + Test Year Inflow and Infiltration, in Gallons 26,124,336
Residential Customer

Total Test Year Volume, in Gallons, From 142,098,600

Master Meter Readings

CBGreatRates© Version 8.3

83




Table 9 - Marginal Cost Classification

Willard, MO, Sewer Rates Model 2024-3

The utility incurs "marginal” costs. These costs are unavoidable. Thus, the utility must collect minimal fees from various
customers to "break even" on a marginal cost basis. Costs vary by customer type and volume used.

Below, it is assumed that marginal variable costs are being calculated for: Inflow and Infiltration

(Fixed costs are irrelevant in this case)

The marginal rate structure basis year runs from: 1/1/2028 through  12/31/2028

. ' _ Variable Marginal Marginal Marginal Marginal

Cost ltems During the Basis Year Fixed Cost Cost Fixed Variable Fixed Variable

Cost%  Cost% Cost Cost

SUPPLIES-SEWER $9,739 $9,739 100% 100% $9,739 $9,739

PERMIT FEES-SEWER $3,650 $0 50% 50% $1.825 $0

BUILDING MAINTENANCE-SEWER $108 $0 0% 0% $0 $0

CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES-SEWER $210 $0 0% 0% $0 80

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE-SEWER $0 $0 100% 100% $0 $0

OFFICE SUPPLIES-SEWER $5,853 $0 0% 0% $0 $0

POSTAGE-SEWER  $16,318 $0 0% 0% $0 $0

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE-SEWER  $72,138 $72,138 50% 50% $36,069 $36,069

SUPPLIES SMALL EQUIPMENT-SEWER $6,833 $6,833 50% 50% $3,416 $3,416

HOOK UP EXPENSE-SEWER $0 $0 50% 50% $0 $0

ADVERTISING-SEWER $128 $0 0% 0% $0 $0

AUDIT EXPENSE-SEWER $9,514 $0 0% 0% $0 $0

BANK/CREDIT CARD FEES-SEWER  $10,799 $18,869 0% 0% $0 $0

CONTRACT LABOR-SEWER $2,332 $2,332 50% 50% $1.166 $1,166

DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS-SEWER $0 $0 0% 0% $0 $0

EQUIPMENT RENTAL-SEWER $2,013 $2,013 0% 0% $0 $0

INSURANCE-SEWER  $52,287 $0 100% 100% $52,287 $0

LEGAL-SEWER  $27,172 $0 0% 0% $0 $0

PROFESSIONAL-SEWER  $27,931 $27,931 0% 0% $0 $0

SAFETY PROGRAM-SEWER $353 $353 0% 0% $0 80

TRAVEL EXPENSE-SEWER $250 $250 100% 100% $250 $250

TRAINING & EDUCATION-SEWER $621 $621 100% 100% $621 $621

RENT-SEWER $1,521 $0 0% 0% $0 $0

EQUIPMENT/SOFTWARE CONTRACTS-SEW...  $15,064 $0 0% 0% $0 $0
SPRINGFIELD SEWER CHARGES-SEWER with

8% Increases next 2 years, then 6% in years after $0 $742,146 100% 100% $0| $742,146
that

TELEPHONE-SEWER $2,698 $0 0% 0% $0 $0

INTERNET-SEWER $7,113 $0 0% 0% $0 $0

UTILITIES ELECTRIC-SEWER $0  $108,278 100% 100% $0| $108,278

UTILITIES GAS-SEWER $846 $0 10% 10% $85 $0

UTILITIES OTHER-SEWER $2,681 $0 10% 10% $268 $0

VEHICLE EXPENSE FUEL-SEWER $6,997 $6,997 10% 10% $700 $700

EQUIPMENT FUEL-SEWER $3,407 $3,407 10% 10% $341 $341

VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT-SEWER $4,013 $4,013 10% 10% $401 $401

EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT-SEWER $2,888 $2,888 10% 10% $289 $289

VEHICLE LEASE-SEWER  $13,061 $13,061 10% 10% $1,306 $1,306

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3

84




Table 9 - Marginal Cost Classification

' . . Variable Marginal Marginal Marginal Marginal
Cost Items During the Basis Year Fixed Cost Cost Fixed Variable Fixed Variable
Cost%  Cost% Cost Cost
EQUIPMENT LEASE $1,934 $1,934 10% 10% $193 $193
SALARIES-SEWER $217,734  $217,734 10% 10% $21,773 $21,773
SALARIES OVERTIME-SEWER $6,504 $6,504 10% 10% $650 $650
PAYROLL TAXES-SEWER  $16,709 $16,709 10% 10% $1,671 $1,671
RETIREMENT-SEWER  $10,212 $10,212 10% 10% $1,021 $1,021
PENSION EXPENSE-SEWER $0 $0 10% 10% $0 $0
UNIFORMS-SEWER $382 $382 10% 10% $38 $38
GROUP INSURANCE-SEWER  $48,653 $48,653 10% 10% $4.865 $4,865
CAPITAL ASSET EXP-SEWER $0 $0 50% 50% $0 $0
CAPITAL ASSET EXP EQUIPMENT-SEWER $5,000 $5,000 50% 50% $2,500 $2,500
PRINCIPAL EXPENSE-SEWER $0 $0 50% 50% $0 $0
INTEREST EXPENSE-SEWER $0 $0 50% 50% $0 $0
FISCAL AGENT FEES-SEWER $912 $912 50% 50% $456 $456
BAD DEBT EXPENSE-SEWER $0 $0 50% 50% $0 $0
User Charge Analysis Services $0 $0 50% 50% $0 80
[0l P rlted Payous Loss Copeciy Craroes sooqzr  savsonr st 0% Sierae| ste7ans
Grand Total All Costs  $951,404 $1,664,735 $309,345| $1,105,304

$2,616,139 $1,414,649
Monthly Marginal
Marginal Fixed and Variable Cost Bases F.Margi"a' Varisblg
) ixed Cost Cost per
(For the Customer Type(s) Listed Above) per 1,000
Customer Gallons

$9.88

Marginal Fixed Cost as a Percent of Total Fixed Cost: 33% $8.87
Marginal Variable Cost as a Percent of Total Variable Cost: 66%

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3

85




Table 10 - Initial Rate Adjustments and Resulting Revenues
Willard, MO, Sewer Rates Model 2024-3

This table calculates new user charge rates and the revenues they would generate if adjusted durng the "Analysis Year "

After rate adjustments are made, customers will be billed monthly.

Following are Blended Sales Revenues: Sales at the current (Test Year) rates (gray highlighted columny) will apply until rates are
adjusted. Sales at the modeled rates (yellow highlighted column) would apply after the modeled rates are adopted. Adding both
together, the "blended” sales revenues show in the right-most column.

Customer
Class, Rate

Class or Meter

Size

In-City
Residential

In-City
Commercial

Volume
Range
Bottom

(in Gallons)

0
1,000
2,000
3,000
4,000
5,000
6,000
7,000
8,000
9,000

10,000
20,000
30,000

0

1,000
2,000
3,000
4,000
5,000
6,000
7,000
8,000
9,000
10,000
20,000
30,000
40,000
50,000
60,000
70,000
80,000
90,000
100,000
200,000
300,000
400,000
500,000
600,000

Volume
Range
Top

(in Gallons)

999
1,999
2,999
3,999
4,999
5,999
6,999
7,999
8,999
9,999

19,999
29,999
39,999

999
1,999
2,999
3,999
4,999
5,999
6,999
7,999
8,999
9,999

19,999
29,999
39,999
49,999
59,999
69,999
79,999
89,999
99,999
199,999
299,999
399,999
489,999
599,999
699,999

Sales This|
Year at Current
Rates|

$140,987
$205,791
$216,497
$211,083
$162,684
$82,861
$50,144
$29,325
$11,836
$5,400
$14,964
$643

$0

$21,064
$16,074
$8,794
$6.487
$5,208
$4.696
$3,700
$3,453
$3,353
$3,086
$23,347
$16,526
$11,581
$8,211
$4,577
$3,344
$2,235
$1.800
$1,804
$8,779
$3,059
$1,271
$583
$248

30

Basic
Minimum
Charge

$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34

$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34
$26.34

New Usage
Allowance in
1,000s

0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000

0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000

CBGreatRates© Version 8.3

New Unit
Charge
per 1,000
Gallons

$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58

$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58
$11.58

Sales This
Year at
Modeled
Rates

$762
$890
$846
$742
$510
$280
$166
$94
$40
$21
$56
$2
$0

$70
$52
$33
$26
$22
$20
$17
$16
$15
$14
$115
$81
$56
$39
$23
$17
$11
$10
$9
$46
$16
$7
$3
$1
$0

Total
"Blended"
Sales This
Year

$141,749
$206,681
$217,344
$211,824
$153,194
$83,141
$50,310
$29,419
$11,876
$5,421
$15,019
$645

$0

$21,134
$16,126
$8,827
$6,513
$5,230
$4,716
$3,717
$3,469
$3,368
$3,100
$23,462
$16,608
$11,637
$8,249
$4,599
$3,361
$2,246
$1,809
$1,814
$8,825
$3,075
$1,278
$587
$249

$0

86



Table 10 - Initial Rate Adjustments and Resulting Revenues

Volume
Range
Bottom

(in Gallons)

Customer
Class, Rate
Class or Meter
Size

0
1,000
2,000
3,000
4,000
5,000
6,000
7,000
8,000
9,000

10,000
20,000
30,000

Rural
Residential

0
1,000
2,000
3,000
4,000
5,000
6,000
7,000
8,000
9,000

10,000
20,000
30,000

Rural
Commercial

Volume|

Range
Top

(in Gallons)|

999
1,999
2,999
3,999
4,999
5,999
6,999
7,999
8,999
9,999

19,999
29,999
39,999

999
1,999
2,999
3,999
4,999
5,999
6,999
7,999
8,999
9,999

19,999

29,999

39,999

Total Rate Revenue at Current Rates

Sales This Basic New Usage NE:;:;: Sal\erse;‘:'l;s; “Blenzztgl'
Year at Current Minimum Allowance in per 1.000| Modeled Sales This
B S 5000S Gallons Rates Year
$21.074 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $158 $21,231
§32.629 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $189 $32,818
$34,083 $39.51 0.000 §$17.37 $177 $34,260
$32,487 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $151 $32,638
$18,756 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $87 $18,843
$10,571 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $49 $10,620
$6,590 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $30 $6,620
$3.674 $39.51 0.000 §$17.37 $16 $3,690
$1.385 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $6 $1,392
3570 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $3 $573
$1.374 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $8 $1,382
$411 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $2 $413
$0 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $0 $0
$228 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $2 $230
$499 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $2 $501
$261 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $1 $263
$152 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $1 $153
$152 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $1 $153
$1562 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $1 $153
$212 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $1 $214
$260 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $1 $261
$234 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $1 $235
$149 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $1 $150
$795 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $4 $800
$124 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $1 $124
$0 $39.51 0.000 $17.37 $0 $0
$1.452.317 Total Rate Revenue at Mog::z: $6.022
Total Blended Rate Revenues for the Year $1,458,339

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3

87



Table 17 - Financial Capacity Indicators and Reserves
Willard, MO, Sewer Rates Model 2024-3

s table depicta the affordability of fulre retes, tha financial heaith of the system and ¥ #ading Eaares = riieus (assirec) sccounts for the el yeas and the naxl 10 years

L
Test Year O ¥ear 1st Year 2nd Year 3rd Year 4th Year Sth Year 6th Year 7th Year 8th Year Sth Year 10th Year

Starting Starungy Starting Starting Starting Starting Starting Starting Starting Starting Starting Slaring

Capacily Indicators 11123 14124 11125 1126 1ner 1128 1129 11130 131 132 13 1134
i O T T e T $55.46 2424 8761 $91.11 $9476 $0855  $10249  $10659  $11085  $11520  $11990 51470

Customary Affordabilily Index

Residental Customer

AMHI Within Service Avea $79,951 583,380, $86,914 $90,621 $94,485 $98,514 $102714  $107,094  $111,661 $116422  $121,387  $126,563

Affordabillty Index:

Current Rates First Column, Modeled Rates After That 083% 1.31% 121% 121% 1.20% 120% 1.20% 1.19% 119% 1.19% 1.19% 1.18%
Nalional Average Affordability Index:

G pted but Not Stati Verifiable 1.00% 1.00% 1,00% 1.00% 1.00% 100% 1.00% 100% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1,00%|

Affordability Index (Al) goirs 1o the i and abédy of to pay. Al ia the cost of 60,000 gallons of residential service per year (5,000 gallons per month} divided by the Annuat Median Household Income {(AMHI} in thej

service area (gleaned fiom Consus dota of o survey). Rates neal 1.0% are comman in the U S, and are generally considered affordable Most grant agencies will decline to award grants if the Al 1s less than 1.5 to 2.0%, unless
other edgitality criteria considered along with the Al make an applicant bl

g Monthly Bif for @ 2,000 gzl per Mot keGSR s3701  aaasd 55148 $5354 $5568 $5701 $5022 56263 6514 86774 87045 937
e

% § IncomestOnehaffthe AMHIandRengatOnehall  sagg7s  s4nsas| 41688 $42567 543495 $M44Z2 S50 463X 47325 548334 WO364 3047

i i for Low- Low-valuma: Current

% 2 Rates First Column Modeled Rates After That 114% 1,45% 148% 151% 154% 156% 150% 162% 165% 166% 171% 17
2

g = This i indicator of ility EsaUTIES & | customer with income at one-half the median household Income above, that Income /s Growsig &t ane-hait the rate of the median household income and the customer

3

(mes 2,000 gallons par month Such i cuslomer & Mrely efther & MRIMUm wage o (0 IHRETIUM Yage Wole. o s relred and bwing only on Social Secuwity benefits: Such customers are more commonly the “slow pays™ and “na
pays" compased 1o others 8o this indicator goes tn the "business sense” cf fhe rates modeied hate fn other words, rame this customer's b too fmwch amid thay are i ¢ biely 4 pay lale or not pay

R

Estimated Operating Ratio: Current Rales First Cotumn,
Modeled Rates After That 068 a9 151 151 149 150 145 128 143 148 147 148

A1 0 0R i3 break aven Betow 1.0 indicates operating in the “red ” Generally, the OF should be a1 least 1 15 for

Operaling ratio (OR) s @ murasuty of the uslity's abiity 10 pay its operaling expenies Lling only cuttent incomes.
utiity has or will hisve reserves (below,) it has mate ablity fo pay I3 operating costs than this caleulasion of OR

large systems, 130 or more for mackum-sited systems and perhaps as Tagh as 2 0 for small systems Noto [fthe
implies
Estimated Coverage Ratio: Current Rates First Column, 000 000
Modeled Rates Afier That
Coverage Ratio (CR) goes to the ability of the utility to pay its debt payments out of current incomes CR applies only to years with debt service A"N A ™ above indicates lhere was not, orin a future year there will not be debt
during that year 10 is break even - just enough net revenue to pay debt. Generally, the CR should be at least 1 25. Note' if the uliity has or wilt havi st available reserves (shown below,) it has more ability to make debt
payments than the CR implies That Is covered by the Alternative Coverage Rato that follows next
Alternative Coverage Ratle: Current Rates First Column,
Modeled Rates After That 360 013 226 -1.06 -1.30 -092 -051 003 093 -035 1.00 245
Tren Algenative Covetage Ravo (ACR) = bated on the same nation as the ok
with euttent et reviendes, but then futune ratas may not by high enough to show a sirong CR. The classe CR could avan go negative. Bxt
Altatnatris Covoragh Ratio can be a better indeator of i ullity's tue abidiy 1o pay debt

004 003 000 002 (e 000 000 000 000 000

ahes CovaTage 1250 above, except i includes inveives that ale available to pay debt service. With the classic CR, a utllity could build reserves early on
i reality, the utility could have quile strong reserves with which to pay debt Thus. lhe

Balance Balance Balance] Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance

Endngon  Endingon  Ending an; Ending on Ending on Ending on Endingon  Endingon  Endingon  Endingon  Endingon  Endingon  Ending on

eserves 129vn 12/31723 1203124 12131125 12131726 1Ry 12/31728 12/31129 12/31/30 123131 12/31/32 12/31/33 12/31734
Cash and Cash Equivalents  $1,150,793 $361,831 £353.015 832,926 £877,332 $930,960 5973242 $1,063687 $1,265611 $1,192922 $1204,002 $1,278038 $1.342,074

Other Liguid Assets 30 30 0 30 30 30 $0 30 50 $0 £0 $0 50

Total Undedicaled Cash Assets ~ $1.150,793  $361,931  S153615|  $832,006  $877.332  $030,960  $973,242 $1,063667 $1.265611 $1,192922 §1.204092 $1.278038 $1,342074

Total Cash Assets Discounled for Inflabon
(Futwre Unrestricted Purchasing Power) $1150793  $361.931 353815  $807,038 5825462  $B49,662  $861,604  $913424 §1,054218  $963,861  $943699  S971.604 $1,020.286
Reparr & Replacement $0 $0 0 30 $0 %0 50 $0 30 $0 30 $0 %0
Debt and CIP Reserves S0 -$320,001 -59085014| -51341,998 -$1493.877 -$1,365161 -51,164,398 -$1,051,885 -§1,619233 $1322,299 8827632 -$357.931  $184,681

SUm o AIRESVES 51450793 347230, -5731,098| -$509,072 5616544 3434201 S$191156  S11.802 -5350.622 Sim077  SI0A450 5020108 152675

CBGreatRates© Version 8.3 8 8



Table 18 - Bills Before and After Rate Adjustments
Willard, MO, Sewer Rates Model 2024-3

The modeled rates will generate

51.3%

more revenue per year than the rates at the end of the test year.

However, due to rate restructuring, individual bills would change as shown in the following table. Note: The actual rates to adopt or
consider are included in the narrative report.

Customers Usin Customers  Customers : - .. Modeled Bill

%T:;Zn;?rMizf Gallons of at Least Thig Using This  Using This Blugsr[\rjgr\:: Mogclel:eac; Nll:gg:geB:: Percentage
Size Use Volume But Not  Volume or Volume or Rates Rates Decrease (-) Increase or
the Next Less More Decrease (-)

0 3 3 2,003 $26.21 $26.34 $0.13 0%

1,000 270 273 2,000 $32.06 $37.92 $5.86 18%

2,000 391 664 1,731 $37.91 $49.50 $11.59 31%

3,000 482 1,146 1,339 $43.76 $61.08 $17.32 40%

4,000 380 1,526 858 $49.61 $72.66 $23.05 46%

5,000 203 1,729 478 $55.46 $84.24 $28.78 52%

In-City Residential 6,000 127 1,855 275 $61.31 $95.82 $34.51 56%
7,000 78 1,933 148 $67.16 $107.40 $40.24 60%

8,000 28 1,962 70 $73.01 $118.98 $45.97 63%

9,000 10 1,972 42 $78.86 $130.56 $51.70 66%

10,000 30 2,002 32 $84.71 $142.14 $57.43 68%

20,000 1 2,003 1 $143.21 $257.94 $114.73 80%

30,000 0 2,003 0 $201.71 $373.74 $172.03 85%

0 37 37 137 $26.21 $26.34 $0.13 0%

1,000 29 66 100 $32.06 $37.92 $5.86 18%

2,000 12 78 71 $37.91 $49.50 $11.59 31%

3,000 8 85 59 $43.76 $61.08 $17.32 40%

4,000 5 91 52 $49.61 $72.66 $23.05 46%

5,000 5 95 47 $55.46 $84.24 $28.78 52%

6,000 2 98 42 $61.31 $95.82 $34.51 56%

7,000 2 100 40 $67.16 $107.40 $40.24 60%

8,000 2 102 38 $73.01 $118.98 $45.97 63%

9,000 2 104 35 $78.86 $130.56 $51.70 66%

In-City 10,000 10 114 33 $84.71 $142.14 $57.43 68%
Commercial 20,000 7 120 24 $143.21 $257.94 $114.73 80%
30,000 5 126 17 $201.71 $373.74 $172.03 85%

40,000 5 131 11 $260.21 $489.54 $229.33 88%

50,000 2 133 7 $318.71 $605.34 $286.63 90%

60,000 1 134 5 $377.21 $721.14 $343.93 91%

70,000 1 135 3 $435.71 $836.94 $401.23 92%

80,000 0 135 3 $494.21 $952.74 $468.53 93%

90,000 0 135 3 $552.71 $1,068.54 $515.83 93%

100,000 1 137 2 $611.21 $1,184.34 $573.13 94%

200,000 0 137 1 $1,196.21 $2,342.34 $1,146.13 96%

300,000 0 137 0 $1,781.21 $3,500.34 $1,719.13 97%

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3

89



Table 18 - Bills Before and After Rate Adjustments

Customers Using  Customers  Customers Bill at Now Billat Modeled Bil Modeled Bill

%:::T)?rli/lita; Gallons of at Least This  Using This  Using This Current Modeled  Increase or Percentage
Size Use Volume But Not Volume or Volume or Rates Rates Decrease (-) Increase or
the Next Less More Decrease (-)
0 0 0 277 $28.52 $39.51 $10.99 39%
1,000 44 44 277 $34.88 $56.88 $22.00 63%
2,000 62 105 233 $41.24 $74.25 $33.01 80%
3,000 73 178 172 $47.61 $91.62 $44.01 92%
4,000 43 221 98 $53.97 $108.99 $55.02 102%
5,000 24 245 56 $60.33 $126.36 $66.03 109%
Rural Residential 6,000 16 260 32 $66.70 $143.73 $77.03 116%
7,000 9 270 16 $73.06 $161.10 $88.04 121%
8,000 3 273 7 $79.42 $178.47 $99.05 125%
9,000 1 274 4 $85.79 $195.84 $110.05 128%
10,000 2 276 3 $92.15 $213.21 $121.06 131%
20,000 1 277 1 $155.78 $386.91 $231.13 148%
30,000 0 277 0 $219.41 $560.61 $341.20 156%
0 0 0 3 $36.47 $39.51 $3.04 8%
1,000 1 1 3 $42.83 $56.88 $14.05 33%
2,000 0 1 2 $49.20 $74.25 $25.05 51%
3,000 0 1 2 $55.56 $91.62 $36.06 65%
4,000 0 1 2 $61.92 $108.99 $47.07 76%
; 5,000 0 1 2 $68.29 $126.36 $58.07 85%
Rural Commercial
6,000 0 1 2 $74.65 $143.73 $69.08 93%
7,000 0 2 2 $81.01 $161.10 $80.09 99%
8,000 0 2 2 $87.37 $178.47 $91.10 104%
9,000 0 2 1 $93.74 $195.84 $102.10 109%
10,000 1 3 1 $100.10 $213.21 $113.11 113%
20,000 0 3 0 $163.73 $386.91 $223.18 136%
0 2 2 8 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A.
1,000 1 3 6 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A.
2,000 1 4 5 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A.
3,000 1 5 4 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A.
4,000 0 5 3 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A.
5,000 0 5 3 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A.
No Charge 6,000 0 5 3 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A.
("Zero") 7,000 0 6 3 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A.
8,000 1 6 2 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A.
9,000 0] 6 2 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A.
10,000 1 7 2 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A.
20,000 0 7 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A.
30,000 0 8 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A.
40,000 0 8 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N.A.

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3 9 O



Chart 1 - Operating Ratio

1.80 -
1.60 -
1.40 -
1.20
1.00 -
0.80 -
0.60 - ->-Modeled Rates
&-Current Rates
0.40 - =Breakeven
0.20 -
0.00 ' '
§EFFEITEFeEEs
400 Chart 2 - Coverage Ratio

-+-Proposed Rates

#Current Rates

3.00 - =—Breakeven

—Alternative Coverage Ratio

2.00 -

1.00 -

0.00 -

-1.00

-2.00 -

-3.00 -

CBGreatRates© Version 8.3



Chart 3 - Residential Users' Bills

$140.00 - 485,000 Gallons at Current Rates
--5,000 Gallons at Proposed Rates
-8-2,000 Gallons at Low-income Rates

$120.00 -

$100.00 -

$80.00 -

$60.00 -

$40.00 -

$20.00 -

$0.00 - S — '

<
O3 2

> |
03 »

Chart 4 - Affordability
2.00% -

1.80% -
1.60% -

1.40%

1.20% -

1.00% -

0.80%

e

0.60% - 485,000 Gallons at Current Rates
--5,000 Gallons at Proposed Rates
-9-2,000 Gallons at Low-income Rates

—5,000 Gallons at National Average

0.40% -

0.20% -

0.00% - : : : ' - - L : . ; ,

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3 9 2



$2,000,000

$1,000,000 -

$0

-$1,000,000 -

-$2,000,000 -

-$3,000,000 -

-$4,000,000 -

-$5,000,000 -

$2,000,000

$1,000,000

$0

-$1,000,000

-$2,000,000

-$3,000,000

-$4,000,000

-$5,000,000

Chart 5 - Working Capital vs Goal

i — o __‘-‘
N - -
3o] » s © A (0] "
A% v A v v %] e}
§ & F e ¥ &
--Proposed Rates
&-Current Rates
=(oal
Chart 6 - Value of Cash Assets Before Inflation
J
(30) \VJ (s} © A
‘ Y, A\ o v v
&8
|
]
|
| --Proposed Rates
‘ &Current Rates

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3 9 3



$2,000,000 -

$1,000,000 -

Chart 7 - Value of Cash Assets After Inflation

3
4
L 4
L 4
2
:

$0 -

%
-$1,000,000 1§
|

-$2,000,000 -

-$3,000,000 -

Al |

-$4,000,000

-$5,000,000 -

-$6,000,000

-

-$7,000,000

$4,000,000

$2,000,000 -
|

$0 +—

| £
I
-$2,000,000 <V

-$4,000,000 -
-$6,000,000 -
-$8,000,000 -
-$10,000,000 -
-$12,000,000 -

-$14,000,000 -

-$16,000,000 -

-<-Proposed Rates
&Current Rates

Chart 8 - Sum of All Reserves

--Proposed Rates
48-Current Rates

CBGreatRates®© Version 8.3

94



s CITY OF WILLARD, MISSOURI

224 W. Jackson Street  P.O.Box 187  Willard, MO 65781 417-742-3033  417-742-3080 Fax

Agenda Item #8
DISCUSSION ITEM ONLY

PROPOSED DRAFTS OF

An Ordinance Amending Chapter 705 Waterworks System,
Article 1l Water Service, Section 705.040 Water Rates
AND
An Ordinance Amending Chapter 710 Sewer Use and Sewer
Rates, Article VII Wastewater Charges and Rates, Section

710.470 Rates of the Municipal Code of the City of Willard

“
09/23/2024 BOA Meeting Agenda




PROPOSED ORDINANCE DRAFT - FOR DISCUSSION ONLY

FIRST READ: SECOND READ:

BILL NO.: ORDINANCE NO.:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILLARD, MISSOURI, AMENDING TITLE VII UTILITIES,
CHAPTER 705, WATER RATES, ARTICLE Il WATER RATES

WHEREAS, the City of Willard owns and operates a municipal water supply storage and
distribution system permitted by the State of Missouri; and

WHEREAS, the City of Willard has caused to be a conducted a rate analysis to determine
whether the current rate structure is adequate to cover operating and maintenance costs
for the water system of the City of Willard; and

WHEREAS, the results of which has caused City of Willard to determine a need to amend
Chapter 705 of the Municipal Code to update the water rates for both in-City and non-City
customers to ensure the proper maintenance and operation of the municipal water system;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED AND RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF
THE CITY OF WILLARD, GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: The City does hereby amend Title VII Utilities, Chapter 705 Waterworks
System, Article Il Water Service, Section 705.040 Water Rates of the Municipal Code of
the City of Willard, effective October 28, 2024, as follows:

Except as provided for bulk at a flat rate, every user of water from the municipal water
system of the City of Willard, Missouri, shall use said water only after it has been metered
in a water meter to be furnished, installed, regulated, and controlled by said City and the
applicant for each meter, on behalf of themselves, shall pay for said water used at the
following monthly rate:

a. There shall be assessed to each in-City user of the municipal water system a
minimum charge of twelve dollars and fifty-seven cents ($12.57) per month, and
an additional charge of three dollars and ninety-one cents ($3.91) per one
thousand (1,000) gallons or fractional part thereof used per month with no usage
allowance.

b. There shall be assessed to each non-City user of the municipal water system a
minimum charge of eighteen dollars and eighty-six cents ($18.86) per month,



and an additional charge of five dollars and eighty-seven cents ($5.87) per one
thousand (1,000) gallons or fractional part thereof used per month with no usage
allowance.

These rates shall be reviewed annually before the end of each fiscal year.
Recommendations for any rate adjustments shall be presented to the Board of Aldermen
as part of the upcoming fiscal year’s budget consideration. Any proposed rate changes
shall thereafter be timely presented in a public hearing, allowing for theirimplementation
at the beginning of the upcoming fiscal year or as soon thereafter as feasible.

Section 2: Definitions: An in-City user shall be defined as a user located within the
incorporated city limits at the time of billing. A non-City user shall be defined as a user
located outside the incorporated city limits at the time of billing.

Section 3: In addition to the above charges, all other provisions of Chapter 710 not
specifically amended by this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 4: The terms of this ordinance shall take effect from and after its passage by the
Board of Aldermen and approval by the Mayor.

Approved as to Form:

Nate Dally, City Attorney

Approved By:

Mayor Troy Smith

Attested By:

Janice Gargus, City Clerk



PROPOSED ORDINANCE DRAFT - FOR DISCUSSION ONLY

FIRST READ: SECOND READ:

BILL NO.: ORDINANCE NO.:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILLARD, MISSOURI, AMENDING TITLE VIl UTILITIES,
CHAPTER 710, SEWER USE AND SEWER RATES, ARTICLE VIl WASTEWATER CHARGES
AND RATES

WHEREAS, the City of Willard owns and operates a wastewater collection and treatment
system permitted by the State of Missouri; and

WHEREAS, the City of Willard has caused to be a conducted a rate analysis to determine
whether the current rate structure is adequate to cover operating and maintenance costs
for the water system of the City of Willard; and

WHEREAS, the results of which have caused the City of Willard to determine a need to
amend Chapter 710 of the Municipal Code to update the sewer rates for both in-City and
non-City customers to ensure the proper maintenance and operation of the municipal
sewer system;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED AND RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN FOR
THE CITY OF WILLARD, GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: The City does hereby amend Title VII Utilities, Chapter 705 Waterworks
System, Article Il Water Service, Section 705.040 Water Rates of the Municipal Code of
the City of Willard, effective October 28, 2024, as follows:

a. There shall be assessed to each in-City user of the Publicly Owned Treatment
Works (POTW) a minimum charge of twenty-five dollars and sixty-seven cents
($25.67) per month, and a volume charge of eleven dollars and seventy-two
cents ($11.72) per one thousand (1,000) gallons or fractional part thereof, with no
usage atlowance.

b. There shall be assessed to each non-City user of the POTW a minimum charge of
thirty-eight dollars and fifty cents ($38.50) per month, and to each non-City user,
avolume charge of seventeen dollars and fifty-eight cents ($17.58) per one
thousand (1,000) gallons or fractional part thereof, with no usage allowance.



These rates shall be reviewed annually before the end of each fiscal year.
Recommendations for any rate adjustments shall be presented to the Board of Aldermen
as part of the upcoming fiscal year’s budget consideration. Any proposed rate changes
shall thereafter be timely presented in a public hearing, allowing for their implementation
at the beginning of the upcoming fiscal year or as soon thereafter as feasible.

Section 2: Definitions: An in-City user shall be defined as a user located within the
incorporated city limits at the time of billing. A non-City user shall be defined as a user
located outside the incorporated city limits at the time of billing.

Section 3: In addition to the above charges, all other provisions of Chapter 710 not
specifically amended by this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 4: The terms of this ordinance shall take effect from and after its passage by the
Board of Aldermen and approval by the Mayor.

Approved as to Form:

Nate Dally, City Attorney

Approved By:

Troy Smith, Mayor

Attested By:

Janice Gargus, City Clerk



	Agenda Item #2
	Agenda Item #3 and #3a
	Agenda Item #3b
	Agenda Item #3c
	Agenda Item #3d
	Agenda Item #3e
	Agenda Item #3f
	Agenda Item #7
	Agenda Item #8



